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2020

Financial Highlights
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£40m £103m

Operating profit generation Operating capital generation
Profit before tax Solvency ll capitul surplus
Transfer from Unallocated Capital Coverage Ratio

Divisible Surplus
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A bit about us and what we do

We're a protection, savings and retirement provider.

We help our customers protect their income while they are working and maximise it
when they stop. By doing this we enable people to live confident lives.

We believe that everyone should have access to independent, regulated financial
advice. It should not be seen as a luxury for the few who can afford it or who are
experienced in using it. Why? Because it provides financial and emotional benefits.
Good advice ensures better financial outcomes and frees people from the worry of
making complex decisions that could have long-term implications.

We work with a wide range of financial advisers and it is through them that the
majority of customers will buy our products and services.

Our 1.28million customers, 1.25million of which are members, hold a variety of
products with us including life insurance, income protection, investments and
retirement income solutions such as equity release, fixed-term annuities and
drawdown products.

We have tried to use plain English throughout this document to moke it as understandable os possible
for alt our stakeholders. However, some of the information in the report is quite technicol and it has been
necessary to use terminology or performance measures which are not commonly understood. To assist
the reader a glossary is provided on page 65 ond explanations as to why we use certain non-standard
performance measures is provided on page 66-67.



£28m

Mutual bonus allocated to
member’s policies

£45m

Exit bonus distributed to
eligible members

Section 172
statement

The section 172
statement, explaining
how the directors
have carried out
their duty to
promote the success
of the company
for the benefit of
stakeholders as a
whole, can be found
in the corporate
governance
statement on pages
40 to 44.

Chairman’s

Review

Alan Cook
Chairman

Despite the unprecedented challenges from the
pandemic, LV= has delivered a good financial
performance in 2020 and we have created real
momentum in our trading businesses. We are
reporting a Solvency Il capital surplus of £690m
and operoting profit generation of £40m. { am
pleased that we have again been able to share
same of the financial benefits with our with-
profits members through the allocation of a
mutual bonus of £28m. This has been applied
by uplifting the asset share of relevant with-
profits policies by up to 1%.

The sale of the general insurance business

in 2019 represented a good return on the
investment members made into its growth, with
the resultant sale proceeds enabling a surplus
to be raturned to with-profits members. This
surplus will be distributed through on-going
mutual bonuses and a special exit bonus
introduced in 2020. This has already allowed

us 1o share £45rm of exit bonus with eligible
members during the year. More information on
these distributions can be found on our website
ot https://www.lv.com/members/mutuai-bonus/
Iv-difference.

The vast magjority of our people have been
working from home since the first lockdown in
March. | was impressed with how quickly our
teams were able to change the operation from
largely office based to largely home based in
anincredibly short period of time. It is thanks to
the hard work and dedication of our people that
unlike some of our competitors we never closed
our phone lines at any stage to our members or
customers and we even managed to increase
our Net Promaoter Score among financiol
advisers over the course of the year. The wider
impact of Covid-19 and the actions we took to
protect our stakeholders duiing this difficult
period is covered more fully within the Corporate
Governance Statement on pages 43 and 44.

As we trade purely within the UK, Brexit has
limited direct impact on LV= although like alt
ather finencial services organisations we ore
not immune to the effects of market volatility
ond investor uncertainty.

In 2020 we completed a significant change
agenda and delivered a number of initiotives
that helped improve our trading performance.
We increased our market share in both the
Protection and Savings and Retirement
businesses for the first time since 2016. In
Protection we launched our Flexible Protection
Plan and enhanced Life and Critical [liness
cover for children. We also refreshed our
Family Income Benefit ond extended our LV=
Doctor Services package. Within Savings and

Retirement our star performer has been the
reinvigoration of our Smooth Managed Funds
proposition {also referred to as our Flexible
Guarantee products). Not only have we seen an
increase in funds invested after simplification of
our Pension wrapper, we aiso launched our new
LV= Trustee Investment Plan. More detail on
our trading performance can be found in

the Overview of Performance section on

pages 11 to 14.

During the course of the year we increased the
depth of life and pensions knowledge on the
board with Susan Mclnnes joining on 01 April
2020 to replace Tanya Lawler. Susan has over
30 years’ experience in the sector including
12 years ot Phoenix Group where she held a
number of leadership roles including customer
irector and chief risk officer for the Phoenix
Group before being appointed chief executive
officer of Standard Life Assuranice in
September 2018.

Strategic review

To continue to compete successfully in an
increasingly competitive life and pensions
market LV= requires significant long-term
investment. As a mutual, this investment would
have to come from capital provided over time
by our with-profits members. The scale of the
investment required and time taken to deliver
growth means many members would not see
the rewards before their policies end.

Itis my and the board’s duty to take action

in the best interests of members and itis in
that spirit that during 2020 the board led a
comprehensive and rigorous strategic review
to assess the strategic options available to
the business. It was concluded that simply
continuing as we were would not be in the
best long-term interests of our members and
other stakeholders, and the board explored a
wide range of alternative options supported by
financial, tegal and actuarial advisers.

After careful consideration the board was
unanimous in its decision to pursue a
transaction with Bain Capital. While this
proposal means LV = will no longer be a mutuat,
LV="s culture, heritage and values will live on.
This decision is not one that the board has
taken lightly, however it is our duty to put the
interests of cur members first. The agreed
transaction was announced on 15 December
2020 and subject to member and regulatory
agreement we expect it to complete by the end
of March 2022. Further details are included in
the Strategy and Business Model section on
pages 8 1o 10.
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Outlook

. We exist to provide ulfurduble uLLessible puulectluu ulswunce for peuple tJunng their working lives und t enable lhem o tetire W|th
‘confidence. The new structure along our three business lines, which we |rmor‘uced ot the start of 2020, provucles a solid Dlotform from
.which to build a sustainable business for the Iong term. . -
o ‘Success in 2021 will be determined by three simple obJectlves dellver the tronsoctlon with Bain Copltol hit our trading targets and .

"o .. continue our drive to reduce the complexity of our busingss in order to improve efficiency and lower our cost base. -
TN Withthe bockung of Bain Capital, the board is excited by the opportunities for LV to further develop asa mojor force in the UK hfe

: Sins uroncc morl'ct for the benefit of our people, pcn tners and customers, :

K “Althoughthe - Customers at our Heart - Our Customer Agenda

.Strateglc Ch.ange-s " Lynzi Harrison our Heritage Director-and LV= Customer Chdmpion oversées our Customer
| have outllned agenda to ensure that all our LV= customeérs:are provided with the outcomes we promise.

We want our customers to feel valued, that we are eosy to. do’ busmess with and that' we

above mean that - .
deliver with heart. We do thls by providing: '

we will no longer be

a mutual once the ¢ Strong governance to ensure our solutions e Suppo'rtlto' our vulnerable cuétomers atall’

: . d Ui '. d d . and products deliver for our customers. times and with extra care in emergencies:
S al is conclude L - . . . Wi
R € o » Continuously improving service and with our member fund. )
I N our CUStomers W'"' '+ .outcomes to ensure we are there whenour -+ Green Heart Moments when our
: U0 remdin ﬁrm{g at customers need us. : - : customers need an extra boost.f~
the heart of.all Our Customer Charter captures how we II deliver great service to our customers and
" p 9
that we do . howitwill feel from a customer’ s perspectlve when we do:

©

o The desired customer experience... -
‘ Easy o Customers feel = ' Delivered

‘ - to do business with - Va ﬂ.u ed With Heart

. Underpinned by our values

We are... cou&m&@@ mcn@we cumo@ TR@TED
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Indicators T

Our Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are those that the directors judge to be most effective in
measuring the group’s performance and assessing progress against our strategic objectives. Our
KPls are based on the key metrics in the balanced scorecard that drives employee and director
remuneratian. In addition the performance of the with-profits fund isincluded asa KPl as itis a
key indicator of how we are returning value to our members.

Best loved @ Aim _
Customer NPS { We cim to deliver excellent customer service levels, while consistently
1. \ _ treating customers fairly. We set challenging targets across a ronge of
SRR ~ relevant opinion surveys to measure our ‘Best loved’ performance. Our
main 2020 torgets were to achieve a customer net promoter score (NPS) of
52 and to achieve a top five NPS ranking from-advisers for both Drotection
and Savings and Retirement.
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Performance

We ure pleused 1o have delivered on vur targets for customer service
and adviser advocacy. We met our 2020 target, achieving a Customer
N NPS of 52 at the year end. In addition, we received positive feedback f
rom customers throughout the Covid- 19 pandemic.

dwer NPS ranking for 2020 Our Adviser NPS target has been met with Savings and Retirement
N . Rddkiﬁé rariking third ond Protection ranking fifth in their respective business .
' ochieved categories.

Protection Sth
. Top 5
Savings and ronking
. 3rd
Retirement

Employee engagement © Aim

{ As we go through a sustained period of change for the business our aim
is to maintain employee engagement throughout this time. Our target is
to increose engagement abeve the globat financiol services benchmaorie .+ o
which for 2020 stood ot 82%.

Performance

As a business we see our people as the core enabler of our performance
and a key differentiator in ensuring that LV= remains ‘Best loved".
Although understandable given the sustained period of change and
unceriginty in recent years, it has nonetheless been difficult to see
employee engagement tevels fall year-on-year, since the announcement of
the sale of our general insurance business in 2017.

We are therefore delighted that engagement scores have increased to
76% for 2020, up 5% from 2018. Improved results reflect the positive
actions taken by the business to ensure our staff could continue to work
safely through the Covid-19 pondemic and also positive staff reaction to
the announcement of the Bain Capital transaction ot the end of the year.

We recognise that there is still a long way to go before we achieve our
f i ol T W ! W ! W ! employee cngagement aspirations but the executive team are determined
inancia = = = _
services  engagement engagement engagement todoall _thot they can to ensure that staff are fully engaged as LV= moves
benchmark 2018 2019 2020 forward inlo the next stage of its development.
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Operating capital generation £m

2018

2019

2020

Key @ Achieved target
Missed target
«

wom Target

Aim

We aim to generate positive capital from our trading businesses in order to
continue to return good value to our members. Annual targets are set in our
financial plan, with the target for 2020 being £72m.

Performance

Operating capital generation for 2020 was above target at £103m. The
tough trading conditions during the year have impacted both new business
volumes and margins, leading to the copital generated by our trading
activities reducing to £58m (2019: £87m). However, operating capital
benefited from Estate investrent returns and positive reserving changes.
For further detail see our Overview of Performance on pagel2.

Capital Coverage Ratio (CCR)%

2018

2019

2020

Aim

We aim to ensure the long-term sustainability of the group by maintaining a
robust Solvency Il Cepital Coverage Ratio {CCR). Our risk appetite is a CCR%
within the ronge of 140% - 200%.

Performance

A Strategic Review has been conducted to conclude on how best to serve
our members in utilising the excess capital generated from the sale of the
general insurance business at the end of 2019. Our CCR% at the end of 2020
is within risk appetite at 198%. The foll in CCR% during the year reflects
the fall in Solvency it capital surplus from £944m to £630m. driven by £92m
relating to distributions to palicyholders, £49m relating to the reduction

in value of the pension scheme following de-risking activity and £103m
economic impact, the majority of which is offset by an increase in TMTP
which is aligned to our intended interest hedging strategy. For more details
on the movement in our capital during the year see the Financial review at
198% on page 15.

CCR% is the ratio of group eligible own funds to the solvency capital
requirement. it indirectly links to directors’ remuneration as growth in own
funds contributes to Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) vesting for in-flight
schemes.
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Main with-profits fund return %

[13.5%

2018

2019

2020

Aim

We aim to deliver strong investment returns for members by targeting the
main with-profits fund return at or above benchmark. In 2020 benchmark
returns were 6.2%.

Performance

Volatile investment markets have impacted fund performance over the year.
The with-profits fund improved in the fincl quarter as global markets began
to recover from the falls earlier in the year. The fund ended the year having
generated returns of 8.9%, which was above benchmark. For further detail
see our investment returns analysis in our Overview of Performance on
page 13.




Our Strategy
and Business Model

Strategic priorities
We started the year as o newly standalone savings, retirement and protection business led by our
new chief executive officer, Mark Hartigan.

His priority was to refine our strategy and establish three lines of business — Savings and Retirement,
Protection and Heritage - with clear and targeted plans to deliver on our ambitions. These plans
include the development of savings; retirement and protection products, as well os reducing our cost
base to ensure that the business has the right level of costs to reflect its new structure.

Alongside this early in 2020, the board began a strategic review of the business. The sale of the
general insurance business at the end cf 2019 had significantly strengthened the capital position

Our Core Purpose of LV=. However, it was clear to the board that the life and pensions market was becoming
. increasingly dominated by large insurers with access to capital. It was clear that the board had
We believe that 1o find a way to secure significant external investment to balance the priority of meeting the best
everyone deserves to interests of members while also investing for the future.
Live Conﬁdent, A key milestone in this strategy review was achieved in December 2020 when it was announced thaot,
and we exist to help subject to member approval and completion of the regulatory and legol processes, LV= had agreed

a transaction which will cee Bain Capital purchase the LV = business. Further details of this strategic

people do that. review and what it could mean for the LV= business model, are outlined on the following pages.

Our businesses

Savings and Retirement

Our Savings and Retirement strategy is to provide pensions and investments products
for people who have worked hard to save over their life and are looking to secure their
future finances.

Qur Savings and Retirement business will:

« Provide products to meet the needs of customers who save and retire with us through an
adviser.

¢ Focus our products and services on our core market segments.
+ Promote the importance of seeking financial advice when making investment decisions.

Protection

Our core purpose in Protection is to enable consumers to build resilience into their lives
by providing solutions that protect their income to meet both changing health and
financial needs.

We are comimitted to building propositions thot:

¢ Address unmet customer needs. ]

* Create customer and adviser journeys that make it easy to do business with us.
« Promote the value of quality advice. A

Heritage

Our Heritage strategy is to be a modern closed book business that focuses on our

members' best interests.

Our areas of focus will be:

« Be there for our members, ensuring good member outcomes at all times and in particulor
prioritising our vulnerable members.

« Provide a strong and rebuct control envirenment te ensure cur members’ meney and assets are
safe at ¢l times.

« Control our costs and deliver the bect outcomes we can for the money invested, ensuring strong
returns to with-profit policyholders.



Our Strategy and Business Model 9

Transition of Our Business Model

The graphic below illustrates the current LV= business model.
This demonstrates LV='"s mutual model where the LV= business
is owned by its members. Members’ premiums or investments
are invested into the business and managed in order to generate
returns which con be used to settle members’ claims and provide
future returns on their investments. Surplus funds generated by
the business moy be used to allocate a mutual bonus to eligible
with-profits members. This mutual model has served us well

for many years.but significantly restricts our ability to invest

in the business, both to remain competitive and to achieve
future growth.

In 2019 we outlined our plans to create a stronger and more
competitive business and some of the potential changes we
wanted to make. By the end of that year members had voted
for our conversion to a company limited by guarantee and we
had sold our remaining stake in the general insurance business
to Allianz. This sale provided a necessary strengthening of our
capital position and the ability to increase the value returned to
our with-profits members over time.

We are now a smaller standalone life and pensions company but
with the same ambitions for growth and success. One year in, we

are already seeing the results of this focus with delivery of new
products to market, improved cost efficiencies and better ways
for IFAs to do business with us. However, in a market increasingly
dominated by large insurers with access to capital, LV= requires
significant long-term investment to realise these ambitions.

It had become clear, that if we continued to operate under the
LV= mutual model, mony of our with-profits members would not
benefit from the return on that investment. The size and scale

of the investment required and the time taken to deliver growth,
together with the age profile of our with-profits policies, means
that many of these members would not see the rewards before
their policies end.

The board was faced with the challenge of identifying the most
effective way to address the inherent tension between balancing
the requirement to invest in the Savings and Retirement and
Protection businesses for the long term while providing enhanced
returns te with-profits policyholders.

A wide range of options and proposals were carefully considered
by the beard supported by independent financial and legal advice
and in consultation with the independent With-profits Committee to
enable it to make on informed decision about which option to pursue.

Qur current mutual model

v

LV= Group

Owned by
LV= members

Savings and Retirement
products

Heritage legacy
products

Protection
products

Members’ premiums/investments
are held in members' funds

Members’

Funds used to settle members’
claims and provide returns
on investments

Funds

invested in a variety of
assets. Returns on

Funds used to settle members’
claims and provide returns
on investments

these investments
increase the value of
members’ funds

Surplus funds from the LV= Estate
may be used to allocate a mutual
or exit bonus to eligible with-

profits members

Surplus funds of the group
are held in the LV= Estate

LV= Estate

own funds of the group Key

invested to generate
returns, pay distributions
and provide capital
security

Flow of members’ funds

Flow of funds returned
to members
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Our Strategy and Business Model 10

The question the board asked itself at every stage was “What

is best for our members?” After coreful evaluation of all our
options the board unanimously agreed that the proposal from
Bain Capital presented members with ¢n excellent financial
outcome, as well as offering an unrivalled commitment to LV="s
future prospects, business and people. It was announced to
members in December 2020 that LV= had agreed a transaction
with Bain Capital, a leading global investment firm with extensive
insurance industry expertise, to purchase the LV= business.

While we will no longer retain our corporate structure as a
mutual, our culture and values will remain the same. We will
continue to put customers, employees and finoncial advisers at
the heart of everything we do.

The acquisition is subject to regulatory approval and approval
from LV= members. It is expected to complete by the end of
March 2022, subject to the conclusion of the legal process.

Under the proposal LV="s with-profits business will be ring-
fenced in a separate fund and closed to new business. This
will allow the fund's capital available for distribution, including

proceeds from the deal, to be distributed to its members as their
policies end. Customers will also benefit from the increased
investment that Bain Capital will provide. This will strengthen
LV="s digital capability, enhance the customer experience and
broaden the products and services currently offered.

Bain Capital will support the board’s strategic plan, which

includes:

e Leveraging LV='s strong brand to expand its presence in the
market.

« Innovating and refreshing the customer experience for
existing and new customers.

* Greater certainty of payouts and value as well as great
customer service to existing with-profits policyholders.

* Strengthening LV="s value proposition to existing and new
financial advisers.

Bain Capital will provide LV = with the external investment
needed to grow its leading brand and strong product set for the
continued benefit of customers and IFAs.

Our proposed post-transaction business model

&

LV=owner
Bain Capital

Owner invests additional capital into the
group to fund future growth.

%

Surplus funds of the group may be
used to allocate dividends to the
business owner, subject to board

? opproval.

LV= Group

Ring-fenced with-profits fund

The with-profits business is ring-fenced in a separate
fund. The members of the fund are entitled to receive
any surplus aarnings genaratod by tho fund. Thig will
be distributed to eligible members by way of a mutual
or exit bonus allocation.

This fund contains our Heritage business legocy
products, including the RNPFN and Teachers

Assurance ring-fenced funds.

With-profits customers pay premiums
on and invest into our Heritage business
legacy products. The with-profits fund
settles customers’ cloims and provides
returns on their investments. Eligible
policyholders may also receive a mutual
or exit bonus.

Key
-—-b Flow of funds into the business

Non-profit fund

Policies in the non-profit fund are not entitled to a share
of the surplus earnings of the fund. The LV= business can
use any surplus generated by the fund to suppert future
business growth, provide capital security or allocate
dividends to the business owner.

This fund contains our Retirement and Savings business
products and our Protection business products.

TV

Customers pay premiums on Protection
products and invest into Savings and
Retirement products. The non-profit
fund settles customers’ claims and
provides returns on their investments.

LV= Customers

——> Flow of funds back to customers and business owner
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Overview of
Performance anad
Financial Review

Mark Hartigan

Chief Executive Officer

Overview of Performance

Financial and business highlights

LV= performed well agcinst its objectives in 2020, particularly
when taking the impact of the pandemic into account. Through
the yeor we have creoted significant momentum in our trading
businesses. By taking quick and positive actions in response

to Covid-19, as well as delivery of all our planned change
initiatives, we continue to improve service for existing customers
and have strengthened the propositions we offer to the market.

In our Savings and Retirement business we have worked hard
to strengthen the appeal of our propositions and increase their
accessibility. For our Smooth Managed Fund (SMF) range,
which offers clients protection from market volatility while still
facilitating access to potential upside, we started the year by
termpaerarily removing the first year ‘wrapper charge’ on all
pensions when our customers invested fully into our SMF, a
saving of 0.15% that helped promote the funds. In April we
launched online adviser valuations making it easier for advisers
to do business with us. In October we made SMF available
through a Trustee Investment Plan (TIP). This increased access
to our unique smoothed funds for pension investors who have
SIPPs and SSASs with other providers. In addition to improved
functionality and accessibility, the underlying funds delivered
particularly strong performance making SMF more compelling
than ever. We also successfully delivered our new Equity
Release system, including our new Equity Release Portal,
which allows advisers to complete and track lifetime mortgage
applications more efficiently. This was followed by the release
of our Lifetime Mortgage Drawdown+ product. This allows
customers to borrow a portion of their property value in the form
of an initial loan with the option to borrow more in the future
from the pre-agreed reserve.

In our Protection business we launched a number of
enhancements to our Life and Critical lliness Cover, with
Enhanced Children’s Cover now available. We improved our
Fomily Income Benefit offering (previously known as Family
Incorme Assurance) which 1s now available through our Flexible
Protection Plan. To share the improvements with the market we
launched a new marketing campaign, which was supported by
a very successful webinar programme incorporating over 100
virtual events for over 10,000 odvisers. As part of our drive to
increase digital capability and ease of access we lounched our
Protection Progress Hub for advisers. This provides self-serve
capobility so that advisers can quickly and easily track new
business applications. In addition to the product enhancements
and adviser support measures, we also received extremely
positive feedback in respect of our response to the Covid-19
pandermnic. We took a flexible and personal approach which
helped our customers maintain their protection policies through
o difficult period. This included initictives such as payment
breoks for our most vulnerable customers and premium and
cover reduction options for others.

Despite a slight fall in the volume of new business sales,

the result of a depressed market, we were pleased that we
have increased our market share in both the Protection and
Savings and Retirement businesses for the first time since
2016. New business margins were impacted by the challenging
trading conditions during the year and this has meant that the
contribution from new business to our operating caopital and
operating profit generation has fallen.

As reported in the 2019 Annual Report, we were anticipating
that our operating expenses would rise this year as we took
back the share of group overheads which had previously been
allocated to the general insurance business. While we were
anticipating an increase in the region of £16m | was delighted
that our ongoing cost control initiatives restricted the increase to
£9m. | am confident thot the future efficiency measures we have
plonned will allow us to meet our target of reducing operating
expenses below £100m in the next few years. These cost

control measures have benefited our 2020 operating capital

and operating profit generation metrics, contributing towards
positive modet and basis changes.

It is very satisfying that despite the large falls in the stock
market experienced at the beginning of the pandemic, our main
with-profits fund mancged to finish the year delivering returns
of 8.9%., which was cbove benchmark. The attractiveness of
our Smooth Mangged Fund range was demonstrated during
the year, when the unique LV= smoothing mechanism allowed
our members to avoid the worst of the downside impact earlier
in the year and maintain o healthy return on their investments.
Unlike other smoothed fund competitors whose funds
experienced significont chff edge falls in volue, the largest single
day drop acress the LV= range during the year was just 0.14%.

MW]
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Capital and profit performance

Operating capital generation 2020 £m

48 103

=

T v
Trading Estate Model & basis

Experience Operating
(2019: £87m)  investment variances changes and capitat
income {2019: £21m capital generation
(2019: £6m) adverse) initiotives  (2019: £101m)
(2019: £29m)
& increose Decrease Total

Note: 2019 results have been restated to reflect the disclosure
profit generction,

Operating capital generation

Over the course of 2020 our trading’ businesses have added £58m -

(2019: £87m) to the Solvency Il capital surplus. Our performance
was suppressed by the tough trading conditions arising from '
‘the Covid-19 pandemic, leading to a reduction in new business
volumes and margins. In addition to this, the trading result was
impacted by the increase in operating costs as we took back the

" share of overheads that were previously allocated to the general
insurance business. Estate investment income odded an additional
£15m (2019: £6m) of operating capital.

‘Adverse experience variances of £18m (2019: £21m) mainly
relate to increased lapse rates, some of which were believed

to be related to the economic impacts of the pandemic, white
favourable model and basis changes and capitail initiatives have
added £48m (2019: £29m) to cur operoting capital. Model and
basis changes of £31m (2019: £16m) comprise a large number of
changes with the most significent irmpact being favourable future
impacts arising from our initiotives to reduce targeted operating
expenses below £100m in the next few years. Offsetting this is
an £8m reserve set up during 2020 to cover the uncertain future
impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic, including additional Iopses.

In addition, operating capital benefited from £17m of capital
initiatives implemented during the yeor (2019: £13m).

New business performance
. New business sales for the group.on o

of Estate investment income 05 o separate compor

Operating profit generation 2020 £m

Model & basis  Operating

- T
Trading Estate

Experience
{(2019: £43m)  investment variances changes profit
income (2019: £21m  (2019: £46m generation
{2019: £8m) adverse) adverse) (2019: £16m
loss)

operating capitol ond cperating

Operating profit generation .
Our business is:managed on a Solvency |l basis rather than IFRS.
While some factors impacting performance are aligned between
the two reporuing bases, the IFRS result does not benefit from
the positive capital impacts generated by our existing business,
which arise under Solvency Il due to the run-off of the Solvency
Capital Requirement over time. The IFRS result is also exposed to

" increased volatility from reserving basis changes.

:

Operating profit generation has increased year-on-vear by £56m
to £40m {2019: £16m loss). This improvement was driven by

the £83m year-on-year improvement in the impact from model
and basis changes. The underlying performance of our trading

- businesses was impacted by the tough trading conditions

outlined above, reducing the troding profit generated during

the year to £2im {2019: £43m). Trading profit contains losses
generated oy news business of £6m (2019: £14m profit) and profit
generated from in-force business of £15m (2019: £29m).

Present Value of New Business Premiums (PVNBP) basis have derr ased by 8%to £1,291m

"~ {2019: £1,406m). See page 66 for the definition of our PVNBP alternative performance measure and poge 17 for the reconciliation of

this metric to IFRS premiums.

. During the yeor our Savings and Retirement business ¢
made up of: :

-+ Single prenﬁium annuities of £157m (2019: £223m)

ichieved new

business sales of £1,033m (2019: £1,143m) on a PYNBP basis,

+ Single premium flexible guarantee bonds and [SAs of £82m {2019: £70m)

« We arranged equity relecase mortcnre advances of £148m {(2019: £

178m)

« Qur policyholders-also added £652m (2019: £671m) to their pensions by way of flexible guarantee fund single premiums and

deposits to their unit-linked pensions and SIPP funds.

These new business sales genarated £3m.of IFRS besed trading loss (2019: £6m profit). This negative new business contribution wos
driven by lower volumes and margins as we faced the chollenging trading conditions experienced across the market as the effects of

the Covid-19 pandemic were felt.

Our Protection business achieved new business soltes of £252m (2019: £263m) on a PVNBP basis, made up of new business regular
premiums of £31m (2019: £32m) that will continue to generate premiums for the business over the coming years. These new business
sales generated £3m of trading loss (2019: £8m profit). Although volumes were sustained, margins were put under pressure. .

Operating expenses

Targeted operating expenses have increased to £108m during the year (2019: £99m) as we took back the share of overheads thot were
previously allocated 1o the genercl insurance business. The increase during the year waos lower than expected, reflecting the continued

efforts to control costs. Restructuring will continue going forward o realign our cost base to reflect the reduction in size now that L= is

a standalone life and pensions business. It is expected that this will reduce operating expenses in future years.

M“._,..,....‘_.p—v.
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'Investment returns

We delivered strong returns for our members in 2020 and outperformed the benchmark on the main with-
prefits fund. Through 2020 our members benefited from a globally diversified investrent strategy with

strong returns from overseas equity markets. )

Main with-profits fund

Our main with-profits fund has delivered strong returns of 8. 9% {2019: 14. 5%}, outperforming the
bencBmark of 6.2%. Within the main with-profits fund, discretionary assets outperfonmed the benchimark
by 300 basis points, reflecting the benefits of Columbia Threadneed|é Investments (CTI)'s active
management approach. Total fund asset returns at 270 basis points above benchmark, were dampened
by the performance of historic direct property assets.

, s -9.8%
Overseas UK gilts UK equity UK Bonds Global UK fixed Multi-asset  Property - us Total CTI Totat
equity . Corporate income . . Treasuries managed
: Bonds (high-yield) ‘investments
Assets under management £m : we Benchmark return

Totaol

Investrnent return on LVFS with-profits fund {%)?

L n crddmon lo lhe assets above, Total CTH mcrncrged investments also contained £16m of cash and cash equivalents, which generotad
crrety N

W)

4. Ben y 5 y & i agni nobly GEN INanCe

- Flexible guarantee bonds (FGB)

“The Smooth Managed Funds continued to generate strong positive gains for investors during the year.
FGB returns are smoothed, taking the average of the fund's daily underlying unit price over the preceding
26 weeks to produce an averaged price. Our members particularly benefited from the-LV= smoothing
mechenism as markets dropped significantly at the beginning of the Covid-19 pandernic.

Flexible guarantee returns %

Cautious

Balanced

Managed Growth

2019
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Heritage returns ) . :

The Heritage business looks after our legacy with-profits policies along with o small amount of non-profit
business. This includes with-profits and unit-linked business acquired from the Royal Notional Pension Fund
for Nurses (RNPFN) and Teachers Assurance.

Our Heritage members hold longer-term financial products with us, including endowments ond whole-of-
life policies. The performance of the maii with-profits fund impacts the returns on all with-profits policies.
The average annual return over the policy term for policies in force at the end of 2020 is shown below.

-IB endowment (Average return pa) OB endowment (Average return pa)
' SN

N

Regular bonus rate . Regular bonus rate

1% 2%

25 30 3s 40 45’ © 2 30 3s 40 4s

Policy term (years) IR ) Policy term (years),

. : i 1 Regularbonus rate Regular bonus rate

2%

35 40

Policy term (years) ‘ Policy ferm (years)
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Financial Review

Solvency Il capital surplus

Solvency Il capital surplus reconciliation £m
103
944
(81)
(92) 73 763
- " . - . e S _— >
Opening surplus  Operating capitat Strategic ltems relating TMTP Economic Closing reported TMTP Post TMTP
generation ’ investment, debt to distribution omortisation variances and capital surplus recalculation recalculotion
. interest and of surplus pension scheme - capital surplus
group items
Increase Decrease i Total

Solvency Il capital surplus has decreased by £254m to £690m {2019: £944im). Operating capital generation
of £103m (2019: £101m) hos been offset by non-trading expenditure, distributions to members , economic .
variances, pension scheme and the annual reduction in the Transitional Measures on Technical Provisions
(TMTP) we are permitted to take credit for.

Non-trading expenditure-of £81m (2019: £86m) is made up of the £75m of non-operational expenses
explained in the expenses review below, less £9m of goodwill amortisation which is not reported under
Solvency I, plus £24m of debt interest, offset by £6m of additional capital generated by the Estate
investment strategy and £3m of non-operational income. Items relating to distribution of surplus of £92m
{2019: £27m) includle £28m of allocated mutual bonus, £45m of exit bonus and £19m of capital impact

~relating to an investment in asset share in order to stabilise the cost of future mutual bonus distributions.
The surplus is further reduced by the annual step-down in TMTP of £32m (2019: £38m).

H
H
i
i

Market movements have resulted in adverse economic varionces of £103m (2019: £58m) primarily arising
from falling swap rates, which contribute £80m to this movement. Including TMTP recalculation, the
impact of economic variances reduces by £70m because interest rate exposure is hedged on a post-TMTP
basis, meaning the increase in TMTP would offset the majority of the capital losses due to the falling swap
rates. Adverse pension scheme impacts of £49m {2019: £8m) have also impacted the capital surplus, ) P
driven by the the pension scheme buy-in, which reduces the risk to the fund. i

Solvency H capital position : (
At the end of 2020 the group capital surplus on a Solvency |l Standard Formula basis is estimated to be i
£690m (2019: £944m). The capital coverage ratio {CCR) of both the group (198%) and the company {171%) »
is above our risk appetite. :

Group Company !
Capital surplus £Em 2020 2019 ° 2020 2019 )
Eligible own funds 1,397 1,600 - 1,397 1,600 -
Solvency capital requirement (SCR) 707 656 817 831 %
Surplus! 690 . . 944 580 769 o
Capital Coverage Ratio ) 198% 244% 171% 193%

* The copital surplus reported in the Annual Report 1s based on the estimate of the results ot the Annual Report signing date. Itis passible thot
this result will be adjusted prior to the publication of the group Solvency Financiat Condition Report loter in 2021.

In order to report our CCR on a standaord ‘Investor view' basis, the eligible own funds and SCR reported
above exclude amounts attributable to ring-fenced funds {Royal National Pension Fund for Nurses (RNPFN)
and Teachers Assurance). including these funds, to provide a ‘Regulatory view', would dilute the reported
CCR to 188% for the group and 165% for the company as eligible own funds and SCR would increuse,
however surplus would remain unchanged.

Eligible own funds for the group and company include the impact of £356m (2019: £388m) TMTP and are
reconciled to the Unallocated Divisible Surplus {UDS) in note 3.
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' Sensitivity analysis of Solvency Il group capital surplus

. ' The following table shows the sensitivity of the group's Capital Coveroge Ratio to economic assumptions
‘on a pre and post TMTP.recalculation basis. All other assumptions remain unchanged for each sensitivity,
except where these are directly affected by the revised economic conditions or where a management
action that is allowed for in the solvency capital requirement calculation is applicable for that sensitivity.
The credit and gilt spread sensitivities represent a widening of yields on relevant asset classes in basis
‘points (bps) relative to swap rates. The sensitivities below allow for the impact of the group’s hedging
strategy. .

Capital sensitivities

240%

220%
$200%
180%

160%

140%

120%

100%

Year-end Equity values Credit spreads - " Gilt spreads Fixed interest Fixed interest OB Pensions cash
CCR% fall by 25% increase by increase by yields fall by yields increase commutation N
' 100bps 50bps 100bps ; by 100bps _ decreases by 50% §

% Impacton headline CCR%  amamwweamss Ris:k Appetite CCR% ‘ @ Post TMTP recalculation impact on CCR%

The group’s capital surplus position is sensitive to the above economic cssUmptioﬁs due to the following:

» Afallin equity values reduces the value of the group's defined benefit pension schemes, increases
with-profits guarantes and smocthing costs and reduces the benefit of future charges on unit-
'hnked business, all of which have partial hedges in place to limit the exposure to adverse equity
market movements. A TMTP recalculation would not reduce the impact of this sensitivity as TMTP is
& predominantly driven by interest rate related market risks.

-« Awidening of credit spreads, relative to swaps, increases the value of the group’s defined benefit
pension schemes by reducing the value of future liabilities. It also reduces the value of liabilities usmg
> the Volatility Adjustment. Following a TMTP recalculation, the benefit reduces due to the loss of ) ;
Volatility Adjustment and increased risk associated with annuity business, arising from an ossumptlon Co
under the previous solvency regime of increased credit defaults as spreads widen. ? S
¥

¢ Awidening of gilt spreads, relative to swaps, reduces the value of the group's defined benefit pension e
schemes and the assets invested to support the group's ligbilities. Following a TMTP recaiculation, P
liabilities reduce as the discount rate for TMTP purposes is defined relative to the gilt curve {in contrast B
to the swap curve as per Solvency Il). s

« Changes to fixed interest rate yields (both swap and gilt rates) lead to changes in the group’s capital
surplus position prior to a TMTP recalculation as the Solvency Il yield exposure is hedged on a post-
TMTP recalculation basis. Following a TMTP recalculation, the residual exposure largely arises from the
defined ber‘eht pension schemes.

* Adecrease in the rate at which OB Pensions deferred annuity pollcyholders commute their annuities to
cosh increases the.group’s liabilities. This is because the liobility to pay the annuity is higher than that
to pay the cash lump-sum. This implies an annuity rate significantly more generous than that currently
available in the market.
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IFRS result analysis

IFRS surplus reconciliation £m B increase

40 93 37

(54) ( 39)

Operating profit Strategic Short-term Profitbefore 1oy Mutual and Income tax Pension scheme Transfer from UDS
generation investment, investment exit bonuses and other items  re-measurements
debtinterest. and  fluctuctions and
other items related items

The IFRS Unallocated Divisible Surplus (UDS) has decreased by £139m during 2020 (2019: £127m increase).
The £127m increase in UDS during 2019 being driven by the £193m positive impact of discontinued
operations relating to the sale of the general insurance business ot the end of that year. The total transfer
from UDS of £139m is made up of £85m included within the IFRS resuilt for the year and £54m included
within other comprehensive income.

Operating profit generation of £40m (2013: £16m loss) is discussed in further detail in our Overview of
performance on page 12. This was offset by £96m (2019: £98m) of non-operational items, which was
made up of the £75m of non-cperational expenses explained in the expenses review below, £24m of debt
interest, and £3m of non-operational income. Market movements have resulted in £93m (2019: £129m) of
favourable short-term investment fluctuations. These items have generated a profit before tox for the year
of £37m (2019: £15m).

Offsetting the £37m profit before tax were mutual bonus and exit bonuses allocated and distributed to
our eligible with-profit members of £73m {2019: £27m), the tox charge of £41m (2019: £60m) and other
items impacting profit of £8m {2019: £1m}, along with adverse pension revaluations of £54m (2019: £5m
favourable) driven by the the pension scheme buy-in, which reduces the risk to the fund.

During the year, the total Unallocated Divisible Surplus for the group reduced from £1,254m 1o £1,115m.

IFRS expenses

’ Expenses reconciliation £m - - 2020 2019
Targeted operating expenses 108 99 ]
Commission on Protection sales - : 59 58
Investment fees ] 15 12 5
Operating Costs : 182 169
Strategic investment ' : . 30 . 28
Restructuring, one-offs and other : : : 34 43 R
IFRS Other operating and administrative expenses (see note 11) 246 240 .
Targeted operating expenses are management business-as-usual costs and are discussed in more \ N

detail in our Overview of performance on page 12. As well as targeted operating expenses, commission
an protection sales and investment fees ore incorporated into our opercting capital and operating profit
generation metrics. ‘ : ) s

IFRS Other operating and administrative fees which are not incorporoted into our operating results ,
include strategic investment spend of £30m (2019: £28m), spend in relation to the strategic review and the B
restructuring of the group of £23m {2019: £24m) and one-off and group costs of £22m {2019: £23m), which
includes £9m of goodwill amortisation. This total non-operational spend of £75m (2019: £75m) is reduced !

" by cloims handling costs of £11m (2019: £4m) in the reconciliotion above becouse these ore presented as :
Gross henefits and claims under IFRS. .

Sales reconciliation to IFRS premiums .
Sales reconciliation £m 2020 . 20197 N

Group sales (PVNBP basis) 1,291 - 1,406 e
Equity release mortgage advances (148) (179)
Gross written premiums for non-participating investment contracts which are J.
deposit accounted ‘ (435) (416}
SIPP deposits ) (107) (156)
Effect of capitalisation factor on regular premium long-term business (221) (231)
New business gross earned premiums ) 380 424
Gross premiums from existing in-force business 233 232
IFRS Gross earned premiums (see note 5) 613 -656

2019 Group sales on a PVNBP buasis hove been restated n order to closer align to the IFRS basis, enabling this non-GAAP melric to be
reconciled to IFRS Gross eorned premiums. Group PVNBP was reported as £1,323m 10 the 2019 Annud! Report.

We report sales for the group on a Present Value of New Business Premiums (PVNBP) basis. Our PVNBP
metric is defined in the Alternative performance measures section on page 66. The 8% fall in group sales
during 2020 to £1,291m (2019: 1,406my} is discussed in further detail in our Overview of performance on

poge 12.
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Manhagement

Wayne Snow
Chief Risk Officer

Introduction

LV= operates a fully integrated risk management
fromework (LV=RM) which brings together

the key processes and activities undertaken
throughout the business to ensure that our
customers’ and members’ security is ot the
forefront of our decision making. Structuring

Overall board responsibilities

The board is responsible for determining the
level of risk which LV= faces and ensuring that
risks are appropriately controlled. These include
the risks to the business model and future
performance, those which threaten policyholder
security and/or liquidity and those which could

risk management around this framework and
our values enables senior management to
demonstrate that the right things are being
done to manage risk within LV=.

have a detrimental impact upon member
outcomes.

The board does this by ensuring that

LV=RM continues to include the setting of a
Like all financial service firms, LV= has faced proportionate risk strategy, risk appetite and
a number of challenges throughout 2020 clear risk mandate. The Risk Committee, on
including: behalf of the board, regularly monitor the
operation and effectiveness of the LV=RM
to ensure that it continues to drive a suitably
robust risk culture within LV=.

LV=RM Overview

The LV=RM framework is owned by LV="s chief
nisk officer on behalf of the board. It provides

a systematic set of processes, tools and
behaviours which allow senior management to
respond effectively to ony potentially significant
internal or external event that may have an
impact on delivering the business strotegy.

The LV=RM also enables LV= to enhance

its business and risk based decisions, while

£
a
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¢ The unprecedented impoct of Coronavirus
(Covid-19).

*  Alack of clarity over the UK's future
relationship with the EU and the rest of the
world following Brexit.

* Increasing stakeholder and regulatory
expectations over our environmental, social
and governance activities in response to
global issues such as climate change.

* Agrowing digital economy, increasing focus
on data protection and the heightened
threat posed by cyber criminals.

Against this backdrop LV=has successfully
delivered positive outcomes for our members ensuring that it remains compliant with all

and customers during 2020 underpinned by regulatory and legislative requirements, as well
LV=RM. as internal policies.

The key elements
of the LV=RM are
summarised below:

The Risk Universe is a standard set of key risk categories where LV= has, or is likely to have, material risk
exposures. These are used for identifying, reporting and modelling LV="s risk exposures.

Risk Universe

Risk Strategy This s§t§ out-LV-'s approach to risk management including providing a clear direction and preference for taking on
or avoiding risk.
Governance This covers the framework and processes which demonstrate to the board that appropriate and effective risk

management, oversight and assurance is being undertaken for all material risks faced by the business.

These are a set of statements and supporting measures which clearly stote the level of risk that the board is willing

Risk Appetite ) ] > ) SRkl
to accept in order to achieve its business objectives.

Risk Pulicies These sel out the eapectations and cvidence requirements for how the board expect the key ricks within the Rigk
and Standards Universe to be identified, categorised, assessed, controlled, monitored and reported.

Risk & Control This is an integrated and co-ordinated set of processes which facilitute the timely and effective identificoticn,

Assessment assessment and management of risks that could or will impact LV=.

Own Risk The Own Risk & Sclvency Assessment (ORSA) facilitates the timely and effective identification, assessment,
& Solvency monitoring and controt of LV= risk, caprtol and liquidity positions.

Assessment

Culture and This includes performance measures that drive appropriate behaviours and promote an effective risk cuiture.
Performance

Training and This 15 o prograrnime of regular and timicly risk based training and communication across all areas of the businese.
Communications It ensures that there 1s a clear understonding of risk management processes and controls.

The provision of complcte, accurate and timely informaticen to senior management and the board to allow thom to

Mi & Reporting ' el It o . - )
discharge their risk management responsibilities and to facilitate risk-based decision making.
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Risk Universe ) . Risk strategy

The risk strategy is aligned with the business strategy and
ensures thot an effective approach to risk management is in
place, in line with its business and financial goals. This risk
strategy aims:

LV=is exposed to both financial and non-financial risks, with
profitability and growth, together with customer cutcomes
dependent upon the proactive management of these risk types.
The Risk Universe sets out the key risk categories where W= has,
-oris likely to have, material risl gxposures. At a highlovel therick = Toinform the board in setting o robust rislc appetite which
categories which LV= is exposed to are: ensures that the business model and strategy are designed
Financial risks: ond executed in a controlled manner to saféguard member

e . value.
« Life insurance risk

« Financial markets risk ' ) « Todrive a strong risk culture that ensures the business is

"« Credit counterporty risk managed in line with the board’s risk appetite.

« Liquidity risk The risk strategy and associated LV=RM is reviewed on at

least an annual basis as part of the broader strategic planning
process and considers changes in both the internal and external
environment.

Non-financicl risks:
« Strategic risk
* Conduct risk
* Operational risk

Clear executive accountabilitics for managing cach of these risks
have been agreed at the Risk Committee.

Risk governance

LV= operates a three lines of defence model as part of its day-to-day risk management operations, set out within o board-approved
risk mandote. The board delegates much of its oversight of risk matters to the Risk Committee, which together with the (executive)
Management Risic Commitiee, the chief risk officer and the risk management taams, ansures that the businass is opaerating in line with
the requurements of the LV=RM. .

The roles ond respons|b|lmes across the three lines of defence model are mc_luded w1th|n the rlsk strctegy Ownershxp of risk i |s -
i summcurnsed as follows .

e e . - B

e e e st oo e Ao e s it

First line of defence: led by the chief Second line of defence: led by the chief Third line of defence: led by the internal i
executive who is supported by the risk officer who is supported by the - audit director who is supported by :
executive and senior leadership teams. risk management team, compliance the internal audit team and the Audit i
The executive team are accountable for  and actuarial functions and other risk Committee. Internal audit provides > [
the management of risk and are required management professionals across the independent and objective assurance to ¢
to identify, assess, manage and report on organisation. Risk management develops the Audit Committee and to executive : o ;
the risk profile on o current ond forward and directs the implementation of the management on the effectiveness of the B
looking basis. Sound risk management LV=RM, monitors, reviews and challenges  systems of risk management and internal oo
tools, practices and knowledge facilitate first line compliance with this framework controls across LV=. : K
informed business decision making in ond escalotes material breaches to the : [ {
accordance with the LV=RM, and in board. - : : i

porticular LV="s risk appetite.

Run the BUSmESS ACCOUntOUE'fOF dOV o' _ Protect the Business: Accountable for Reassure the Buéines,s‘:vAccountqble for
doy nslr tohng ond nslf monogem . advice, oversight ond challenge: - providing independent assurdnce o

- LVFS Board « -
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Risk appetite

The LV= risk appetite comprises a suite of quantitative and
qualitative statements that are used to measure current
and future business perfarmance. These cover five broad
dimensions:

* Overall attitude to risk

« Finoncial

s Conducl

* Operational and transformation

* Regulatory and stakeholder engagement

Each of the appetite statements provide direction to senior
management regarding their priorities in the execution of the risk
strategy and where appropriate, ore underpinned by a suite of
more granular supporting measures, limits ond triggers.

Risk and control assessment

Management undertake regular assessments to help determine
whether the risk and control environment continues to operate in
line with expectations. This helps ensure that the risks that LV=
faces are identified, understood and managed effectively. The
conclusions of these assessments are used to inform our senior
management and the board as to whether there is an increasing
likelihood that @ singte risk or group of risks could impact LV= or
its members and customers.

Own risk and solvency assessment (ORSA)

The ORSA is an integral part of LV='s capital management
processes and the overall LV=RM. The ORSA comprises iterative
internal risk and copital assessment processes operated
throughout the year to monitor ongoing risk exposures relative to
appetite, and to ensure solvency and liquidity needs are met on
both a current and forward-looking basis. These processes support
the implementation and embedding of the LV=RM and include
risk strotegy and risk appatite; risk identification, gssessment and
measurement, risk monitoring and reporting, linkages to business
strategy and stress and scenario testing.

The ORSA is an effective tool used to inform strategic decision-
making. The annual ORSA Report is presented to the board and
consolidates the findings from the ORSA processes. The ORSA
report also includes:

* Key outcomes from the risk review of the business plan
+ Stress and scenario testing (including reverse stress testing)

» The assessment of the appropriateness of the Standard
Formula

¢ Regular solvency and risk exposure monitoring

The solvency position of the business is determined in
accordance with the Solvency Il Standard Formula requirements
and the 2020 ORSA report which was finglised in August.

Risk management effectiveness

LV= conducts an annual risk maturity and culture assessment to
gauge the effectiveness of the embedding of the LV=RM and to
test how risk culture is evolving over time. The outputs from this
assessment are used to determine areas for further development
under LV="s programme of continuous improvement.
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Managing the risks in implementing our strategy
Quer the past year, the top risks faced by LW— arc summarised within the table below.

| seayaito

| Croemataes

Conductrisk

The risk that key
operational controls ure
ineffective, resuiting in
poor member or customer
outcomes.

Operational resilience
The risk that LV= would
not be able to service our
customers and members
during a disruption.

Political, economic and
regulatory uncertainty
The risk of a reduction

in solvency, policyholder
value or customer returns
resulting from prolonged
uncertainty within the
political economic and
regulatory landscape.

. Corporate bond spread,
default and downgrade
risk
The risk that there is a
changce in the market
value of LV="s corporate
bond holdings.

Interest rates

The risk thaot the value

of LV="s investments
und sulveniey pusilions

is adversely affected by
changes in interest rates.

Cyber Security

The risk of customer data
foss or a severe reduction
in custorner service as a
result of a cyber-event.

The complex and long-term nature of life and pensions products means that, as customer needs
change over time, there is a risk that products do not perform as customers would expect and that they
no longer deliver appropriate customer outcomes. LV- operates a product governance framework
which ensures each new product or product change is subject to rigorous review. In addition, regular
product reviews enstire Our existing products perfarm as customers would expect and continie to
deliver appropriate customer outcomes.

Our response to the Covid-19 crisis included product changes and servicing initiatives aimed at helping
vulnerable customers.

During 2020 LV= has faced a number of challenges to its operational capability, most notable through
the impact of Covid-19. From March, ail but a small proportion of our people have been working from
hnme, nllawing us ta continue ta service and stippart our custamers and members throughout this
period.

During 2020 the UK economy experienced heightened market volatility due to Covid-19 and Brexit,
which is expected to continue into 2021. Our existing operational hedging programmes and ongoing
reviews are in place to manage and mitigote such risks.

As o UK only business, Britain's departure from the EU in itself is not expected to have a materially
cirlvierse impeict cn oo husiness strategy, Only o smctl aumber of one mernbers oncl vustorm s live in i
the EL) and we will continue to service their policies, as long as they maintain a UK bank account.

Corporate bonds are held to back the LV- pension scheme and policyholder annuity liabilitics. As
bend values fluctuate in the open market, any unmatched movement in the cssociated liokilities
would expose the compuony to an unfereseen protfit or loso. LVY= maokes usa of a matching odjustinmienrt
allowance in its regulatory reporting to mitigote against the impact of economic volatility on assets
held to match long=term liahilities Regular manitaring of LV ='s exposure takes place af the Asset aned
Liability Committee and through specific, active monitoring undertaken by the LV= asset manager.
Mancagement actions are regularly reviewed and executed in order to address any specific exposures.

LV="s Matching Adjustment Fund is its greotest direct exposure to the risk of corporate bond defaults
and downgrades. The fund is managed conservatively with a target average credit quality of A'and a
cap of 45% on any BBB {or lower) rated bonds. A greater proportion of downgrades were experienced
dunng 2020 due to the economic impact of Covid-19. However, the median rating of the Matching
Adjustment Fund remains robust at ‘A" with no bonds rated below investment grade. This position,
including any defaults and downgrades, is monitored regularly with oversight from the Asset and
Liability Committee.

UK Interest rates are currently at historically low levels. As a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, and the
associated economic uncertainty, there is a risk that rates could fall closer to zero or even become
negative. LV= invests in fixed income assets closely matched to the duration of its policyholder
lighilities in order to minimise the risks associated with changes in rates.

Lower interest rates also have the effect of increasing the level of capital LV= is required to hold. LV=
utilises a comprehensive hedging strategy to mitigate this risk and any remaining exposures related to
its assets and liabilities. The strategy is regularly monitored through the Asset and Liability Committee.

LV=is assessing and improving its operational readiness should interest rates become negative in the
future.

The threat of external cyber-attacks has remained in 2020, with cyber criminals looking to exploit both
customers and the business. The inherent risk in this area has increased during the year as a resuit

of Covid-19, and the potentinl ta exploit IT infrastructures not designed to suipport its people working
100% from home. LV - operates a comprehensive cyber-risk strategy which is designed to ensure that
the business continues to identify, assess and respond to the ever changing threat of a cyber-attack.
In addition, we continue to alert both customers and employees of the need to remain vigilant to the
threat of fraudulent activity.
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Emerging risks

As well as monitoring near-term risks, senior management and the board also consider emerging risks and opportunities which may

impact LV= in the future. The top themes from our review included:

Long-term impact of
Covid-19

Corporate governance
and legislation

demonstrate compliance.

New market entrants..
and competitor disruption

Climate change risk

Since 2019 there has been increased focus across a range of
stakeholders on the financial risks associated with climate
change. LV= recognises the importance of understanding and
managing the potential short and long-term implications of
climate-related risk and has incorporated this risk within its
existing risk management framework, to ensure appropriate
oversight is maintained and enhanced over time.

LV= continues to enhance the management and governance
oversight of climate-related risks and in 2019 developed a plan
to address and integrate risks associated with climate change
into its existing risk management framework. Through 2020, LV=
has continued to make progress against the ptan and remains
on track to meet regulator’s expectations that these plans wilt be
fully embedded in our business management by year-end 2021.

Climate change was prominently featured within the 2020 ORSA
Report including o summary of the financial risks to which LV=is
exposed. This included an enhancement of the climate-retated
scenarios explored in the 2019 PRA stress testing industry
exercise to ollow for potential mortality/longevity risk impacts.

The financial performance of LV= and the wider insurance sector
may be adversely affected by harmful environmental events and
developments including those related to physical risks and asset
transition risks, as described below:

Physical risks

Physical risks due to climate change arise from a number of
factors and relote to specific weather events (such as heat
waves, floods, wildfires and storms) and longer-term shifts in
the climate (such as changes in precipitation, extreme weather
variability, sea level rise and rising mean temperatures).

Longer-term changes to the climate are likely to affect the
longevity, morbidity and mortality risks to which the LV= business
is currently exposed, although the scale and direction attributed
to climate change is not yet known. Currently LV= mitigates
these risks through the significant use of reinsurance and other
risk reduction instruments. LV= will continue to monitor evolving
industry best practice and regulatory guidance for assessing and
adjusting for mortality and longevity changes os the experience
emerges over time.

LV=is also exposed to physical risk through potential adverse
impacts to property values arising from the investments in
commercial property ond residential property from equity
release loans.

Following the sole of the general insurance business at the end
of 2019, LV= no longer has any direct significant short-term
exposure to the immediate physical risks of climate change (e.g.
claims from flocd or storm domage to insured properties).

Asset transition risks

Asset transition risks can arise from the process of adjustment
towards o low-carbon economy. A range of factors influence this
adjustment, including:

» Climate-related developments in policy and regulation

This includes the impact of Covid-19 on the economy, health services, individual’s working patterns
ond lifestyles as well as their physical and mental health.

This could include both new regulation, for exomple in the pension transfer market or more onerous
capital standards, together with regulators raising the bar in terms of the standards required to

Mew players entering the market, most likely in the protection sector, together with a game changing
development, most likely based on digital capability, by an existing or new market player.

« The emergence of disruptive technology or business models
» Shifting sentiment and societal preferences

* Evolving evidence, frameworks and legal interpretations.

LV=is exposed to a reduction in the value of assets held which
are either considered environmentally unfriendly or whose
prospects may be adversely affected by the transition to a low-
carbon economy. In addition, LV=is also exposed to a potential
fall in the value of equity or corporate bond investments, and/or
counterparty default as a result of a business failure specifically
reloted to climaote risks.

LV= is addressing asset transition risk as part of its approach

to ESG (environmental, social and governance) investment
management. LV= continues to increase the range of ESG funds
available for customers, and has developed a Responsible
Investment Framework, which covers climate change alongside
other ESG considerations (see page 28 for more information). We
are in the process of implementing enhanced ESG management
information on our asset portfolios with Columbia Threadneedle
Investments (CTI) to ensure we are better equipped to monitor
asset transition risk and undersiand how £SG factors influence
fund managers’ decision making. In addition, during 2020 the
Investment Committee has approved a meaningful allocation to
sustainable equity funds within the strategic asset allocation for
our with-profits and smooth managed funds.

We recognise that these risks may also impoct our customers,
members ond suppliers. Consumers and companies will
increasingly consider the environmental impact of their
investments and select investments which take into account ESG
factors, rather than those with a greater carbon footprint.

LV=actions in relation to climate change risk

LV= holds capital against unexpected and extreme changes to
its business model from both insurance and osset related risks,
in line with prudentiol regulotions. This is considered sufficient
at the current time and will be adjusted over time in line with
emerging climate related risk experience.

Other actions taken in recent years, to increase focus on climate
change risk include:

o Appointing Wayne Snow, the chief nsk officer, as the Senior
Manager Function (SMF) for the business to ensure there is
appropriate oversight of climate-reloted risks.

+ The creation of a Climate Change Working Group, with
representation from across LV=.

¢ Ongoing risk reporting throughout the year.

» Holding hriefing sessions to discuss potential risk exposures
and external requirements with the Risk and Investment
Committees.

. Completed areview of CTI's strategy to understond and
ensure that Environmentol, Social and Governance matters
are a core part of their decision making process.
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Non-Financial Information

We hove policies in place that align to five areas of focus. These areas are in line with sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act
2006 where we need to set out and signpost key information, that is non-financiol. In doing so, we can show our readers what we've
accomplished, and what we continue to do in these areas. We have detailed below the initiatives pursued by the business during 2020
in connection with these policies.

Our employees » Flexible working * Support flexible working choices alongside the
Financial Flexible Working Pledge.

* Women in Finance « New target for 2021 to reach 43% femole
representation for senior roles.

See our People and

« Stay Connected » Internal campaign to help keep our people connected  cylture section on
compaign during the Covid-19 pandemic. pages 29 to 31 for
more information
+ Courageous ] * People manager training to improve mental health
Conversations conversations with our people.

» Calm against the chaos  »  Virtual coaching programme to build personal

resilience.
Environmental + Responsible investment ¢ Further enhanced our approach to responsible
matters investment.

¢ Building management » Reduced our energy usage due to a new heating and

system cooling management system installed in 2019. See our Safeguarding

our environment
section on page 26 for
« Offsetting emissions * Offset 265 tCO2e of emissions by using energy more information
contracts for electricity from 100% renewable
energy sources.

Social matters * Regional Community * Gave £15,000 to national and local causes.
Committees
* LV=Charnity Matching * We £ for £ match our people’s own fundraising. See our Investing
in our communities
* Pennies for Charity * Monthly donations to charity via our people's pay. ;ic;'ri? ;);fi??:;e
information
»  Member Support «  Gave £52,000 in financiol support oand waived

£33,000 in policy premiums to support members.

Respect for « Diversity and inclusion * Four core networks are in place and sponsored by our
human rights networks leadership team.
See our People and

+ Black lives matter » Podcasts, RESPECTfui readers and open forums. Culture section on
pages 29 to 31 for

more information

¢ Human rights and * We publish our Modern Slavery Statement every yeor
modern slavery on LV.com.
Anti-corruption ‘Speak Up’ service c A conﬁdemiol hotline to report any suspicions or See our Responsible
and wrong doings. business practice
anti-bribery section on pages
motters 27 ond 28 for more

information

Risks relating to non-financial information are discussed in further detail in the Risk monagement section on pages 21 und 22 uid
alge within Mote 4 - Rick management and control in the fingncial statements. It should be nuted tho L= wilt ulways seex o upliold |
its brand image with customers, employees and other external parties and that LV= has no appetite whatsoever for regulatory
weaknesses or failings that lead to censure actions.
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Corporate
Responsibility Report

Without doubt the UK and indeed the world
has, and continues to be, severely impacted by
the first globul pundernic for over 100 years.
Never has it been more important for us all
to do what we can for the communities and

" people around us.

Our corporate responsibility strategy continues
to centre around four key components:

* investingin our communities

« safeguarding our environment
» responsible business practice
e our people and culture

Our Corporate Responsibility Report intends
to provide you with a summary of how we've
performed in line with these areas of focus
during 2020.

You can find more information in our
i Corporate Responsibility section of
i our website.

Investing in our communities

in 2020 we committed to helping o wide range of charities and good causes through community
investment, partnerships and fundraising. We also extended our usual support to members so

we could reach even more people going through o difficult time. Although the pondemic sadly
rmeant our people couldn’t get cut and about in their comimunities, it didn’t stop them from finding
inventive ways to do great things.

Community investment

In each of the three locations from where we operate, Bournemouth, Exeter and Hitchin, we have
Regional Community Committees which are run by our own employees. Despite working from
home, they continued to collaborate as a group and distributed £15,000 to national and local ‘
charities. This included ‘festive’ donations that our Committees made at the end of a really tough A
year for many charitable organisations. These particular donations were voted for by our people. o

To shiow our thanks to NHS staff and key workers, who put their own lives on the line to help’t?:‘os_e L S
- in need, we arranged for the delivery of some extra special packages. ’

‘Giving a

Givinga Giving a

) ,sllce of love bowl of love box of love .
Through a local campaign, we Communities rely on care homes and The people who keep our support services
arranged for 100 pizzas to be the amazing people who work there. going can often get overlooked. We
delivered to NHS staff ot the " Two care homes near our Exeter office showed our appreciation to train drivers;
Royal Bournemouth Hospital. ‘were sent a little boost. We delivered station staff, bus drivers and refuse -
We wanted to make sure that . hedailthy fruithampers to be shared cotlectors with ‘treat hampers' sent to
cooking a meal was-the last thing amongst their staff. . " essential workers near our Exeter and

on their minds ofter a long shift. . : v . Hitchin offices.
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MAGGIE'S

Everyons’s home of cancercare

£3k

was raised for a
public defibrillutor

We supported

73

members, totalling over

£52k

Community partnerships

LV=KidZone
Visit our website to read about our 14th yeor of sponsorship.

Maggie's

In 2019 we began a partnership with the cancer charity Maggie's. Since then, our marketing team
have taken part in personat fundraising to show their support. During 2020 they took on a whole
host of challenges and collectively raised an impressive £10,000. This included sponsoring Maggie's
Carols in the Kitchen, a wonderful at home carol concert hosted by journalist and newsreader Fiona
Bruce in December.

On our website you can read more about Maggie's, our work together and what our people did to
raise money for them.

Community fundraising

Another important part of giving something back to our communities is our Charity Matching scheme.
Even though many national fundraising events, such as the 2020 London Marathon, couldn’t go ahead, our
people still showed their dedication for the charities that are close to their hearts. They ran virtual London
Marathons, cycled indoors and held team Zoom challenges. In doing so they accumulated over £14,000 for
charity. With Charity Matching we were able to add another £6,500.

We match £ for £ the amount our people raise. This is capped at £500 for one
employee or £1,000 for a team of colleagues.

Did you know that some of our people make donations to charities every month?

Find out more about Pennies for Charity on our website.

Caring for our communities

Public defibrillotors can be a vital lifeline to anyone who suffers from a sudden cardiac arrest when they're
out and about. One of our customer service representatives recognised this when she discovered thata
colleague’s father had passed away when access to a public defibrillator could have saved his life. To make
a difference in the local community they started a campaign to provide a potentially lifesaving solution.

Fundraising bbegan to raise £3,000 for a public defibrillator to be installed in Westbourne, the home of our
Bournemouth office. Our people set themselves fitness challenges, held virtual guizzes, games, raffles and
even an online cuddly toy sale 1o raise money. Their efforts will result in a defibrillator being installed in
Westbourne high street in 2021. :

Many of our colleagues shared their own personal stories and experiences of heart disease and sudden
cardiac arrests. So motivated were our service and support team that they began to share tips on how
to keep their hearts healthy; from diet and exercise to wellbeing tools and techniques. A true sign of our
people coming together as a team for the greater good.

Member Support

When the Uk went into lockdown, it became clear that many people would be faced with real financiol
implications due to furlough or unemployment. In March 2020 we quickly introduced payment breaks ond
a reduction in cover option to support our Protection members. By the end of the year we had waived over
£33,000 in policy premiums for 214 members and our reduction in cover option halped 50 members keep
their valuable insuronce in place but at a lower cost. This support will remain in place until at least the end
of April 2021. Our Member Support Fund also continued to operate and supported a further 73 members
with a financial grant, totalling just over £52,000.

7, (fV )
J Member Care Line @ Care Navigator =5 Member Discounts

=
( ) Member Support Fund % LV= Doctor Services @ Voting Rights
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Definition ,
 kWH: Kilowatt-
" hour ) ‘
. - We report our energy.
" consumption using
kWh, a stondard .
measure of energy.

© 1CO2e: Tonnes -

" corbon dioxide.’

. equivalent &

. -We'report our

_ greenhousegas |

* emissions using
tCOZ2e; a'standard
measureof

. greenhousegas -

" erissions.

Our gross emissions
totalled 633 tonnes
CO02 equivalent (tCO2e)
of which

265
tCO2e

was powered by
renewable electricity
reducing our net
emissions to 368 tCO2e

Safeguarding our environment

As a UK insurer our environmental footprint is small in comparison to many other businesses. To
further reduce our own environmentol impact, we continue to monitor our energy efficiency and waste
management across all of our offices and look to ensure that any business travel only takes place when
absolutely necessary. :

During 2020 our energy consumystion totalled 2,784,314 kWh, while our gross emissions totalled 633
tonnes CO2 equivalent (tCO2e). 265 tCO2e of this was powered by renewable electricity, which reduced
our net emissions to 368 tCO2e.

Annual KWh per No. of FTE Employees 1,935
Annual tCO2e per No. of FTE Employees  0.26

The distribution of annual energy consumption and emissions by fuel type is shown below:

Annual energy consﬁmption by ) Annual emissions by
fuel type% . fuel type %

B Electricity

i Natural Gos

Transport fuels

Other fuels*

* Other fuels relate to.a diesel generator and types of Fluorinated gases (F gas) used by our facilities
team to top up gases used in refrigeration and air conditioning systems.

We've followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and used the 2020 UK
government conversion factors for Company Reporting within our methodologies.

Because of the substantial changes which the business has gone through following the sale of the general
insurance business at the end of 2019, we aren’t able to report meaningful comparative metrics for year-
on-year comparisons. However, we have seen our energy usage and emissions fall during the year due

to some of the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic. While business travel has dropped to minimal levels
following the initial lockdown in the spring of 2020, the impact on buildings will have been less material with
cur offices remaining open throughout the year. This was so we could facilitate a small proportion of staff
working on site for business criticat or wellbeing reasons. The majority of our staff have been working from
home this year, which has significantly reduced the amount of waste generated at our sites.

As part of our commitment to the Energy Saving Opportunity Scheme (ESOS) to actively assess and reduce
our carbon footprint, we installed a new building management system during 2019 to decrease energy
usage at our Bournemouth head office site. The more accurate, smarter and sophisticated heating und
cooling managernent system has imade us more energy efficient and will have been another contributory
foctor in reducing 2020 energy consumption and emissions levels. Currently, other energy sfficiency

. projects are being considered but have been placed on hold until the Covid-19 lockdowns are over.

We invest over £10bn of our policyholders’' premiums and savings and therefore
a very important part of our environmental impact arises from how we invest
this money. To read more about our responsible investment approach see page 28.

As we move forward into 2021 and develop a deeper understanding of what the ‘new normal’ working
environment wilt look like for our business, we'lt be able to incorporate this into our environmental strategy
and set appropriately ambitious targets to ensure that we continue to do alt we can to safeguard our
environment. o




Corporate Responsibility Report 27

Responsible business practice

Customer satisfaction .
Customer service will always be important to us and it's our aim to make sure that our customers and
members have the best possible experiences with our people.

Everyday our people strive to make sure that we're easy to do business with. We'd like all of our customers’
and members’ interactions with us to be positive, however we know that sometimes this doesn’t always
happen. On these occasions we do our upmost to make sure that we put things right. The Financial
Ombudsman Service (FOS) cgreed with 91% of our decisions in 2020, which shows our commitment to
provide the right outcome and do the right thing for our customers and members.

It's also important to us that we respond to any dissatisfaction as quickly as possible. In 2020 a dedicated
tearm was formed to look after our complaints process, but they also exist to support our customers

and members with any vulnerable situations they may be in. Our team signposts external charities and
-organisations who can offer support, provides details about our Member Care Line and looks to tailor our
services to meet our customers’ and members’ needs where possible.

After an experience with one of our colleagues, our member said:

. “Ever since you came on board everything has become so much easier and | feel a lot
% better about everything. You're able to articulate things in such a way that it just makes
; sense. | really appreciate all the work you've putinto this."

Just some of the

feedback given to our o ) ' .
colleagues who support Our member’s psychologist had this to say after we helped their client:

vulnerable customers. “| just wanted to say thank you so much for taking the time to call me yesterday about
the outcomne for my client. | was very grateful for the call and for the time, effort and
care you put in to resolving it so quickly. Your support in getting his case to the right
place and treating it as sensitively as you did was hugely important for the client.”

LV= Financial Servicesoverali - °© - 4,202 R -

You can view our full complaints summary for 2020 on our website. )

Financial crime v
During the first quorter of 2020 we reshaped our financicl crime strategy. In particular, this included
changes required as a result of the new Money Laundering Regulations and enhancements to our internal
screening solution. Both of these changes will help us to meet our legislative and regulatory obligations by
screening for individuals on the Financial Sanctions and Politically Exposed Persons lists.

We continue to operate robust systems and controls across LV= which are in place to help prevent

we prevented financial  financicl crime and losses. Every day we strive to protect all of our customers, members and the wider
losses of £10m business from becoming victims of financial crime. In 2020 we were able to prevent financial Iosses of
£10million. .

The Financial Conduct Authority issued guidance about finuncial crime systems and controls during the
g Covid-19 crisis. The financial crime team provided support to-the business so we remained compliant at aff
. times, while ensuring we could still provide the best service to our customers and members.

i You can find information about Data Vishing on our website.

Bribery and fraud
Our ‘Speak Up' service provides a way for our people to report any suspicions or wrong-doings. You can
find out more on our website.

Our‘Speak Up'service  Human rights and modern slavery
is a confidential hotline As a responsible business we acknowledge the need to always support human rights ond we continue to
and mailbox that our adhere to fair employment practices. Our Modern Slavery Statement, which you con find on cur website,
people can use will provide more information about the actions we take to identify, assess and mitigate against modern
slavery and human trafficking.

Check out LV.com/modern-slavery-statement to read the full Statement
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Sourcing

Supplier management

Each area of the business is responsible for maintaining a relationship with the suppliers they work with
ond each supplier is allocated an LV= business owner. This person is usually someone who works with the
supplier the most. Their responsibilities include supplier management, performance and engagement. In
2020 the Procurement team rebranded to Sourcing and implemented a new operating model to improve
the support they offer to not only business owners, but the whole of LV=. This included the setup of a Cost
Management Unit which you can read more about below. This new model focuses on building stakeholder
relationships to better understand their needs, provide ongoing support and offer guidance.

Cost Management Unit

The Cost Management Unit {CMU) was created so that the Sourcing team can support ongoing business
and commercial objectives. The CMU is held on a weekly basis and attendees include Sourcing, Cost
Management and Managing Director delegates from our three lines of business. The role of the CMU is to
review all spend from across the business. This review ensures costs are suitably challenged and that the
best interests of our customers and members remain at the forefront of everything we do. It also enables
a collaborative approach between Cost Management, Supplier Risk and Compliance to manage supplier
ond business risks.

We continue to be partnered with the UK based company Hellios Information Limited
so we have a view of our supplier's systems, controls and risk management maturity.

To find out more about Hellios visit our website.

WILDHEARTS

BUSINESS FOR GCOD

Green Heart Procurement _
The Buy Social Corporate Challenge, led by Social Enterprise UK, came to an end at the end of 2020. The
challenge losted four yvears and sow us hecome one of 24 companies to buy from social enterprises.

As a result of the challenge, we've been introduced to a number of social enterprises across a range of
sectors. We'll continue to draw on these for our future business needs. Learning ond development, mental
health and wellbeing, and diversity and inclusion present opportunities to develop new partnerships with
social enterprises. These areas are particularly prominent in how we continue to support our members,
customers and employees through the Covid-19 pandemic.

gven though the Buy Social Corporate Challenge has finished, we're committed to its ethos.
We'll continue to consider a supplier’s ethics and the impact our spend will have on their own social
mission. This is also important for subcontractors of suppliers and their supply chains.

WildHearts, who were our first partner, have utilised over £62,000 of our
stationery and office printing spend in 2020 for their sociol enterprise mission.

Responsible investment

Responsible investment encompasses all Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) considerations.
Throughout 2020 we further enhanced our approach to responsible investment and created a set of
principles and practices. We'll continue to develop and enhance this approach in 2021.

You can view our Responsible Investing Approach on our website.

In partnership with our asset manager Columbia Threadneedle Investments (CTI), responsible investing
is integrated into all of our investment decisions. We belteve that well-governed companies are likely

to outperform in the tong run and the key to generating sustainable returns s to understand ESG
considerations, risks and opportunities.

We believe that active ownership is core to responsible investing. On our behalf, CTl use our voting rights
to firmly engage vath companies cround moterial ESG risks and opportunities. There are some exclusions
which are operated across various portfolios. These include a ban on controversial weapon investments
and a restriction on tobacco holdings within funds backing our RNPFN business. Engagement with investee
companies is an effective way to drive positive ESG change and contribute to the long-term success of

the global economy. We aim to use our influence and voting rights to drive positive change and generate
strong performance over the long term.

Building on strong momentum from 2019, we continue to develop our focus on and management of
climate risk related activity. At the end of 2020, only 0.05% of equity assets in our main with-profits fund
and our three Smooth Managed Funds are invested in companies with at least 25% revenue generated
from coal use, production or extraction. Further detail on this can be found in the Risk Management section
on page 22.

2

COLUMBIA
THREADNEEDLE

INVESTMENTS

In 2020, our Investment Committee approved a strategic asset allocation to specific
UK and Global ESG funds which aims to optimise investment returns and deliver
improved ESG outcomes.
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Our People and Culture

Our peaple faced a significant amount of change in 2020. Throughout everything, they showed an
immense amount of resilience and we're proud that our customers and members continued to be their top
priority. Across the business we put in place many different ways to communicate and support our people,
which you can find out more about in this section.

Creating a diverse and inclusive culture

We're delighted that our Executive leadership team now represents a 50/50 gender split. Harnessing a
diverse range of thoughts, ideas and perspectives at this senior level will enable our people to truly engage
with our future plans. We continue to maintain our core diversity and inclusion networks which are all
sponsored by our leadership team.

Pride (LQBTQ+) Wayne Snow — Chief Risk Officer

Balance {(Gender) " Georgina Farrell - Chief Administrative Officer
Diversability {Disability) Debbie Kennedy - Protection Director
Multi-cultura! Deirdre Davies — Internal Audit Director

You can read more about our Diversity and Inclusion policy on pages 38 and 39 of the Corporate
Governance Statement.

‘Inclusion’ - one of our four company values

To bring about reat change we believe focus is required on building inclusion, as well as diversity. Being
inclusive is about embracing ali contributions, valuing diverse opinions and making every voice heard.
That's why in 2020, we ran ‘values workshops’ with our managers to explore inclusive leadership by
building awareness, commitment and shifting behaviours.
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We want our values to be ‘lived and breathed’ by all of our people; through the actions we toke and how we
operate as a business. Our values form a key port of our performance conversations and evaluations. Our
people are measured, reworded and held accountable both on what they deliver and how they deliver it.

Storytelling is o powerful way to share what is often invisible about o person’s identity and

helps to build inclusion. In support of Black Lives Matter we released o series of podcasts from
colleagues sharing their experiences, launched a RESPECTful readers book club with a collection
of anti-racist books and ran open forums on topics such as identity and privilege to engage people
in this important conversation.

Equal opportunities
Our policy is to promote an internal culture that is truly free from discrimination, harassment and
victimisation. Take o look at our website to find out how we do this.

Gender Pay Gap

Throughout the business we currently have o higher representation of males in senior positions and more
fermales in junior roles. We're confident that pay ot LV= is fair ond unbiosed and that the gap is primarily
driven by this gender representation across LV=. We continue to ensure that everyone is open to the same

We are encouraged to opportunities and we're committed to change the gender balance of our workforce over time. One of the
see our gender pay gap ways we can do this is to focus on promoting from within, when it's appropriate to do so.
improve by

In 2020 we witnessed an improvement in our gender pay gap to 28.6% (30.0% in 2013) which we're

: encouraged by. The number of female leaders at the most senior levels has increased over the same period
1 40/ which is driving this chonge within the business. We'll continue to monitor our initiatives over the coming

e (o] years to further improve the gender pay gap across the business.

Full details about our gender pay gap and latest report can be found on our website.
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Flexible Working

The pandemic has shone o spotlight on the importance of flexible working and maintaining ¢ comfortable
work life balance: While the majerity of our people continue to work fram home, at the time of writing this
Report, we've enabled greater flexibility to support our pecple’s wellbeing. We've encouraged our team
managers 1o put in place positive changes for anyone who needs it. For more information on flexible
working, visit our website.

Follovsing our worlcwith the Chartered Insurance Institute (CI1) in 2019, on the marketwide flaxible working
initiative ‘Insuring Women's Futures’, we're proud to have committed our support for the following picdge
which formed part of the 2020 manifesto.

Financial Flexible Working pledge ~ we'll work tc ensure that at every point where our
employees make a change to their working arrangements, they are prompted to consider the
immediate and longer-term financial implications of this change.

Women in Finance .

When we signed up to the Women in Finance charter in 2016 we committed to two pledges. We're pleased
to announce that we've.exceeded both of these; we reached 42% fernale representation in senior roles
(Band C-E roles, which cover our management and executive levels) by 2020 (+2% of target) and 42%
female representation on cur executive team and direct reports by 20198 (+9% of target).

We recognise that this success has been driven by a number of factors including our leadership team's
commitment and the successful implementation of our programme of activity. We'li continue to focus our
efforts on taking action to improve our gender balance across all senior levels and we've set a new target
for 2021; 43% female representation in senior rofes.
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We continue to support and sponsor the Women in Finance Awards and in 2020 we're thrilled to have
two shortlisted nominations of our own; Lisa Simmons for Legal Advisor of the Year and Anna Rogers for
Insurance Leader of the Year.

Covid-19 communication .

Employee engugerment goes o long way. if our people feel energised, fulfilled und connected to what

we're striving to achieve, they're going to create fantostic green heart experiences for our customers and
members. During 2020 it was so important to keep in touch with our people as working from home created a
barrier we hadn’t needed to navigate before.

Stay Connected is our overall internal campaign. it was launched to help keep our people connected to
one another and support their wellbeing throughout o turbulent 2020 and into 2021. This campaign
has also allowed us to continue to provide colleagues with strategic business updates and these were
supplemented with a large amount of initicitives, support and guidance to help them through lockdown
and the ensuing pandemic.

~ Stay
Connected Stars
- colleague .
LV= Chat recognition Working
discussion from home
intranet app support
X : &
LV= Good
X News —a
Charity Votes monthly positive
broadcast
Stay Connected
e Campaign -
Emails, Zooms .
podcasts and \:Z::Sfézg

videos

¢ KN

Regular CEO Summer
and Executive Over 250 games
updates :
intranet &
articles

published
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Wéllbeing

My B

Recognition

Mental Health and Wellbeing
A main focus of ours has been on supporting the mental health, wellbeing and resilience of our people
throughout 2020 and beyond.

Our Stay Connected campoign provided a continued rhythm of communication and ever expanding library
of resources which were designed with our people gt the heart. You can find out more in the hext section.

Courageous Conversations

With the help of mental health charity Mind, we provided our managers with mental health training. The
two hour session was designed to improve their capability to have mental health conversations, spotting
the signs of mental ill health, building emotional intelligence and providing practical tools and guidance to
have better conversaotions. To further help foster an early intervention culture we also delivered webinars
called Talking Mental Health with clinical psychiatrist Paul Murray and ran a number of mental health Tea
& Talk sessions.

Series of expert-led parental webinars

Acknowledging the additional pressures our working parents were under last year, we delivered a series of
practical webinars designed to support parents and aid them to balance home-schooling, working, caring
ond managing the home. Lorraine Lee, a childhood education and training specialist, provided guidance
on a number of issues ranging from mental health, home schooling, school holidays, work life balance and
more. She shared practical ways of teaching while ot home, how to manage conflict and address feelings
like guilt and pressure..

Our people were able to make real changes and put in place a new manageable
plan which has led to better family and work outcomes.

Virtual ‘Calm amongst the chaos’ coaching programme

This new programme has been developed to address the feeling of being overwhelmed. Its aim is to build
personal resilience wihich will enable porticiponts to find more energy to achieve what's important to them,
pursue their career ambitions and harmonise work and home.

Reward and recognition

To make sure that we're rewarding our people fairly, in line with the market, we assess the amounts we pay
our employees regularly. All of our people are paid ot least the Living Wage Foundation rates of pay and

as well as their solary, they're all eligible to be considered for a bonus. This bonus is based on their own
performance and how the business does overall.

Anyone who starts working for us is cautomatically enrolled into the LV= Pension Plan. Our people can
choose to contribuie a minimum of 3% of their salary into their LV= pension and we'll double match their
contribution up to a maximum of 14%. To help them plan for their future our onfine tool, the LV= Pensions
Village, allows them to track their pension and check the impact it will have on their retirement income.

Through their employment, our people receive core benefits such s life assurance and o competitive
holiday entitlement. We also have ¢ flexible benefits package which gives them the chance to select other
benefits for their lifestyle. Each year they can chose from o wide range including buying und selling holiday,
private medical and dental care to name a few.

In December 2020, we acknowledged the hard work and dedication of all our non-management grade
colleagues after what had been a difficult year. We gove eoch of them a £200 bonus to recognise that

the adjustments they had to make to work from home, when this wasn’t something they were used to,
was appreciated.

Recognition is really important as it drives motivation, and makes people feel
appreciated and proud of their achievements. Through the ‘My Recognition’
platform our people can reward their colleagues for outstanding work and for
living our values.
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Corporate Governance
Statement

Our governance

The board is committed to high standards of corporate governance and stewardship. As ¢ mutual,

we are owned by our members and strive to provide long-term benefit and confidence through

the operction of an effective governance framework, efficient controls and tronsparent decision L
making. e
LV= adheres to the principles and provisions of the Financial Reporting Council's Corporate

Governance Code (the Code). The board believes that effective corporate governance ensures that e
there is clarity of roles and responsibilities which enhances accountability and transparency and

helps to create a sustainable business and the delivery of its long-term strategy.

Our governance framework defines the decision-making authorities and responsibilities of the
board, committees and management. The governance framework assists with the oversight and
delivery of our performance, strategy, vatues and culture.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the board considers that it has complied in full with the
provisions of the Code. . :

The board

The role of the board is to set the tone from the top on the group’s governance, cuiture and values
and to be collectively responsible for the long-term success of the group. For the board this means
not only ensuring that we comply with all relevant laws and regulations and ensuring that we
have high standards of internal control and risk management, but that we run our business with
integrity.

The board ensures that we truly live our values every day, delivering for our customers, colleagues
and members, harnessing the latest technologies and building a business that is sustainably lean
and strong.
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Roles and responsibilities

The board is comprised of an independent non-executive chair, independent non-executive
directors and executive directors. The directors collectively have the appropriate balance of skills,
knowledge and experience in the financial services industry, in particulor life insurance, with-
profits, investments, risk and governance.

Following the departure of Richard Rowney, chief executive officer (CEQ) in December 2019, Alan
Cook, the chair of the board, assumed the regulatory responsibilities of the CEO and became
executive chair to ensure appropriate and continued oversight and accountability of the business
and executive team.

Following a thorough recruitment and appointment process, Mark Hortigan was appointed as
interim CEO on 1 January 2020. Alan remained in the role as executive chair until June 2020
when Mark received regulatory approval for the CEO role. Mark was subsequently appointed

a member of the board ond Alan’s role reverted to non-executive chair. During the transition
period, safeguards and mitigations were put in place to ensure Alan remained as independent
as possible while retaining and exercising his regulatory responsibility for the running of the
business. The position was discussed with the regulators and our external legol advisors and o
robust governance structure put in place to manage and rmonitor any conflicts of interest. Alan's
time commitment waos also evcluated to ensure that he had sufficient time to manage the extra
responsibilities.

Each rofe on the board has a specific respensibility and o summary of each can be found below.
The skills and experience thot each director brings to the board is included in their biographies on
pages 35 to 37.
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Chair Chair
Alan Cook* « Ensures the board is effective and fosters honest and open debate in the boardroom.
« Ensures effective decision making and robust challenge of management.
¢ Sets the tone from the top both in terms of LV="s culture and in setting the strategic direction.
e Qversees and supports the CEO.
« Promotes high standards of corporate governance.

Executive Chair Executive Chair
{December 2019 - June

o - * Asall t t rved to th I the CEQ, thes i Al
2020 “transition period’) s all matters not reserved to the board are delegated to the ese were assigned to Alon

during the transition period and where appropriate, delegated to Mark Hartigan accordingly.

* Exercised appropriate oversight over the executive team and ensured they discharged the authority
delegated to them.

* Held regular one-to-one’s with Mark Hartigan.

« Oversight of all material contracts entered into.

Senior independent « Acts as a sounding board to the chair. ;
director + Leads the annual review of the chair's performance by the board. :
David Barral* * Available to the directors ond members when contact through the usual channels (chair or CEQ) may

not be appropriate. . ;

Non-executive directors ¢ Contributes to discussions and challenges and holds management to account, to ensure transparent
Alison Hutchinson* decision-making and oversight.
Colin Ledlie* « Contributes to the development of the business plan, strategy and risk appetite.

Luke Savage* ¢ Promotes the long-term success of LV=.

Seamus Creedon* : : :
Susan Mclnnes*
David Neave* A ’ ' i
Tanya Lawler*A -

Chief executive officer * Leads the executive team in the day-to-day running of the business.
Mark Hartigan « Delivers the strategy and business plan agreed by the board.
¢ Implements and monitors the controls for best practice, policy and practices to maintain operational
efficiency and high standards of business conduct. )

Executive directors * Asamember of the board, collectively with the non-executive directors, sets the business strategy
and monitors performance to ensure the long-term success of the business.

* Provides the board with additional insight into the operation and performance of the business.

* As members of a unitary board, executive directors have the same duties as non-executives, which
extend to the whole of the business and not just the part covered by their individual executive roles.

Wayne Snow

Company secretary « Ensures the board has high quality information, adequate time and appropriate resources in order to
Michael Jones function effectively and efficiently.

* Advises and keeps the board updated on corporate governance matters and developments.

« Considers board effectiveness in conjunction with the chair.

* Facilitates the directors’ induction programmes cand assists with professional development.

« Provides advice, services and support to all directors as and when required.

Key:
*Independent
AResigned during the year

Further details of the role and responsibilities of the board, including the board's terms of reference, are available on LV.com
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Board Biographies

Key:

Board

‘A’ Audit Committee

(C} Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee
n Investment Committee

m Risk Committee

m Remuneration Committee

@ With-profits Committee

* Committee chair

Alan Cook CBE, Chair
OREH | IRi]

Appointment:
Alan joined the board on 1 January 2017 as a non-executive director and as chair on 20 June 2017. He was
formally appointed by our members at the 2017 AGM.

Skills and experience:

Alan has extensive financial services experience across nsurance, banking and investments. During his
career he was managing director of the Post Office, chief executive of National Savings & Investments and
chief operating officer for Prudential Assurance in the UK and Europe. Alan was chairman of Permanent
TSB group, one of the four leading banks in Ireland, senior independent director of Sainsbury’'s Bank and
on the board of MetLife Europe. Alan was formerly chairman of the University of Bedfordshire, the Irish Life
Group and the Highways Agency. His previous non-executive positions also included the Department of
Transport, the Financial Ombudsman Service and the Office of Fair Trading. Alan is also a past chairman
and current patron of "Action for ME’, the UK's leading charity supporting sufferers of ME/CFS.

External appointments:

* Chairman of Chetwood Financial Services

* Board member and chairman of the Audit Committee at Milton Keynes College
e Board mentor at Criticaleye

Mark Hartigan, Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

B0

Appointment:

Mark was appointed as interim chief executive officer from 1 January 2020, and, following the receipt of
regulatory and board approvai, was appointed to the board on 15 June 2020. He was formally appointed
by our members at the 2020 AGM.
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Skills and experience: .

Mark was part of the senior leadership team at Zurich Insurance Group between 2009 and 2019, most
recently as head of operations for Zurich EMEA. Before this, he was chief administrative officer of Zurich’'s
general insurance business and chief executive officer of both EMEA and Asia Pacific for Zurich Global Life.
Mark has also been chair of a number of life company boards in the UK and overseas. Prior to working at
Zurich, Mark was deputy chief executive officer of Nexus Group, the largest insurance broker in the Middle
East. He began his career in the British Army and holds a master’s degree from Kings College, University of
tondon.

External appointments:
* Mark has no external appointments.

Wayne Snow, Chief Risk Officer (CRO)

8]

Appointment:

Woayne joined the board on 2 July 2018 as an executive director. He was formally appointed by our
members at the 2019 AGM.

Skills and experience:

Wayne's area of expertise is risk management. He joined LV= from the Phoenix Group where he was group
chief risk officer from 2013. He was also a board director of Phoenix Life. During his 13 years at Phoenix,
Wayne held a variety of roles across risk maonagement, finance and corporate developiment.

External appointments:
* Trustee board member of Queer Britain
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David Barral, Senior Independent Director

Bl A CINGE-

Appointment:
David joined the board on 7 March 2016 as a non-executive director; he took on the role of senior
independent director on 1 April 2018. He was formally appointed by our members at the 2016 AGM.

Skills and experience:

With a career spanning 40 years in financiol services, David brings o mix of strategic, transformation and
operational experience with a strong focus on customers, risk and governance. He joined LV=from Aviva
where he was the chief executive of UK and Irelond life insurance, the largest business unit within the Aviva
group. Previous positions at Aviva included sales director, marketing director and chief operating officer. He
is a former chairman of the ABI retirement and savings committee and previously served as Independent
customer champion of Old Mutual Weaith's Customer OQutcomes Forum.

External appointments:
* David has no external appointments.

Colin Ledlie, Non-Executive Director

el A~ l-Qw
Appointment:

Colin joined the board on 1 August 2017 as a non-executive director. He was formally appointed by our
members at the 2018 AGM.

Skills and experience:

Colin is an experienced actuary and risk professional with over 30 years’ experience in the insurance
industry. He has previously held a number of senior executive roles at Standord Life, including as chief
actuary and chief risk officer and until recently was ¢ non-executive director at ReAssure.

External appointments:
¢ Non-executive director of BUPA Insurance
¢ Non-executive director of National Records of Scotland

Alison Hutchinson CBE, Non-Executive Director
Bl
Appointment:

Alison joined the board on 1 January 2018 as a non-executive director. She was formally appointed by our
members at the 2018 AGM.

Skills and experience:

Alison’s experierice spons over 34 yvears in technology ond financial services. She began her career at IBM
where she became global director of online financial services. At Barclays Bank she was the marketing
director of Barclaycard and then managing director and chief executive at the specialist mortgage provider
Kensington Group plc. Atison founded a digital charily, The Pennies Foundation, and in 2016 was awarded
a CBE for services to the economy and charities.

External appointments:

« Chief executive of The Pennies Foundation

* Non-executive Vice Chair and Senior Independent director of the Yorkshire Building Society
» Senior Independent Director at DFS

« Senior Independent Director of the Foresight Group

Luke Savage, Non-Executive Director

Bla-cld

Appointment:
Luke joined the board on 1 February 2018 as a non-executive director. He was formaily appointed by our
members at the 2018 AGM.

Skills and experience:

Luke is a gualified accountant vith over 35 years' expenence across banking and insurance. He is

the former group chief financial officer of Standard Life. Previously he was director of finance, risk
management and operations at Lloyd's of London and before that held senior financial roles at Deutsche
Bank AG and Morgan Stanley.

External appointments:

¢ Chair of Chesnara

* Non-executive director of DWF group

¢ Non-executive director of Numis

* Member of the councit and treasurer of Queen Mary University of London
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Seamus Creedon, Non-Executive Director

BIRi

Appointment: .
Seamus joined the board on 16 January 2020 as a non-executive director. He was formally appointed by
our members at the 2020 AGM.

Skills and experience: ]

Seamus is a qualified actuary with more than 40 years' experience in the financial services industry in
both Ireland and the UK. He wes the first chief executive officer of Lifetime, Bank of lrelond’s life assurance
company and later became a partner with KPMG in London. He has been a leader for the European
actuarial profession, with a particular focus on Solvency Il.

External appointments:

Non-executive director of:

* Renaissancere Syndicate Management

* Baillie Gifford Investrrient Management (Europe)

* RGA International Re

¢ Renacissance Reinsurance of Europe

¢ Gatcombe Court and Highgrove Court Management

Susan Mclnnes, Non-Executive Director

BIEIW

Appointment:

Susan joined the board on 1 April 2020 as a non-executive director. She was formally appointed by our
members at the 2020 AGM.

Skills and experience:

‘Susan has worked in the life and pensions sector for over 30 years. She was at the Phoenix Group for over
twelve years where she was customer director of the life companies and chief risk officer for the Phoenix
Group, before being appointed chief executive officer of Standard Life Assurance in September 2018.
Susan was previously appointed as a board member of the ABI and chair of the ABI’s Long-Term Savings
Committee. Susan is passionate about making o difference for the end customer. She believes that having
the customers’ best interest at heart helps create a sustainable business where people want to work.

External appointments:
* Member of the FCA Practitioner Panel.

Outgoing directors

David Neave, Non-Executive Director

Appointment: 1 june 2013

Resignation: 30 June 2020

Committees served during 2020: Risk, Remuneration and Corporate Governance and Nomination.

Tanya Lawler, Non-Executive Director

Appointment: 1 September 2018

Resignation: 29 January 2020

Committees served during 2020: Risk and Remuneration.




External appointments ond time commitment

The Code requires that non-executive directors must have
sufficient tme availoble to carry out their responsibilities
effectively. The board is responsible for approving a director’s
external appointment, providing that the appointment is not
likely to lead to o conflict of interest and the director continues

to be able to dedicate sufficient time to their current role. These
appointments provide an opportunity for the director to gain
broader experience outside of LV= and can be a benefit and
advantage to the board and LV= as a whole. The board is satisfied
that all directors are able to commit the necessary time to {ulfil
their rotes and responsibilities and that no external appointments
are considered significant or a conflict.

The directors’ time commitment and conflicts of interest is
assessed as part of the recruitment process for new board
appointments and throughout the year for current board members.
Approval to accept any new external appointment is provided

by the chair and the board, as appropriate, before an external
commitment is accepted. At each meeting, the board considers
any material or situational conflicts relating to the matters of

the meeting. Any such conflicts are disclosed and recorded in

the minutes with appropriate approval and/or mitigation agreed
and taken at each meeting. The Corporate Governance and
Nomination Committee undertake an annual review of the agreed
mitigation for standing conflicts, and this is further reviewed os
part of the annual fithess cnd propriety exercise.

During the initial strategic review discussions, and due to the
potential third parties involved, Luke, Colin, Susan and Seamus
were conflicted and ungble to review the papers or be party to the
discussions during the meetings. As these discussions progressed
their confiicts were resolved and in the later stages all directors
were present and able to participate in the final decisions.

Board Appointments

During the year, the board welcomed three new board directors,
Mark Hartigan as an executive director and Seamus Creedon and
Susan Mclnnes as non-executive directors. Mark joined LV= as
CEQ in January, and was appointed as an executive director in
June 2020, following hoard and regulatory approval. Seamus was
appointed in January 2020 and Susan in April 2020.

Recruitment process

Following a skills gap analysis in 2019, the chair and company
secretary met and discussed the board composition and potential
non-executive opportunities with an executive search firm
(Russell Reynolds Associates) a firm with no other connection

to the Company or the board. Two seorches were initiated,
focusing on the specified skills required and ensuring that ¢
diverse range of candidates were considered. The diverse pool,

in terms of gender, ethnicity, skills and background, of twenty
candidates was discussed in depth with the chair and company
secretary before a shortlist was agreed. Seven candidates,

from the initial shortlist, were put forward for interview with

the choir and company secretary. Four candidates were put
forward to the second stage, which involved the applicants
meeting two non-executive directors ond one executive director.
The selected candidates were then formally considered by the
Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee, before being
recommended for board approval.

induction

Ali board directors receive a comprehensive induction
programme led by the company secretary upon appointment

to the board. Susan and Seamus' induction programme was
designed to ensure that they were equipped with the requisite
information and knowledge about LV= to effectively contribute to
board discussions. The induction programme was structured to
include meetings with key personnel across the business in order
to gain an understanding of LV="s purpose, strategy, operations
and performance. Due to the impact of Covid-19, Susan’s
induction programme was held virtually but further meetings will
be held in person and office visits arronged when possible.
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Board Diversity and Inclusion

LV= is committed to equality of opportunity and treatment for all
those who work for us. In line with our volues, we agree to treat
all employees, workers and applicants with dignity, fairness,
respect and consideration.

The board is committed to diversity and inclusion, ensuring it
remains well informed, balanced, innovative and open minded to
continue to drive the business forward. When identifying suitable
candidates for oppointment to the board, the board’s diversity
policy is duly regarded.

Board diversity policy

The board has adopted the following diversity policy:

“LV= recognises and embraces the benefits of having o diverse
board, and sees diversity at board leve! as an essential element in
maintaining a competitive advantage. A truiy diverse board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and
industry experience, education and professional buckground, roce,
ethnicity, gender, ond other guolities of directors. These differerices
will be considered in determining the optimum composition of the
board and when possible shouid be balanced appropriately.

All board appointments will be made on merit, in the context of the
skills and experience the board as a whole requires to be effective.
The Corporate Governance and Nemination Committee (Nomco')
reviews and assesses boord compaosition on behaif of the board and
recommends the appointment of ali new directors to the board.

In reviewing board composition, Nornco will consider the benefits of
all aspects of diversity including, but not limited to, those described
abeve. in order tc maintain an appropriate range and bolance of
skills, experience and background on the board.

The board supports ethnic and gender diversity and is aware of the
Women in Finance charter target for women to represent 339% of
board membership and the Parker Review recommendction ta have
at ieast one non-white director by 2024. However. in identifying
suitable candidates for appointment to the beard, Nomco wiil
consider candidates on merit against objective criteria as welf as
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the board.

As part of the annual performance evaluation of the effectiveness
of the board, board committees and individuai directors, Nomco
will consider the balance of skills, experience, independence and
knowledge on the board and the diversity representation of the
board.
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Application and performance against the board diversity
policy

The diversity of candidates is a key matter of focus in any
recruitment to the board. Throughout the year, the committee
evaluated the board’'s and its committees’ composition and
considered the benefits of all aspects of diversity in order 10
maintain an appropriate range and balance of skills, experience
and knowledge on the board and its committees.

As at year end, the board had 22% female reprasentation {seven
male and two female directors). Each non-executive director has
a different area of expertise and professional background which
balances the skills and experience of the board. For more details
of the composition of the board see pages 34 10 37.

Senior management

The board is keen to develop a diverse workforce and 1s
dedicated to promoting women in leadership. In line with our
commitment to the Women in Finance Charter we set targets
to increase the proportion of women in senior positions and, as
it the end of 2020, we had exceaded the terget of 33% female
representation at executive level and therr direct reports, with
42% reached by the end of 2020.
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Senior management succession and talent development
Succession planning and talent development of senior
management has been considered and reviewed throughout
2020. The CEO and chief administrative officer (responsible for
the HR function) have responsibility for senior management
succession plonning and discussions have been held with the
chair and management to ensure a strong and stable senior
leadership team, while retaining a focus on developing a talent
pipeline to ensure the continued success of LV=. The Corporate
Governance and Nomination Committee has oversight of the
succession plans to ensure a diverse and suitable pipeline of talent
has been identified and coaching and development or recruitment
activity is being undertaken. All executive appointments are
discussed with the chair, with oversight from the Corporate
Governance and Nomination Committee, prior to appointment.

During 2020, the Corporate Governance and Nomination
Committee considered and agreed to the extension of Mark
Hartigan's contract for a further six months to ensure the stability
of leadership during the on-going strotegic discussions. When
considering the extension, the committee focused on the potential
negative impact a change in leadership would have on the
workforce and agreed that the extension would provide comfort to
employees during uncertain times. It would also provide continuity
in leadership and knowledge through the initial transactional
phases in 2021.

Performance Evaluations

Board and Committee Evaluation

The board and committees undertook internally facilitated reviews
for 2020. it was agreed that the same questionnaires as used the
previous year would be used to ensure a consistent approach and
provide any trends and an assessment of progress against areas
of development. Each questionnaire was tailored to the relevant
committee and covered topics such as leadership and decision
making, strategy, risk and culture. Each questionnaire was circulated
to, and completed by, each member and regular attendees.

The findings and recommenddations from the review were
presented to the board and committees in early 2021 and tracked
against the 2019 findings. The results showed that positive
improvements had been observed in all areas and evidenced
that the board and committees.understood their scope and remit
and were effective in discharging their responsibilities. It was
agreed that the balance of skills and experience on the board

and committees were appropriate and the support provided by
the business met or exceeded expectations. The frequency of
meetings satisfied the requirements of the board and committees
to have sufficient oversight to make informed and timely
decisions. A small number of individual actions were agreed to
ensure continuous improvements throughout the yeor.

The key focus areas and actions agreed by the board are
summarised below:

o

Meeting effectiveness « Continue to improve the quality of the papers presented in the meeting to ensure
) S e : each decision or action required from the board is clear, with evidence to support the
’ recommendation from management.
« Consider ways to improve and simplify the Ml presented at the meeting.

Culture and stakeholders . + Facilitate greater employee engagement and visibility of the views of the workforce at the

board level.

« Coordinate thematic reviews and training for the board.

CohésiVe decision making » Facilitate increased engagement with the board and executives.
: « Arrange informal engagement with the non-executive directors outside of the scheduled

board meeting cycle.

Commiittees

The collective actions from the reviews included the continuous
development of the quality and range of management mformotlon
provided to the committees.

Progress will be monitored throughout 2021 by the board
and edch of the committees to ensure that the actions and
recommendations are effectively addressed and completed.

Chair

The senior independent director, David Barral, conducted

the evaluation of the chair’s performance through a series of
individual and group discussions with the non-executive directors
and senior executives. The results were unanimous that the

.chair was highly respected, provided focused, collaborative

and balanced leadership and dedicated commitment, through

a period of strategic and transformational change. There were
minimal areas of consideration raised by the directors which were
discussed and noted by the chair.

Non-executives

The chair held individual meetings with each non-executive
director to discuss their contribution and performance over the
year. Following these meetings, the chair confirmed that each
director continued to make an effective contribution to the board
and identified training und dexalopment areas both individually
and collectively for the board.

Re-election and retirement
All current directors stood for re-election at the AGM in September

2020. In accordance with the Code, to maintain the independence .

of the board, directors must retire ofter a nine-year term. However,
the board adopts o best practice approach and directors typically
resign after a shorter term of six years. David Neave voluntarily
stepped down in June 2020, having completed a full six-year term
on the board. Tanya Lawler also retired from the Board in January
2020, as reported in the 2019 Annual Report. 8

Member engagement

The board uses its AGM and member panels to communicate
with members and other stakeholders. The two member panel
meetings scheduled for 2020 were cancelled due to Covid-19 and
effort was made to communicate with members via the Member
Hub and the website. A Member Panel was subsequently held
virtually in January 2021 to give members an opportunity to
speak with the chair, With-Profits Committee chair, Remuneration
Committee choir and company secretary about the transaction
with Bain Capital. 24 members gttended und found the session
very informative. :

A communication was issued to alt members in December
explaining the board's decision to pursue a transaction with Bain
Copital. As part of the mailing, members were invited to attend a
webinar which was held in February. Members were able to submit
questions in advance and the key areas discussed included the
background to the transaction and insight into the deat processes.

‘Over 200 members attended the webinar with many members

participating by submitting questions ahead. All eligible members
will be invited to vote on the transaction at a Special General
Meeting which is expected to be scheduled for later in 2021.

In line with Government guidance and due to the restrictions

on public gatherings, the board agreed to delay the AGM which
was originaily scheduled for July 2020. The AGM was postponaed
until 30 September in the hope of maximising the possibility of
members being able to attend. Unfortunately, the restrictions

on social gatherings continued and the meeting was closed to
members and held virtually with only the board and two members
present (to enable the necessary quorum). Although only two
members were in attendance, a thorough engagement process
was followed. Members were asked to submit their vote by proxy
together with any questions for the board. These were considered
at the meeting and the questions and answers were published on
the LV= website alongside the meeting minutes.
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The board’s activities during the year - s.172 statement.
In addition to the 11 formal board meetings held during 2020, the board also met regularly to discuss ond
consider the strategic options and process.

: AlanCook : . Y BV 100%
DovidBoral - 17 17 100%
Alison Hutchirison SR 17 100%
‘HLA'uk’e Sovogbe o - ‘. SV 17 ©100%
'»CO|In Ledie v 17 100%
_WoyneSnow Y 17 100%
"SeomusCreed'on - -‘ 16 16 100%
f'.éx’vaon Mclnnes . o -3 12 92%
Mork Hortlgon I 7 7 100%
lTonyo Lawler i S 1 100%
:,.'DovidNeox;,é. - o 10 100%

The agenda for each board meeting is carefully considered in advance by the chair, CEO and company
secretary to ensure that any standing or situational matters follow the correct governance process. A
typical meeting will comprise of reports from:

¢ The CEO on the performance and strategy.

» The director of finance on the trading and financial performance.

e The chief risk officer on risk and regulatory matters.

¢ The business line directors on the trading performance of their businesses.

« The customer champion on issues relating to the customer.

The remainder of the agenda focuses on member and governance matters, and matters of current
interest. Employee, member and customer matters have received greater focus during the year through
the strategic process to ensure that all stakeholder interests were considered and the business remains.
sustainable, profitable and successful for the future.

The board actively engages with its stakeholders and the folldwing table provides a summary of how the
board considered the impact on its stakeholders when making decisions throughout the year. Directors are
bound by s172 of the Companies Act 2006 and the table further explains how directors discharged thelr
duties during this process.

Key stakeholder groups:

@ Our members* * Qur mutual status means we are owned by our
@ Our customers members. Anyong can pe_come a memper by
P owning a member-qualifying product with us
& our people . and we count these individuals

@ regulators . as both members and customers.

@ Financial advisers and brokers
@ Suppliers

Pension scheme
@ Environment




Business plans @ 6@@@ 0

Reviewed performance against the
five~-year business plan.

Considered the 2021-2025 business
plan including strategic assessment

~and external assurance.

Employee engogement@

Considered the results of the
employee Engage and Pulse surveys
and the actions taken by management
as aresult.

‘Received regulor updates on the

group’s response to Covid-19 and the
impact and actions being taken to
support the workforce to work from
home.

Agreed a strategy of transparent

and regular communications to the
workforce in response to the press
releases regarding the transaction
with Bain Capital.

Remediation exercise @

The remediation exercise continued
through 2020 to return funds

to members generated by past
calculation or system errors. and

by the end of 2020, £28m had been
returned to members. The project
continues to progress and is expected
to close in 2021

The board and Risk Committee
received regular updates and
monitored the progress throughout
the year.

Budget @ @ @

Considered performance against the
2019/2020 budget.

Agreed the budget for the group for
2020/2021 having considered the
impact on long-term performance,
member bonus and employee
perception.

Interim reporting @ e @@

Agreed to remove public interim
reporting having considered the

level of performance information
available to members, customers and
bondholders.

Strategic process and KPis

000000

Discussed and set the KPIs across
the business and assessed progress
against strategic objectives
throughout 2020.

RNPFN non-profit transfer to LVFS
with-profits fund @

Considered whether an internal
transfer was in the best interest of
both RNPFN and LVFS with-profits
policyholders.

Evaluated the economic impact of an
internal transfer vs. external transfer.
Ensured the correct governance
process was followed for robust
decision making.

Strategic transaction

602000

Considered in depth, alongside
external advisory and legal counsel,
initiatives to grow, develop and sustain
the business. This concluded with the
transaction with Bain Capital (see
pages 9 and 10 for further details).

Costs @ @

Reaffirmed the commitment to have a
leaner, more efficient, cost buse.
Reviewed the operational cost savings
throughout the year relating to
property rents, procurement and costs
associated with the employee base.

Pension scheme 6

Worked with the trustees of the
employee pension schemes to agree
a method for de-risking the schemes
while maintaining protection to
employees.
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Trading l‘deOtES 0 e@@ ‘

Considered the trading performance
and received regular updates.
Reviewed market analysis.

Considered the impact of the business

plan, strategy and costs on the group’s
trading results.

Prod;xcts @ @ @

'Received updates on the re-launch

of the critical illness product ond the
introduction of payment break options
due to vulnerability of those impacted
by Covid-19.

Distributions to members 9@ '

Evaluated the best use of the proceeds
from the sale of the general insurance
business.

Considered the most suitable and

fair way to distribute proceeds to
members.

Determined the level of distribution.

Capital monagement@@

Evaluated the benefits of o matching
adjustment application to enhance the
matching adjustment portfolio and the
change to risk exposure.

~ Considered the impact of the

distribution of the proceeds from the
sale of the general insurance business.
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Board training programme

0800

Received training at both board and
board committee level covering a
range of topics.

Undertook deep-dives into

specific subject matters at board

and committee level to ensure
understanding and rectification action
where required.

Chair/CEQ independence B € €5 @)

Agreed a rigorous and transparent
governance structure to ensure
independence.

Mapped responsibilities and aligned
delegated responsibilities.

Board effectiveness action plan and
evaluation

Reviewed the progress made against
the 2019/2020 effectiveness action
plon.
Undertook a thorough internally

, facilitated effectiveness review
for 2020.

Committee composition @@

Completed a skills assessment for the
board and each committee.
Refreshed membership to ensure
effective decision making and a
balance of skills and experience.

Annual General Meeting 09

Navigated the Covid-19 meeting
restrictions to hold the AGM and
engage with members. R
Received approval for a change to the
Company's Articles (rules) to enable
greater flexibility for the company to
use electronic communication and

for meetings to be held in alternative
ways;
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Case study — Our response to the COVID-19 pandemic

The board, guided by the executive team, were responsible for making quick decisions in unprecedented times to ensure and promote
the long-term success of the group during the Covid-19 pandemic. Due to our role paying pensions and death claims our business was
considered critical during lockdown. The board had to ensure the safety and wellbeing of its workforce, maintain reliable and high
‘business-as-usual’ standards for customers, and continue to assist vulnerable customers.

Employees

Members and
customers

Product offering

Suppliers

Advisers

Working from home: All services were maintained throughout the pandemic. Key workers were quickly
identified. All staff were set up to work from home and additional equipment was provided across

the business to ensure employees could work safely and effectively remotely. No employees were
furloughed as a result of the pandemic measures. Customer service remained the primary prionty

and equipment for front-line staff was prioritised and systems adapted to ensure the commitment to
customers continued as best as possible.

We developed on-line content for our people and their managers to assist in working effectively at home
and juggling work with childcare responsibilities. This included ‘top-tips’ for working at home, coaching
modules and performance management support for remote working (see page 30 for more information).

Wellbeing: Teams across the business arranged virtual quizzes and games to keep in touch and boost
morale. We put in place processes for line managers to provide support to any employees who were
experiencing challenges as a result of 1solation and lockdown.

Returning to work: Government guidelines were strictly followed during 2020. Some employees chose
and were allowed to return to work due to unsuitable working conditions at home or for well-being
reasons. The office was adapted to accommodate social distancing requirements and safeguarding
measures were put in place, including on-line training sessions, to maintain employee safety.

Covid-19 impacted many, if not oll, of our customers with a significant number either becoming
vulnerable or experiencing worsening vulnerabilities. Our response was customer driven with activity
prioritised to support existing members and customers.

For our members and customers, we:

« Created a dedicated area on the LV= website for Covid-19 and how to make contact with LV=,
including a special section for vulnerability.

* Raised awareness of increased financiol scams and frouds.

« Created specific inancial vulnerability tramning to encourage members and customers to ‘pause-for-
thought' and to always seek financial advice, especially in times of market volatility, prior to making
big decisions.

»  Worked in partnership with the specialist finoncial welfare charity Turn2us, to signpost customers
who were in need of financial assistance and support.

« Launched ‘Green Heart Friends’, which enabled our people to ‘check-in’ with members or customers
who were vulnerable or who may be feeling isolated, lonely or simply in need of someone to talk to.

For our vulnerable customers we put measures in place, including:

« Support services such as member benefits, support line, LV= Doctor Services and Care Mavigator.
+ Options to reduce premiums or payment holidays for various products.
« Covid-19 payment breaks which were funded by the LV= Member Support Fund.
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Our customer committee undertook o ‘deep-dive’ of the responses to our customer surveys to ensure
the highest level of service continued to be provided. Responses showed o positive outcome of 92%.

Our approach of updating existing products, rather than launching completely new offerings, was
award-winning. We were delighted to receive a number of ‘gold ratings’ across our product range from
Protection Guru and to win our first award for our new Criticol lliness Proposition,

The terms and conditions of our products, and the processes and procedures in place to administer
them, were thoroughly reviewed. The terms and conditions of many products were relaxed to offer
additional support to customers and members, such as offering shorter waiting pernods for those who
lost income due to self-isolation. We took a pragmatic approach to receiving evidence for claims when
the normal methods were no longer viable. Our Savings and Retirement customers were allowed

cash on account due to market volotility over the period ond we lcunched three and four year fixed-
term annuities. We also led the market in re-pricing certain products to manage volumes due to their
increased demand.

These changes helped our customers to feel positive about the brand and products they had invested in.

We monitored our critical and important suppliers on a daily basis to ensure that they were providing
service in line with service level agreements and we were not at risk of service disruption for our
customers.

We were praised by advisers as the only provider to publish regular bulletins, highlighting the changes
to our products and our response to Covid-19, so thot our advisers could communicate with their
customers confidently about cur product offenings and services during o time of uncertainty.
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- Governance Member meetings: The board delayed the company’s Annual General Meeting in the hope that members
1 would be able to attend. Following government guidelines the AGM was held on 30 September as a

closed meeting with only two members and the board present. Members were able to vote by proxy in
advance, either by post or online and submit questions to the meeting. The questions and answers, and
the minutes from the meeting were made available on the LV= website after the meeting.

Board meetings: All board and committee meetings were held virtually using a secure virtual platform.
The strong procedures already in place resulted in minimal disruption to the board and committee
meeting schedule and their oversight and decision making responsibilities.

. Management meetings: The governance framework was quickly reviewed to determine which internal
maonagement committees were decision-making or advisory to ensure that the correct approval
processes were followed and documented, thereby alloviing efficient, robust and transparent decision
making to continue.

This provides members with the assurance that the board continued to uphold their responsibilities
and occountabilities despite not being able to meet collectively in person. The processes remained
rigorous and robust to ensure that decisions were made in line with the appropriate authority and with
consideration to all stakeholders. /

' Regulators We remained in regular contact with our regulotors to keep them up to date with our response to the
pandemic and the actions we were taking as a business. We ensured we met, and where possible
exceeded, best practice. We prioritised and protected delivery of our critical services such as claims, '
income payments, investments and adviser guidance and were the cnly firm in the market publishing
our claims approach. The regulators were complimentary of our approach to the pandemic.

Long-term practices We were forced to change some of our processes and systems quickly which resulted in the requirement
for risk acceptances and waivers. These were all considered carefully and once the initial impact of
the lockdown restrictions had settled, a series of workshops were run to review the new operations to
provide assurance that all impacts and changes had been considered and to strengthen controls where
required.

The business strengthened its work on operationatl resilience, incorporating fessons learnt from this
pandemic, to guard against future events. We are continuing to investigate how to incorporate the new
ways of working into our long-term strotegy to take the efficient changes (such os heme valuations for
equity release and productive remote working) into the 'new normat’.

-

Voice of the employee

The Code enforces the importance of strengthening the voice of the employee and other stakeholders in the boardroom and outlines
rmethods by which the board should engage with the workforce. In 2020, the board relied on alternative arrangements to consider the
interests of employees during the strategic decision making process due to the sensitive and confidential nature of the discussions.
To ensure a strong focus remained on our employees through the decision making process, the impact of each strategic option on
employees was evaluated in depth and was a key factor in the strategic discussions and decision making.
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The board fully supports initiatives to engage and empower our employees. The views of the employees are reported regularly to the
bodrd via the chief administration officer (responsible for HR) and the customer champion. This is one of the methods the board Lises to
assess and monitor the culture within LV=. Our customer charter is outlined on page 5.

The results of the employee engage and pulse surveys were reviewed by the board. The completion rates for the surveys were very
high and allowed the board to understand how changes in leadership and organisational design, working practices and well-being and
the general concerns of the workforce were viewed throughout the business. The primary focus of the pulse surveys during the year
was on well-being to gauge employees’ views and opinions following implementation of the working-from-home restrictions.

The wellbeing of our employees was of the upmost importance to the board in its response to the pandemic. Wellbeing champions
from within the business fed back on employee views to management and these were reported on at board level.



Board committees
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Further details of the role and responsibility of each board committee, including each committee’s terms of reference,

are available on LV.com

Audit Committee
Luke Savage (Chair) 9/9
Colin Ledlie ' 9/9
David Barral 9/9

Note from the chair
Dear Members,

As chair of the Audit Committee, | am pleased to provide an
overview of the work undertaken throughout 2020 and our focus
for 2021. In this regard the challenges we have all faced in 2020
also impacted the work of the committee, with increased focus
on areas such as the consequences of the pandemic on our
reserving and business projections, and the implications, if any,
on our viability statement. |I'm pleased to say that the committee
received all the assurances required from management to
conclude satisfactorily on the robustness of the report and
accounts and | would like to thank the team for their outstanding
work in very difficult circurnstances.

The role of the committee is to oversee and challenge the
integrity of the group's financial reports and the robustness of

our financiol internal controls. We also have oversight of the
external ond internal auditors, and monitor their objectivity,
independence and operation. The significant issues considered
by the committee in relation to the 2020 Annual Report along
with the work that the committee has carried out during the yeor
in relation to the group's internal control and external cuditors are
set out in this report.

Significant issues considered in relation to the financial
statements

I fulfilling its duties regording ensuring the integrity of financial
reporting across the group, the committee focused on the
followang significant issues during the year.

Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities
The valuation of long-term insurance and investment contract
liabilities is an arec of signficant judgement. The reserving
methodology and assumptions used for IFRS and Solvency Il
reserving are assessed by management and the chief actuary
and recommended to the committee. An area of significant
judgement that was considered by the committee was the
derivation of the unit costs, where a number of changes to
the methodology had been made to improve the process of
allocation.

The committee reviewed and challenged the reports from
management and the chief actuary as well as considering
feedback from the external auditors in order to satisfy itself that
the reserving methodology and assumptions are appropriate.

Pensions

The measurement of the defined benefit pension schemes
requires judgement in setting the valuation assumptions.

In addition, during the year ¢t pension scheme buy-in was
entered into in order to reduce the exposure to longevity risk.
The buy-in insurance policy is recognised as a scheme asset.
The committee reviewed reports from management and the
external pension valuction experts. The commitiee is satished
that the assumptions and measurement of the buy-in impact ore
appropriate.

Goodwill

The committee assessed management's impairment assessment
of the goodwill in light of the group’s five-year plan. The
committee concurred with management that the £8m goodwill
associated with the Wealth Wizards investment should be
written-off based on the measurement of the value in use. The
committee concurred with management that there is sufficient
headroom for the goodwill associated with the long-term
insurance business and that no impairment of the goodwill

associoted with the long-term insurance business is required.

External reporting

The committee reviewed ond challenged the financial reporting
documents including the Annual Report and associated press
release, and the 2019 Solvency and Financial Condition Report,
which was released in Moy 2020. In performing these reviews
the committee considered the balance of good and bad news
and the explonations included regarding one-off and temporary
items impacting the results in ensuring compliance with the fair,
balanced and understandable criteria. The committee reviewed
the report of the external auditors on the Annual Report and
noted that there were no significant findings to report.

Areas of reporting which required specific focus for the 2020
year-end included the appropriateness of disclosures relating to
the proposed transaction with Bain Capital and also the impacts
of the Covid-19 pandemic, including how the impacts have

been incorporated into significant judgeinents cnd cccounting
estimates.

In addition to matters relating to the year-end 2020 reporting
the committee is also overseeing the group's approach to
external reporting in future years. Matters discussed included
the appropriateness of adopting UK GAAP and the impact that
this has on the requirements for IFRS 17 'Insurance contracts’
preparation.

Adoption of the Companies Act

The parent company converted to a company limited by
guarantee at the start of year. The 2020 Annual Report has been
prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006. The committee noted that the group has previously
voluntarily complied with the majority of the Companies Act
disclosure requirements. Having reviewed the 2020 Annual
Report. the committee is sotisfied that itis fully compliont with
the Companies Act 2006.
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Internal control

The board has overall responsibility for the group’s internal
control systems and for monitoring the effectiveness of these.
The Audit Committee facilitates the board in executing this
responsibility by ensuring that the internal control environment
and risk management across the organisation is sufficiently
robust. The group's internal control systems are designed

to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to meet
business objectives and can only provide reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Implementation and maintenance of the internal control systems
are the responsibility of the executive directors and senior
management.

Internal control and risk management in relation to
financial reporting

Internal control and risk management systems are used to
ensure the accuracy and robustness of financicl reporting. Key
controls which mitigate risks are identified across the processes
thot impact financial reporting. The design and operation of
these controls is monitored by process and control owners with
regular risk and control assessment and reporting.



Oversight of the internal control framework

The Audit Committee assesses the performance of the internal
control systems through review of reports from the internal
audit and risk functions. Annually, the committee receives an
attestation and exception report regarding the effectiveness

of internal controls and the risk management system. The
committee also seeks the opinion of internal audit which provides
objective assurance on the internal control environment. The
committee approves the scope of interncl audit’s plan, including
the activities and controls subject to review, and monitors the
work performed through: -

» Review of key findings and emerging themes

« Challenge of management’s response to control weaknesses
identified

« Qversight of the resolution of action plans

The committee evaluates the effectiveness and independence of
internal audit on an annual basis to ensure that the function has
the relevant experience, expertise, objectivity and quality to add
value to the business.

The regular review of the effectiveness of the system of risk
management and internal control concluded that these systems
remgin effective and there were no significant failings or
weaknesses to report.

External audit

Effectiveness

At the start of 2020, the FRC's Audit Quality Review team
{AQR) carried out a review of the external audit of our financial
reporting for the 31 December 2018 financial year as part of
their routine sampling activity. The FRC has provided a copy

of their confidential report to the chairman of the commitiee,
which has been reviewed and discussed by the committee
and with PwC. The committee is satisfied with the regponses
to the report implemented by PwC for the audit of the group’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the committee is content that the matters raised do not give it
concerns over the quality, objectivity or independence of the
2020 audit.

The committee reviewed a report detailing the views of key
stakeholders involved in the 2019 year-end audit process to
evaluate the effectiveness of the external audit processes. Areas
assessed were expertise, communication, team, delivery and
value for money. The committee concluded that the external
audit was effective. However, it was concluded that the audit
would not offer value for money at the proposed fee for 2020.

Independence

The committee reviewed the policy for and monitored the use of
the external auditors for any non-audit related work. The policy
clearly identifies permitted services for which it is appropriote
to use the external auditors, where the independence of the
external auditors would not be threatened. The policy also
regulates the appointment of former audit employees to senior
positions in the group.

The committee ensured that the external auditors have reviewed
their own independence in line with these criteria and their own
ethical quidance siandards and have confirmed 1o the comrmittee
that following their review they are satisfied that they have

acted in accordance with relevant regulatory ond professional
requirements and that their objectivity is not impaired.

Fees for non-audit services in 2020 were negligible. See Note 13
for details of fees incurred.

Having considered compliance with our policy and the fees paid
to the external auditors, the committee is sotisfied os te the
continued independence and objectivity of the external auditors.
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Audit tender

The Audit Committee considers the need to re-tender the
external audit on an annual basis in order to ensure continued
effective performance and value for money. PwC have been the
group’s external auditors since 2008. Following o competitive
tender to comply with legislation regarding audit firm rotation,
PwC were re-appointed in 2018.

In June 2020, the committee initiated an audit tender for external
audit services in order to ensure that we had an cudit appropriate
to the new size and shape of the group following the sale of the
general insurance business at the end of 2019. The committee
had oversight and responsibility for carrying out the tender.

The process

A selection panel was created, made up of the three members of
the Audit Committee and led by the committee chair. The director
of finance and the financical controller were alsc in attendance.
Three cudit firms recched the final stage of the tender process,
including PwC. There was an opportunity for the tendering firms
to meet with key LV= executives relevant to the qudit and the
chair of the Audit Committee, who were available to answer
questions relating to the audit itself and matters arising from

the data room. Selection panel members received detailed
responses from each firm to o formal request for proposal. Each
firm delivered a presentation to the selection peneal during which
questions were raised by the panel and each presentation was
debated and evaluated immediately afterwards and scored
against a pre-defined selection criteria which included:

¢ Approach to ensuring audit quality

¢ Understanding of our business and risks
o Experience and fit of the lead partner

« Senior audit team capability

* Transition approach

¢ Value provided from the audit

The outcome

Having taken into account each of the selection criteria and the
quality of the presentations, the selection panel unanimously
agreed to propose to the Audit Committee and in turn the
committee agreed to propose to the board, that Mazars be
appointed as statutory auditors following completion of the 2020
year-end process and that this appointment would be subject to
member approval at the 2021 AGM. The committee would like to
thank each firm for their porticipation in the tender process.

Transition

We are now working closely with both PwC and Mazars to
ensure on efficient transition of the external audit. Mazars are
shadowing key meetings and regular reports on transition are
provided to the committee.

Looking ahead

Over 2021, the committee mntends to focus on significont matters
impacting financial repor ting including valuation of long-term
insurance and investment contract liabilities, the impacts on
financial reporting of the Bain Copital transaction and the
planned future conversion to UK GAAP. In addition the committee
will continue to monitor the work of the internal audit function
and the effectiveness of the group's internal control systems.
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Corporate Governance and Nomination
Committee

[ ceemtmestp

Alan Cook {Chair) 3/3
Luke Savage 2/3
Alison Hutchinson 3/3
David Barral 3/3
David Neave”” 1/1

Aresigned from the board on 30 June 2020

Dear Members,

It is customary for the chair of the board to chair this committee
and | am pleased to report the work we have done during 2020.

It is our responsibility to review and evaluate the size, structure
and composition of the board and its committees and ensure
succession plans are in place for the board, the executive
committee and the company secretary.

We identify and recommend candidates for appointment to the
board, based on merit and against objective criteria, for approval
by the board. We also have oversight of LV="s governance
arrangements to ensure alignment with our strategic priorities
and compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. We
advise the board of any governance issues to enable the board to
operate effectively and efficiently.

During the year, we led and completed the appointment process
({that was started in 2019), of the three new board directors.

The committee also undertook a skills assessment of the board
directors and reviewed the succession plans for the board and
senior management.

We reviewedl the directors’ conflicts of interest and approved the
mitigating action, as well as assessing the fitness and propriety
and time commitment of each of the non-executive directors to
ensure that they remained independent, fit and proper and able
to dedicate sufficient time to their roles.

The committee assessed whether the high governance standards
of the Code remained appropriate as the business was now
smaller following the sale of the general insurance business. We
agreed to continue to adopt the Code and maintain our robust
governance framework. We were fully compliant with the Code
throughout the year.

The composition of the committee changed during the year. In
accordance with the practices of good corporate governance,
David Neave resigned having served a full six-year termas a
board director.

Over 2021, the committee intends to focus on reviewing the
governance framework including the composition of the board
and comimittees to ensure that the right balance of skills and
experience is suitable for the business going forward.
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Risk Committee

o |

David Barral (Chair) 5/5

Colin Ledlie 5/5

Alan Cook 5/5

Seamus Creedon* 3/4
. ngid Neave” 1/2

Tanya Lowler+ 0/0
*joined 6 May 2020

~resigned from the board on 30 June 2020
+ resigned from the board on 29 January 2020

Dear Members,

As chair of the committee, | am pleased to present our key
activities during 2020 and focus for 2021.

During the year, we welcomed Seamus to the Committee and
said farewell to David Neave and Tanya Lawler.

Throughout the year, we gove regular consideration to our
group risk profile including the principal and emerging risks.
We considered the risk strategy at the beginning of the year
and updated risk appetite statements were reviewed and
recommended to the board throughout the year.

We continued to focus on customer outcomes and had regular
oversight of the risk maturity and risk event remediation projects
to ensure that adequate progress was being made across

the business and the appropriate controls were in place. The
committee also reviewed the updated product governance
framework and considered the controls and mitigation.

We contributed to the ORSA and related processes including
stress and scenario testing and in particulor, considered the
impact of Covid-19 and Brexit. The committee spent time
considering liquidity and climate-related risks as well as the
requirements and progress made against relevant regulatory
supervisory statements.

Business sustainability and operational resilience were key
focus areas for the committee over the year. We received
regular updates on the group’s response to Covid-19 and the
progress being made in response to the regulatory requirements
on operational resilience. Business sustainability, particularly
relating to the IT estate, was discussed and the committee

had oversight of the progress made in addressing the ongoing
sustainability needs of the organisation.

We have also spent considerable time as a board debating the
strategic options and sustainability of the business which is
covered more fully on pages 9 and 10.

More details of the risk management framework, appetite and
strategy are set out in the Risk Management section on pages
1810 22.
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Remuneration Committee

Alison Hutchinson (Chair) 6/6
Luke Savoge* 2/2
Susan Mclnnes* - 4/4
Alan Cook” - 4/4
Tanya Lawler” 1/1

*Susan joined 1 Aprit 2020 and Luke joined 23July 2020
ATanya left 29 January 2020 and Alan left 23 July 2020

Dear Members,

As chair of the committee, | am pleased to present the key
activities of the committee during 2020. This year more than
ever we have been focused on aligning remuneration with
the interests of our members and ensuring a strong strategic
direction.

The main role of the committee is to review salary and bonus
levels and consider gender pay reporting and wider workforce
pay trends and policies. The committee also ensures that the
highest levels of governance are followed and that these are
compliant with remuneration regulations in the UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Sli regulations.

During 2020 we determined the remuneration packages for
joiners, promotions and leavers and reviewed the annual bonus
and LTIP measures for the group. Further information in relation
to the group’s policy on executive and senior management
remuneration, and the activities of the committee during 2020,
is set out in the Report on Director’s Remuneration on pages
5410 64.

The membership of the committee was refreshed during the
year to ensure effective decision making and a balance of

skills and experience. In accordance with best practice, Alan

left the committee in July but remains a regular attendee to
provide valued input into the meeting. Luke, as chair of the Audit
Cominittee, was agreed as the most suitable candidate to fill the
vacancy. Susan joined the committee in April 2020 and brings a
wealth of experience and understanding to the role.

Corporate Governance Statement 48

Investment Committee

Colin Ledlie* (Chair) 4/4
David qufol* 4/4
Alan Cook* 4/4
Mark Hartigan” 1/1
Chris Watkern 1/1

*Independent NED
N Executive members — joined 9 December 2020

Dear Members, .

| am pleased to provide you with an overview of the work of the
committee during what has been a very turbulent year. We have
henefited from a diversified portfolio and long-term approach
that hos enabled us to weather these difficult conditions well.

The committee’s role is to act for the group by ensuring that
assets are invested in an appropriate way to meet the needs of
its members and policyholders. We do this by developing and
overseeing the investment strategy for the group on behalf of
the board. We ensure the strategy is within risk appetite and

is developed in accordance with the requirements for the fair
treatment of with-profits policyholders and are in ling with the
LV= Principles and Practices of Financial Management (PPFM),
which is ¢ decument that outlines our approcch to the financicl
management of with-profits investments to make sure that
customers are treated fairly.

The committee's composition changed during the year. Following
the resuits of the committee's effectiveness review, and in line
with best practice, it was agreed that Mark Hartigan and Chris
Walker would join the committee as executive members.

During 2020, the committee monitored the investment portfolio
performance through o period of uncertainty caused by the
Covid-19 pandemic and considered the investment strategy in
light of the global market conditions. The performance of the
assets managed by Columbia Threadneedle Investments was
discussed at each meeting, including their compliance with
delegoted authorities approved by the committee. During the
year we also reviewed the strategic asset allocation for the
with-profits funds and we spent time considering our epproach
to responsible investing. We also approved a new Responsible
Investment Framework.
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The committee undertook a number of ‘deep-dives’ into our
investments to ensure the investment strategy was still aligned
to our business strategy and risk appetites and to challenge
management where necessary.



With-profits Committee (WPC)

David Hare (Chair) 5/5
Colin Led|ig 5/5
lan Blanchard 5/5
Steve Sarjont* 5/5
Mike Kipling** 3/3
Susan Mclnnes*** 2/2
Groham Bervilie**** 3/3

* yesigned 31 December 2020
**joined 23 June 2020

***joined 8 September 2020

***x Resigned 30 September 2020

Dear Members,

As chair of the committee, | am pleased to present our key
activities during 2020 and focus for 2021. The role of the WPC is
primarily to do two things:

» Actin on advisory capacity to inform the decision-making of
the board; and

« Act os a means by which the interests of with-profits
policyholders are appropriately considered within an insurer’s
governance structures.

Our Terms of Reference (ToR) cover all the minimum regulatory
requirements of o with-profits committee. In addition. the ToR
contain a number of other specific duties, in order to reflect
aspects of the Court approved legal scheme that transferrad the
business of Teachers Assurance Limited into the LV= with-profits
fund some years ago. The ToR are subject to annual review by
both the WPC and the board.

The WPC met five times in 2020 to cover its business-as-usual
responsibilities, reviewing, for example, proposed bonus
declarotions and payout-setting opproaches, investment
strategy and performance, customer service levels, policyholder
communications and ongoing compliance with the Principles
and Proctices of Financial Management (PPFM). Specific topics
discussed included the ongoing review of LV='"s legacy review
programme and the fair treatment of with-profits customers

in line with the FCA guidance under TR19/3. In addition, it met
a further 16 times to consider matters relating to the strategic
review and the proposed transaction with Bain Capital.

The WPC was fully engaged in the strategic review that LV=
undertook, culminating in the board’s decision to propose

the transaction with Bain Capital. The committee saw all the
relevant boord papers and had opportunities to feed their
comments and advice into the board discussions and decisions.
In all cases, the board carefully considered the views of the
committee and took them into account in the decisions made.

Mo decision of the board concerning the strategic review and its
cttcome was in conflict vith the cdvice and recommendations of
the committee.

The WPC unanimously agreed with the board that the proposed
transecciton with Bain Copital represents an excellent financial
outcome for LV="s with-profits policyholders.

The WPC membership comprises an independent choir (David
Hare), two other independent members {lan Blanchard and

Mike Kipling), and two non-executive directors on the LV=

hoard (Susan Mcinnes and Colin Ledlie). All five members are
experienced financial services professionals. with considerable
experience of with-profiis business and also insurance business
transfers of the sort envisaged fer the proposed transaction with
Bain Capital.

Corporate Governance Statement 49

During the year, the composition of the committee changed

with the resignation of Mr Berville after nine years of service as
the chair of the committee and Mr Sarjant following a six-year
term on the committee. The changes to the composition of the
committee aligned with best practice to ensure the committee’s
continued independence. We also welcomed two new members,
Mr Kipling and Ms Mcinnes, who bring a wealth of knowledge
and experience to the committee.

A key focus for 2021 will be playing our part in the preparations
for the member vote on the proposed transaction with Bain
Copital and, if members vote in favour, the implementation of
the transfer scheme. Specific areas where our input is olready
anticipated include commenting on the communications to
with-profits policyholders about the proposals, reviewing the
governance documents that will apply to the management of the
with-profits fund assuming the transfer goes ahead and advising
the board on the fair distribution of the additional capital that the
sale to Bain Capital will facilitate.

RNPFN Supervisory Board

Peter Nowell 4/4
Rodney Baker Botes 4/4
Mike Kipling 4/4
David Hare* 3/3
lan Blanchard* 3/3 o
Andy Young** ) 1/1 (%
Paul Downey** 11 3

*joined 9 June 2020
**Resigned 2 March 2020

Deor Members,
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As chair of the committee, | am pleased to report on the work of
the supervisory board during 2020.

The RNPFN fund is a ring-fenced sub-fund within LVFS which
holds the remaining business transferred from the Royal National
Pension Fund for Nurses on 31 December 2001. The RNPFN
supervisory board is established in accordance with the Scheme
of Transfer and ot the request of the LVFS board aiso fulfils the
function of the RNPFN With-protits committee.

The supervisory board comprises of three independent members
one of which is the chairman, and two LV= nominated members.
In the middle of the year, LV= changed their appointed members
and David Hare and ion Blanchard replaced Paul Downey and
Andy Young. | thank the retiring members for their valuable
contributions and welcome the new members.

During 2020, the supervisory board considered and commented
on the strategic proposals parti¢ularly rélatifig to the impact Tof
RNPFN members. We also continued to monitor the changing
balance of the fund and any actions that needed to be taken

to ensure its smooth running going forward, while maintaining
compliance with the scheme documents.

Acting as a with-profits comimitiee, the supervisory board
continued to consider and advise on the interests and views of
RNPFEN policy holders and brought independent judgement of the
assessment of compliance with the statement of Principles ond
Practices of Financial Management (PPFM).

Our focus for 2021 will include continuing to monitor the progress
of the Bain transaction, ensuring that RNPFN policyholders
receive clear ond concise communicodons, and thot thek
interests are adequately addressed.



Directors’
Report

Michael Jones
Company Secretary

Business activities and future

prospects

We are ¢ mutual financial services business
offering protection, savings and retirement
products and services in the United Kingdom
{UK). These products include with-profits
insurance, life protection, pensions, annuities,
online retirement advice and equity release.
The directors consider that all the activities
undertaken by the group during the year
were within the company's rules and relevant
regulatory permissions.

The board sets objectives and priorities which
are supported by key performance indicators
and targets. These are monitored by the board
on an ongoing basis throughout the year. The

key objectives and priorities were aligned to our

strategic agenda which you can find out more
about on poges 8 to 10. We've also included
our strategy for the current year and the
years ahead.

Business strategy
The board has chosen to set out the group’s

full strategic report information, required under

opplicable law and regutations, in this report
which can be found on pages 4 to 31.

Basis of accounting

The audited financiol statements of the

group have been prepared in accordance
with International Accounting Standards

in conformity with the requirements of

the Companies Act 2006 and also with
International Financial Reporting Standards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union,
drawn up on a going concern basis. Further
details about the directors’ responsibilities for
the financial siatements are described on
page 53.

Going concern and viability

statement

In accordance with the provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code, the directors are
required to assess the prospect of the group
as a going concern generally over the next 12
months ond also its longer-term viability.

50

Going concern

Under the UK Corporate Governance Code
the directors are required to state whether the
business is a going concern.

In considering this requirement, the directors
have taken into account the following:

* The boord approved group financial plan
and in particular the forecast regulatory
solvency position. Sensitivity analysis is
included within this forecast.

¢ For the group, regulatory solvency is
given more attention than liquidity. This is
because, by the nature of its business, the
group holds very substantial liquid assets on
its balance sheet which would enable it to
pay claims and expenses as they fall due for
at least a 12 month period.

* The principal risks and uncertainties that
could impact the group’s solvency and
liquidity over the next 12 months, including
stress and scenario testing focused on
the main risks of a deeper than expected
Covid-19 impact.

* The board have considered whether the
business is a going concern under the
expected scenario that the proposed Bain
Capital deal is concluded by the end of
March 2022 and for the unlikely scenario
that the Bain Capital deal does not proceed.

Having due regard to these matters and after
making appropriate enquiries, the directors
confinm that they consider it appropricte to
prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Viability statement

Our members rely on the sustainability of the
group over the longer ferm and this is reflected
in our business model and management of

risk. An assessment of viability is integral to our
strategic plonning ond decision making process
in order that we can continue in operation and
meet our obligations to policyholders. Our
strategy is developed considering members’
best interests, value accretion, solvency and
liquidity. The principal risks and uncertainties
that the group is exposed to underpin the
strategic planning process and are outlined in
further detail on pages 21 and 22.
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Strategic review impact

In December 2020 we announced that we had agreed a
transaction which, subject to member and regulator approval,
will see Bain Capital purchase the LV= business. This transaction
is the culmination of an extremely thorough and robust strategic
review, followed by o structured sale process to secure the

best long-term future for our members, employees, other
stakeholders and the business.

The transaction will be carried out in two stages with Bain
Capital initially acquiring LV="s subsidiary LVLC together

with the administration and new business infrastructure. All
eligible members will be invited to vote on the transaction at

a Special General Meeting which is expected to be scheduled
for later in 2021. Subject to progressing as currently planned,
the transaction is expected to complete by the end of March
2022 with o tronsfer of the in-force non-profit business to LVLC
{which will then be owned by Bain Capital) and a transfer of the
with-profits business to a ring-fenced sub-fund of LVLC which will
be run-off for the benefit of with-profits members. The transfer
will be affected by way of a Part VIt transfer under the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000.

The dircctors are confident that the transaction will proceed os

intended and will enhance the long-term future of the business.
However, should the transaction with Bain Capital not proceed,
the planning process outlined below indicates that LV= will still

have sufficicnt copital at the end of the period of assessment to
remain viable.

Period of assessment

In the board's assessment of viability o three-year time period
has been used. Each year a financial plan is developed and is
subject to robust review ard chalienge by the beard. This plan is
over a five-year horizon, with greater certcinty associated with
the first three yeors. The further tvio years arc included to provide
the board with an extended plan for strategic decision making.
The board recognises that uncertainty increases over time and
this is reflected in the period used in the assessment of viability.
The outer two years of the plan do not contoin any information
which would impact the conclusion reached regarding the
longer-term viability of the group. By restricting the period of
assessment to the first three years of the plan, this takes into
account the uncertainty of future external developments and the
typical timescale over which changes to major regulations tend
to tale place. Future external developments may include lenger
term socioeconomic changes following the COVID-19 pandemic
and also other changes in the economic, pelitical and regulatory
environment in which we operate.

Summary of capital position

At the start of the year the capital coverage rotio ot 244%
exceeded the upper threshold of our risk appetite (CCR 140% -
200°%) as a result of the sale of LYGIG ot the end of 2019. During
the year we have completed a strotegic review which considered
both the long-term strategy for the business and how best to
ensure members can benefit from the capital generated from
the sale of LVGIG. At the end of 2020 the capital position was
within risk appetite with a CCR of 198%. The capital position and
ongoing operating copital generation are a priority for the greup
and are monitored as key performance indicators (see page 7),
ensuring the continued sustainability of the group.

Strategic planning process

The strategic plan aligns to our strategic agenda which you

can read more about on pages 8 to 10. The strategic planning
process includes an assessment of the sustainability and
resilience of our business model and an in depth analysis of the
group's forecast risk profile, capital. solvency and hquidity. The
board have considered the future wiabibty of the group assuming
the Ban Capital deal completes as expected and olso for the
unlikely scenario that the Bain Copital deal does not proceed.
This included reviewing a plan version produced on the hasis that
the deal does not proceed in order to ensure that the business
also remains viable under this outcome.
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The validity of the planning process is assessed by reconciling
the projections to actual business outcomes over the past
planning cycle, and understanding difierences that are identified
in order to continually improve the process going forward. The
plan provides a road map for implementing the group’s strategic
objectives and is underpinned by a series of economic and other
assumptions which are subject to stress and scenario testing
outlined below.

Stress and scenario testing

An integral part of the planning process is an assessment of
the risks to achieving the projected performance. As part of

the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment {ORSA) process we
perform stress tests to assess the capital resilience of the group
to a range of severe, but plausible, scenarios (see page 20). In
addition to this, the group conducts a reverse stress test which
gives the board an understanding of the maximum resilience of
the group to extremely severe adverse scenarios. In considering
these scenarios the impacts of mitigating management actions
designed to maintain or restore capital, solvency and liquidity
to within risk appetite are taken into account. These tests allow
the board to review and challenge the strategic plan and risk
management strategy In addition, the results of stress tests
form part of the process to set the group’s risk appetite capital
coverage ratio of 140%, equivalent to o buffer of £282m at 31
December 2020. Our risk appetite above the regulatory capital
requirement is set to protect us against any shocks and stresses
(see page 20 for more information).

The base case for the plan assumed a second wave Covid-19
slowdown of new business sales volumes during the first half

of 2021, not fully recovering until the third quorter. Where the
pandemic has impacted new business income margins achievable
in the mariket. we retlected thal. with bmited reccvery assumed
over the planning horizon. Drivers for the income impacts include
rensurance rates and changes in consumer demand tor a
different mix of products. In addition to this a scenario was tested
which assumed the market impact of the pandemic continued to
progress to a greater extent than assumed in the base case. This
scenano assumes that as the rates ot intection increase in late
2020 and early 2021, further extensive governmental measures
and constraints are initiated to mitigate the effects but have a
detrimental effect on economic activity and forecast GDP. This

w turh has an adverse eftect on tinanaial markets wnich sutter
significant falls (similar to those experienced in early 2020). In
order to support the economy, UK interest rates are cut to zero.
Rates of infection and Covid-19 deaths start to fall over the second
half of 2021 due to improved Testing and treatments, access 10
vaccines and warmer weather. This gives rise to the removal of
significont restrictive measures, an improved ecenomic outlook
and market recovery. Under this Covid-19 downturn scenario,
solvency is not projected to breach nsk appetite, reflecting the
strong starting surplus position and the general recovery of the
finanricd markets avar the next two years

As part of monitoring our capital position we continue to seek
areas to de-risk and optimise the Solvency Il balance sheet. In the
past this has included entering into reinsurance arrangements
and sale of the general insurance business. In 2020 we entered
MO G buy-in transaction tw reduce oun exposure 1 changes

in the liability associated with the LVFS staff pension scheme.
These actions seek to minimise the group’s sensitivity to non-
market stresses and scenarios. In the scenarios tested, sufficient
mitigating actions have been identified to enable the directors
to have a reasonable expectation that the group would remain
viable over the three-year period of assessment.

Formal viability statemmient

The directors make this viabilty statement based on a robust
assessment of thosé rnisks that could threaten the business
model, future profitebility, capitol cdequacy, solvency or liquidity
of the group. Based on this assessment, the directors have o
reasonable expectation that the group will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the three-
year period to December 2023.
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Margin of solvency

Throughout the year and at 31 December 2020
we held the required capital resources for each
business class as prescribed by the Prudential
Regulation Authority (PRA).

Assessment of risk

We look to create value for members by
maintaining an appropriate balance between the
returns that we seek and the level and type of risk
we take on in order to achieve these returns. In
accordance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the directors have carried out a robust
assessment of our principal risks, including those
which would threaten the business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity of the group.

A fult overview of our risk management can be
found on pages 18 to 22. In the Audit Committee
report on pages 45 and 46 vou can find further
details of the ongoing monitoring and the annual
review of the effectiveness of our risk management
systems. See Note 4 of these accounts on pages 93
to 110 for further detail about our risk management
and control.

Internal control

The board has overall responsibility for the group's
internal control systems and for monitoring the
effectiveness of these. Implementation and
maintenance of the internal control systems are the
responsibility of the executive directors and senior
management. The performance of the internal
contro! systems is reviewed by the relevant board
committees, principally the Audit Committee which
receives reports from the internal audit, compliance
and risk functions. The Audit Committee report on
pages 45 and 46 describes the main features of the
internal control and risk management systems in
relotion to the financial reporting process and the
process for preparing consolidated accounts. These
are a subset of the internal control systems under
the supervision of the board’s committees.

The group’s internal control systems are designed
to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure
to meet business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss. In assessing what
constitutes reasonable assurance, the board

has regard to materiality and to the relationship
between the cost of, and benefit from, interncl
control systems. The regular review of the
effectiveness of the system of risk management
and internal control concluded that these systems
remain effective and there were no significant
failings or weaknesses to report.

Independent auditors

At the 2021 Annual General Meeting (AGM) we

will propose a resolution for the appointment of
Mazars LLP (Mazars) as ouditors of LV=, replacing
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) who have
been our auditors since 2008 and who were
reappointed following o competitive tender in 2017.
Further detail relating to the selection of Mazars
LLP as our future auditors can be found on puge 46.
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Board directors and interests

The current members of the board and details of its
various committees are shown on pages 35 to 37.

The directors have the benefit of ¢ qualifying third-
party indemnity provision {as defined in Section
234 of the Compunies Act 2006). The group also
maintdins directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
in respect of itself and its directors.

Our employees

Our people are key to the success of our business.
You can find out mare about our policies and
action taken on employment, development and
incentivisation of our employees, including disabled
persons, in the Corporate Responsibility Report on
pages 29 to 31. Employees have the opportunity
to share their views on matters important to them
in our annual engagement survey. We regularly
communicate and engage with employees on
matters affecting the group, most notably the
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic as described

in the S172 statement on pages 43 and 44 and
also the announcement that we had agreed ¢
transaction with Boin Capital.

Customers, suppliers and others

Our directors engage with, and consider the needs
of, wider stakeholders when making principal
business decisions as described in the S172
statement on pages 40 1o 44, The responsible
business practices employed in the manner in
which we work with customers, suppliers and
others is part of our culture. You can find out more
about this in our Corporate Responsibility Report
on pages 27 and 28.

Financial instruments

The group uses financial instruments to manage
certain types of nsks. The group's financial risk
management objectives and exposure to risks
arising from its investiments in financial instruments
including price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk

are described in note 4. Derivative contracts

are entered into for financial risk monagement
purposes as described in note 16; there are no
designated hedging relationships within the group.
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Political donations
The group made no political donations in 2020.

Statement of disclosure of

information to the auditors
As ot the date of this report each director confirms
that:

« So far os they are each awore, there is no
information relevant to the cudit of the
company’s and the group’s financial sictements
for the year ended 31 December 2020 thot the
auditors are unoware of.

* Each director has token all steps that they
ought to have taken in their duty as a director to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the company’s
auditors are aware of that information.



Directors’ statement of responsibility
The directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report and accounts, the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the financial stotements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law, the directors have elected to prepare
the company and group financial statements

in accordance with International Accounting
Standards in conformity with the requirements

of the Companies Act 2006. Under company law
the directors must not approve the Annual Report
and accounts unless they are satisfied that it
provides a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company and the group, and of the profit
or loss and cashflow of the group for that period.
In preparing the Annual Report and accounts, the
directors are required to:

« Select suitable accounting policies and ensure
they are applied consistently.

* Prepare the accounts on a going concern
basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the company and the group will continue in
business.

* Make judgements and accounting estimates
thot are reasonable and prudent.

* Present information, including accounting
policies, in a manner that provides relevant,
reliable, comparable and understandable
information.

e Provide additional disclosures when compliance
with the specific requirements in IFRS is
insufficient to enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the company’s and
the group’s financial position and financial
performance.

* State that the company and the group have
complied with applicable IFRSs, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in
the accounts.

The directors are also responsible for maintaining:

* Proper accounting records which are intended
to disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any
time, the financial position of the company and
the group.

« Appropriate internal control systems to
safeguard our assets and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

* The integrity of the corporate and financicl
information included on our website LV.com.

Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and

dissemination of financial staternents may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Each of the directors, whose names and functions
are shown on pages 35 to 37, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief:

The company and the group financial
statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with International Accounting
Standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 and also with
International Financial Reporting Standards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 os it applies in the European Union,
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position und profit of the company and
the group.

The Overview of performance and Financial
review on pages 11 to 17 of the Strategic Report
include a fair review of the development and
performance of the business during the financial
year and the financiol position of the group at
the end of 2020.

A description of the group’s principal risks and
details of the group's risk governance structure
are provided on pages 18 to 22.

The directors are satisfied that the Annual

Report, token as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understondable, and provides the information
necessary for our customers and investors to
assess the company’s and the group’s position and
performance, business model and strategy.

By order of the Board of Directors

Michael Jones
Company Secretary

25 March 2021

Moded Bies

§
2
3
e
a
@
&
=
o
-+




54

Report on Directors’
Remuneration

Alison Hutchinson

Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Annual statement

Dear member,

t am pleased to present the 2020 Directors’ Remuneration
Report for the year ending 31 December 2020, including
details of directors’ pay and rationale for decisions made
during the year. Our role as a committee is to ensure that LV's
remuneration policy aligns with the board approved strategy
and performance, and that the creation of value for our
members is fairly rewarded.

We acknowledge that it has been an unprecedented year in
terms of the Covid-19 pandemic. The group responded well in the
face of these challenges and | am pleased we have been able to
support customers and staff in ¢ difficult year, further detail of
which is provided later in this statement as well as on pages 43
and 44 earlier in the Annual Report. This has been reflected in the
outturns which are discussed further below.

Remuneration policy and the link to long-term
business performance

Qur remuneration policy, consistent with previous years and as
approved by members, is designed to align remuneration with
our-purpose and values while also supporting the strategy and
promoting the long-term success of the business.

The annual bonus scheme is available to all employees including
executive directors and is calculated based on performance
which is determined using a balanced scorecard approach with a
mix of finoncial and non-finencial performance conditions.

In order to ensure that any outcome driven by the scorecard
is robust and considers the longer-term sustainability of the

business a formal risk overlay is prepared by our second-line
Risk function and considered by the committee.

Each individual's bonus award is then determined based on
their performance throughout that year. For our more senior
employees, a proportion of any bonus award may be deferred
ond paid out in later years as required by regulations, thereby
ensuring our executives remain focused on both the short and
long-term future of the compuny.

Senior employees may also participate in the group Long-

Term Incentive Plan (LTIP). The tinal value of un LTIP award is
determined based on long-term financict and non-financial
performance conditions measured over o three-year timeframe.
For the executive directors, there 1s also a two-year holding
period following the vesting of the award. The LTIP therefore
incentivises our senior employees to deliver our strategic
priorities and strong business performance over the long term.

The Remuneration Committee’s yeor-end decision making

is focused on ensuring fair remuneration outcomes for all
employees while supporting the delivery of the ongoing
strategy. In the context of the Covid-19 pandemic, LV has
actively chosen to not take advantage of the Government's
Furlough schemes or any other Governmental support. It
remains important therefore, to strike a balance taking into
account the impact of the pandemic on business performance,

and acknowledging the significant efforts of the workforce
during this time and the need to retain and incentivise these
employees going forward.

2020 performance and remuneration
outcomes .

Annual bonus

The 2020 balanced scorecard has been used to measure
performance and determine the size of the bonus pool. The
scorecard structure can be seen on page 59.

LV= has delivered ¢ good financial performance
notwithstanding the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic

on the company and the broader economic environment.

Both the Protection and Savings and Retirement businesses
have increased their market share while making substantial
progress on the change agenda. We responded quickly to the
challenges presented by Covid-19, mobilising a remote working
environment while maintaining customer service during this
time, with positive feedback from employees and customers
on how the process was undertaken. Continuing to offer an
excellent service while ensuring the safety and support of our
colleagues was key at this time. Listening and responding to the
needs of colleagues and customers was essential to ensuring
both critical groups were supported during this challenging
year. In addition, the senior management team have remained
focused on the completion of the strategic review and its
implementation, where we have ensured a great outcome for
our members while also securing our employees future, has
meant it has certainly been a challenging, but successful year
for management and our people. This has resulted in a broadly
plan outcome for the bonus pool award for our employees.
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Commentary on the personal performance of each individual
executive director against their objectives and the 2020 bonus
awards are shown on page 60.

Long-term incentive plan (LTIP)

Our 2018-2020 LTIP award reached the end of its performance
period this year and vested. It was bosed on a scorecard of
finoncial and non-finoncial meosures with stretching targets set
by the committee at the beginning of the performance period.
The structure and further detail of performance outcomes can
be seen on page 61.

The performance outcomes for the 2018-2020 LTIP resulted in
a 0.77x multiplier {38.5% of maximum) of the original award. In
determining this outcome, the committee undertook a robust
approach to assessing performance agoinst the targets as set
out on page 61 and considered this to be a reasonable outturn
in the round.

When assessing the formulaic bonus and LTIP outcomes, the
committee undertook an assessment in the round against wider
company performance, the employee experience, the customer
experience and the impact of, and response to, Covid-19. The
comnmittee determined that the outcomes were ¢ fair reflection
of overall performance and determined that no discretion would
be applied.



Board changes

In June 2020, David Neave had completed his six-year term as a
non-executive director and so stepped down from his role on the
board and the Remuneration Committee. | would like to take this
opportunity to thank David for his contribution. | am pleased to
announce the appointment of Susan Mclnnes and Luke Savage
as members of the Remuneration Committee. Luke is also chair
of the Audit Committee, which will add to the strength of the
governance employed by the committee in its decision making.

Mark Hartigon was appointed as interim chief executive

officer on 1 January 2020, at which point he was not a boord
member. Upon appointment, his salary was set below that of
his predecessor at £435,000. Due to the interim nature of the
role, the committee did not think it wos appropriate to award on
LTIP which is measured over three years. His maximum group
cnnual bonus opportunity was sct at 100% of salary {again below
that of his predecessor), which is measured against the group
balanced scorecard and individual performance. In place of the
LTIP, there is an additional 70% of salary opportunity measured
against specific ebjectives set by the chair of the board. Both of
these elements are subject to deferral with 50% bemng deferred
over three years. The total variable opportunity of 170% of
salary is significantly below the maximum permissible under the
remuneration policy of 300% of salary, and significantly belowr
his predecessor.

Upon the CEO being appointed to the board in June 2020, the
Remunaration Committee made no changes to the remuneration
package. Given the timing of the recent announcement around
the company's future and the transaction, Mark will remain with
the group as CEO on the same remuneration structure for 2021.

For this purpose the Remuneration Committee have used the
flexibility afforded to it within the full remuneration policy on the
basis that these were exceptional circurmstances and this is in the
interest of members to do so.

2021 remuneration decisions

As set out in the 2019 Directors’ Remuneration Report, a new
remuneration policy was due to be put forward to a member vote
at the 2021 AGM. The committee reviewed the remuneration
policy, including the timing of developing a new policy, in light

of the recent announcement around the group's future and the
potential Bain Capital transaction. Following this review, the
comimittee determined that no changes would be appropriate

at this time to the current policy as approved by members at

the 2018 AGM, ond therefore there will not be a separate vote

on the policy at the 2021 AGM. In reaching this decision it was
folt that the existing pohicy remained lergely fit for purposc and
that the committee continued to believe that the structure and
remuneration outcomes could be robustly operated with the
flexibility to operate discretion if considered apprepriate, allowing
the committee to ensure remuneration outcomes are fair for both
members and employees.

Base salary

To ensure pay remains competitive and fair, we have continued to
increase salary levels for our core employees, especially those in
tower graded roles, while freezing salarics at more senior fevels.
In 2021 the average employee salary increase will be 2.25%.

There is no proposed change to the base salary for executive
directors in 2021. Wayne Snow's salary wili reduce back to
£350,000 in July 2021, in line with the comimitment made in the
2019 Directors' Remuneration Report.

The changes in total across all employees are a reduction in
spend year-on-year.
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Annual bonus

There is no proposed change to the bonus opportunity

for executive directors for 2021 save for the CEQ interim
arrangements covered above. The measures for 2021 will
continue to be based on a scorecard of financial and non-
financial measures. The committee will consider the size of
the mutual bonus allocated to members’ policies, as well as
performance in the round, when determining the size of any
bonus pool and individual bonus awards.

LTIP

There is also no proposed change to the LTIP structure for
executive directors for 2021. The LTIP will continue to be based
on a mixture of financial measures (75% weighting) and non-
finuncial ineusures {25% weighting). For executlve direciors, LTIP
awards are subject to a two-year holding period following the
end of the performunce period. [ 2021 no uwurd will be made o
the chief executive officer, and the chief risk officer will receive an
LTIP award of 80% of his 2019 salary, below the maximum level
permissible under the remuneration policy. Further information
on the 2021-23 LTIP award is shown on page 64.

The structure for 2021 remains the same as for 2020 and there
are no additional incentives in respect of the potential Bain
Capital transaction in 2021, The treatment of in-flight awards
will be determined by the committee at the point any transaction
takes place and will be in line with the treatment as set out in the
relevant plan rules and taking into account market practice in
sirnilar situations.

Other disclosures

Qur 2020 Report on Directors’ Remuneration is prepared in line
with best practice and the reporting requirements which apply
to listed cornpunies where pussible, except for he fucl thul we
are not holding a separate member vote on a new remuneration
policy at the 2021 AGM due to the reasons set out earlier in this
statement. In order to comply in full with the requirements of the
Enterprise & Regulatory Reform Act (2013), the remuneration
policy should be put to a member vote at least every three years.
Our remuneration policy was approved by members at the AGM
held on 7 June 2018. LVFS is not obliged to comply with these
regulations and has previously done so on a voluntary basis. The
reasons for not choosing to comply with these regulations in full
this year are explained above.

We have published our 2020 gender pay gap report which has
shown an improvement in the position. Compared to the 2019
result, our gender pay gap has decreased by 1.4% to 28.6%. Our
gender pay gap is driven by the structure of our workforce, where
we hiave u lower representuation of females in senior leadership
roles. This will continue to be a focus for LV= as with many other
companies. We have again this year reported the chief executive
officer (CEQ) pay ratio in line with best practice. This has shown
a reduction in the rotio between our CEO and employees. | hope
that as members you will support the resolution at this year's
AGM to approve the 2020 Report on Directors’ Remuneration,
which | believe reflects and aligns to the challenging backdrop
and performance that has been seen within the UK during 2020.
As always, the committee and | are keen to receive feedback so
we can take on boord your views in the future.

vt

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee | recommend you
endorse the report.

Yours sincerely

Qoo o il

Alison Hutchinson,
Chair of the Remuneration Comimittee



Remuneration policy

Our remuneration policy was approved by members at the AGM held on 7 June 2018. The full remuneration policy can be seen in our
2017 Annual Report. The policy would have normally been reviewed in 2020 with a members’ vote at the 2021 AGM. During 2020,

the committee reviewed the remuneration policy, including the timing of developing a new policy, in light of the recent announcement
around the group's future and the potential transaction during 2021. Following this review, the committee determined that no
changes would be appropriate at this time to the current policy as approved by members at the 2018 AGM, and therefore there will not
be o separate vote on the policy at the 2021 AGM. The key elements of our current remuneration framework are set out below:

Remuneration policy for executive directors

Salary

Benefits

Pensions

Annuat
Bonus

Long-term
incentive
plan (LTIP)

Deferral

Malus/
Clawback

i Bo;\

3ot i fo7 Dene et v v

SN0 PrEsT 2
able earnings 1s all busic solary und includes statutory poyr

Salaries are reviewed annually (but not
necessarily increased) taking into account
several factors including individual
experience, responsibilities, function and
sector, along with individual and group
performance.

Includes temporary living costs, car
allowance, toxable travel and subsistence,
medical insurance, income protection and
life assurance, which are avaiiable to all
staff and directors on equal terms.

Directors can elect to join a defined
contribution pension scheme or receive a
cosh sum in fieu of pension contributions.

The annual bonus pot is measured

against annuact group financial medsures,
accounting for 50% of the assessment,

and ¢ bolenced scorecard of non-financial
measures accounting for the remaining
50%. Specific mecsures for the 2020 annuai
bonus can be found on page 59. There

is overriding discretion linked to wider
performance and the member bonus.

Performance is measured over a three-year
period, which is then followed by a two-
year holding period. Performance is based
on financial measures, accounting for

75% of the assessment, and non-financial
measures, accounting for the remaining
25%. Specific measures for the 2018-2020
scheme which vested in the year con be
found on page 61. There is overriding
discretion linked to wider performance and
the member bonus.

- Maximum opportunity -
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No prescribed maximum.

No prescribed maximum.}

Maximum of 14% base salary.
In line with the maximum
opportunity for the rest of the
workforce.

Chief executive: maximum
payrnent of 150% of bonus-
able eornings. 2

Other directors: maximum
poyment of 120% of bonus-
able earnings.?

Maximum payout is capped at
two times the initial award, the
value of which is up to:

Chief executive:
150% of salary.

Other board executive
directors: 125% of salary.

- § Operation for 2021

No salary increases for executive
directors.

The CRO's salary will reduce
back to £350,000 in July 2021,

os set out in the 2019 Directors’
Remuneration Report.

.~ No changes.

No changes: moximurmn of 14%
base salary.

CEO variable pay

Maoximum payment of 100% ot
bonus-able earnings based on the
group balanced scorecard and
individual performance set by the
Remuneration Committee (see
below) and, in place of an LTiP,

o maximum payment of 70% of
bonus-able earnings based on
specific objectives set by the chair
of the board (see below).

The CEO does not participate in
the LTIP.

CRO variable pay

Annual bonus: maximum payment
of 120% of bonus-able earnings.

LTIP oward value: 80% of salary.

Between 40%-60% of the variable remuneration paid to executive directors is deferred, initially through the LTIR. If this
ratio is not met, then a portion of the annual bonus payment for that year will be deferred.

The committee may apply malus and/or clawback in respect of deferred awards and/or LTIP in any circumstances in
which the committee, in its absolute discretion, considers that the group is required to do so by any Remuneration Code.

CEO arrangements

3 PRI UL

3%
xcludes additonul poyme

ot €1 {3,

ts such as overume, sulury supplements und hohiday pay.

Mark Hartigan was appointed as interim chief executive officer on 1 January 2020, at which point he was not on the board. Upon
appointment, his salary was set below that of his predecessor at £435,000. Due to the interim nature of the role, the committee did
not think it was appropriate to award an LTIP which is measured over three years. His maximum group annual bonus opportunity was
set ot 100% of salary {ogain below thot of his predecessor), which 1s measured against the group balonced scorecard and perscnal
periormance. In place of the LTIP there is an additioncl 70% of salory opperiunity measured against specific objectives set by the

chair of the board and the Remuneration Committee. Both of these
three years. The total variable opportunity of 170% of salary is sig
policy of 300% of salary, and significantly below that of his prede

elem

SOr

s are subject to deferrcl with 50% being deferred over
ficantly below the maximum permissible under the remunerction

Upon the CEO being appointed to the board in June 2020, the Remuneration Committee made no changes to the remuneration
package. Given the timing of the recent announcement around the company's future and the Bain Capital transaction, Mark will
remain with the group as CEO on the same remuneration structure for 2021.

Y
2
=
Q
a
o
g
°
o
=
-~




Report on Directors’ Remuneration 57

For this purpose the Remuneration Committee have used the flexibility afforded to it within the full remuneration policy on the basis
that these were exceptional circumstances and in the interest of members to do so.

Details of our policy on recruitment and premotions, service contracts, payments for loss of office and non-executive directors can be
found in our remuneration policy as set out in the 2017 LV=Annual Report.

Atable summarising how the remuncration policy fulfils the factors sct out in provision 40 of the 20108 UK Corpurdte Governunce Code
can be found in the 2019 LV=Annua! Report. .

Annual report on remuneration

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee determines the remuneration policy and agrees the remuneration of each executive director and
other senior managers. The committee reviews the effectiveness of the remuneration policy and strategy at least once a year and all
incentive and bonus schemes are established and monitored by the committee.

Members of the committee are provided with training ond topical briefing sessions on developments and trends in executive
remuneration, particularly as this relates to the financial sector.

The membership and key activities of the committee are described in the Corporate Governance Statement on page 48.

In June 2020 David Neave had completed his six-year term as a non-executive director so stepped down from his role on the board and
the Remuneration Committee. Alan Cook also stepped down as a member of the Committee but will continue to attend meetings as
required. Susan Mclnnes and Luke Savage were appointed as members to the Remuneration Committee during the year.

Advisors to the committee
Following appointment in 2015 as an external advisor, Deloitte LLP have provided advice to the committee on remuneration practices
and structures and attended committee meetings by invitation. ’

The committee undertakes due diligence periodically to ensure that our committee advisor remains independent and that the advice
provided is impartial and objective. Deloitte LLP are members of the Remuneration Consultants’ Group and, as such, voluntarily
oparate under the cede of conduct in refation to executive remuncration consulting im the UK.

The total fees paid to Deloitte in respect of services that materially ossisted the committee during the year were £73,950 for LVFS.
During the year Deloitte also provided the group with other consulting and tax services. Fees for these additional services are not
included in the figure above.

All-employee remuneration .

The committee takes an active role in owerseeing remuneration arrangements for thc wider employee populalion. L= hus curmmitied
to paying at least the Living Wage Foundation’s minimum hourly rates of pay to all employees, with employees paid @ minimum of
£9.50 per hour outside of London and £10.85 within London during 2020.

LV= has actively chosen to not take advantage of the Government's furlough schemes or any other Governmental support.

Woe rosponded quickly to the challenges presented by Covid- 19, mobilising'a remote working crivironiieint wiile imaintaming customer
service during this time, with positive feedback from employees and customers on how the process was undertaken. Continuing to
offer an excellent service while ensuring the safety and support of our colleagues was key at this time. Listening and responding to the
noeds of colleagues and customers was essential to cnsuring both critical groups were suppoited duiiing this chullenging year.

During 2020 the chair of the Remuneration Committee has engaged with the chair of LV's Employee Consultative Forum (ECF)

to discuss the future structure and plans for the ECF and to more generally engage with our colleagues. The committee does not
consult directly with employees specifically when setting the remuneration policy for directors, but is mindful of pay and employment
conditions elsewhere in the group when doing so, and when considering potential payments under the policy. At the same time as

approving directors’ pay outcomes the committee also approves the averall pay and bonus cutcornes for all colleaguies.
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Remuneration for the past year (year ended 31 December 2020)

Summary table of executive directors’ remuneration — audited
The remuneration of individual directors, including that of the highest paid director, was as follows:

Salary

and Other Long-term Total fixed | Total variuble
£'000 Year fees | benefits’ | Pension? nus® | incentives*]  Totat] remuneration ] remuneration
. 2020 435 31 . 50 624 nfa 1,210 ' 516 694

Mark Hartigan® .
2019 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a . n/a n/a
2020 420 19 40 258 313 1,050 479 571

Wayne Snow? .

2019 344 32 39 207 n/a 622 415 207

war angd Leval; el an

de cor ofloveence, inadical insurance, lile

2 These amounts have been taken as cash in heu of forgone pension contributions by all executive directors.
3 .

edai2s to the annuat bontse ed for the year anded 31 Secemir 2028, This e ntive avicrded 10 ihe CEG besad on spedihe objecty
the chair and the comrmitiee, Further detanls of lh|s poymenl are set oul on pc:ge> 59 cmd 60 An eleinent of these full year omounts may be subject to deferral.

15-20LTIR

St inchides s terapa £420.00C for o penon

' of 18 months effactive e 1 tanuary
bonusoblra butitis nol pens-on(:ble and excluded from his LTIP allocation.

D00y isclosed i the 2019 repori, winch is

Summary table of non-executive directors’ remuneration - audited

Non-executive directors’ fees include a base fee plus other fees for membership of committees. See pages 35 to 37 for details of
committee membership.

. Other Other
-

Alan Cook (chairman)? 2020
2019 200 50 1 1 261
Alison Hutchinson 2020 53 13 1 67
2019 53 13 2 68
David Barral? 2020 53 29 5 87
2019 53 47 17 117
Colin Ledtie 2020 53 24 5 82
2019 53 24 9 86
Luke Savage 2020 53 15 - 68
2019 53 13 1 67
Seamus Creedon® 2020 51 5 - 56
2019 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Susan Mcinnes? 2020 40 5 - 45
2019 n/a n/a n/a n/a
David Neave?s 2020 27 5 3 35
2019 53 37 6 96
Tanya Lawler® 2020 5 - - 5
2019 53 11 2 66
2020 535 96 19 650
Total
2019 518 195 48 761

Other fees relaie 1o comimitiee char and membership fees and subsidiary board fees, including Alan Cook’s fee lor his additional role as chair of LVGIG.

{and subisianca,

HA

Following the sale of the general insurance husiness on 31 December 2019, Alan Cook, Dovid Burral and David Neave ceased to be members of the boords of the general
insurance business. Other fees for these directors have reduced accordingly.

Bt s

€5 Ny eoutiv; o1y o 16 Junuay 2020 ond 1 April ety

5 David Neuve und lcmyu Lowler res:gned us non-execulive directors on 30 June 2020 and 29 January 2020 respectively.
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Annual bonus for the year ended 31 December 2020 - audited
The onnual bonus for the year under review was based on performance against a scorecard of financial objectives, risk metrics and
people and customer objectives. Details of actual performance against targets are as follows:

Threshold m J

Operating capital 16.7% £(55)m £(30)m £(5)m £(14)m 17.6%
surplus generation/
(consumption)?

Total expenses? 16.7% £165m £157m £149m £149m 20.0%

EVNB3 16.7% Remuneration £(15)m Remuneration Committee £(15)m 16.7%
Committee discretion discretion

Non-financial

measures Weighting § Threshold Highlights Rating § Vesting

Strategy and 20% 16% 24% Progress towards the long-term strategic Plan 20.0%

member Interests options including the recent announcement

of the future for the group.

- Completion of the member distribution
of the general insurance business sale
proceeds during the year.

Customer® 10% 8% "12% - NPS score based on NMG survey ranked Threshold 8.0%
6th out of 18 providers.

- FOS upheld rates at over 90% at the encl of
year.

- Customer satisfaction score above 52.
Risk 10% 8% 12% - Developed and embedded the Risk Plan 10.0%

Management Framework while working
pro-actively with the regulator.

- No breaches of risk appetite.

Leadership and 10% 8% 12% - Improved employee engagement and focus Plan 10.0%
diversity on diversity and inclusion.

- 51% female successors identified in
succession plans.

Total bonus pool as a percentage of plan:  102.3%

SR reTiey Lot Sniug g R e r s L s il et ssd i e e Lo coss sa oy Bt Tkt a Laeaie gt ek i rehston s ke

:
H
2 TTotal expenses include strategic investment costs and other central costs.
3 EVNBIs Economic Value of New Business.

¢ Drar Of posive ¢ 3060 e waorking hrdin g
sturtuf the yean thes wwas rated at liue:huld |Ulhel than plan uvesull,

>t 2 mt und £ customes e
'nkmg a Imlude wiewy of pcrlcrmuncr agenst

Gend 10 on‘-lronman! argclgsc( ati
The financial performance of the group accounts for 50% of the annual bonus target, which is made up of three measures, each with
equal weighting. The group operates a performance range for all elements that are included within the scheme (see table above) all
of which are considerad to be stretching at ol levels. Threshold is the level of performance that must be achicved to release 80% of
the bonus pool. Plan s the level of performance that must be achieved to release 100% of the bonus pool. Maximum is the level of
performance that must be achieved to relcase 1209 of the bonus pool. The committee considerad perfornunce it the ound, which
for this year also included consideration of the impact of Covid-19 (further details of which is set out in the Annual Statement from the
chair of the Pernuneration Commitice) and determined that 102,39 wos ¢ fair reflection of wider cuinpainy perlunnunce.
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Individual

The table below gives a broad indicator of how each executive director performed against their individual and strategic objectives
along with a description of those objectives. The CEO’s individual objectives include the objectives set by the chair and the
Remuneration Committee. The total bonus awarded to each director and the percentage deferred is set out in the next table.

i .
i ‘ . Indicationlot
| l ot fiities o
* Financial performance
- Deliver economic vatue of new business (EVNB), operating capital surplus generation
(OCSG) and total costs in line with the 2020 plan:
- Taking strong and successful action on cost reduction with minimat impact on
effectiveness.
- Facilitate re-design of operating model and delivery of trading initiatives in pursuit of
these financial outcomes. Providing much greater focus on trading performance and the
associated product and service developments required.
« Strategic Options Review
~ Run a thorough and comprehensive review process to facilitate the board in making a
decision on strategic direction in the best interests of with-profits policyholders while also
taking other stakeholders into account.
— Execute on the option selected by the board.
Mark Hartigan « Member and customer interests Star performer
- Complete work to distribute proceeds from the general insurance business sale
appropriately.

- Ensure good member/customer outcomes on a business-as-usual basis and through
remediation activity where required.
- Leod an outstanding response to the Covid-19 challenge.
* Risk and regulatory confidence

— Work pro-actively with the fegulator particularly in its oversight of the stroteglc options
review.

¢ Leadership and culture
— Ensure employee engagement and support diversity and inclusion initiotives.
- Prowvide strong and decisive leadership to the executive team specifically but also to the
group as a whole.

e Risk
- Provide Line 2 oversight over all key activity including the strategic options review and
other change initiatives.
—- Develop and embed the Risk Management Framework across the business.
- Further develop the data protection function.
Wayne Snow - Maintain open, positive and proactive relationships with regulators in oversight of the Perform
strategic options review and more broadly.
* Financial Measures
— Deliver the 2020 risk function plan within agreed budget and headcount.
« Provide effective leadership as both chief risk officer and director of the board
~ Ensure employee engagement and support diversity and inclusion initiatives

Risk is taken into account when appraising all performance measures and the committee may reduce (including to nil) any bonus
payment if it considers that risk exceeded acceptable levels.

The Remuneration Committee looks at the performance of the business and the individual in the round to understand any internal and
external factors that have impacted performance and the broad trajectory of the business and market conditions, before determining
the appropriate level of bonus to be awarded. For this year, this also included consideration of the impact of Covid-19. As set out below,
50% of the CEO’s pay-outs will be deferred over the following three years.

1 ) T I |
} | 2 ‘ Tt j
| ertmae || | sl TP e A e |
| s aff fR-;mzﬂ{ 1202 Sl onusI R EROao HbGhuseubl el i 252 0lbans) [efereda
I et ruediam) | (20005 I crpaligs) | }_ erftaies B (£0005)] j
Mark Hartigan 170% 34% 694 160% 50% 347
- Group and individual 100% 30% 390 S0% 50% 195
- Specific objectives 70% 100% 304 70% 50% 152
Waoyne Snow? 120% 51% 258 61% 0% 0
1 Tid b 5 Gbrove £800 ¢ rngnurat

catculated using thﬂ 2020 bonus ond lhe 202 l 2073 L uwurd Any vuncble poy amount deferred wdl be poul in equal parts over the followmg lhrae yeurs Dunng the dnferrul
penod, the value of deterred amounts will be tied 1o the vnlue of members’ invested funds, thereby creating a hnk to ongoing performaonce.
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Group LTIP payments made in the year (2018 - 2020 plan) - audited .
The 2018-20 LTIP is for the performance period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020, and is based on o balanced scorecard
approach, with finoncial perfermance making up 75% of the total.

Performance against the original targets is set out below:

, . kTt IS v o —— 3
Growth in Own Funds 35.00% 5% perannum 7% peronnum - 10% per annum 5.2% 0.19x
Total Life BAU Expenses 20.00% £420m £385m £350m £353m 0.39x
Total Economic Value of 20.00% £20m £4im £80m £(19)m 0.00x
New Business Written
J { mm]}[_ ]
Vet e | (0G0
Member 6.25% While the recent announcement on the group’s future and Threshold 0.03x
the transaction delivers an excellent financial cutcome
for members with greater security and enhanced
distributions for with-profits rmembers, the targets
set three yeors ago related to a different approach
to achieving the strategic priorities which has been
superseded.
Customer 6.25% NPS score of 6th in 2020 survey. While this was Threshold 0.03x
just above the threshold target set of 7th position, a
conservative approach has been taken and this has been
scored at threshold.
Employee engagement 6.25% Employee engagement scores {at 68) were lower than Below 0.00x
threshold. Threshold
Diversity and inclusion 6.25% Female representation ot senior level of 42.9% against a Maximum 0.13x
stretching maximum target of 42%
Overall multiplier 0.77x
Outturn as a percentage of maximum 38.5%

The amounts vested under the 2018-20 LTIP for executive directors participating in this LTIP is disclosed in the single figure table on
page 58. The current CEQ is not a participant ir: this LTIP scheme {or any other n-flight LTIP schemes).

The committee considered performance in the round, which for this year also included consideration of the impact of Covid-19 (further
details of wiich is set out in the Annucl Statement fromm tha chair of the Rermungration Corrmitiee) and determined that 0.77x (38.5%
of moxitmuim} was a fdir refioction of wider company performance.

2018-20 LTIP awards are subject to a holding period following the end of the performance period, with one-third paid when the award
vests, one-third after one year, and one-third after two years.

The unvested awards are subject to malus and the vested awards paid are subject to claw-back provisions, which can apply in
scenarios where events later come to light that would hove meant the award was inappropriate {such as a material restatement of
the group’s fnancial results, an error was made in determining the omount, the recipient commitied an act of gross misconduct or a
material failure in risk management).

Group LTIP summary of awards and amounts vested during 2020 - audited

i L R ) | Avowds| | o eogpEaer| i b osemdser

! { [§ianuacall griade 0 1830C 2] f OV HiChH ! Basbecenibedll

£ B AP | g e | st | Y |
Wayne Snow 2018-2020 406 313 209 -
2019-2021 325 325
2020-2022 285 285

1 Unvested uwaids ure shown at the volue of the buse awand level. Unvested owards ot 1 Junuury 2020 wie norespect ul uwards granted m Muich 2018 and 2019,

2 Unvested awards at 31 December 2020 are in respect of awards granted in March 2019 and 2020.
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3years to 31
December 2022

Cash 285 ‘ 50% 200%

15 coteulored based on g bolonsad scar

iof perrormance raoking
2 tord.

he LTIP o vcrd for Wayne Snow was based on a salary of £350,000 rather than his temporarily increased salary of £420,000.

Pensions - audited

Since the closure of the defined benefit (DB) section of cur pension scherne to future accrual in 2013, directers have had the choice of
receiving contributions into the defined contribution (DC) section of cur pension scheme or being paid an equivalent cash aliow ‘ance.
All executive directors received cash payments in lieu of pension contributions.

Additional information on 2020 remuneration

Percentage change in remuneration levels .
The table belows shows the movement in the salary. Denefns and annual bonus for all directors bew" en the current and previous
financiol year compared to the total amounts for the sume elements for all employees.

n/a n/a

22% - @1%) - 25%

“{20%) {55%) . n/a

0% {50%) n/a

(18%) 7% n/a-

0%  {44%) © oo

ke S.dngr_'.—‘lt\lEpj- 3% (100%) : n/a

id _ (64%) {50%) n/a

TcnyoLowIer"NED : (92%) o 000%) na

‘isu-,s'o'hﬂrrx'/'!clhiﬁe.s"-'N:E'Dl“ ﬁ/o ‘ nfo n/o

: Seqrnus Crer_don ~NED" n/a ‘n/a
1% 08%

for the dincetors mcluckﬂhmﬂlah n'nn I are

ongistof travel,

3 The solory |ncreose for Wayne Snow |ncludes his lemporcry upllft prevnously dlsclosed in lhe 2019 report, which is bonusable but it is not penswncnble and excluded from his
. LTiP allocation.
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CEO pay ratio
In January 2019, the UK Government introduced new regulations that would requnre certain UK compcmes to disclose their executive
pay ratios.

This does not apply directly to us but we believe it is best practice to meet the requirements where practical and helpful. In doing < 50, we
have chosen to use the Option A methodology, theratio compares the total remuneration of the CEO against the total remuneration

- of the median employee and those who sit at the 25th and 75th percentiles (lower and upper quartiles), as it is considered the most
robust approach and is the approach favoured by investors in the listed environment. This ratio will build annually to cover a rolllng
ten-year period.

ObtionA
o0 OptlonA - ;;‘.29.;1/ L 341 . _f - ‘21:1‘.'.',"; )
;Sdlory o : CEO£435003 - ‘ £2:2;1',8:8' £31,226 | A . ‘47978
Totol Remunerctlo.n> . CEO £1 210000 } ’24418 V B £36,089 - ' ’ £56 539

1 The CEO pay ratio for 2019 relates to o former CEQ, whereas the 2020 rartio relotes to aninterim CEQ nllhough both are on a full year basis
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The median pay rctio as at 31 December has decreased from 51:1in 2019 to 34:1 in 2020. This has resulted primorily from a reduction
in CEO total remuneration in 2020. The CEO poy ratio as at 31 December 2020 reflects the fact that a large proportion of the CEQ's
remuneration package is made up of performance related variable pay, the ratio can therefore vary year-on-year depending on the
performance of the group, for example thie ratio would typically be higher in a year when the business performs well. The committee
will take the CEO pay ratio into account as another useful reference point when setting and determining executive pay.

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The table below shows the group’s octuat spend on pay (for all employees) relative to the mutuol bonus, which represents a significant,
discretionary disbursement of profit to members.

Totol remuneration

2019 Em

[N ERTRIYE oot 4

Staff costs 0 111 (19%)

Mutual bonus 28* 27 4%

*The £28 does no mcdude the £ bonus of £48m 2futed 1o the sl of the Generol lsurons

Chief executive's remuneration over ten financial years

The total remuneration figures for the chief executive during each of the last ten financial years is shown in the table below. The total
rerunaration figure includes the annual bonus based on that year’s performanca and LTIP awards based cn three-year performance
periods ending in the relevant year. The annual bonus payout and LTIP vesting level as a percentage of the moximum opportunity are
also shown for each of these years.

— 2011 § 2012 | 2013 § 2014 § 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Mike . Mike Mike Mike Mike Mike Richard Richard Richard Richard Mark
Rogers Rogers Rogers Rogers Rogers Rogers Rowney Rowney Rowney Rowney Hartigan

Total remuneration

(£000) 2177 2622 2364 1666 1970 891 610 1,719 1,029 1911 1,210
07 o H

Bonus S of maximum  geor 1009, 74%  80%  86%  13%  79%  80%  44%  40% 94%

awarded %

LTIP % of moximum 3000, 100%  90%  25%  59%  49%  50%  100% 0%  92% n/a

vesting %

Payments to past directors — audited
The leaving arrangements for Richard Rowney were disclosed in the 2019 Directors’ Remuneration Report. He has since taken up
employment elsewhere and the committee has reduced his PILON payment by a commensurate amount accordingly.

Directors’ loans
As at 31 December 2020 there were no loans outstanding to directors.

Results of members’ votes on remuneration resolutions at 2020 AGM

At the Compaony's AGM in Septemiser 2020 the members approved the 2019 Remuneraticn Report, with 962 of the 50,249 total votc
cast in favour!. The Directors’ Remuneration Policy was put forward and approved by members at the 2018 AGM with 95% of the
47,344 votes in favour?.

2 There were1,692 abstentions 1o this resofution.

Remuneration decisions taken in respect of the coming year (year ending 31 December 2021)

Chief Executive Officer arrangements

Mark Hartigan has been asked to continue in his post until the future strategy of the business is secured. The Remuneration Committee
hawve used the fexbility ovailable to them in the remunerction policy to allow Mark's remuneration terms to be continucd for 2021,
further detail of which is set out on pages 56 and 57.

Base salaries

There are no increases to salary levels for executive directors. The CRO's salary will revert back to £350,000 in July 2021, in line with
the commitment made in the 2019 Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Annual bonus

There arc no significont changes plerned for the annuat bonus, which will continue to include performance conditions based on a
mixture of financial and non financial mecsures, see poge S6. The specific measures anc octual targets associoted with the annual
bonus are considered commercially sensitive at this time.
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LTIP

The LTIP award level for Wayne Snow will be 80% of his 2019 sclary and not include his temporary increased saldary and no award
is being made in respect of the chief executive officer. The LTIP will continue to be based on a mixture of finoncicl meosures (75%
weighting) and strategic goals (25% weighting).

Tatal coste (including strategic i

Financial grouip central costs) 't
the futu
Strategic
‘Overall Rémuneration Committeé discrétion’
Hurdle - ' Co

‘linked to performance and member bonus:

The actual targets associated with the LTIP are considered commercially sensitive ot this time.

Non-executive directors’ fees -
Fees for the non-executive directors are determined by the board, based on the responsibility and time committed to the group's

affairs ond appropriote market comparisons. Individual non-executive directors do not take part in discussions regarding their own
fees. Fees are reviewed annually and any changes are implemented from 1 June each year. No fee increase was made during 2020
and therefore the fees that have been effective from 1 June 2016 continue to apply from 1 June 2020, as set out below:

£200,000
£53,000

£6,500
£8,700-£13,000

Seniorindepéndent

Co imittee chair (various):

Srmittee membeérship (various) £3,650-£5,500

Fees effective from 1 June 2021 will be approved in June 2021.

The directors approved the Report on Directors’ Remuneration on 25 March 2021.

Alison Hutchinson
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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Glossary

ABI: Association of British Insurers.

Asset shares: Asset shares reflect the
amount of money paid into policies by
way of premiums and investment returns,
less the costs of administering those
policies.

Discretionary assets: Assets where the
investment decisions are made at the
portfolio manager’s discretion.

Economic Value of New Business (EVNB):
The total profit expected from new
business after allowing for all expected
expenses and the cost of the solvency
capital required to support it.

Eligible own funds: Capital resources
held; this includes the excess of assets
over liabilities (excluding the subordinated
debt) in the Solvency Il balance sheet and
is subject to tier restrictions.

Equity release: A lifetime mortgage where
interest is added to the loan and is settled
by the property sale proceeds when

the borrower dies or enters permanent
residential care.

Environmental, Social and Governance
(ESG) investing: ESG investing is the
integration of environmental, social and
governance factors into investment
processes and decision making.

Exit bonus: A discretionary enhancement
to asset shares, atlocated at the point the
policy is exited.

Financial Conduct Authority (FCA): A
body that reguiates the conduct of retail
and wholescile financial services firms.

Group: Consolidated reporting for
Liverpool Victoria Financial Services
Limited and its subsidiaries.

Industrial Branch (IB): Small premium
Whole-Of-Life and endowment policies.

International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS): Accounting standards
issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB).

Longevity risk: The risk associated with
increased life expectancy of customers.

LVLC: Liverpool Victoria Life Company
Limited

LVFS: Liverpool Victoria Financial Services
Limited.

LVGIG: Liverpool Victoria General
Insurance Group Limited.

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR): A
lower threshold than the SCR; the MCR
represents the minimum amount of
copital that on insurer is required to hold
to cover its risks. If the MCR is breached
authorisation of insurance activities
should be withdrawn.

Morbidity risk: The risk associated with
the likelihood that a customer will fall iif
during the period of insurance cover.
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Mortality risk: The risk associated with the
likelihood that a customer will die during
the period of insurance cover.

Mutual: A business that is owned by its
members rather than by shareholders.

Mutual bonus: A discretionary
enhancement to asset shares.

Open-Ended Investment Companies
{OEICs): Investment funds that constantly
change in size as investors add or
withdraw funds. OEICs give the investor
access to a number of sub-funds with
different objectives.

Ordinary Branch (OB): With-profits
endowments, Whole-Of-Life, annuities
and pensions policies.

Persistency: The expectation of the
level of policies that will be retained by
customers over their contract terms.

Present value of acquired in-force
business (PVIF): The group’s interest in
the expected cash flows of insurance and
investment contracts acquired through a
business combination.

Protection: A policy providing a cash sum
on the death or critical illness of the life
assured.

Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA): A
regulatory body that is responsible for the
prudential regutation and supervision of
financial services firms.

Regular premium: Premiums received
in respect of long-term contracts where
the customer agrees to make regular
payments throughout the term of the
contract.

Risk Margin: The opportunity cost of
holding regulatory capital for existing
business. This is an amount of capitol that
is held above the best estimate liabilities
ogainst non-hedgeable risks associated
with supporting the business.

RNPFN: Royal National Pension Fund for
Nurses.

Self-Invested Personal Pension (SIPP):
A personal pension plan that aliows
investors to make their own investment
decisions.

Short-term Investment Fluctuations
(STIF): Short-term Investment
Fluctuations is the difference between
the longer-term average expected
return on invested assets, and the actual
investiment return in the current year.
Current year investment returns are
impacted by market volatility, whereas
the longer-term average expected return
excludes such short-term volatility as it is
expected to be temporary.

Single premium: Premiums received in
respect of long-term contracts where one
premium is paid at inception and there is
no obligation for the customer to make
subsequent payments.

Small Self Administered Scheme (SSAS):

o type of defined contribution pension

that an employer can self-manage for
less than 12 members. Typically a SSAS
pension scheme is set up by the directors
of a business to gain more control over
how their pensions are invested.

Smooth Managed Funds (SMF): We are
now marketing our Flexible Guarantee
products under the Smooth Managed
Funds proposition.

Solvency Il {Sil): The capital adequacy
regime for the European insurance
industry that establishes o comprehensive
framework for insurance supervision and
regulation.

Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR):

The amount of regulatory capital that

we are required to hold. LV= applies the
Standard Formula in calculating the SCR.
The capital required is based on our ability
to survive o 1 in 200 year stress event,
considering our investment strategy, risk
profile and allowing for diversification.

Transitional Measures on Technical
Provisions (TMTP): Transitional relief

for the higher capital requirements of

Sl compared with the previous capital
regulatory regime. This is amortised over
0 16 year period from 1 January 2016.

UK Corporate Governance Code:

The Code sets out standards of good
governance practice. It covers, amongst
other things, the board composition
and its accountability and relations with
business owners.

Unallocated Divisible Surplus (UDS): The
amounts that have not yet been formally
deciared as bonuses for participating
policyholders, together with the free
assets of the group.

Wealth Wizards: Wecalth Wizards Group
timited and subsidiaries.
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With-profits fund: An investment fund
where we combine all of our with-profits
investors’ money and manage it on their
behalf.
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Alternative Performance Measures

In addition to IFRS and Solvency I measures, we use Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) to report on the performance of the
group. APMs are non-GAAP measures which are used to supplement IFRS and Solvency Il regulatory disclosures. Management believe
that APMs provide insight into the underlying trading performance of the business or are a more useful measure than the pure IFRS or
Solvency |l measure.

Trading APMs
Non-GAAP measure § Why we use the non-GAAP measure ‘ : : s
New business New business contribution/(loss) is used to monitor the contribution to the IFRS result from new business
contribution/(loss) written in the year. New business contribution/(loss) is reconciled to the IFRS Result for the year of £nil in the
table below.
Trading profit Trading profit generation is used to report the underlying trading results of the business units from new and
generation existing business prior to the impact of experience variances and model and basis changes. Trading result is
reconciled to the IFRS Result for the year of £nil in the table below.
Operating profit Operating profit generation is used as o measure of the overall performance of the business units rather
generation than the overall group. Operating profit generation is reconciled to the IFRS Result for the year of £nil in
the table below.
Profit before tax Because LV= is a mutual, any remaining profit is transferred {o the Unallocated divisibie surplus, leaving o

final balance for profit eachi year of £nil. This would mean that if we applied the strict GAAP definition cur
profit before tax would simply be equal and opposite to our tax charge. This is not a useful presentation

for users and we therefore provide an alternative measure for profit before tax which allows meaningful
comparisons with the profit before tax disclosed by other proprietary companies.

Profit before tax is reported prior 1o discretionary mutual and exit bonuses and the transfer to or from
Unallocated divisible surplus. Mutual and exit bonuses are excluded as they are a discretionary distribution
as a result of profits generated, in a similar way to dividends in proprietary companies.

Our APM for profit before tax is reconciled to the IFRS Result for the year of £nil in the table below.

1

Targeted operating Targeted operating expenses is used by management to assess performance against our strategic goal of 2

expenses operating with an annual Business As Usual (BAU) cost base below £100m. Targeted operating expenses 2

exclude sales related costs such as commissions and investment fees and also non-BAU costs such as 8

strategic investment and non-recurring costs. Operating expenses are reconciled to IFRS Operating and -

administrative expenses in the Financial Review on page 17. 8

Presentvalue of new  PVNBP provides a measure of the value of new business written in the year that is more useful than IFRS new . ?E
business premiums business premiums as.it includes the present value of the regular premiums we expect to receive over the i~

(PVNBP) term of contracts sold in the year. 3

PVNBP is the total of new single premium sales received in the year, plus the discounted value at the point
of sale of the regular premiums we expect to receive over the term of the new contracts sold in the year,
adjusted for expected levels of persistency. In addition to IFRS premiums, this metric includes the amount
of Equity Release loans advanced and policyholders' deposits to their unit-linked pensions and SIPP funds.
PVNBP is reconciled to the IFRS gross earned premiums in the Financial Review on page 17.

Reconciliation of Trading APMs to IFRS Result for the year £m 2020 2019
New business (loss)/contribution (6) i4
Existing business 15 29
Trading profit generation : 9 43
Estate investment income 15 8"
Experience variances (21) (21)
Model and basis changes 37 (46)
Operating profit/(loss) generation 40 (16)
Strategic investment, debt interest and other items . X (96) (98)
Short-term imvestment fluctuctions and related items 93 129
Profit before tax 37 15
Mutual and exit bonus (73) (27)
Income tax expense (41) (60)
{Loss)/profit from discontinued operations 2) 234
Non-controfling interest (6) (38)
Transfer from/(to) the Unallocated divisible surplus 85 (124)

{FRS Result for the year - -
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Capital APMs

The LV= business is managed on a Solvency Il basis. The Solvency Il based APMs cannot be reconciled to the nearest IFRS measure so
they are reconciled to their Solvency Il equivalent.

Operating capital Operating capital generation is the primary KPl used by management to monitor the performance of the
generation three business units. Operating capital generation is analysed into the Solvency Il trading result, Estate
investment income, experience variances and model and basis changes / management actions.

Operating capital generation is Solvency Il surplus generated by the business, adjusted to remove the

effects of temporary volatility from market movements and the impacts from TMTP. As a measure of the
performance of the business units rather than the overall group, it excludes the revaluation of defined
benefit pension schemes, mutual and exit bonuses, debt interest, strategic investment (non-BAU project
‘spend), and other group items including restructuring, non-recurring costs, and the results of investments in
strategic assets. The APM is reconciled to Solvency Il surplus generation in the Financial Review on page 15.
Operating capital generation and Solvency Il surplus capital are reported in the Annual Report on an Investor
view basis, i.e. excluding the impact from ring-fenced funds. .

Cdpit&;l Coveruge - The Ccpltol Coveroge Ratio is: used by moncgement for strategic plcnnmg purposes and to momtor the .
Ratio (CCR)% - group's capltol cgcnnstournsk oopente C’"R % represents the ratio of our ovcnlable capital toour «equ red’ -
: - copital. 7 ; R ) -

CCR% is colculoteo c1s the ratio of Ehgnble own funds to the SolvnnLy Capital Qequnrement (SCR) onan.
Investor view basis. This reconciles to-the Solvency Il Regulatory view capital figures for Eligible own ;unds
and SCR by adding in the available and requ1red copxtol for ring-fenced funds as shown in the Financial .
Review on page 15. _ . : i







Independent auditors’ report to the members of Liverpoal Victoria Financial Services Limited
Year ended 31 December 2020

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opirion, Liverpoal ¥ictoria Finoncial Services Limited's group financial statements and company financial statements
{the “finoncial statements”):
o give atrue and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the compaony’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the group's
and company’s result and the group's and company’s cash flows for the year then ended;
+ haove been properly preparcd in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirenents of the
Companies Act 2006; and
« have been prepored in accordance with the requirernents of the Cornpanies Act 2006.
We have audited the fnanciol statements, included within the Annual Report, which eomprise: the Statements of Financial Nosition
as at 31 December 2020; the Statements of Comprehensive Income and Statements of Cash Mlewes for the year then ended; and the
notes to the financicl statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Qur opinion is consistent with our reparting to the Audit Committee.

Separate opinion in relation to international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant

to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union

As explained in note 1 to the financial stotements, the group and company, in addition to applying internctional accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, have also applied international financial reporting standards cdopted
pursuant to Regulation (£C) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.

&

In sur opinion, the grsup and company financial statcmenta eve been proparly prepared in accordance with interpationol firdial
reporting stondards adepted pursuant to Regulation (L€} No 1606/2002 as it applics in the Europcan Union,

Basis for opinion

We conductad our audit in cccardance with International Standards on Auditing (UK (" [SAS (UK)) ond applicable law: OQur responsibilities
under {SAs (UK} are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

W holiove that tho audit cvidence we have ebtained i sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requircments that are relevant to our audit of the financicl
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled
our other cthical responsibilitics in accordance with these requircments.

To the bost of our knewdedge dand belisf, we declars that non-gudit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard vrere not provided
to the group.

Other than those disclosed in noie 13 1o the financial stotements, we have provided no non-audit services to the group in the period
under audit.

Our audit approach

Context .

Liverpool Victeria Financial Services Limited (the "company”) is a company limited by guarante2 incorporated on 2 January 2020,

As transactions doted 1 Jaruary 2020 are immaterial, the finoncial statements have been prepared os if this transaction tock offect
from 1 January 2020. The company, together with various subsidicries, carries out life insurance and finoncial services business

in the UK, with an immatericl emount of general insurance business being written in two subsidiaries. The cudit for the year endag
31 December 2020 has been carried out fully rermotely as o result of the Covid-19 pondenic: we have utilised virtuel technologies
and collaborative workflow tools to obtain sufficient, appropriote audit evidence whilst working in this environment. Monagement has
been heavily focusad this year on both the future strategy of the businass and implementing cost savings through thair cost officiency
programme, and therefore these are two areus we have given porticular attention to through our risk assessment and asseciated
procedures. A transaction was signed with Bain Capital on 15 December 2020 and we have considered the impact of this both on the
financial staternent disclosures and on the going concern assumption.
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Overview 1
{

Audit = Our gudit scope hes been determined to provide coverage of olf material financicl statement line iterne., y
scope * Two reporting components were subject to full scope audits and we performed a limited scope audit covering .

specific financial statement line items for one further component.

Key audit + Valuction of insurance contract lisbilities - annuitant mortality assumptions (group and company}

R matters * Vaoluation of insurance contract liabilities - expense assumptions (group and company) !
3,: y * Impact of uncertainties related to COVID-19 (group and compary) '
I . |
e : Materiality « Overall group materiality: £33,400,000 (2019: £37,600,000) based on 3% of Unallocated Divisible Surplus ('UDS'.
I E s Overall compony materiality: £31,000,000(2019: £25,700.000) hased on 3% of Linallocated Divisible Surplus 1INSY)
i’ E « Performance materiality: £25,050,000 {group} and £23,250,000 (company).
+ i :
{' . f The scope of our audit * Reviewing Board minutes as well as relevant meeting !
Lo As part of designing our cudit, we determined materiality ond minutes, including those of the With-profits Committee, p
) ‘ assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial Risk Committee and the Investment Committee. '
. T ? stcigllj;x1t§. In porticu'lcr,‘ we looked at where the{di}fectqré made * Reviewing data regarding policyholder complaints, the ;
. subjective judgerments, for example in respect of significant group’s register of litigation and claims, Internal Audit
T accounting estimates that involved molkmg assumptions reports and Compliance reports in so far as they related
[ and considering future events that ore inherently uncertain, 1o non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud.

.

, Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, . Prr;cedurgs rAel'c‘.At«ing_ lo the valuation of long-term insurance |
. including fraud contract 'lldbillties, in particular annuitant mortcl{ty . o
! Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance _OS?UI*npl’thS and expf:nse cssu.r:ﬁptsons as described '

[ with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with in the related key audit matters below. '

L our responsibilities, outlined in the Auditors’ responsibilities for « Validating the appropricteness of journal entries identified
' the audit of the financial statements section, te detect material based on our fraud risk criteria.
' rrjnsstcnternents n respect of iregularities, including fraud: « Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability .
! ! Tne exte'n‘[ 1o '."Vh"‘.h 'our proce;iures qre clopcble of detecting around the nature, timing or extent of our testing. i .
Lo irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below. ) ) ) )
* \ * Assessing the impact of COVID-19 on the inherent risk of
A Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we fraud, including potentiol opportunities for fraud with more
i identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws remate working ond where interncl controls may not be .
. and regulotlons‘ related to breaches of UK and Egrau;)e<3!1 ‘ operating the way they usually do.
; ; regulatory principles, such as those governed by the Prudential T -~ I . o ,
Y Regulation Authority (PRA} and the Financial Conduct Authority here are inherent Inmltanons in the audit procedures described
L {FCA), and we considered the extent to which non-compliance above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non- :
i might have a matenal effect on the financial stotements. We compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely refated e
: also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct to events and transactions reflected in the financial staterments. '
, impoct on the preparation of the financial statements such A-"Sf?.. the nsk (?f th Getgctmg: o] r?wctgrnol missiatement due
1 as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated mancgement's to froud ts higher than 1h_e rnsk of not detecting one resultmg’
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the from error, us fraud may m:volve dgllberote congec.lment by, for
§ financial staternents {including the risk of override of controls), example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through
o ond determined that the principal risks were related to posting collusion.
o inappropriate journdl entries to either inflate gross earned .
, premiums or reduce expenditure of the group and campainy, Key °”?‘" matters )
. and managernent bias in accounting estimates and judgernental Key audit matters are those imatters that, in the duditors’
arecs as shown in our key audit matters. Audit procedures profesﬁoncl‘judgemem, were of most significance in the audit
performed by the engagement team included: of the financial statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
[ + Discussions with the Board, management, Internal Audit, {whether or not due to froud) identified by the auditors, including
. cenior management imiohied in the Risk and Complicnce those which had the greatest efiect on: the overalf audit strategy,
‘ function and the group’s legal function, including the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts
consideration of known or suspected instonces of of the engugement teom. These matters, and ony comments we
: nen-complionce with laws and regulation and fraud. make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed —
SR +  Attencing all Augit Lommuittee meetings. in the context of our cudit of the financial statements o3 a whole, v
! and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
. Ass'essmentAof mopters repgrted on the group's a seporate opinion on these matters.
. whistleblowing register and the results of monogement’s
' mvegﬁgation of such matters where (_‘Apr)h(*ubm Thisisnot complete list of all risks identified hy our audit.
I3
* Reviewing correspondence with the PRA and FCA in relation
. to complionce with laws and regulations. We also met with
B the PRA to discuss matters in relation to compliance with '
: laws and regulations during the course of our oudit.
;
1
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We have separated the previous ‘Specific elements of the valuation of long-term insurance contract liabilities” key audit matter into
two key audit matters for the current year audit. In addition, we have included a new key audit matter in relobon to the irmpact of
uncertainties related to COVID-19 (group and company). The accounting for the discontinued operations and the sale of the 51%
remaining stake to Allianz on 31 December 2018 {group), which was a key audit matter last year, is no longer included because only

immaterial amounts relating to the transaction have been recorded in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Otherwise, the key audit matters below are consistent with last year.

Key audit motter

e 1 g s o s s g

Valuation of insurance contract
liabilities — annuitant mortality
assumptions (group and company)

Refer to notes 21, 23, 26 and 27 to the financial
statements

Annuitant mortality assumptions are an area of
significant manogement judgement, due to the
inherent uncertainty involved. Whilst the group
manages the extent of its exposure to annuitant
mortatity risk through reinsurance, we consider
these assumptions underpinning gross insurance
contract liabilities to be o key audit matter given
the group's exposure tc ¢ large volume of annuity
business. The annuitant mortality assumption has
two main components:

Base mortality assumption: This part of the
assumption is mainly driven by internal experience
analyses, but judgement is also required. For
example, in determining the most oppropriate
granularity at which to carry out the analysis;

the time window used for historic experience,

or whether dato should be excluded from the
analysis; and in selecting an appropriate industry
mortality tahle to which management overlays the
results of the experience analysis.

Rate of mortatity improvernents: This part of the
assumption is more subjective given the lack of
data ond the uncertainty over how life expectancy
will change in the future. The allowance for
future mortdlity improvements is inherently
subjective, as improvements develop over long
timescales ¢nd cannot be captured by analysis
of internal experience date. The Continuous
Moriality Investigation Bureau (CMIB) provides
mortality projection models which are widely used
throcughout the incustry and contain a standard
core set of assumptions inctuding initiat rates

of improvement, caiculated by the CMIB based
on the most recent available population data.

In addition, a margin for prudence is opplied
1o the annuitant mortality ossumptions.

Valuation of insurance contract
liabilities — expense assumptions
(group and company)

Refer to nates 21, 23, 26 and 27 to the financial
statements

The group and comparny financicl statements
include liabilities for the estirated future expenses
thot would be incurred in continuing to maintain
the existing policies over their duration. Such
ligbilities are included within the insurance
contract ticbilities for both the group and company
of £10.3bn (2019: £2.3bn).

How our audit addressed the key audit matter _

We performed the following to test the annuitant mortality assumptions
(including base mortality assumptions, future mortality improverments and
IFRS prudent margins}:

Validated the appropriateness of the methodology used to perform the
annual experience studies. This involved the assessment of key judgements
with reference to relevant rules, actuarial guidance and by applying our
industry knowledge and experience;

Tested the controls in place daround the performance of annuitant moriclity
experience analysis studies, approval of the proposed assumptions and
implementation within actuarial models;

Validoted the cpproprioteness of araas of expert judgements used in the
development of the mortality improvement assumptions, including the
selection ond parameterisation of the CMI model including the choice

of the smoothing parameter, initial rate, initial additions to improvement
rates ("A" parameter, which was updated in the year), long term rate and
tapering at older ages:;

Assessed the appropriateness of the IFRS prudence margin ond its
consistency over time;

Compared the annuitant mortality assumptions selected by management
against those used by peers using our annual survey of the market;

in respect of COVIB-19, assessed management's considerations ond
any dllowances made for changes in current and future expected rates
of annuitant mortality;, and

Assessed the disclosure of the annuitant mortality assumptions and the
commentary to support the profit arising, if any, from changes in these
assumptions over 2020.

Based on the work performed and the evidence obtained, we consider the
assumptions used for annuitant mortality to be appropriate.

We performed the following te test the expense assumptions:

Validated the completeness ond accuracy of the total expense base and
the ollocation of expenses 1o the appropriate cost centre;

Assessed the methedology used by management to derive the cssumptions
with reference to relevant rules and actuarial guidance and by applying our
industry knowledge and experience;

Assessed the appropriateness of significant judgements made in opplication
of the methodology, including excluded costs (for exomple, due to costs
either not relating to the insurance business or being non-recurring in
nature). the allocation of expenses between acquisition and maintenance
costs, the allocation between products and the cepitalisation factors;
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The expense assumptions are calculated using
significont judgement, in particular over removal
of designated ‘one-off' costs and achieved

cost savings, together with the cost allocations
between acquisition and maintenance and

then between products. Products have different
expected durctions (‘capitalisation factors'),

and therefore the allocation of costs impacts
the insurance contract liahilities.

Maintenance unit costs are calculated per policy
which, along with expense inflation assumpticns,
the number of policies in force and their expected
duration, is used to estimate the future expenses
that will he incurred and to calculate an appropriate
liobility for these expenses.

The most sighificant areas of risk with expense
assumptions lie in the methodclogy used to
categorise expenses as one-off, to split amounts
between acquisition and maintenance and to
then split by preduct (as different products have
different expected durations). Any change in
methodclogy applied could have ¢ significont

impact on the quantum of the expense liabt

Impact of uncertainties related
to COVID-19 (group and company)

Refertonotes 1,4, 18, 21, 23,26 and 27 to the
financial statements

The impacts of the global pandemic due to

the Corcnavirus COVID-19 continue to cause
significant social and economic disruption up

to the date of reporting. In our audit we hdve
identified the following key impacts of COVID-1%:

Ability of the entity to continue as a going concern:
There are a number of potential matters in relation
te COVID-13 which could impact on the going
concern siatus of the group cnd company. Using
downside scenarios driven by the required Own
Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) process,
the Directors have considered the cbility of the
group and the company to remain solvent with
sufficient liguidity to meet future obligations. The
Directors have also considered its requirements

in respect of regulatory capital under Solvency .
The Directors’ have concluded that the group aond
company is a going concern.

Impact on estimation uncertainty in the finoncial
statements: The pandemic has increased the

level of estimation unicertointy in the financial
statements. The Directors have therefore considered
how COVID-19 has impacted the key estimates
that determine the voluation of material baolances,
particulorly insurance contract licbilities and
finoncial investments.

ualitative disclosures in the Annuat Report:
In eddition, the Directors have considered the
qualitative disclosures included in the Annual
Report in respect of COVID-19 and the impact
that the pandemic has had, and continues to
have, on the group and company.

Ba

Assessed the appropricteness of the IFRS prudence margin and its
consistency over time;

Performed dota testing over the policies-in-force numbers and volidated
the appropriateness of capitalisation factors used for each product to
generate the expense liobilities;

Considered whether any adjustments are required o reflect changes in future
expected palicy volumes, for example, to allow for diseconomies of scalg;

Recalculated the per-policy expense for all products and traced
supporting calculations through management’s workings to ensure
mathematical accuracy;

Assessed the uppropriateness of the expense inflotion assumptions
relative to market experience and external indices, where relevant;

As the expense liabilities are assessed mid-year, performed analysis at
the yeaor end to ensure that actual results were not meterially difierent to
expected results; and

Assessed the disclosure of the maintenance assumptions and the
commentary to support the prefit ansing, if any, from chenges in these
assumptions over 2020.

sed on the work performed and the evidence obtained, we consider the

expense gssumptions te be appropricte.

In ossessing management's consideration of the impact of COVID-19 on the
group and company, we have performed the following procedures:

Obtained management’s updated going concern assessment and
challenged the rationale for the downside scenarios adopted and material
assumptions made using our knowledge of performance, review of
regulatory correspondence and obiaining further correberating evidence;

Considered information obtained during the course of the audit and publicly
available market information to identify any evidence that would contradict
management's assessment of the impact of COVID-18;

Inquired and understood the actions taken by management to mitigate
the impacts of COVID-19, including attendance ot all Audit Committee
meetings and reviewing minutes of Risk Committee meetings;

Assessed the impact of COVID-19 on the design and operating
affectiveness of the control environment;

Challenged management's judgements in the valuation of the insurance
contract lichilities, including ennuitant mortality and expense assumptions,
in light of the emerging COVID-19 experience and by compuring these
relative to industry peers; and

Reviewed the appropriateness of disclosures within the Annucl Repeort

with respect to COVID-19 and, where relevant, considered the material
consistency of this information to the oudited financial statements and

the information obtained in the gudit.

Based on the work perfonmed, we consider the impact of COVID-19 has been
appropriately reflected in the Annuacl Report.

Qur Accounts 72

R —

B

!

i

o
c
=
1
Q
<
<
&
@

e b e—————— 2o

[



it

L8 . T e

Qur Accounts,

it
Vv
bbb

How we tailored the audit scope

We tsilored the scope of sur cudit to ensure that we performed encugh vork to bbe alsle to give an opinion on the financial staterments
o5 a whole, taking into accournt the structure of the group and the company. the accounting processes and controls, and the industry
in which they operate.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the group was structured along three business units, being: Savings 8 Retirement;
Protection; and Heritage. The group consolidation consists of sixteen active statutory entities but primarily operated during the year
through ene main trading entity, being Liverpool Victoria Financial Services Limited, at three locotions across the UK. This trading
entity is significantly material to the group as a whole at 31 December 2020.

Liverpool Victoria Financial Services Limited therefore required a full scope audit of its complete finoncial information, duc to its size
cnd risk choracicristics. One further subsidiory, LV Capital Limited., alsa required a {ull scope cudit due toits centribution to the group
Undallocated Divisible Surplus {UDS').

Talken together, the procedures we performed over the twe entities included in full audit scope above, balances in o further gne reporting
unit and the group consolidation entries gccounted for aver 95% of the group’s UDS and over 99% of the group’s net earned premiums.

In addition to the group’s head offices in Bournemouth, we "virtuolly’ engaged with teams in fwo other locations. Our procedures
grouy ‘

performed in reference to these other locations primarily focused on understanding the systems and controls in place over the

recording and processing of new and renewal business and claims.

All audit procedures ccross dll entities were performed by the group engdgement team.

Tho company is a regulated insurarce company. Some activitics are outsourced to third party providers including investment
administration and payroll processing.

In order tc gain appropriate audit cvidence, we performied o combination of tosting the interiial controls over finencial reporting
and testing transactions and bolancos te supporting evidence. In respect of the outscurcad service providars vie were able to gain
appropriote audit evidence through o combindgtion of evaluating the providers’ published assurance reports on internal control ond
performing substantive procedures. .

Materiality

The scope of our audit wos influenced by our opplication of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures on the individual fnancial statement line iteme and dicclosures and in evaluating the offect of risstatamants, both individually
and in cggregate on the fincnaiol statements as ¢ whole.

Bascd on our professional judgement, we detenmined materiality for the financial statements as o whole os follows:

Financial statements - group Financial statements - company

Overall £33,400,000 (2019: £37,600,000). £31,000,000 {2019: £25,700,000).
materiality
How we 3% of Unallocdted Divisible Surplus (UDS") 3% of Unallocated Divisible Surplus (UDS')

determined it

e Rationale for  In arriving ot this jJudgement we considerad the finanaial Censistont with the group we considared tha financial
e benchmark measures which we believe to be most relevant to the measures, which we believe to be most relevant to
applied members of the group as a body. Members' interests the members of the company as a body. Members'

For cach compoenent in the scope of our group oudit, we allocated a materiality thot is less than our overall group materiality

in the group are represented primarily by the UDS and,
concsequently, the UDS was considered to be the primary
metric to use to determine materiality. We have also had
regard to other measures such as the group's regulatory
capital surplus and other performance metrics such as
oberating profit and have compared the level of audit
work required to be performed over the group statement
of comprehensive income using these alternative
benchmarks.

interests in the company are represented primarily by
the UDS and, conseguently, the UDS waos considered to
be the primary metric to use to determine materiolity.
We have also had regard to other measures such as

the company's regulatory capital surplus and other
performonce metrics such as operating profit and

have compared the level of audit work required to be
performed over the statement of comprehensive income
using these alternative benchmarks.

5 3
range of materiality cliocoted across components was between £24,400,000 and £31,000,000. Certcin components were oudited
to alocal statutory oudit matericlity thot was also less than our overall group materiality.

Woe use performance maienality te raduce to on appropriately low level the probability that the aggregote of uncerrected and
undetected misstatements exceeds overall materidlity. Specifically, we use performance matericlity in determining the scope of our

cudit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for example in determinin

sample sizes. Qur performance motenality was 75% of overall materiality, amounting to £25,050,000 for the group finarcial
statements and £23,250,000 for the company franciol ctatements.

In dotarmining tha parfcrmancze matericlity, we considerad a number of fagtsors - the history of misstatements, risk esgessment and
aggregation rick and the effectivencss of controls  and corcluded that an amount in the middle of our rormal range vwas appropriate.
Wo agread with the Audit Committee that e would report to them misstatoments idertified during our audit above £1,670,200 igraup
audit} {2019: £1,900,000) and £1,550,000 (company audit) (2019: £1,300,000) as well oz misstatements below those amounts that,

i our view, warranted reporting for qualitative recsons.

Vi
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Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group’'s and
the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting included:

« Obtained an understanding of the inputs and assumptions
used in deriving the assessment and where applicable, testing
these to relevant supporting evidence, including locking back
to past forecasts and comparing these to actuals to assess
the accuracy of management's forecasts;

» Perfonmed sensitivity analysis by stressing key inputs and
assurmptions. We considered the sensitivities performed by
mgnagement as part of this, noting they considered severe
but plausible scenarios;

* Considered management’s assessment of the regulatory
solvency covercge and liquidity position in the forward-
looking scenarios considered;

¢ Assessed scenarios under which the transaction with Bain
Capital goes ahead as well as scenarios under which it does
not complete;

« Considered the various outcomes of the proposed transaction
with Bain Capital and the resultant greup structure to support,
in particular, the going concern assumption in relation to
the company;

* Enqutred and understood the actions taken by management
to mitigate the impacts of COVID-19, including attendance
at Audit Committee meetings ond reviewing minutes of Risk
Commiitee meetings; and

* Reviewed the disclosure included in the financial stotements,
including the Basis of presentation.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified
¢ny Imaterial uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doulzt on the
group's and the cormpany’s ability to continue as a going concern
for ¢ period of at least twelve months from when the finoncial
stotements are authaorised for issue.

In auditing the finoncial statements, we have concluded that
the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparction of the financial stutements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's
cnd the company's cbility to continue as a going concern.

Directors’ remuneration

In relation to the directors’ reporting on how they have applied
the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material
to add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement
in the financial statements about whether the directors considerecd
it oppropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with
respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the
Annual Report other than the financicl statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the
other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an oudit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated it this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur
responsibility is to read the other information and, in deing

so, consider whether the other information is materiatly
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify an opparent matenal incensistency or
material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures
to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the
financiul statements or a maotericl misstatement of the cther
information. i, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this other
information, we are requirad to report that fact. We have
nothing te report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors’ Report,
we also considered whether the disclosures required by
the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the cudit,
the Companies Act 2006 requires us also 1o report certain

opinions and matters os describad below.

Strategic report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the
audit, the information given in the Strategic report and Directors’
Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with
the financial staterments and has been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and
company and their environment obicined in the course of the
oudit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the
Strategic report and Directors’ Report.

The company voluntorily prepores a Report on Directors’ Remuneraiion in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.
The directors requested that we cudit the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration specified by the Companies Act 2006 to be

sudited as if the company were a gquoted company.

In our opinion, the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration to he audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 2006.
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Corporate governance statement

ISAs (UK) require us to review the directors’ statements in
relation to going concern, longer term viakility and that part of
the corporate governance statement relating to the company’s
compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, which the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority
specify for reviews by auditors of premium listed companies.

Our additional responsibilities with respect to the corporate
governgnce statement as other information are described

in the Reporting on other information section of this report.

Based on the work undertcken as part of our cudit, we have
concluded that cach of the following clements of the cerporate
governance statement is materially consistent with the financial
statements and our knowledge obtaoined during the audit, and
we have nothing matcrial to add or draw attention te in relation to:

* The directors’ confirmation that they have carried out o robust
ossessmeant of the emerging and principal risks;

« The disclosures in the Annucl Report that describe those
principal risks, what procedures are in place to identify
emerging risks and an explancation of how these are heing
managed or mitigated;

» The directors’ statement in the financial statements about
whether they considered it appropriate 1o adopt the geing
concern basis of accounting in preparing them, and their
identification of any material uncertainties to the group’s
and company’s ability to continue to do so over a period
of at least twelve months from the date of approval of
the financial statements;

« The directors’ explanation as to their assessment of the group’s
and company’s prospects, the period this assessment covers
and why the period is appropriate; and

» The directers’ statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the company will be able 1o
continue in operation and meet its liobilities as they foll
due over the period of its assessment, mcluding any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications
or assumptions.

Qur ravicw of the directors’ statoment regarding the longor torm
viability of the group was substantically less in scope than on
audit and only consisted of making inquiries and considering
the directors’ process supporting their stotement; checlang thait
the statement is in alignment with the relevant provisions of the
U Cutpuruie Gouvernuince Cude, unid wunsidering whiether the
staternent is consistent with the financial statements and cur
knovdedge and understanding of the group and company and
their environment obtained in the course of the audit.

In addition. based on the work undertoken as part of our cudit,
we have concluded that each of the following elements of the
corperate governance statement is materiolly consistent with
the financial statemants and our knowledge obtained during
the audit:

« The directors’ statement that they consider the Annual Report.

token as a whole, is {air, balanced and understandaoble, and
provides the information necessary for the members to
assess the group's and company’s position. performance,
business model and strategy;

« The section of the Annual Report that describes the review
of effectiveness of risk management ond internal control
systerns; and

» The section of the Annual Report describing the work of the
Audit Committee.

Responsibilities for the financial statements
and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial
statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ statement of responsibility,
the directors are responsible for the preparaticn of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable fremework and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors
are also responsible for such internal control as they determine

is necessary to enable the preparation of fincncial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
ur errur.

In prepering the financial statements, the directors are responsinle
far aissessing the graup’s and the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the
company or to ceuse operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives ure to obtain reasonable assurcnce about
whether the financial statements as o whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will chways
detect o material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonabply be
expected o influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations

of certain transactions and baolances, possibly using data
auditing techniques. However, it typicdlly involves selecting a
limited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete
populctions. We will often seek to torget particular items for
testing bosed on their size or nisk chargeieristics, In ether cases,
we will use audit sompling to encble us to draw a conclusion
about the population from which the sample is selected.

A turther description ot our responsibiithes tor the oudit ot

the financial stotements is located on the FRC's website aot:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description torms
port of our cuditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinicns, hos been prepared for ond
only for the company’s members as o body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Corapanies Act 2006 nind for no ather
purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assuime
responsibility for any othar purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or intc whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you

if, in our opinion:

* we have not obtained all the information und explonations
we require for our audit; or

* adequate cccounting records have not been kept by the

company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by )
low are not made; or .

« the company financial stotements are not in agreement with
the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this respensibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we ’ e
were appointed by the members on 29 May 2008 to audit the :
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 and
subsequent finoncial periods. The period of total uninterrupted

engagement is 13 years, covering the years ended 31 Dacember L
2008 to 31 December 2020. .

o

Lee Clarke (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhcuseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors )
London .

i

25 Morch 2021
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Statements of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2020

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Re-presented
Note {*) -seeNote 1

Notes £m £m £m £m
Gross earned premiums 5 613 656 612 655
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 5 (273) (266) (273) {266)
Net earned premiums 5 340 390 339 389
Investment income 6 237 292 632 335
Net gdins on investments 7 786 1,088 724 1,065
Otherincome 8 45 45 23 25
Total income 1,408 1,795 1,718 1,814
Gross benefits ond claims, excluding exit bonus 3 (1,048) (1.019) (1,047) {1,018)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 9 266 263 266 263
Net benefits and claims, excluding exit bonus 9 (782) (756) (781) {755)
Gross change in long-term contract liabilities, excluding mutual/exit honus 24 {557) (736} (557) (737)
Change in long-term contract habilities ceded to reinsurers 24 190 {30) 190 (30
Change in non-participating value of in-force business 24 48 6 48 6
Net change in contract liabilities, excluding mutual/cxit bonus 24 (319) (760} (319) {761)
Finance costs 10 (24) (24) (23) {23)
Other operating and administrative expenses il {246) (240) {214) {245)
Total other expenses (270) (264) (237) (268)
Total benefits, claims and expenses, excluding mutual/exit bonus (1,371) {1.780) (1,337) (1,784)
Profit before tax and mutual/exit bonus from continuing
operations {Group) and discontinued operations (Company) 37 15 381 30
Mutual bonus (28) 27} (28) {27}
Exit bonus (45) - (45) -
Income tax expense 36 (41) {60} {40) {61)
(Loss)/profit after tax and mutual/exit bonus from continuing
operations {Group) and discontinued operations (Company) (77) {72} 268 (58}
(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations 12 (2) 234 - -
MNon-controlling interest 45 (6) {38) - -
Transfer fromy/(to) the Unallocated divisible surplus 47 85 {124} (268) 58
Result for the year - - - -
Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss — discontinued operations
Net gain on available for sale financial assets, net of tax 12 - 24 - -
AFS reserve recycled through profit and loss on sale of LVGIG i2 - {14) - -
ltems that will not be reclossified to profit or loss from continuing
operations {Group) and discontinued operations (Company)
Re-measurements of defined benefit pension schemes, net of tox 32 (54) 5 {54) {2)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (54) 15 (54) (2}
Mon-controiling interest 45 - {12} - -
Transfer from/{to) the Unallocated divisible surplus 47 54 {3) 54 2

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - R

Mote {*) The entire assets ond Eabilities of the Compony hiave been presented as o discontinued operation at 31 Decerilber 2020
ahead of ¢ proposed Part Vit transfer which is expected to complete by the end of March 2022, Results reloting to this discontinued
opetation are equivalent 1o the full results of the Company for 2020. Comparative results have been re-presented uccoidingly = see
Note 1 for further details.

Ag o mutual, all net aorirgs are {or the benefit of participating policyholders and are cerried Torward within the Unallocated divisible
surplus. Accordingly, there is ne prefit for the year shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

The Group and the Company have not presenied a Siatement of Changes in Equity as there are no equity noldeis in either the Gioup
or the Company.
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Fo Statements of Financial Position
Lo As at 31 December 2020
1
i I
5
i
i : !
L -'
! % Group Company
y o 2020 2019 2018 2020 2019 2018
g Restated - Restoted - Restated - Restated - i
[ i see Note 1 see Note 1 Note (*) see Note 1 see Note 1 :
ot Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
S Assets
. ; Pension benefit asset 39 148 214 199 - 214 199
(5 Intangible assets 29 55 64 47 - 8 8
[ Investments in group undertakings 30 - - - - 816 813 :
T Property and equipment 28 29 28 29 - 8 9
v *{ Reinsurcnce assets 25 1,898 1,708 1,738 - 1,708 1,738
; / f Prepayments and accrued interest 32 67 73 77 ) - &8 70 !
Yos Loans and other receivables 17 36 303 407 - 80 84 ! :
% R Insurance receivables 31 81 63 41 - 62 40 P
Lo Corporation tax asset - - 5 - - 5 H
! ! Financial assets ot fair value through income 15 13,740 13,325 11,776 - 12,397 11,570
Lo Derivative financial instruments 16 131 92 65 - 92 65
il Cash cnd cash equivclents !
P {excluding bank overdrafis) 359 155 174 - 144 156 oy
P Assets held for distribution 1 - - 3.367 16,455 - - 3 f
] { Total assets 16,544 16,025 17,925 A 16.455 15,597 14,757 ;
. i
s :
ot Liabilities . !
R Unallocated divisible surplus 47 1,115 1,254 1.127 - 856 916 :
) . : Participating insurance contract liabilities 21 5,489 5,331 5,092 - 5,331 5,092 }
! Participating investment controct liabilities 22 781 756 691 - 756 691 3
’; - [ Non-participating value of in-force business 23 (357) (309) (303} - {309) (303) § )
b 7,028 7,032 6,607 - 6.634 6,396
yonf Non-participating insurance contract liahilities 21 4,817 4,586 4,522 - 4,573 4,508 ; :
; ; Non-participating investmeit contract liabilities 18 3,780 3,479 3,017 - 3,479 3,017 i .
b 8,597 8,065 7,539 - 8052 7.525 i
P Non-controlling interest 45 - ©) 404 - . - - o
a ! Pension benefit obligation - - 2 - - - :
: ‘ Deferred tax liability 37 91 102 78 - 103 78 :
! Provisions 40 3 10 8 - 9 7 !
I Subordinated liabilities 19 349 348 348 - 348 348 ;
1 Derivative financial instruments 16 196 226 190 - 226 120
1 Other finoncial liabilities 20 113 69 59 - 69 89
" Corporation tax liability 3 12 - - 12 -
: Insurance payables 33 42 28 28 - 27 28 O
. Trade and other payables 34 122 139 146 - 117 126 ﬁ
Liobilities directly associated with assets >
; held for distribution 1 - - 2516 16,455 - - 3
i' Total liabilities 16,544 16,025 17,925 16,455 15,597 14,757 ; g
o e Noule (*} = The entive Gasets and liabilites of the Company have bean presented as held for distribution at 31 December 2020 ahead of .,u'.mgmmuu
: a proposed Part VIl tronsfer which is expected to complete by the end of March 2022 - see Note 1 for further details. @
A Company Statement of Financial Position for Comparison purposes has been provided on poge 81.
The financial statements on pages 77 to 167 were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:
: Mark Hartigan
Director
P 25 March 2021




Statements of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 December 2020

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
. Restated ond
Restated - Re-presented
see Note 1 Note {*} -seeNotel
Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 142 464 131 145
Cash flows arising from:
Operating activities
Cash used in operating activittes before movements in investments held ;
ot fair value thli))ugh inJcome or OClI 50 (297) (368) (485) (508)
Net decrease/(increase) in investments held at foir value through income 288 {34) 11 218
Net increase in AFS financial assets at fair value through OCI - (289) - -
Cash used in operating activities {9) (691} (474) {290)
Dividend income received 70 117 " 70 112
Interest income received 170 245 165 173
Dividend paid to Non-controlling interest - {39) - -
Utilisation of provisions {8) (6) (7) (5}
Finance cost paid - (1) - -
Income tax paid (38) (45} (38} (24)
Net cash flows generated from/{used in) operating activities 185 {420} (284) (34)
Investing activities
Proceeds from the sale of LVGIG, net of cash disposed 54 133 - -
Increase in investment in group undertakings - - {3) (5)
Dividend income received from group undertakings - - 399 50
Interest income received from group undertakings - : 1 -
Purchase of property, equipment and intangibles (3) 8) (2) {1
Net cash flows generated from investing activities 51 125 395 44
Financing activities
Paviment of lease liabilities (3) 4 (1) oy
Interest aid on subordinated debt 10 (23) {23) (23) {23}
Met cosh flows used in financing activities (26) (27) {24) i24)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 210 (322) 87 {14)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 352 142 218 131
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Bank balances 121 91 112 &2
Short-term hank deposits 238 54 113 62
Cash and cash equivalents per the Statement of Financial Position 359 155 225 144
Bank overdrofts 34 {7) {13} (7) {13)
Cash and cash equivalents per the Statement of Cash Flows 352 142 218 131

Note (*) - The entire assets and habilities of the Company have bean presented as a discontinued operation at 31 December 2020

chead of o proposed Part Vil transfer which is expected to complate by the end of March 2022. Cash flows relating 1o this disco

inued

nperation arg equivalent to the full cash floves of the Comparyy for 2020. Cornparative cash fluves hiuve been re-preseriied accordingly —

see Note 1 for further details.

The Group and the Company classifies the cash flows for the aequisition and disposal of financial osseis and the net purchases/sales
of investment properties as operoting cash flows, as the purchases are funded from the cash flows associated with the originction of

msurence and investment contracts.

Cash flows from discontinued operations in 2019 ore disclosed seporately within Note 12,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2020

This section describes the Group's significant accounting policies and accounting estimates that relate tothe financial statements and
notes as a whole. If an accounting policy or an occounting estimote relotes to a specific note, the applicable accounting policy and/or
acceunting estimate is contained within the relevant note. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented. unless
otherwise stated. ‘

1. Significant accounting poiiciés

Basis of presentation

The Group financial statements consolidate the results of Liverpool Victorio Financial Services Limited {LVFS’ or ‘the Company’} ond its
subsidiary companies. The Group's and LVFS's financial statements have been prepared in accerdance with International /\ccounting
Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 {'IFRS’). The financicl statements have also been prepared
in accordance with International Financicl Reporting Standards adopted pur>u:mt to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
Europeon Union.

In accordance with IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts’, the.Group has applied existing accounting practices for insurance contracts and
participating investment contracts modified os appropricte to comply with the IFRS framework ond opplicable standards. Further
details are given in accounting policy ¢} below. . .

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets and liabiities (including derivatives and non-participating investment contract liabilities) at foir value. The primary economic
environment in which the Group cperates is the United Kingdom. The consolidated finoncial statements are presented in millions of
pounds sterling, which is the Group’s presentation and functional currency.

Within the finonciol stotements the Group uses the term Profit before tax to refer to Profit before tax, mutual/exit bonus and UDS.
transfer as disclosed on the Statement of Comprehensive Income. This is to provide a more representative Profit before tax figure
as described in the Use of Non-GAAP measures disclosed on page 66.

After making enquiries. the directors have a reasonable expectotion that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational .
exislence for the foreseacble future. The directors have considered whether the business is ¢ going concern under the expected
scenario that the proposed Bain deal is concluded by the end of March 2022 and for the unlikely scenario that the Bain deal does not
proceed. The Group therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its consolidated financial stotements.

When concluding on the going concern status of the Group the directors have considered the principol risks and uncertainties that
could impaoct the group’s solvency and liquidity over the next 12 months, including stress and scenario testing focused on the main risks
of a deeper than expected Covid-19 impact. Under this Covid-12 Downturn scenario, solvency is not projected tc breach risk appetite.

Restatements and re-preséntations

Transaction with Bain Capital . : .

On 15 December 2020, the board announced that it had reached an agreement whereby Bain Capital will pay £530m to cequire LV='s
Savings and Retirement and Protection businesses. The acquisition is subject to regulatory approval and :Jppro»'o! from LV= members.
ltis expected to complete by the end of March 2022, subject 1o the conclusion of the legal process.

The transaction will be carried out in two stages with Bain Cepital initially acquiring LV="s subsidiary LVLC together with the cdministration
ond new business infrastructure. All eligible members will be invited to vote on the transaction at o Special General Meeting which is
expected to be scheduled for later in 202 1. Subject to progressing as currently planned, the transaction is expected to complete by the
end of March 2022 with ¢ transfer of the in-force non-profit business to LVLC {which will then be owned by Bain Capital) and a transfer
of the with-profits business to a ring-fenced sub-fund of LVLC which will be run-off for the benefit of with-profits members. The transfer
will be affected by way of o Part Vil tronsfer under the Financial Services Markets Act 2000.

Although member und regulatory approval is still required before the transaction con cumple‘u the directors consider it highty
probable that this will be the case. The nature of the Port VIl transfer means that LVFS will transfer its entire assets and liabilities

to LVLC, resulting in a loss of control of this separcte majoer line of business. In exchange for this loss of control, LV= members will
receive consideration from the new owners Bain Capital. As such the entire asseéts and liabilities of LVFS constitute a disposal group that
is classified as held for distribution to owners in occordance with IFRS 5 "Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’.
This disposal group is presented as a discontinued operation and as.a result the comparative Statement of Comprehensive Income
and Statement of Cash Flows are re-presented as if the results of the disposal group containing the entire assets and liabilities of LYFS
had been discontinued frem 1 January 2019. Due to the foct that thé held for distribution clossificaticn applies to the entire assets and
liabilities of LVFS, comparative results disclosed remain unchanged.”

All LVFS assets and liahilities as ot 31 December 2020 are presented as held for distribution in the primary Statement of Finoncial
Position. However, in accordance with IFRS 5, the comparative gssets and liabilities have not been re-presented on this basis. In order
to assist with year-on-yeur comparisons and to make the financial statements more undersiendable, ¢ supplementary Statement of
Financial Position has been provided on the following page, presenting the year-end 2020 LVFS assets and liabilities as if the business
had not been classified s held for distribution. In order to assist with yeor-on-year comparisons the Notes to the finoncial statements
have been presented based on this supplementary Statement of Financial Position. . .

LVLC is immaterial 1o the Group as o whole and therefore has not been presented as discontinued or held for sale.




1. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Reclassification of Certificates of Deposit

Within the Group and Company the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Cashflows have been restated to reflect

the reclassification of certain Certificates of Deposit. Certificates of deposit with an original maturity of three months or more
were incorrectly classified as cosh equivalents in prior years. This hos reduced Short term cash deposits within Cash and cash
equivalents by £417m {2013 opening halance: £238m) for the Group and £414m {2019 opening balance: £236m) for the Company
with o corresponding increase in Debt and other fied interest securities within financial ussets at Faiv volue through income. The
restatement has no impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Supplementary Statement of Financial Position for the Company presented for comparison purposes

Company
2020 2019
Restated -
see Note 1
Notes £m £m
Assets
Pension benefit asset 39 148 214
intangible assets . . 29 7 g
Investments in group undertokings 30 758 816
Property and equipment 28 7 e
Reinsurance assets 25 1,898 1,708
Prepoyments and accrued interest 32 62 68 ;
Loans and other receivables 17 50 80
Insurance receivables 31 81 62
Financial assets at fair value through income 15 13,088 12,397
Derivative financial instruments 16 131 g2
Cash and cash eguivalents {excluding bank overdrofts) . 225 144
Total assets 16,455 15,597
Liabilities
Unallocated divisible surplus 47 1,070 856
Participating insurance controct lighilities 21 5,489 5,331
Participating investment controct liabilities 22 781 756
Non-participoting value of in-force husiness 23 (357) {303}
6,983 6,634
Non-participating insurance contract liabilities 21 4,804 4,573
Non-participating investment contract liabilities 18 3,780 3,479
: . 8,584 8,052
Deferred tax ligbility 37 91 103 0 :
Provisions 40 3 9 <
Subordinated licbilities 19 349 348 3
Derivative financial instruments 16 196 226 g 3
Other financial liabilities 20 113 89 8
Corporation tax liability 3 12 < .
Insurance payobles 33 36 27 ,3.,. :
Trade and other payables 34 97 117 @
Total fiabilities 16,455 15,597

The Metes to the Financial Stateiments for the Company have been prepared bascd on the Bgures disclosed above fur 2020 und 2019, S
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1. Significant accounting policies {(continued)

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements 1n accordance with IFRS requires the use of estimates. Furthermore, complex estimates
often involve a significant level of mancgement judgement. These significant accounting estimotes are disclosed separately from
sighificant judgements made in opplication of accounting policies.

The following areas include significant estimates ond assumptions, including the exercise of management judgement:

Area Significant accounting estimates : Note
i - R , R X
: £stimote of fair value where there is no or limited market data for ossets
] 5 Fair value financial assets classified within Level 2 or Level 3 of the fair volue meaosurement hierarchy 15,16
| ! (see Note db(vi)).
H é Assumptions and adjustments used 1n determining insurance contract ond
' { Insurance and particioating investment participoting investment contract liabilities and associcted reinsurance assets.
| ! stract liat 'I‘t? pating This includes economic and non-econoimic assumptions angd uhit cost expense 21
. ¢ ¢ Q K
LA contract labilities allocations across products.
¥ h ° X
! 1 Assessment of future options and guarantees.
'! { Intangibles Estimation of recoverable amount of each Cash Generating Unit. 29
; i Pension benefit asset Assumptions used to measure the pension benefit obligation. 39
;!
3
i : The following areas involve significant judgemeant by monagement on policy application: ;
' _— - A
! Area Significant accounting judgements Note N
'% ! Reinsurdnce assets Transier of significant insuronce risk for reinsurance arrangements entered into. 25 !
i
i Additional considerations impacting significant accounting estimates and judgements due to increosed market uncerteinty and i
; volatility driven by the Covid-19 pandemic are outlined within these notes as required. :
i ! ° ’
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1. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Accounting policies

a) Consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group directly or
indirectly, has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group has all of the following:

* power over the relevant activities of the entity, for example
through voting or other rights;

= oxposure to, or rights to, varioble returns from its involvement
with the entity; and

+ the cbility to affect those returns through the power over
the entity.

The assesoment of control is based on the consideration of alt
the focts and circumstances. The Group reassesses whether it
controls an entity if facts and circurnsiances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Subssiciarniaz are fully conzolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group using uniform accounting policies
consistently opplied across the Group. They are excluded from
consclidation from the date on which control ceases.

The Group uses the purchose method of accounting to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries. Accordingly, the cost of

an acguisition is measured as the fair volue of the cash or
other assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date control passes. Identifiable
assets aequired, liobilities and contingent liabilities assumed

in ¢ business combination are measured intially ot their {air
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of

any minority interest.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Croup's share of the identifiable net ossets acquired is recorded
as goodwill, If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value
of the net assets ocquired, the difference ic recognised inthe
Statemant of Comprehensive Income.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains

on intra-group transactions are eliminated on consaliciation.
Unrealised losses are alse eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Mon-controlling interests are initially mecosured as the
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s identifichble net assets.
The balance is subscquently increased by the omount of profit
after tax cttributable to the non-controlling interest during the
period net of any dividends paid. Ao the compeny is ¢ mutual it
has ne equity, therefore non controliing interests are presented
within liabilities.

Details of the company’s subsidiaries are given in Note 43,

(i) Associates and jointly controlled entities in property
holding companies

Joint ventures are arrangernents where the Group has joint
control and rights to the net assets of the entity. The Group does
not currently have any associates, which are all entities over
which the Group has significant influence but not control.

For edch investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity
the Group determines whether to cpply the equity method

or to designate the investment at fair value through income

in accordance with the exemption permitted under IAS 28
applicable to investment-linked insuronce funds. The Group
cyrrently has g ioinf venture in an investment property holding
company. Due to the noture of this joint venture the Group has
teker the exemption to designate this investment at fair value
through income within UK unlisted investments.

b} Disposal groups held for sale and discontinued
operations

Cisposal groups are classified as held for sale in accordonce

with IFRS 5 if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through sale rather than through continuing use and ¢ sale

is considered highly probaple. A discontinued operation 15 ¢
component of the business that has been disposed of or is
clussified us held for sale und thot represents o seporate major
line of business, or is part of & single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of such aline of business.

Adisposal group that is classified as held for sale is measured at
the lower of carrying volue and fair value less costs to sell. The
assets and liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets and liobilities in
the Stotement of kinancial Position.

The results of discontinued operations are presented separately
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. It comprises the
profit or loss aiter tax from discontinued operations together
with the gain or loss afier tax recognised on disposal; Other
comprehensive income attributable to discontinued operations
is clso presented separately.

i
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Accounting policies (continued)

c) Contract classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk, financial

Contracts are also classified as either participating or non-
participating. Participating contracts are those contracts that
entitle the holder to receive, as o supplement to guaranteed
benefits, additional benefits or bonuses:

risk or both. Insurance contracts are those contracts that

transfer sighificant insurance risk. Significant insurance risk .
is transferred where the occurrence of an insured event could

result in significant additional payments to the policyholder. Such .
contracts may also transfer financial risk. Investment contracts

are those contracts that trensfer financial risk with no significant .

insurance risk. The Group has chosen not to separate embedded
options to surrender insurance contracts for a fixed amount (or a

fixed amount and an interest rate) from the underlying insurance
contract. Embedded derivatives that meet the definition of an

insurance contract ore outside the scope of IAS 39. All other

embedded derivatives are sepurated and measured at fair value

if they are not considered closely reloted to the host insurance

contract or do not meet the definition of an insurance contract. | Al

that are likely to be a significant portion of the total

contractucl benefits:

whaose amount or timing is contractually ot the discretion of

the Group; and

that are contractually based on:

(i) the performance of a specified pool of contracts or o
specified type of contract;

{ii) reclised and/or unrealised investment returns on a
specified nool of assets held by the fund; or

{iiiythe uncllocated surplus of the fund that issues the
controct.

with-profits contracts have been classified as participating

contracts.

Product classification

Flexible Guarantee Bond
(FGB)
FGB funds include a

- significant death benefit.

‘Retirement non-profit
‘funds (fixed term /
‘enhanced annuities)
Significant insurance risk
is transferred (mortality
/ longevity) from the
.policyholder to LV=.
“Policyholders are not
“entitled to a share of the
surplus of the funds.

Savings &  pyjicyholders are entitled

Retirement * 1, o share of the surplus of
the with-profits fund.

All Protection products

"Significant insurance risk
{primarily morbidity and
mortality) is transferred
from the policyhclder

‘1o LV= whereby the |
policyholder is financially
compensated on
occurrence of the insured
event (such os injury, iliness
or death). Palicyholders are
not entitled to a share of

“the surplus of the funds.

Protection

.Unit-linked pensions,
“+including SIPP

No significant insurance

risk is transferred 10 LV=;

the customer chooses

their investment(s)

and is exposed to the

associated financicl

risk with no additionol

participation benefits.

i
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Accounting policiés {continued)

~ LVFS Heritage (including
Teachers Assurance Fund) |
with-profits investmerits

: ;LVES Heritage (including
- "RNPFN Fund) linked life
. and pensions '

- LVFSHeritage (including
-RNPFN and Teachers
Assurance Funds) with-

. RNPFN and Teachers
- Assurance Funds) . . o
conventional non-profit life,

. profitslife and pensions:

policies
. These policies transfer
significant insurance risk
Heritage the policyholder to LV=.

" -Policyholders are entitled
to a share of the surplus
of their respective with- .
profits fund.

d) Foreign currencies

pensions and annuities in
. payment ’

 These policies transfer.
(mortatlity / longevity) from - C

significant insurance risk
{mortolity / longevityj
from the policyholder to

V=, Policyholders are not

entitled to a share of the

“surplus of the funds.

These investment products
provide the policyholder with
‘market returns. The value
paid to the policyholder is
not significantly impacted
by whether pay-out is on
surrender, maturity or

death, therefore thisis not
an insurance contract. The
investments entitle the
policyholder to ¢ share of the

“surplus of the with-profits

fund.

These products do not
transfer significant
insurance risk from
policyholder to LV=.
Policyholders are not
entitled to a share of the ..
surplus of the funds.

Investment assets and liabilities derarminated in foreign currencies are transluted to sterting gt rates of eachange ruling ot the end
of the year. Purchases and sales of investments denominoted in foreign currencies are translated ot the rates prevailing ot the dotes
nf the fransactions. Bxchange gains and lossas are denlt with in that part of the Statement of Camprehansive Income inwhich the

underlying transaction is reporied.

e) Financial assets and liabilities
Recognition

The Group clussifies finoncial asg
of the instrurment and the purpose for v

o

andd liabilities upon initial recognition os shown below. The classification is impacted by the nature
ch the investiments were goguired. ’

Bebt Securities, Equity

Fair value Using prices at the

Designated : Income Statement —
f:ur vol;:e Securities o .Where the investment end of the period. z(1|et mv;zstment gains/.
through - . L L . . . 055€8).
incomge Loans secured on residential  returnis managed on the Fair value on a discounted
on initial- and commerciol property bausis of th‘: total return on cash flow basis, taking into
; L : investment. Nt s i
recognition account no negative equity
guarantees where relevont.
“Non-participating _Designated as fair Amount equal to the fair
investment contract value in order to avoid a value of the associated
liabilities meagsurement inconsistency unit-linked financial ossets.
with the associated unit--
linked financicl assets.
- Fair value Derivative assets/ {ligbilities)  Derivatives are clossifiedas = Carried at fair value. Asset Income Statement —
through held for trading us required /liability) classification net investiment gains/

dependant-on whether fair {losses}.’

volue is positive or negative.

income heid
" for trading

by I1AS 39.
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1. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Accounting policies (continued)

Basis of clossification

Our Accounts 86

SubsequentMeasurement

Recognition of
change.in fair.volo

b . 0 N R A A

Income Statement
~Netinvestment
gains/(losses) when
realised or impaired.

Amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Carrying amounts at N/a
amortised cost.

Amortised cost using the N/a
effective interest method.

Loans and Loans, reinsurance deposits,  Financial assets with fixed or
receivables other deposits and financial  determinable paymernts not
assets arising from non- quoted in an dctive market.
investment activities.
Cash Cash and cosh Equivalents Consist of cash and highly
and cash liquid investments that are
equivalents readily convertible into a
known aimount of cash.
Other Subordincted debt Financial liahilities with fixed
financial or determincble payments
liabilities ond maturity date.

The accounting policy for each type of financial asset or liability is included within the relevant note for the category.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised when:

« the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

« the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and has:

- transferred the risks and rewards of the asset; or
- transferred control of the ausset.

A finoncial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
lapility 1s discharged or cancelled or expires.

f) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for exemple goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually

for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation or
depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circurnstances indicote that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairrment loss is recagnised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separctely identifiable cosh
flows {cash-generating units).

Non-finoncicl assets, other than goodwill, that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
ct each reporting date.

g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash ot bank and in hand,
and short-term depasits with an ariginal maturity of three
manths of less.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, Cash and
cosh equivalents are as defined above but are shown net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.

h) Collateral

Collateral is received or pledged in the form of cash collateral
and non-cash collateral.

Cash collateral

Cash collateral received, which i1s not legally segregated from
the Group, is recognised as an osset with ¢ corresponding
liahility for its repayment in the Statement of Financicl Posit
Cosh collateral pledged which is legally segregated from the
Group, is derecognised from Cash and cash equivalents and a
corresponding asset for its return is recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position.

Non-cash collateral

Non-cash collateral receved that is neither sold nor re-pledged,
and where the counterpaorty is not in default is not recognised
in the Statement of Financial Pesition. Non-cash collateral
pledged where the Group is not in default is not derecognised
from the Statement of Financial Position and remains within
appropriate asset classification.

i) Mutual and Exit bonus

The Mutual and Exit bonuses allocated by LVFS are presented
on the Statement of Comprehensive Income below Profit

before tax and not within Gross change in long-term contract
liohilities or Gross benefits and claims. This is to provide ¢ mare
representotive Profit before tax figure as described in the Use of
Non-GAAP measures disclosed on page 66. The impact on Gross
change in long-term contract hiabilites 1s disclosed separately
within Note 24 and the impuact on Gross benefits and claims is
disclosed separately within Note 9.
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1. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Changes and future developments in accounting policies

a) New and amended standards adopted in the year
With effect from 1 January 2020, the following changes have been
made to accounting standards that are applied by the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and |AS 39: Interest rate
benchmark reform phase 1

The amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement provide o number of reliefs,
which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly offected
by interest rate benchmark reform. The Group does not perform
hedge accounting and therefore these amendments have no
impact on financial reporting within the Group.

Amendment to IFRS 3 business combinations

The emeandment narrows and clarifies the definition of o
“business” for which transactions relating to acguisition of a
business are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3. Where

¢ transaction is deemed an acquisition of assets and liabilities,
rather than o business, this would not be accounted for by IFRS 3
and occordingly no goodwill would be recognised. There are no
transactions in the current year thot are v/ithin the scope of this
amendiment, therefore this amendment has not currently hod
any effect on accounting within the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material

1AS 1 and IAS 8 are amended to alleviate areas of potenticl
misinterpretation of the definition of materiality. The new
definition is “Information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influcnce decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financicl statements
make on the bosis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting entity.” This
definition 1s consistent with the Group's existing application of
rmateriality and has not therefere impacted financicl reporting
within the Group.

Conceptual framework for financial reporting

A revised conceptual framework has been implemented by

the International Accounting Standards Board. The conceptual
framework ussists preparers to develop consistent accounting
policies for transactions or other events when no standard
applies or a standard allows a choice of accounting policies. The
conceptual framework i alse used te assist with understanding
and interpretation of accounting standards. The revised conceptual
framework includes some new concepts, updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities and clarifies
some important concepts. These amendments had no impact
on finuncial reporting within the Group.

b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and omendments to standords ond
interpretations have been issued and are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2020, and have not been
applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

If implemented, the standards (IFRS 9 and IFRS 17} would hove
a raaterial impact on the Group and trensitioning to the new
standords would reguire significant effort. The Audit Committee
have considered the merits of both IFRS and UK GAAP and have
concluded that transitioning to UK SAAR would be in the best
interests of the business and will not impair the usefulness and
quality of our financial reporting. The Group intends to transition
to UK GAAP in advance cf the IFRS 17 effective date.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’

IFRS 9 replaces 1AS 39 ‘Financial instruments’ and addresses
the clossification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and fingnciol liabilities. This standard was effective from
1 Jonuary 2018. However the Group and the Company continue
to apply the temporary exemption from IFRS 9 until adoption of
IFRS 17.

Compliance with the criteria for the temporary exemption
fromIFRS 9

IFRS 4 permits insurance entities which meet the predominance
ratio test to have a temporary exemption from IFRS @ where
this standard has not vet been adopted. The period of the
temporary exemption initially covered all accounting periods
commencing before 1 January 2021. From 1 January 2021 a
turther amendment 1o IFRS 4 extends this exemption to include
accounting periods commencing before 1 January 2023 in line
wath the deferral of IFRS 17 effective date to | January 2023,

The predomincnce ratio test is required to be performed at

the reparting entity level, using the annual reporting date that
immediately precedes 1 April 2016 {i.e. 31 Decernber 2015) and
reassessed following a significant change i the business. The
Group and the Company meet the criteria to apply the temporary
exemption from IFRS 9. The Group and the Company’s activities
are predominantly connected with insurance os demoenstrated
hy the predeminance ratio test. The predominonce ratio test was
initially met as ot 31 December 2015 and has been reassessed
following the disposal of the general insurance business on ot

31 December 2019. In the most recent predomincnce ratio test
ot 31 Docember 2019 the Group ond the Company's pure IFRS

4 lighilities are significont at 72% of liabitities. Totol liobilities
connected with insurance for the Group and the Company are
94% once non-participating investment contract liabilities

are included.

Relevant disclosures to facilitate comparison with companies
which have adopted IFRS 2 are included in Note 14. IFRS S
infonmation for the non-insuronce subsidiaries within the Group
which have adopted IFRS 9 can be obtained from the individual
financiol stctements cvailable ot Componies House.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance contracts’

IFRS 17 is effective from 1 Jonuary 2023 and reploces IFRS 4
‘Insurance contracts’ and provides a new accounting model for
insurcnce contracts that will supersede the requirements of IFRS
4, which was largely based on grandfathering previous local
accounting policies. IFRS 17 provides o comprehensive model for
insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The
core of IFRS 17 is the genercl model, supplemented by the variable
feeapproachforcontractswithdirectparticipotionfeatures and the
premium allocation approach for short-duration contracts.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 4, IFRS 7 and IFRS 16:
Interest rate benchmark reform phase 2

Ahead of the plonned withdrawal of the London Inter-bank
offered rate (LIBOR) various amendments have been made to
financial instruments accounting standards in order to avoid
unintended accounting consequences that may be triggered by
a modification of financial instrument cashflows. These changes
are effective from 1 Jonuary 2021. LV= does not perform hedge
dgccounting and holds the majority of its investiment assets

it Fair value through income, as o result there will be limited
creos of the Group's balance sheet that will be impacted by

the withdrawat of LIBOR. The subordinated debt is the primary
financial instrument that will benefit from the reliefs introduced,
and it is expected thot these amendments will meaon that

the withdroawal of LIBOR.

There are no other new or amended stondards yet to be odopted
by the Group that are expected to have a significant effect on the
financial statements,
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This section details the disclosures required under IFRS 8 Operating segments. These segmental disclosures cre based on operating
segments that reflect the levet within the Group at which key strategic and resource allocation decisions cre made and the way in
which operating performance is reported internally 1o the executive directors.

2. Segmental information

Segmental accounting and reporting

Reporiingtothe executive directors focuses primarily on Solvencylicapitalmetricsond thisisreflectedin the Key Performancelndicators
onpage 7.1FRS segmentalinformation reported to the boardis limited to IFRS based Trading result, with reconciliation to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. Following the sale of the general insurance business, the Life operating segment has been segmented at o
lower level as described below. 2012 comparatives have been restated accordingly. The executive directors manage the Group using
the three business units of Savings and Retirement, Protection and Heritage as described in the Strategy section on page 8. These
business units have been identified as the reportable segments and relevant disclosures are included below.

Trading result is o non-GAAP measure as explained on page 66 and is calculated as continuing business profit before tox, mutual/exit
bonus and UDS transfer adjusted for the following items:

« Estote investment income.

= Experience variances and model and basis chonges.
« Strategic investment, debt interest and other.

«  Short-term investment fluctuctions.

The products and services from which each reportable segment derives its income are as follows:

» Sovings and retirement: pensions, savings, investments and equity release products and provision of financial advice,

» Protection: life insurance and income protection products.

+ Heritage: savings and investment products that are no longer actively marketed, the majority of these are with-profits products.
Transcctions between reportable segmaents are on normal commercial terms, and are included within the reported segments.

a) Segment profit

The profit measure used by the executive directors to monitor performance is Trading result. Trading result by segment is shown in the
table below, with o reconciliation of Trading result to the IFRS Profit before tax from continuing cperations.

2020 2019
£m £m
Savings and retirement . 8 25
Protecticn . 2 i5
Heritage (1) 3
Trading profit 9 43
Estote invesiment income 15 8
Experience variances (21) (21} o
Model and bosis changes 37 {46) P
Operating profit/(loss) 40 {(16) =3
Strategic mvesiment, debt interest, group items and other ’ (96) {38) k
Short-term investment fluctuations and related items 93 129 8
Profit before tax and mutual/exit bonus from continuing operations 37 g
Definitions of the line itemns in the segment profit statement con be found in the Use of non-GAAP measures on page 66. "m"
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| 2. Segmentat information (continued)
i
- b) Revenue
' : In order to meet IFRS segmental repoerting requirements a revenue figure is presented as this makes up part of the Trading result
{ reported. The revenue metric presented is a Present Value of New Business Premiums (PVNBP) hased metric, which can be reconciled
| to IFRS gross premiums.
-
[ 2020 2019
{0 £m im
b Savings and retirement sales (PYNBP} 1,039 1,143 S
" Protection sales (PVNBP) 252 263 o
: Group sales (PVNBP) 1,291 1,406 j
Equity release mortgage advances {148) (179) ‘
Gross written premiums for non-participating investment contracts which are deposit accounted (435) (416} .
SIPP deposits T {107) {156)
Eifect of capitalisation factor on requilar premium long-term business {221) (231) :
New business gross earned premiums 380 424
Gross premiums from existing in-force business 233 232
i IFRS Gross earned premiums 613 656
L c) Major customers ,
t The directors consider the Group's external customers to be individual policyholders. As such, the Group is not reliant on any individual R
customer.
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This section details the capital and risk management approach of the Company and Group. The Group seeks to create value for its
members by investing in the development of the business while maintaining an appropriate level of capital available. The risk appetite
for each type of principat risk is set based on the amount necessary to meet the PRA's capital requirements.

3. Capital management

Policies and objectives

Capital is mancged onh both economic and regulatory boses
to ensure the Group has sufficient funds to meet its business
objectives, the promises made to members and policyholders
and regulatory requirements.

The Group's key copitof management objectives are that:

Regulatory capital will be managed to remain within upper
and fower limits agreed by the Board; .

Risk exposures will be managed to ensure our risk profile
does not deviate materially from thot projected in our
agreed business plans;

Policyholder protection is not materially or inadvertently
reduced as a result of where capital is held across LVFS; and

Expected surplus generation is not less than that required
to restore LV= to target solvency following a breach in the
Board agreed limit over o period of 5 years.

These objectives are reviewed at least annually and benchmarks
are set by which to judge the adequacy of the Group's capital.
The capital position is monitored against those benchmarks to-
ensure that sufficient capital is ovailable 1o the Group.

The Group complied with all regulatory capitol requirements that
it was subject to throughout the reporting period.

Capital Management

Capital is monttored and managed at ¢ Group and entity level.
The Group manages copital resources under Solvency [l at the
level of Eligible own funds. Excluding RNPFN and Teachers
ring—fenced funds, Eligible own funds were £1,397m for the
Group and the Company (2019 £1,600m). Including RNPFN
and Teachers ring-fenced funds, Eligible own funds were
£1,477m for the Group and the Company {2019: £1,678m).
The inclusion of the ring-fenced funds does not change the
Group capital surplus.

The Group s=eks 1o deploy capital where it believes the risk is
properly rewarded. Asset and liability matching is extensively
used and risks are hedged where the Group believes it would
otherwise receive insufficient return for the risk token or to
reduce volatility.

The Eligible own funds figures disclosed above are based on the
estimate of the results ot the Annual Report sighing date. Itis
possible that this result will be adjusted prior to final publication
of the Group Solvency Financial Condition Report later in 2021.

Risk appetite

The Group has embedded its approach to risk management
through its risk appetite. The risk appetite for capitol
management is that sufficient solvency capital is held to ensure
thot the Group can continue to trade following o severe adverse
movement in markets or other risks. As at 31 December 2020,
the capital risk oppetite was set to target o Capital Coverauge
Ratio of 140%. See further details on risk management on pages
1810 22.

Measurement and monitoring of capital

The copital position of the Group is monitored on a regular
basis and reviewed formally on o monthly basis by the Asset
and Liability Committee (ALCO). These objectives are reviewed
and benchmarks are set by which to judge the adequacy of the
Group's capital and ensure that sufficient capital is available.

The Group's capital requirements are forecast on a regular
basis and compared against the available capital and the
Group's minimuim internal rate of return. The internal rate of
return forecast to be achieved on potential investments is also
measurad cgainst minimum required benchmarks taking into
account the risks associated with the investment.

Methodology

Eligible own funds comprise the excess of the value of assels
over the liabilities, as valued on o Solvency [l basis. Subordinated
debt issued by the Group is considered o be port of Eligible own
funds, rather than a liability, as it is subordinate to policyholder
claims.

Assets are valued et IFRS fair value with adjustments to
remove intangibles and deferred acquisition costs, and to volue
reassurers’ share of technical provisions consistently with the
Solvency Il regulations.

Lighilities are valued on a best estimote market consistent basis,
with the application of a Matching Adjustment, for veluing
qualifying annuity liabifities, and a Volotility Adjustment for
other gqualifying business. Transitional measure cn technical
provisions (TMTP) is recognised on the bolance sheet and has
neen calculated on ¢ basis approved by the Audit Committee
which seeks to capture the differences between the Technical
Provisions and the total Financial Resources Requirement under
the previcus Solvency | regime and the new Solvency ll regime.

The licbilities include the Risk Margin which represents an
aliowgnce for the cost of capital for ¢ purchasing insurer taking
on the porifolic of liabilities and residual risks that are deemed

to be not hedgeable under Solvency 11, This is colculated using

a cost of capital of 6% as prescribed in the regulations, and
represents the cost to the purchaser of raising capital to meet the
regulotory capital requirements. !

The Sclvency Capital Requirement {SCR} is the amount of
capital required to cover the 1-in-200 worst projectad future
outcome in the vear following the valuation, cllowing for
realistic management and policyhoelder actions and the impact
of the stress on the tax position of the Group. This allows for
diversification between the different exposures within the Group
and between the risks to which they are exposed.




3. Capital management {continued)

All non-insurance regulated businesses are included using their
current regulatory surplus.

Allowance is made within the Solvency Il Balance Sheet for the Group's
defined benefit pension scheme using results on an IFRS basis.

Assumptions
The calculation of the Solvency Il batance sheet and associated
capital requirements requires ¢ number of assumptions, including:

{i) assumptions required to derive the present value of best
estimate liability cash flows. Non-market assumptions are
broadly the same as those used to derive the Group's IFRS
disclosures, and are structured so as to capture both short
term and long term behaviour, with the former including
anticipated impacts from COVID-18 ¢nd the linked economic
disruption — see Note 21. The medium to long-term impacts of
CQOVID-13 are uncertain, and correspondingly, no allowance is
made for such potential impacts. Future investment returns and
discount rates are those defined by the PRA, which means thot
the risk free rates used to discount lighilities gre market swap
rates, with a 10 basis point deduction to alfow for credit risk.
For eligible annuity business, the liability discount rate includes
a Matching Adjustment. For other ehgible business, the liability
discount rate includes a Velotility Adjustment, :

{ii) assumptions regarding management actions. The only
mancgement actions allowed for are those that have been
cpproved by the Board and are in ploce at'the balance sheet date.

Use of and limitations of sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is used o determine the etfect of a change

in ¢ key assumption while other assumpticns remain unchanged.
I reclity, there is a correlation between the ossumptions and
other fuctors. It should also be noted that these sensitivities

are non-linecr, and larger or smatler impacts should not be
interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

The sensitivity analysis does not toke into consideration that the

Group's assets and liabilities are actively managed. Additionally,
the Solver:cy Il position of the Group may vary ot the time that

Other hmitations of sensitvity analysis include the use of
hypothetical market movements to demonstrate potential risk
that only represent the Group’s view of possible near-term market
changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty, and the
assumption that cll interest rates move in an identical fashion.

Stress and scenario testing

Due to the limitations of sensitivity analysis in isolation, the
Group undertakes a series of stress and scencrio tests tc ensure
the robustness of its solvency position in regard to different levels
of new business growth, imcvements in investment markets and
changes in other assumptions such as the expected lifetime of
our enhanced annuity customers,

Inlooking ¢t movements in investiment markets the Group
considers o number of single stresses {e.g. a significant fall in
equities} but more importontly because investment markets are
highly correlated consideration is given to how they will move
together in stressed conditions. The Group uses the outcomes

of the stress and scenario testing to develop the management
actions that would be undertaken if capital or other performance
meosures move outside of the defined risk appetite.

In order to plan {for the future operctions of the Group, forecast
plans are produced including stress and scenario testing to
provide the board with assurance that the Group will be cble
to withstand adverse events if they arise.

Brexit

The Group has substantially written all of its business in the UK.
Going forwords, the Group will continue to monitor regulatory
and other developments following the UK's departure from the
European Union tc ensure it is compliant with and weli-positionec!
regording any future changes to the regulatory environment.

Reconciliation of Group IFRS UDS to Solvency I Eligible
own funds

The table below gives o reconciliotion of Group IFRS Unallocated
divisible surplus to the Group's Eligible cwn funds on a Solvency
I bausis.

any actual market movement occurs. For example, the Group's The Group Solvency Il results disclosed below are based on the 9
financiol risk management strategy aims to manage the estimate of the results at the Annual Report signing date. itis =
exposure to market fluctuations. possible that the Solvency |l results will be adjusted pricr to final g
As investment markets move past various trigger levels, pul)l;;cﬁtion of the group Solvency Financicl Condition Report 8
management actions could include selling investments, lerter in 2021. <
changing investment portfolio allecation, adjusting bonuses E',
credited 1o policyholders, and taking other protective action. @
202 2615
£m £
IFRS Unallocated divisible surplus 1,115 1.254
Remove DAC, goodwill and other intangible assets and liabilities (55) {64)
Add subordinated debt treated as avoilable capital 361 360
Insurance contract valuation differences 70 199
Difference in non-controlling interest calculation methods - {63
Other 4 4
Less net eligible own funds relating to ring-fenced funds {98) (147)
Estimated eligible own funds (excluding ring-fenced funds) 1,397 1.600
RNPFN - eligible own funds 75 109
Restriction of own funds in respect of RNPFN (2) (39)
Teachers — eligible own funds 23 38
Restriction of own funds in respect of Teachers (16) (30
Group estimated eligible own funds 1,477 1,678




4. Risk management and control

The Group’s primary business activities include the provision

of insurance, investment and retirement products to UK-based
customers. in providing these products the Group accepts and
needs to manage risk. A description of these risks and how they
relate to the Group's products is outlined below and the Group's
approach to maunaging and controlling these risks through its
governance and risk management framework is set out on pages
18to 22.

As part of its risk management programme, the Group records
its current and projected risk position across a defined set

of risk categories. In addition a measure of the sensitivity on
Profit hefore tax and Unallocated divisible surplus under both
deterministic and stochastic scenarios 1s performed.

Management uses the insight gained through these sensitivities
to help manage the Group's risk exposure and sustainability. The

odels, scenarios and assumptions used are reviewed regularly
and updated as necessary including any interdependencies
hetween risk types. This section includes the impdct on the three
measures of a sensitivity test that colibrates to o reosonably
possible change in a single risk type.

Coronavirus

The emergence of the Coronavirus represented a hew uncertainty
in 2020. The business has successfully tronsitioned so a majority
of the staff hove worked frorm home during the pandermnic without.
detrnment to the service provided to customers. The halance
sheet has proved resilient to the volatility present in the markets
over the year and remains strong, with no management actions
being needed to support solvency. The risk management function
conunue to assess the additional risks presented by the pandemic
and ensure the additional operationadl risks arising from remote
working are understood and monaged, while the business plans
for a gradual sofe return to the office when the situation stabilises.

The long-tenm implications for mortality, morbidity and persistency
experience and the UK's economic prospects will be assessed
based on company and industry experience as the coronavirus
pandemic and vaccine mitigation continues to develop.

-Principal risks and categories

The Risk Management section of the Strotegic Report on pages
18 to 22 sets out the principal risks and uncertainties that

the Greup faces. In addition, the Group uses o standard
categorisation 1o group togather similar risks. All such risks are
subject to the sarme risk management and control framework.
However, they impact the business and its fincncial performance
in different ways. The {cllowing sections provide more detail on
these main categories of risks and how they irpact the Group.

a) Insurance risk

Insurance risk arises both from the cloims cormmitment thot the
Group has made to its policyholders and the pricing assumptions
made in respect of the policy of insurance. As such, this covers
the following risks:

* The timing and the amount of the claim is uncertain and
hence there is arisk thot the exposure to lass arising from this
claims experience 1s different to that anticipated.

The product is priced assuming certain assumptions covering
hov long the policy will be mauintained by the customer
{persistency risk) and the cost of administering the product
over its life cycle {expense risk). There is a risk that across the
Group’s insurance portfolio the actual experience is different
to thet assumed when the product is priced. This is more likely
the longer the term of the product.

The Group's insurance activities primarily involve the provision of
protection, retirement and savings products. These products are
long term in nature and provide key benefits to the policyholder
and their dependants.

Anumber of key assumptions are made when determining the
future claims hobility that will arise from these policyholder
comnutrments. These are based on prior experience and latest
forecasts in trends and patterns and include the future life
expectancy and health of policyholders. the extent to which
contracts will be terminated early, how much insuronce contract
administration costs will increase, growth in the value of
investments, interest rates and tax rates.

Details of insurance contract highbilities and associated valuation
assumptions are disclosed in Notes 21 and 26 respectively.

Differences in actual experience versus the original key
assumptions will give rise to liabilities that diifer from those
originally uniticipated. In addition the assumptions made
regarding the length of ime the policy stays in force and the cost
of administering the policy may vary from original assumptions.
Wherever these outcomes vary from the origincl or most recent
estimaties they may give rise to o change in life insurance risk
exposure. The primary life insurance risks prevalent within the
Group’s products are described below:

Mortality, longevity and morbidity

Life jprotection and annuity business is exposed to changes in
life expectancy {mortality - reduced life expectancy, longevity
- increased lite expectoncy) and health expectancy {(morbidity)
experience.

Protection product liabilities are exposed to mortality and
morbidity risks whereby higher mortality rotes and adverse
morbidity will lead to increases in contract liahilities. Annuity
product liabilities are exposed to longevity risk whereby contract
licbilities will increase with life expectancy.

Maortality, lcngevity and morbidity risk is managed in the Group
through the assessment of the risk ossociated with individual
policyholders against o set of acceptonce (underwriting) criteria,
which may include an individucl's medical history, occupation,
smoking and drinking habits (i.e. indicotors of life expectancyi.
The actual experience of policyholders is then regularly
monitored to assess that the underwriting criteria remain
aporopriate and that the level of risk being assumed by the
Group remains within its risk appetite. A lorge amount of this risk
is munaged via reinsurance.
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4. Risk management and control (continued)

Persistency
In pricing life insurance business, the Group makes assumptions

as to how long the policyholder is likely to retain the product.
Persistency risk arises from the actuct experience being different
to the assumptions. The level of persistency influences the ability
to recover initial costs of sale from the premiums and charges
that relate to the product. The Group is exposed to persistency
risk whereby the profitobility is adversely impacted by changes
in the length of time that policies remain in force.

For certoin Heritage products the level of persistency influences
the estimated cost of guarcantees and options. The risk for these
products is that a larger proportion of the portfolio remains
in-force to take advantage of these guarentees and options.

Persistency risk is managed in the Group through the assessment
of the risk ossocioted with different products against the
assumptions used when pricing and subsequently valuing the
insurance obligotions. The actual lapse experience segmented
inte oppropriate product groups is regulorly rnonitored 1o

assess whether the pricing and valuation assumptions remain
appropriate and that the level of nsk being ossumed by the
Group remains within its risk appetite.

Cash take-up

In pricing life insurance business. the Group makes assumptions
as to how many policyholders are likely to take the lump-sum
cash option at retirement. Cash toke-up risk arises from the
dctual experience being different to the assumptions. The level of
cash take-up influences the future cost of the product. as the cost
of paying a guarenteed annuity income for life is more onerous
than the lump-sum cash at retirement option.

Cash take-up risk is managed in the Group through the
ossessment of the risk associated with different products
against the assumptions used when pricing and subsequently
valuing the insurance obligations. The actual cash take-up
experience, segmented into appropriate product groups, is
regularly monitored to assess whether the pricing and valuction
assumptions remain appropricte and that the level of risk being
assumed by the Group remains within its risk appetite.

Expense

In pricing life insurance business, ussumplions ore made as to
how long the Group will need to continue to service and maintain
the product ond communicate with the policyholder. The Group is
exposed to the risk that the charges it deducts from policyholder
henefits are not sufficient to cover the full extent of these expenses.
In addition, the Group makes an assumption as te how much this
service and maintenance will cost each year. Expense risk is the
exposure from these assumptions on cost and duratioh varying
from the assumed levels, with higher than expected expenses
reducing profits.

The Group manages this risk through an ongoing assessment
of the factors thot wilt generate odditional expenses in the
product servicing costs and the average duration of life
insurance products.

Climate Change risk

The financial performance of the Group may be adversely affected
by harmful environmental events aond developments including
those related to (i) physical risk; and (i) asset transition risk.

In the short term, the Group is exposed to physical risk through
potential adverse impacts to property values arising from the
investment in commercial property and residenticl property from
equity release loans. Longer-term changes to the climate are
likely to also affect the longewity, morbidity and mortality risks

to which the Group is exposed, although the scale and direction
attributed to climate change is not yet known.

Asset transition risks can arise from the process of adjustment
towards a low-carbon economy. The Group is exposed to a
reduction in the value of assets held which are either considered
environmentally unfriendly or whose prospects moy be
adversely affected by climate change. The Group hos developed &
Responsible investment Fromewoerk and are working with our asset
managers to understand and manage the asset transition risk.

Reinsurance

In order to mitigate the mortality, fongevity and morbidity
risk within the Group's life insurance book described earlier,
a material proportion of mortality. longevity end morbidity
risk is transterred via reinsuring policy commitments through
agreements with reinsurance companies.

The most sigrificont reinsurance arrangements cover mortality
and morbidity risks on Protection business and longevity risk on
annuity business. The counterparties to these arrcngements are
leading global reinsurers Gen Re, Pacific Life Re and RGA.

Insurance concentration risk

The Group is not exposed to significant concentrations of
insurance risk. Experience shows that the larger the portfolio
of similar independent insurance contracts, the smaller the
relative variability about the expected outcome will be. In
addition, a more diversified porifolic is less likely to be offected
by a change in any subset of the portfolic. The Group has
developed its insurance underwriting strategies to diversify
the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of these
categories to achieve  sufficiently large populotion of risks to
reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The Group writes a diverse mix of life insurance business across
o wide group of people and businesses. However, as the Group
has subsiantially written all of its business in the UK, results cre
sensitive tc demographic and ecchomic changes arising in the UK.

The Group niniruses the level of insurance concentrction
through the use of portfolio anclysis and reinsurance.

The Group’s expasure to ife insurance risk is captured i the
long-term insurance and investment contract liobilities set out
below. The products listed below cover the Group's protection,
annuity cnd pensions products and olso the investment exposure
arising from the Group's savings and investment products.

The company’s exposure to life insurance risk is consistent with
thot of the Group.
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4. Risk management and control {continued)

2020 2019

Gross Reinsurance Net Gress  Reinsurance Net

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Whole life 3,659 (16) 3,643 3,496 (37) 3,459
Endowment 273 - 273 310 - 310
Term Assurance 523 (590) {67) 426 {478) {52)
Immediate and deferred annuity contracts 4,432 (957) 3,475 4,338 (895) 3,443
UWP pensions and protected retirement plans 1,490 - 1,490 1,478 - 1,478
Criticalillness 112 +(93) 19 a7 {83) 14
Income protection 200 (242) (42) 180 {215) {35)
Legacy WP {SA 140 - 140 103 - 103
Other 147 - 147 168 - 168
10,976 (1,898} 9,078 10,596 (1,708) 8,888

Long-term claims liabilities 111 - 111 77 - 77
Unit linked 3,780 - 3,780 3479 - 3.479
14,867 (1.898) 12,969 14,152 {1,708} 12,444

Life insurance risk sensitivities

The table below sets out the impact on Profit before tox and the Unallocated divisible surplus of reasonably possible movements in key
assumptions. The company’s expostire to life insurance risk is materially consistent with thot of the Group.

tmpoct on Profit before tax, mutual bonus

and UDS transfer Impact on the Unaflocated divisible surplus
Sensitivity analysis for the change in assumptions used in 2020 2019 2020 2019
long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities £m £ro £m £m
Increase in moriality rates by 5% — Non annuity products (3) (3) (3) (3
Decrease in moriality rates by 5% — Annuity products {15) (13) (15) {13)
Increase in morbidity rates by 5% (12) (12) (12) (12)
Increase in persistency by 10% 5 5 5 5
Decrease in OB pensions cash take-up rates by 50% (91) (72) {91) {72)
Increase in expenses by 10% (50) (46} (50) 46}

The sensitivities above are performed on our insurance and investment contract liahilities net of reinsurance. They do notinclude the
potential impacts on financial assets (including equity release) as the impacts are not material.

The impact of an adverse or favourable movement in the assumptions is largely symmetric. The persistency sensitivity is performed
s stresses to the persistency assumptions proportionclly for all products and therefore implicitly allows for oifsets betwean products

exposed to different directioncl sensitivities.
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4, Risk management and control (continued)

b) Financial markets risk

As a result of the insurance, investment and retirement products

oftered to policyholders the Group is exposed 1o financial
narkets through the investment of premiums ¢nd investment

lump sums in various investment assets such as equities, gilts,

corpordte bonds and property.

Financial markets risk is defined as the risk thot arises from
adverse fluctuations or increased volatility in asset values, csset
income or interest rates. This includes credit spread widening.
The Group manages these risks through gligning the investment
strategy, osset clocation and performance benchmarks with the
Group's risk appetite ond utilising asset liability motching and
stochastic modlelling technigues. These actions <im to match the
risks arising from the liclzilities under the Group's insurance and
investment contracts with the risks inherent in its assets and the
capital available to ensure the Group is able to meet paolicyholder
commitments when they fall due ond to achieve a sufficient
return for members.

In addition to the actions summarised above the Group may also
look to use derivative instruments particularly to assist in hedging
policyholder guaranteed options and, where cost effective,

1o transfer risks it believes are either unrewarded or which it
believes can be better managed by ¢ third porty. For example,
derivatives are used to reduce exposure to fluciugtions in interest
rates, exchange rates and for efficient portfolio mancgement
purposes. The main derivatives used for this function are interest
rate contracts {including interest rate swaps), forward foreigh
exchange contracts and equity derivatives (index futures and
options] respectively. The Group does not hold derivatives for
investment purposes, they are held purely as a risk management
technique to manage financial market risk exposures within

its investrent holdings {see Note 16 on how these are used).

The investment management agreement betwesen the Group
and Columbia Threadneedle Investments specihes the limiis
for holdings in certain asset categories and currencies. Asset
allocation and performance benchmarks are set, which ensure
that each fund has an appropriate mix of assets and is not over
or under exposed to ¢ particular asset category, currency or
specaific investiment relative to its risk appetite. The Investment
team monitors the actual asset allocation and performance
against benchmarks with oversight provided by ALCO and the
Investment Committee.

The Group is not exposed to financial markets rsk in respect of
assets held to cover unit linked liabilities as these rnisks are borne
by the holders of the contracts concerned, except to the extent
that income from the fund based management charges levied
on these contracts varies directly with the value of the underlying
assets. Where appropriate the Group manages this exposure vic
internal and external hedging arrengements.

The key types of financiol markets risk to which the Group is
exposed ore set out Inmore detail in the following paragraphs.
Sensitivities to key market nisks are shown on page 98.

(i) Asset performance risk

Asset performance risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of an asset or liability will fluctuate because of
changes in madrket prices, other than those arising from interest
rate or currency risks.

The Group is primarily exposed to asset performance risk
arising from its investment in equities, property, gilts and
corporate bonds.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equily price risk from daily fluctuations
in the morket values of the equity portfolio. These assets are
used to support contractual liabilities arising from investment
and long-term insurance contracts. For investment ond
long-term linked insurance contracts the price movements

are matched with corresponding movements in contractual
obhgations. For participating insurance contracts the aimis

to achieve growth in excess of the obligations. Decreases in

the market price of equities will negatively impact the profits
and copital of the Group. The risks from investing in equities

are managed by investing in g diverse portfolio of high quality
securities ensuring that holdings are diversified ccross industries
and geographies, and concentrations in any one company or
industry are limited by parameters established by the Investment
Committee. In addition, the Group may use derivatives to reduce
the level of equity price risk.

Property price risk

The Group is subject to property price risk due to its exposure

to the residential and commercial property market through

its equity release aund commercial mortgage products, where
sustained underperformance in property prices could result in
proceeds on sale being exceeded by the mortgage debt at the
dote of redemption (see Note 15 for disclosures relating to loans
secured on residentiol and commercial property}. This risk is
managed through limits on the maximum loan to value ratio and
seeking to limit concentrations in porticulcer geographic areas.
Monitoring of actual experience in house prices versus expected
is also undertaken.

In addition, the Group is exposed to property price risk from
property investments held to support contractual liobilities
arising from investment and long-term insurance contracts. For
investment cnd long-term linked insurance contracts the price
movements are matched with corresponding movements in
controctual obligotions. For porticipating mnsurcnce contracts the
aim is to achieve growth in excess of the obligations. The risks
from ivesting i property are managed by investing in o diverse
portfolio of high quality properties ensuring that holdings are
diversified across sector and location.
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Corporate bond price risk {Credit spread risk)

The credhit spread risk represents the risk of odverse fluctuation in
the values of assets and liabilities due 1o changes in the level of
corporate bond credit sprecds.

Awidening in credit spreads, over and above nisk-free yields,
causes bond values to decrease. There s a partial ofiset where
the value of certain insurance liahilities foll in value but the
overall impact on IFRS profits is negative. Conversely a narrowing
of credit spreads results i o positive impact on IFRS profits.

The Group monitors credit spread risk by regulerly reviewing its
exposure to corperate bonds by sector (e.g. finencial or non-
financial), credit rating end duration end through its asset and
lichility ratching tools.



4. Risk management and control {continued)

(i} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the Group is exposed to lower returns or loss as a direct or indirect result of fluctuations in the value
of specific assets and liabilities arising from changes in underlying interest rates.

Interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group's investments in long-term debt and fixed income securities and their movement
relative to the value placed on the insurance liobilities. A number of products sold by the Group have features that influence the
Group's exposure to interest rate risk. These features include guaranteed surrender values, guaronteed annuity options and minimum
surrender and maturity values, which can lead to the present value of claims being higher than the value of the backing assets, when
interest rates change.

The Group manages interest rate risk by investing in fixed income securities which closely match the interest rate sensitivity of

the liabilities, where such investments are available. The Group ulse makes use of derivatives in addition to physically held assets
to manage the interest rate exposure resulting from the liabilities. The Group manages its exposure on both an IFRS basis and a
regulatory capital basis under Solvency H, and currently focuses on regulatory capital. These derivatives are principally interest rate
swaps and gilt forward contracts.

Exposure to interest rate risk is monitored using several technigues. including scenaric testing, stress testing and asset liability
duration control.

The publication of Libor is due 1o cease ot the end of 2021 and the PRA are consuliing on changing the Solvency It risk free rate to
Sonia from 31 July 2021. This has the potential to introduce basis risk where Libor hedging instruments are used. This risk is being
menitored and managed via o gradual transition of derivative positions 1o Schia Based instruments.

The potential for negative interest rates does not pose an increased risk from an asset ond liobility mancgement perspective, but there
are o number of opcrational considerations which are being discussed with the PRA and the wider industry.

(iii) Investment concentration

investment concentration risk arises through exposure to particular asset types, geographical markets, industry sectors, groups
of business undertakings or similar activities. The Group may suffer losses in the investment portfolio us a result of uver exposure
to particular sectors engaged in similar activities or similar cconomic foatures that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligotions to be similorly offected by changes in economic, political and other conditions. The Group's troding activities are UK-
hascd and asseciated insurance and investment contract liabilities gre impacted by the UK marketplace and hence there is u high
concentration in cerresponding matching UK investment assets.

The Group nvests in ¢ portfalic of assets and seeks to maximtse portfolio expacted return for ¢ given amount of porifolio risk, or
equivalantly minimise rick for a given level of expected return, by carcfully choosing tha proportions of various assets. The Investrnent
Committee sets the Group's investment strategy cind recommends to the Board the policy and limits required. Responsibility for
wnplementation is delegoted to the Chief Investment Officer, with day 1o dey investment octivities being undertaken by the Group’s
investment manager, Columbia Threadneedle Investments.

The Investment team monitors the actual asset allocation and performance cgoainst benchmarks with oversight provided by ALCO and
the Investment Committee.

(iv) Foreign currency risk

The Group predeminantly operates within the UK gnd is therefore not sighificantly exposed to currency exposures within its normaol
trading activities. However, the Group's investmient strategy and policies aliow for a limited level of investment in overseas markets,
wig both equities and fixed interest securitics. The main currency exposures hore ate to the Buio und US dullar und o lurge percentoge
of the exposure is hedged back to GBP.

$3UNGIOY JNO

The risk to the Group is that the fair value or future cash flows of an overseas investment asset will change os a result uf chunyes i
foreign exchange rotes. Residual currency risk is managed by the use of exposure limits and authorisation controls operated within the
Group's risk mancagement framework.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure, after hedging, to foreign currency evchange risk in sterling.
¢ g g

2020 2019
Euro  US Dollar Total Eure  USDaller Total
£m £m £m £ £ £m
Derivatives (175) {717) (892) (183} {604) (792)
Equity securities 1 216 217 3 224 227
Debt securities 175 531 706 185 353 538
Cash end cash equivalents - 12 12 - 1 1

1 42 43 - {26} (25}




4. Risk management and control {continued)

33
A strengthening of the value of sterling agoinst the foreigicurrency (increase in exchange rates), in which the investment asset is Ly
. . . . . . " B
denominated, will lead to a devaluation of the asset value and any associated income flows. A weakening of the value of sterling
against the foreign currency will have the reverse impact.
The sensitivity of investment assets to ¢ 10% increase/decrecse in Euro and US Dollar exchange rates, net of derivatives, is £nil (2019: £nil)
and £4m {2019: £3im) respectively. In determining the percentage rates to use in this sensitivity the movements in the actual market
rates of Euro and US Dollars during 2020 were taken into account. The previous table incorporates all material currency risk to Profit
before tax. Therefore, ¢ 10% increase/decrease across all currencies could impact Profit before tax by up to £4m (2019: £3m).
Some foreign debt securities are denominated in sterling so bear no direct currency risk and have not been included within the above table.
(v) Summary of market risk sensitivities
The table below sets out the impact on Prafit before tax and the Unallccated divisible surplus net of the impact on derivatives for
movements in sectors of the market that the Group is invested in including equity release mortgages, but excluding the Group's
defined benefit pension schemes. Explanations of the movements are provided below. The company’s exposure to market risk is
materiolly consisient with that of the Group.
In determining the percentage rotes to use in the sensitivity analysis reference has been made to those used for internal reporting
within the Group. Where sensitivities have not been produced in both directions, the impact of the sensitivity in the other direction is
materially consistent with the sensitivity provided.
2020 2019
Impact on Profit
before tax, mutual impact on the Y, 1 Impact on the
bonus and UDS Unallocated divisible tonus and U0S  Unallocated divisible
transfer surplus transfer surplus
Sensitivity analysis to movements in key market sectors £m £m £ fm
Equity volues fall by 20% (82) (40) (59) 21)
Property values fall by 12.5% {5) {2) (7) (4)
Credit spreads increase by 100bps relctive to swap yields (85) (77) (77 {69)
Government Bond spreads increase by 50bps relative to (39) (32) (24) (17}
swap yields
Fixed interest yields fall by 50bps* 40 25 33 18
Fixed interest vields increase by 100bps {68) (42) (55) (30)
= Negative raies are per: ad.
The table demonstrates the effect of o change in o key assumption, whilst other assumptions remain unchanged. In proctice there
may be dependencies between the underlying nsks. It should also be noted that the impact on the unalloccted divisible surplus from
changes in these assumptions may not be linear as implied by these results. Larger or smaller impocts shouid not be interpolated or
extrapoloted from these results.
Consistent with last year, the cim of the Group interest rate hedging strategy is to stabilise Solvency It post-TMTP surplus, including g
copital requirements. In particular, the assets used to hedge the regulotory capital reguirement exposure to interest rates materiolly -
affect the interest sensitivity on an IFRS basis, with no offsetting capital movement to counteract the movements in the assets. The >
effectiveness cf the hedging strategy is menitered by ALCO and rebalanced where necessary. 3
A number of changes to exposure are seen since last year. The level of equity exposure has risen following investment inte asset <
shares to stabilise the cost of future Mutual Bonus declarctions. There has been o rise in sensitivity to credit spreads and fixed interest '31,
changes from the fall in interest rotes and credit spreads over the year increasing asset and liability volues. The gilt spread sensttivity »

has risen due to increused investment into gilt cssets.

Asset values and, where appropricie, asset share changes are reflected in each sensitivity. With-profits future policy relcied liobilities
are recalculated using these revised values and, where appropriate, economic scenarios generated by an asset model calibrated to
the revised risk-free rate.




4. Risk management and control (continued)

(vi) Fair value estimation

The following fair value estimation tubles present the Group's and company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair volue by level of

the fair value measurement hierarchy at 31 December 2020.

Level 1 - quoted prices

The fair volue of financicl instruments included in the Level 1
category is based on the value within the bid-ask spread thot is
most representative of fair value quoted in an active morket at
the year-end dute. An instrument is regarded as quoted in an
active market if quoted prices are readily and regulorly available
from an exchange, deadler, broker, industry group, pricing service
or regulatory agency and those prices represent cetual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

Level 2 - observable inputs

Level 2 financial instruments are not traded in an active market
and their fair value is determined using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of dota from
observable current market transactions {where it is availcble)
using pricing obtained via pricing services, even where the
market is not active. It diso includes financial assets with prices
based on broker quotes.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

classified as Level 2 include:

» Derivatives are valued by discounted cash flow techniques,
using ohservable yield curves and models such as Black
Scholes using implied market forward rotes and velatilities.

Units in listed investment funds are valued using quoted
prices from external pricing services,

Debt securities are valued using gquoted prices from external
pricing services.

Non-participating investment contract liabilities ore valued
on a basis consistent with the underlying assets in the
investment fund.

Level 3 - significant unobservable inputs
)f one or more of the significant inputs is not bosed on observable
market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

Specific valuation technigues used to value fincncial instruments
and other financial investments held at fair value clussified as
Level 3 include:
« Private equity holdings are valued on a net asset value
basis using unobservable external unit prices factoring in
distributions or calls since the latest valuations. The private
equity valuations are reviewed on ¢ monthly basis by group
treasury 1o ensure ongoing validity and accuracy.

The fair value of the loans secured on residential property

is determined using discounted cash flow projections. The
expected value of redemptions are estimated based on the
assumed prepayments ovar future time pericds tmonths),
mortality and long-term care entry rates including any

early redemption charges. The expected redemptions ore
discounted at swap rotes plus spread plus allowances for
risk factors, liquidity and profit deferral. The full swop curve is
used so each discount rate 1s motched to the appropriate cash
flow. The risk factors in the discount rate are an aollowance
for the 'No Megotive Equity Guarantee' provided to the
pclicyholder with the loan, the value of which depends on

the projection of the underlying property value ond how this
compares to the projected loon volue. The assumptions used

for prepayment, mortality and long-term care are based on
the experience of the in-force book supported by industry
data. The valuation is performed by the asset reporting teaum
and reviewed by the Actuarict Asset Reporting Manager. The
assumptions are set by the Board upon recommendation by
the Audit Committee.

Loans secured on commercicl property are valued using
discounted cash flows to reflect changes i underlying

gilt yields, discount spreads and debt margins. There are
two factors used to create the discount rate that is used to
value the loans secured on commercial property. Firstly, the
prevailing gilt rate at point of valuation which is fully market
observable. Secondly, the credit spread which is based on
the managers’ expectation of the level that they would price
the loan ot if it were tunding in the market at that point in
time. The managers base their assessment of the spread on
comparcble loans they fund in the market and considerations
specific to the funded asset or the sponsor.

There were nho changes to the valuation techniques during the
year. There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

Loans secured en commercicl property totalling £229m
transferred from Level 2 to Level 3 during the year. increased
risk and uncertainty driven by the Covid-19 pandernic mean that
the discount spreads and debt marging are now classified as a
significant unobservable input.

The Group's policy is to recoghise transfers into and out of fair
value hierarchy levels s at the date of the event or change in
circumstances thot caused the tronsfer.

The valuatien of all of the Group's investment holdings is
performed by independent and qualified valuers.

Any changes to fair value are recognised within net gains/losses
on investments within the Statement of Comprehensive income
with the exception of Investrment contract ligbilities where the
movement is recognised within the Gross change in contract
lichilities. Details of these gains/losses are disclosed within
Notes 7 and 24 respectively.
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4. Risk management and control (continued) ‘
2020 2013 I
Total fair Toto! fair
Levell Level 2 Level 3 value Lavel 1 tevel 2 Level 3 value
Restated - Restated -
see Note 1 see Note 1
Group £m £m £m £m irn £m £m fim
Financial assets l
Derivative financial instruments o
Interest rate swaps - 111 - 111 - 85 - 85
Cash flow swaps - 2 - 2 - - - -
Forward exchange contracts - 10 - 10 - 3 - 3
Equity/index derivatives 1 7 - 8 - 4 - 4 . i
1 130 - 131 - 92 - 92 "
Financial assets held at fair value 1 [
through income \
Shares, other variable yield securities l
and units in unit trusts |
- UK listed 403 7,360 - 7,763 1,320 6,271 - 7.591 f '
- UK unlisted - - 67 67 - - 60 60 . [
. —Overseas listed 210 - - - 210 210 - - 210 P |
- Overseas unlisted - B 19 19 - - 26 T 26 ; i
I
Debt and other fixed income ? !
securities . HE
- UK listed 917 2,026 - 2943 858 2,027 - 2885 o
- OQverseas listed 32° 1,847 - 1,879 28 1,671 - 1.699 i !
[
) Loans secured on residential ) |
t property - - 630 630 - - 645 645 i !
: Loans secured on . 1 !
commercial property - - 229 229 - 209 - 209 i«
1,562 11,233 945 13,740 2416 10,178 731 13.325 P
{
1,563 11,363 945 13,871 2,416 10,270 731 13,417
Financial liabilities N e)
t Non-participating investment -
H contract liabilities - 3,780 - 3,780 - 3,479 - 3.479 ;
O
Derivative financial instruments ’ 8
Cash flow swops - 195 - 195 - 199 - 199 - §
Interest rate swaps - - - - - 10 - 10 . 5’1-
Gilt forwards - 1 - 1 - 156 - 16
Equity/index derivatives - - - - 1 - - 1
- 196 - 196 1 225 - 226
- 3,976 - 3,976 1 3,704 - 3.705
. ro
i )
N ]
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4. Risk management and control (continued)
c T 2020 2019
Yotal fair Total fair
Levell Level 2 Level 3 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 volue
Restated - Restoted -
see Note 1 see Note 1
Company £m £m £m £m irn £m £m £
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Interest rate swaps - 111 - 111 - 85 - 85
Cash flow swaps - 2 - 2 - - - - i
Forward exchange contracts - 10 - 10 - 3 - 3 .
Equity/index derivatives 1 7 - 8 - 4 - 4 )
1 130 - 131 - 92 - 92
Financial assets held ot fair value
through income
Shares, other variuble vield securities
and units in unit trusts
- UK listed 380 7,085 - 7,465 410 6,271 - 6.681
—UK unlisted - - 67 67 - - GO 60
- Overseas listed 210 - - 210 210 - - 210
- Qverseas unlisted - - 19 19 - - 26 26
Debt and cther fixed income
securities _
- UK listed 903 1,686 - 2,589 845 2,022 - 2,867 ,
- Qverseas listed 32 1,847 - 1,879 28 1,671 - 1.699
l'.c‘>onS secured on residential B . 630 630 ) 3 645 545
property
Loans secured on
commercial property - - 229 229 - 209 - 209
1,525 10,618 945 13,088 1,493 10,173 731 12,397
1,526 10,748 945 13,219 1,493 10,265 731 12,489
Financial liabilities o
Non-participating investment L
contract liabilities - 3,780 - 3,780 - 3,479 - 3.479 O
<
Derivative financial instruments ;
Cash flow swaops - 195 - 195 - 199 - 199 o
Interest rate swaps - - - - - 10 - 10 ﬁ 8 .
Gilt forwords - 1 - 1 - 16 - 16 <
quity/index derivatives - - - - 1 - - 1 ot
- 196 - 196 1 225 _ 226 e
- 3,976 - 3,976 1 3,704 - 3.705
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4. Risk management and control (continued)
The table below presents the movements in Level 3 financial instruments for the yeor ended 31 December 2020.
Unrealised
Total gains/ guains/(losses)
. {losses) recognised
recognised Transfer from At31 through
. At1January through tevel 2to December incomein
2020 income Purchases Safes Level 3 2020 2020
Group and Company £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets held at fair value through
income
Shares, other variable vield securities and units ’
in unit trusts '
- UK unlisted 60 (35) 42 - - 67 {35)
— Qverseas unlisted 26 {4) - (3} - 19 2
Loans secured on residential property* 645 12 14 (41) - 630 12
Locns secured on commercial property - - - - 229 229 -
731 (27) 56 (44) 229 945 (21)
Total gains/
{losses)
recognised Transfer from AL31 through §
At lonuory through Ltevel 2to December income in
2019 income Purchases Sales Le 2019 2018
Group and Company. £m im £rn £m £m £m
Financial assets held at fair value through
income .
Shares, other variable yield securities and units
in unit trusts
- UK unlisted ) 78 (18) - - - 60 {18)
- Overseas unlisted 33 (2) - (5) - 26 {2}
Locns secured on residential property* 648 23 22 {48) - 645 23
759 3 22 (53) - 731 3

* In relation to Loans secured on residential property, purchoses represent loans advanced plus acorued interest and sales represent
loans repaid.

a
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4. Risk management and control {continued)’

Information about fair value meosurements using significant unobservable inputs {Level 3)
Included below are the significant unobservable inputs thot impact the valuation of material level 3 assets and liabilities for the Group,
these apply equolly to the company.

Fairvalue  Foir value
ot 31

December corn Valuation Ungbservable Wty ionskip of unchservable
2020 2016 techniguels) inputs  {probisiity -~ we ed averagel inputs to fair value

Group £m
Financial assets held at fair value through income
Shares, other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts

Could vary significantly The higher the Net
due to the range of asset value per unit, the
holdings higher the fair value.

Adjusted net Net asset

— UK unlisted 67 60 asset method  value per unit

The fair value varies
on distributions/calls
and period since last

valuation.

Distributions  Could vary significantly
or calls since due to the range of
last valuation holdings

Could vary significantly The higher the Net
due to the range of asset value per unit, the
holdings higher the fair value.

Adjusted net Net asset

—Overseas unlisted asset method  value per unit

The fair value varies
on distributions/colls
and period since last

valuation.

Distributions  Could vary significantly
or calls since due to the range of
last valuation holdings

The spread (together
with the underlying risk
free yield curve) forms
the discount rate used
1o volue the cashflows.

Loans secured on residential 5 Discounted Varies based on
property cash flow cohorts of loans

. Varies by policy Prepayrnent rate will
Prepayments year: min 3.0% determine the profile of
-maox 13.4% expected cashilovs.

Annuitont mortality Viortolity and long-
wobles ure gpplied, with term care rate will
an uplift for leng-term  determine the profile of
care rates expected cashilows.

Mortality and
long-term care
assumptions

At 31 December 2020 the loans secured on commercial

property were transferred from Level 2 to Level 3

Loans secured on commercial 229 Discounted due to the discount sprecds and debt margins now being
property cash flow deemed significant uncbservable inputs. A movement in the
discount rate of 1% would have on immatericl impact on the

valuation of these assets.




4, Risk management and control (continued)

Sensitivity to changes in uncbservable inputs (Level 3)

The only financial instrument which is significantly impacted by reasonably possible changes in unobservable inputs is the loans
secured on residential property. The loans secured on residential property are sensitive to changes in discount rate spread, which
includes the profit and liquidity premium as well as the No Negative Equity Guarantee risk cllowance. An increase/decrease in the
discount rate spread will lead to a decrease/increase in the fair value of the loan respectively.

The impact of reasonably pessible alternative assumptions is shown in the table below:

2020 2019

Reasonably possible alternative

Reosonably possible altermnaires

assumptions assumptions

Unobservable Currentfair Increasein Decreasein Current fonr Increase in  Dedrecse in

input value fairvalue fair value value fair value fair value

Description £m £m £€m £m £m £m
. . Discount rate ~

Loans secured on residential preperty 630 27 (25) 545 29 {26}

+/- 50bps

c) Credit counterparty risk

Credit counterparty risk {credit risk) is defined as the risk of loss
if ancther party defaults on its obligations or fuils te perfonm
them in a timely fashion. Exposure to credit risk may crise in
connection with a single transaction or an aggregation

of transactions (not necessarily the same type) with a single
counterparty.

The Group encounters credit counterparty risk from different
sources, firstly within the business activities associcted with

its insurance, investment and retirement products and secondly
in the finoncict assets held in the Group's investment portfolio.

Credit counterparty risk is managed via ¢ Groun policy cnd
risk limits covering aspects such as total exposure, and
concentration. Group counterparty expasures are monitored
by ALCO, with ultimate oversight of risk being undertaken by
the Risk Commitiee.

(i) Sources of exposure to credit counterparty risk
The main credit counterparty risks within the Group are as follows:

Investment counterparties

The key source of credit risk arises from the assets held in the
investment portfolio. The risk is thot the investment counterparty
enters financial difficulties and the fair volue of the asset diminishes
or the income stream is not paid; alternatively the counterporty
acomes insolvent and the value of the asset is vwritten off.

The investment portfolio contains a range of assets, including
equities, corporate bends and other fixed income securities
and cash deposits. The credit counterparty risk policy stipulates
thot there must be ¢ list of approved counterparties, permitted
investments, geographical territories and specific asset class
exposure limits. These are implemented within the investment
management agreement with Columbia Threadneedie
Investments, and risk appetite statements. The ugreements
also require that osset holdings are within limits that restrict
excessive concentrations with individual counterparties or

with particular gsset closses. In order to minimise its exposure
to credit risk the Group invests primarily in higher graded assets,
rated BBB and above. The main exception to this is in the high-
yield bond portfolios where lower rated bonds can be held.

in addition. the Group uses derivatives to transfer elements

of financial markets risk exposures. Counterparty exposures
from over-the-counter derivatives are mitigated by the use of
collzteral. The fair value of the derivative 1s matched by colloteral

received from the counterparty, which increases or reduces

i1 ling with the contract’s fair value. The collateral can be sold
or re-pledged by the Group and is repayable if the contract
terminates or the contract's fair value decreases. Details of
collateral received and pledged is included within the offsetting
disclosure on page 106.

Loans secured on residential and commercial property
Residential {equity release) mortgage loans and commercial
mortgage loans are held to match certain insurance obligations.
This creates an exposure to credit risk from the borrower. This
risk is manuged by using the property as security ugainst the
loan, assessment of the risk and maintaining ¢ low loan to value
ratio. While the Cowid-19 crisis hos led to increased uncertainty
around the prospects of certain types of commercial property
such as those linkad to retail or the tourism industries, for new
lending LV= exercises strong controls around the types of assets
lent against whilst the perfonmance of existing loans are closely
monitored such thot covenants can be enacted ot appropriate
times if required.

Aberdeen Standard Investments are the Group's mandated
originator and osset manager for new commercial mortgages,
and provides expertise to source and underwrite loan prospects
within an agreed mandate. AgFe continue to work with LV=in
the ongoing management of the existing commercial mortgages
which they have sourced.

Exposure to 'No Negative Equity Guarantees’ on equity release
moerigages is limited by low loan to value ratics and the use of
third party funders {who have the exposure to this risk) for certain
tranches of business.

Note 15 provides further disclosure and provisions for ‘No Negative
Equity Guarcntees’ on equity relecse mortgages.

Reinsurance counterparties

Reinsurance cgreements are entered into to transfer an element of
notentiol insurance risk exposure from contract licghilities. This does
not, however, discharge the Group's hability as primary insurer. I ¢
reinsurer fails to pay a reinsuronce claim, the Group remains liable
for the payment to the policyholder. To manage this exposure the
creditworthiness of reinsurers is considered by reviewing their
financial strength prior to finclisation of any contract, which is
then regularly reviewed. In addition, under certam contracts,
collateral is held to munage the counterparty exposure 1o the
reinsurer. At 31 December 2020 £1,047m of off-halance sheet
collateral was held in relation to reinsurance assets {(201S: £947mj.

SIUNOIDY ANO
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4. Risk management and control {continued)

Reinsurance concentration risk

Reinsurance concentration risk is minimised through contracting with a diverse range of reinsurance counterparties with credit ratings
within our risk appetite. Reinsurance concentration risk is managed through reviewing the credit rating of reinsurance counterparties

and exposure limits.

Insurance receivables

Insurance sales expose the Group to credit risk from policyhelders and interimediaries for outstonding premiums. The creditworthiness
of the intermediaries is assessed and credit limits are used to manage any potential concentration risk associated with individual

counterparties.

No further credit risk provision is required in excess of the normal provision for doubtiul receivables.

{ii) Credit risk exposure

The tables below show the credit profile of the Group’s ossets. The credit risk profile of LVFS is materially consistent with that of the Group.

Neither past due nor impaired

Past due

Below butnot
AAA AA A B8B BBB Notrated Total impaoired Total
Credit risk exposure 2020 £m £m £m £m £m £m - £m £m £m
Debt and other fixed income securities 565 1,836 1,442 946 33 - 4,822 n/a 4,822
Loans Asef:Aured qn residential and B 20 138 58 8 635 859 nfa 859

commercial property
Derivative ussets - - 122 9 - - 131 n/a 131
Loans and other receivables - 3 5 - - 28 36 - 36
Reinsurance assets - 1,891 i - - 6 1,898 - 1,898
Insurance receivables - 63 - - - 15 78 3 81
Cash and cosh equivalents - 49 310 - - - 359 n/a 359
565 3,862 2,018 1,013 41 684 8,183 3 8,186
Naither post due no;

Pust due

but et
AAA AA A BBS BeiowBBE  Notroted Total impored Total
Restated - Restated - Restoted - Restated -
see Note 1 see Note 1{'} Restoted ("} Pasiated (F; Rastated (*3 see Note 1 see Note 1
Credit risk exposure 2019 Em £ im £m £m £m Em Zm
Debt and other fixed income securities 574 1,705 1,377 927 1 - 4,584 nfua 4,584
Loans St'a;ured on residential and ) ) 152 17 40 €45 854 n/a 854

commercicl property

Derivative ossets - 2 90 - - - 92 n/g 92
Loans and other receivables - - 201 - - 102 303 - 303
Reinsurcnce gssets - 1,700 1 - - 7 1,708 - 1,708
insurance receivobles - 53 - - - 7 60 3 63
Cash and cash equivelents - G6 9 - - - 155 n/a 155
574 3.526 1,910 944 41 761 7,756 3 7,759

%) Loains secured on commercial properties and derivative assets were incorrectly classed as non-rated but now these financicl
instrument have been given appropriate rating i.e A, AA, BBB as per their existing credit rating profile.

impairment

The Group reviews the carrying volue of its financial assets held at omortised cost ot eoch Statement of Financial Pesition date. If the
carrying value of a financial asset is impaired. the carrying value is reduced through a charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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4. Risk management and control (continued)

(iii) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
Finoncial ossets and liabilities are offset in the Statemernit of Financicl Position when the Group intends to apply a current legally
enforceable right to offset. Master netting arrangements and collateral are utilised by the Group to minimise credit risk exposure. |

The following financial assets and liohilities of the Group are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements. LVFS's exposure to credit risk associated with offsetting is materially consistent with that of the Group.

An anclysis is included of netting arrangements which meet the oftsetting criteria within 1AS 32 and are set off in the Statement of
Financial Position and related amceunts which do not meet the criteric.

Amounts recognised in the Statement . Related amounts not set off in the §tutemém )
of Finoncial Position of Financial Position
Collateral !
Financiol pledged/
Gross amount  Amounts offset Net amount Instruments* {received} Netamount
As at 31 December 2020 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derivative financial assets 1,023 (892) 131 - (112) 19
i 1,023 (892) 131 - (112) 19

Financial liabilities '
Derivative financial liabilities ) (1,088) 892 {196) - 194 {2)
Bank overdrafts (28) 21 (7) - - {7}

(1,116} 913 (203) - 194 {9)

Amounts recognised in the Statement Relatad amounls not se! of
of Financicd Position of Fingncial Posi

1 e Steiement

Financial Collateral
Gross amaunt Amounts offset Net amount siriments " pledged/irec Nel amount
As at 31 December 2019 £m £m £in [ £
Financial assets
Derivative financial assets 901 (809) 92 {12} {69} 11
901 {809} 92 (12} (59} 11

Financial liobilities

Derivative financial liabilities {1,03%) 809 {226) i2 211 (3)
Bank overdrafts {30) 17 {13) - - {13)
(1,065) 826 {239) 12 211 (16)

* Colloteral requirements crising from derivatives between LVFS and its counterparties are managad on ¢ net basis.

In accorciance with IFRS 7 the collateral reported in the table above is limited to the omount reported in the Statement of Financial
Positicn for the associated financial instrument.

Total collateral held by the Group in relation to derivative financial assets is £113m {2019: £69m) and is all cash colleieral received.
No collateral recerved from the counterparty has been sold or repledged (2019: £nil).

o (Tre

Total colluteral pledgead by the Group is £203m (2019: £215m) and is split between corporate bonds pledged in relation o cash flow
swaps of £194m (2019: £199m), future margin of cash of £6Mm {2019 £3mM) and cosh collatera! paid of £3m (2012: £13m}.

Collateral posted to LV= by the counterparty to a derivative contrdct which is valued as being ‘in-the-money’ con be drawn upon
following certoin events of default as defined in the relevant International Swaps and Berivatives Association (ISDAY agreement.

This includes failure by the counterparty to comply with or perfornm any agreement or obligation defined in the ISDA or Credit Support
Annex. Bankruptcy of the counterpaorty fo a trade could also result in collateral postad being drown upon to mitigate any financial
axposure to the Group.
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4. Risk management and control (continued)

d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot make payments as they become due because there ore insufficient ussets in cash form,
or in a form that can be converted to cash in a timely fashion at close to fair market value.

The Group encounters potential liquidity risk exposures from its different business activities. It principally arises from its insurance and
investment contracis and the timing of the associated policyholder commitments. In the life business increased demands for cash can
olso arise from events such as higher instances of death/sickness claims or mass surrenders/lapses of policies. In addition, the Group
usas derivatives to fransfer potential exposures on financial markets risks and certain derivative contracts, for example, interest rate
swaps can result in additionat colloteral calls which must be met from liquid assets at short notice.

Liquidity is maintained at ¢ prudent level, with a buffer to cover contingencies including the provision of temporary liquidity to
subsidiary companies. A Group Liquidity Risk Policy and associated standards have been set to maintain sufficient liquid assets.

At Group level there is ¢ liquidity risk oppetite statement which requires that sufficient liquid resources are maintcined to cover net
cash outflows under stressed conditions. This is monitored monthly by ALCO. During 2020 the Covid-12 pandemic has led to increased
volatility within both markets and claims. However, liquidity management has ensured the increased volatility has not caused o
liquidity strain to the Group.

The risk exposure is monuged using several methods and technigues, which include:

» Maintaining forecoasts of cash requirements and adjusting investment mancgement strategies as appropriate to meet these
requirements, both in the short and long term;

» Holding sufficient assets in investments which are readily marketable in a sufficiently short imeframe to be able to settle liobilities
as these fall due;

» Forecaosting additional cash demonds under stressed conditions, including dernands for collateral, and management actions to be
taken io liquidate sufficient assets to meet the increased dernands; and

« Appropriate matching of the maturities of assets and liabilities. The Group undertakes asset and liability management to ensure
that the duration of lighilities is motched by ussets.
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4. Risk management and control (continued)
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the assets of the Group and the Company on the expected recovery timing.
Group ] Company "
Withiniyear  Over1year Total Within 1year Over 1year Total
Maturity profile of assets 2020 £m £m _Em ) £m £m £m
Pension benefit osset - 148 148 ’ - - -
\ Intangible assets - 55 . 55 - - -
Investments in group unclertckings - - - - - -
' Property and equipment - 29 29 - - -
Reinsurance ussets 7 1,891 1,898 ’ - - -
Prepayments and accrued interest 67 - 67 - - -
Loans ond other receivables 35 1 36 - - -
Insurance receivables 56 25 ‘81 - - -
Financial assets at fair value through income 8,604 5,136 13,740 - - -
Derivative financial instruments 18 113 131 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 359 - 359 - - -
Assets held for distribution - - - 16,455 - 16,455
] 9,146 7,398 16,544 16,455 - 16,455
i Group
Within 1 year Over 1 yoar Total Within 1 year Tolal
Restated - Restoted — Restuted - Restated -
see Note | see Note 1 see Nate 1 see Neie 1
4 Maturity profile of assets 2019 £m - £ [ £ £m £
, Pension benefit asset - 214 214 - 2i4 214
! Intangible assets . - G4 64 - 8 8
Investments in group undertakings . - - - S1i6 216
: Property and equipment - 28 28 - g ] 8
Reinsuranice assets 11 1,697 1,708 11 1.687 1,708
Prepayments and accrued interest 7 - 73 68 - 68
Loans and other receivables ' 302 1 303 79 1 80
Insurance receivables 48 15 63 47 i5 62
Financial assets at fair value through income 8,280 5,045 13,325 7,365 5,032 12,397
Derivative financial instruments 3 89 92 3 89 92
Cash and cash equivalents 155 ) - 155 144 - 144
8.672 7,153 16,025 7,717 7.880 15,597
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4. Risk management and control {continued)
The tables below summarise the maturity profile of insurance contracts and financial liabilities of the Group and the Company.

The Unatlocated divisible surplus represents a surplus for which the allccation between participating policyholders has yet 1o be
determined and has therefore been excluded from the table below.

As permitted by IFRS 4, the moturity profiles for insurance and participating investment contracts are presented based on the

estimated timing of the amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

The remaining financial liabilities are presented based on the undiscounted contractual obligations and ds such will not tie into the
halances disclosed within the Statement of Financial Position. Non-participating investment contract liabilities, accounted for in

cccordance with 1AS 39, can be called upon imimediately by the policyholder ond ore therefare presented as ‘on demand’.

Unit-linked (on

Group ) A demand}  Within 1 year 1-3years 3-5years Over Syears Total
Maturity profile of financial, insurance
and investment contract liabilities 2020 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Participating insurance contract liahilities - 498 782 702 3,507 5.489
Participating investment contract liabilities - 63 77 86 555 781
Non-participuting valug of in-force business (66) {19) (33) (28) (211) (357)
Non-participoting insurance contract liobilities - 382 502 524 3,408 4,817
Non-participating investment confract liabilities 3,780 - - - - 3,780
Total insurance and investment contract liabilities 3,714 924 1,328 1,284 7,260 14,510
Financial liobilities
— Derivative financial instruments - 4 15 21 158 198
- Subordinated lichilities - - 350 - - 350
- Other financiol liabilities - 1 - - 116 117
Insurance payables - 42 - - - 42
Trade and other payobles
- Finance lease licbilities - 3 5 4 22 34
- Qther trade and other poyables - 20 - - - 90
3,714 1,064 1,698 1,309 7,556 15,341
Within 1 year -3 yers 3-5 years Ovar 3 vaors Total

Group
Marturity profile of financial, insurance

Restated %)

Resiated ("}

Restated ()

Restoted (4}

Fesioted {7)

$IUNOIDY ANO

and investment contract liobilities 2019 £m £Em £m £m £m £m
Participoting insuronce contract liobilities - 454 730 672 3,475 5,331
Participating investment contract liabilities - 56 72 85 543 756
Non-participating value of in-force business (45) {17} (30} (26} {121) (309)
Non-participating insurance contract licbilities - 329 507 520 3,230 4,586
Non-participating investment contract liabilities 3,479 - - - 3,479
Total insuronce and investment contract liobilities 3,434 822 1,279 1,251 7,057 13,843
Finoncial liabilities
- Derivative financial instruments - 35 10 36 162 243
- Subordincted liabilities - - - 350 - 350
- Other financial liobilities - {12 - - 95 83
Insurance poyables - 28 - - - 28
Trade end other payubles
- Finence leuse lichilities - 2 5 4 23 34
- Other trade and other payebles - 107 - - - 107
3.434 382 1,294 1,641 7,337 14,688

{7} Derivative financial instruments and Other financial liabilities have been restated to shovr the undiscounted contractual obligations,

which resulted in o £17m and £14m incregse in Derivative financial instruments and Other financial liabilities line item respectively.

For investment and long-term linked insurance contracts {unit linked) the Group matches all the assets on which the unit prices are
hused with assets in the porticlio. The Group is responsible for ensuring there is sufficient liquidity within the asset portiolio tc enatle
liobilities to unit linked policyholders to be met ¢s they fall due.




4. Risk management and control (continued)

For 2020 repcrting all the Company’s liabilities are clossed as ‘Liabilities directly associated with Assets held for distribution’ and as
such a maturity profile of financial, insurance and investment contract liabilities has not been disclosed. The 2019 comparative table
is shown below for reference.

Unit-linked (on

~ . demand) Within 1 year 3yeors 3-5 years Qwver Syears Total
chmpTJ.ny . . . Rastatad {7} Restated (7} Restated () Rastored (] Restated %)
Maturity profile of financial, insurcnce

and investment contract liabilities 2019 £m £ £m £m

Participating insurance contract liabilities 454 730 672 3.475 5,331
Participating investment contract liabilities 56 72 85 543 756
Non-paorticipating value of in-force business (45] (17) (30) (26) {191) {309)
Non-participating insurance contract liabilities 328 519 3,220 4573
Non-participating investment contract liabilities - - 3.479

Total'insurance and investment contract liabilities ] 1.250 13,830
Financial liabilities

- Derivative financial instruments i 162 243
— Subordinated liabili - 350
~ Other financial liakilit . e3
Insurance payables 27
Trade and other payables )

- Finance lease lichilities - 2 2 1 6
- Other trade and other payables - 106 - - - 106

3434 978 1,290 1,638 7,305 14,645

{*) Derivative financial instruments and Other financiol liabilities have been restated to show the undiscounted contractual obligations,
which resulted in a £17m and £14m increase in Denvative financial instruments and Other financial liabilities line item respectively.

e) Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the potential for loss resulting from inadequote or failed internal processes, people and systems or

from external events. It is inherent in every part of the business and covers o wide spectrum of issues, including operational failures,
management stretch, and emerging creas of operational risk such as cyber risk. Senor management are responsible for ensuring that
the material operational risks as relevant to their area of responsibilities ure identified, assessed and managed using the approach

as outlined in the LV= Risk Management Framework. A formal attestation process provides assurance about the effectivenass of the
overall control environment and reports on any matericl exceptions.

During 2020, the Covid-13 crisis has required the business to swiftly respond to a significant number of new or increased operational
challenges, for example those associated with the transition to the majority of employees working fromy home, allowing us to continue
to service and support our Customers ond Members throughcut this period. Risk monagement continue to cssess and oversee
Operational risks.

Operational risk is unrewarded and is therefore inherently unattractive. LV= is highly exposed to operational failures because of the
high level of customer service inherent in its business model and reliance on third parties, for example reinsurers, asset managers,
and other suppliers. i therefore looks to limit and ‘magintain’ its exposure to operational risk and do so by astablishing a robust control
environment using a combination of assessment, testing and audit. LV= will always seek to uphold its brand image with customers,
employees ond other external parties and the LV= has no appetite whatsoever for regulctory weaknesses or failings that fead to
censure actions.

$3UNOIDY INO
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Performance

The hotes included within this section focus on the performance and results of the Group and the Company. Information on the income .
generated, benefits and claims paid ond expenditure incurred are presented here. :

5.Net earned premiums ' ]’

Accounting for net earned premiums

: Written premiums include new business premiums plus ongoing regular premiums received for in-force policies. Furthermore on

- estimate is included for premiums due from intermediaries. Net earned premiums are arrived at following deduction for premiums
. ceded to reinsurers.

i
i
H
H
H
i
i

Long-term insurance and participating investment contracts
Regular premiums on long-term insurance and participating investrment contracts are recognised as income when due for payment.
For single premium business, recognition occurs on the date from which the policy is effective.

) Non-participating investment contracts

- Premiums and claims relating to non-participating investment contracts are not recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income but ore racorded os contributions to and deductions from the non-participating investment contract liabilities recorded in
the Statement of Financiol Position.

{
f : Group Company
{ 2020 2019 2020 2019 |
Gross earned premiums Em o £m £m i
Loeng-term insurance and participating investment contracts
Single premium P
Investments and savings ) 192 169 192 169 P
Pensions and annuities 157 223 157 223 i
Regular premium
Investments and savings 20 24 20 24 P
Pensions and annuities . 6 7 6 7 ‘
B Life and health protection 238 233 237 232 ;
i Gross earned premiums 613 656 612 655
b Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Long-tarm insurance premiums (273) {266) (273) {266)
Net earned premiums 340 320 339 3828
Gross writtenr premiums for non-participating investment contracts which are
deposit accounted for and not included above (refer to Note 18) 435 416 435 416
All contracts cre written in the UK.

Pensions vested into annuity contracts during the year are included s new annuity single premium business ot the annuity purchase price.

Where periodic premiums are received other than annuclly, the periodic new business premiums cre stated on an annualised basis.
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6. Investment income

Accounting for investment income .

Investment income includes dividends and interest. Dividends are recorded on the date on which the shares are declared ex-dividend.
Interest receivable from investments at foir value through income is accounted for on an accruals bosis. Interest receivable on loans and
receivables is calculoted on an effective interest rate hasis.

Group Company

2020 2013 2020 2019
£m £ £m £m

Income from investments at fair value through income:
- Dividend income 70 112 70 112
- Interest income from debt and fixed mterest securities 123 131 122 131
- Interest on loans secured on residential property 32 33 32 33
- Interest on loans secured on commercial property 8 9 8 9
Interest on loons and receivables 4 7 - -
Interest income from group undertakings - - 1 -
Dividend income from group undertokings - - 399 50
237 282 632 335

7. Net gains on investments

Accounting for net gains/(losses) on investments

Realised gains and losses
Realised gains and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and purchase price.

Unrealised gains and losses

Unrealised gains and losses arise on investments held ¢t the Statement of Financial Position date that are classified as fair value
through income. Unrealised goins and losses represent the change in voluation of such investrents over the pericd less the
reversal of previously recognised unrealised gains and losses associated with investments dispesed of in the period.

' Group Compuany
2020 2019 2020 2019
£m £m £m fim
Investment properties - - - -
Investments at fair value through income:
- Debt securities ) 250 211 249 210
- Equity securities 442 812 442 g12
- Loans and mortgages 11 23 11 23
Derivative finoncial instruments : 83 22 83 22
Investments in group undertckings - - (61) 2
786 1,068 724 1.065

included within net goins on investments are realised gains of £288m (2019: £384m) for both the Group and the Compainy.
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8. Otherincome

Accounting for Other income

Other income includes revenue from controcts with customers relating to fee and commission income. Fee and commission income
arises from contracts to provide annual asset manageiment sarvices on policyholder investments, contracts whereby the Group
acts as an agent for the origination of equity release mortgoges and an introducer for insurance products of certain third parties.

Fee and commission income is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive income as performance obligations are satisfied,
including the provision of gsset management services over time and the completion of origination of equity release mortguges.
Asset management services are performead on policyholder investments on an ongoing basis over the policy term and this

is reflected in the pattern of revenue recognition over time. Fee and commission is settled ot the transaction date os asset
management charges are levied directly on policy holder asset shares at the contractual rate and commission based on the
terms of the equity release mortgage is deducted from the mortgage amount.

: Group Company

e 2020 261% ) 2020 2019
£m fn £m £m

Revenue from contracts with customers
Asset management charges 20 22 20 22
- Commission 14 16 - -
Other fee income 11 7 3 3
45 45 23 25

9. Net benefits and claims

Accounting for net benefits and claims i

e Benefits and claims arising on long-term insurance and participating investment contracts include amounts paid to policyholders,
' claims handling costs and also the change in provision for outstanding claims. Benefits and claims are reported net of expected
reinsurance recoveries.

. Maturity claims and regular annuity poyments are accounted for when due for payment. Surrenders dre accounted for on the
earlier of the date when paid or when the policy ceases 1o be included within the long-term insurcance contract hability. Death claims
and other claitms are dccounted for when the Group is notified. The value of claims on participating contracts includes bonuses paid
or payable.

The change in adjustment to reinsurance receivable is the change in fair value of amounts cue from reinsurers that ore contracted
1o be settled over an extended period of time.

2020 2019
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsuronce o .
Group £m £m £m £ fm &
Long-term insurance and participating -
investment contracts P
Benefits ond cleims poid 1,047 {256) 791 1,000 {254 746 8 :
Change in the provision for claims 34 - 34 19 - 19 g ‘
Foir value adjustment to reinsurance receivable - (10) {10) - 9y {9) =
» Exit bonrus (disclosed separctely on the Statement of G’ i

. Comprehensive Income) (33) - (33) - - - -

i 1,048 {266) 782 1,019 {263) 756

[ e Nat benefits and claims for non-participating investment
contracts which are deposit accounted for and not
included above {refer to Note 18) 351 - 351 368 - 368
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9. Net benefits and claims (continued)

2020 2019
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsuronce Net
Company : £m £m £m £im £m £m
Long-term insurance and participating
investment contracts
Benefits and cloims paid 1,046 {256) 790 999 (254) 745
Change in the provision for claims 34 - 34 1S - 19
Fair value adjustment to reinsurance receivable - (10) (10) - (©) (9)
Exit bonus (disclosed separately on the Statement of )
Comprehensive Income) (33) - (33} i - - -
1,047 {266} 781 1,018 (263) 755
Net benefits and claims for non-participating investment
contracts which are deposit accounted for ond not
included above (refer to Note 18} 351 - 351 368 - 368
10. Finance costs
Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018
£m £y . £m £y
Interest expense on subordinated liabilities {(see Note 19) 23 23 23 23
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1 1 - -
24 24 23 23

11. Other operating and administrative expenses

Accounting for other operating and administrative expenses
Other operating and administrative expenses are accounted for as incurred. Acquisition costs relate to the costs of acquiring new
business and include commission and incentive payments to sales stoff and third parties.

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 20:9
£m L £m £m
Commission paid on acquisition of business 59 58 . 54 52
Amuortisation and impairment of intangible assets 10 5 2 3
Depreciation on property and equipment’ 3 5 2 3
Lessf{profit) on disposcl of property and equipment - 2 - 1
Investment management expenses and charges 15 12 15 13
Auditors' remuneration {see Note 13) 2 1 2 1
Employee benefits expense {see Note 38) 90 111 85 96’
Impairment of financial assets - - 2 -
Management charge cllocated to group undertakings - {44) (13) {57)
Facilities expense 5 i0 5 10
Marketing and advertising 5 7 4
Other stoff costs 12 34 . 12 34
IT costs 26 39 26 39
Legal, consultancy and other fees 24 39 23 38
Other expenses . 6 11 6 10
Costs transferred to Discentinued operations - {46) - -
Claims handling cost recognised in Gross benefits dnd claims (11) {4) (11) {4}
246 240 214 245

The £144m) manogement charge allecated to group underickings reported by the Group in 2019 represented the amounts recharged
to discontinued operations during the year.

Costs transferred to Discontinued operations of £46m in 2019 represented costs directly incurred by the Company in relation to the
sale of the LVGIG Group.
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12. Discontinued operations

a) Description ]

The discontinued operations relate to the sale of the Liverpool Victoria General Insurance Group Limited group of companies on
31 December 2019. The loss ofter tax from discontinued operations of £2m reported in 2020 relates 10 a reduction in the deferred
consideration received, see Note 17.

Financial information reloting to tha discontinued operation for the period to the date of disposal on 31 December 2019 is set out below:

b) Financial performance and cash flow information
The financial performance ond cashflow information presented below are for the twelve months ended 31 December 2019:

2019
Financial performance im
Gross earned premiums i ) 1,549
Premiums ceded to reinsurers {363}
Net earned premiums 1,186
Investment income 37
Net losses on investiments (20)
Other income 60
Total income 1,263
Insurance claims and loss adjustment expenses (1,084)
Insurance clgirns and loss adjustment expenses recoverable from reinsurers 215
Net insurance cloims : (869}
Gross operating and administrative expenses {432)
Expenses recoverchle from reinsurers 73
Net operating and administrative expenses {359)
Finance costs (1)
Total cloims and expenses (1,229)
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 34
Income tax expense (16)
Profit after tax from discontinued operations 18
Gain on sale of LVGIG group (see {c) below) 216
Profit from discontinued operations 234
Net gain on available for sale financiol assets, net of tox 24
AFS reserve recycled through profit and loss on sale of LVGIG group (14)
Other comprehensive gain for the vear from discontinued operations, net of tax 10

Included within Gross operating and administrotive expenses are £46n1 of additionut costs directly incurred by the Company in relation
to the disposal of the LVGIG group.

2019
Cashfiows [
Net cash inflow from operating activities 186
Net cash inflow from investing activities (includes an inflow of £563m from the sale of the LVGIG group) 541
Net cash cutflow from financing activities - (80}
Net cosh inflow genercied from discontinued operations 647
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12. Discontinued operations (continued)
o c) Details of the sale of the LVGIG group
2019
£m
o Consideration received or receivable
i Cash received 563
Deferred consideration 56
Total disposal consideration - 619
Less: Carrying amount of net ossets disposed (417}
i Gain on sale before reclossification of availuble for sale reserve 202
i Reclussification of available for sale reserve 14
| Gain arising on sale of LVGIG group 216
! { 13. Auditors' remuneration
H f
P 2020 2019
i £000 2003
Audit of LVFS 1,270 932
L Fees payable to the company’s cuditors and its associctes for other services:
| - Audit of subsidiaries 130 871
- Audit-related assuronce services 254 402
— Other tox services X 9 g
: - Other non-gudit services not covered aobove 26 -
‘;,,I . 1,689 2,214
; Included in the table above are costs of £nil (2019: £217,000) relating to the discontinued operations of the Group.
Audit-related assurance services include the audit of the Solvency |l regulatory return for LVFS Group and LVFS Solo (2012 Solvency i
regulatory return for LVFS Group, LVFS Solo, LV General Insurciice Group Limited and the half-yeor review.
. In addition to the amounts disclosed cbove, expenses relating to audit work of £3,000 (2019: £75,000) were peid to the auditors.
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This section presents information relating to the financiol assets and liohilities held by the Company and Group. These financial assets
and liabilities are held at either fair value through income or amortised cost as defined by the Group's cccounting policies.

14. Disclosures associated with the deferral of IFRS 9 A

As explained in Note 1, the Group and Company have taken the temporary exemption from IFRS 9 until adoption of IFRS 17.1n order to
facilitate comparison with companies which have adopted IFRS 9, the following disclosures are included regarding the fair value and
credit risk associated with financiol assets.

Finonciol assets are grouped into two categories for the purposes of these disclosures:

« Financial assets with cash flows that are Solely Payiments of Principal ond Interest (SPPI) excluding those categorised os fair value
through income (FVTI} due to either being managed on a fair value basis or held for trading. )

« All other financial assets.

Fair value of financial assets
The fair value at 31 Decermber 2020 and the amount of change in the fair value during the reporting period of the Group and
Company's financiol assets are us follows:

Group Compuny
Fairvalue Fair value

2020 . 2019 o 2020 2018

Restated - Restated -

R see Note | . : © seeNote }

Financial assets : CEm £m £m £rn
Financial assets that meet the SPPI criteria and are not valued as FVT] o E

Loans and other receivables B} ) 36 303 ) 50 . 80

Short-term insurance receivables * - - 56 . 48 56 47

92 ¢ 351 -106 127

All other financial assets

Insurance receivebles relating to OB pensions annuities held at FYTI 25 i5 o 25 15
Financial assets at fair value through income . 13,740 © 13325 - 13,088 12,297
Derivative financial instruments, assets net of (liabilities). ___{65). (134) ' __(65) {134)

' 13,700 13,206 . 13,048 - 12.278

~ The carrying amount of the financicl assel measured applying 1AS3G is deernad to be o reusenable cpproxirmetion of its fair volue

The fair value of Financial ossets that meat the SPPI criteria and are not valued as FVTI hos decreosed by £259m for the Group and
decreased by £21m for the Company during the reporting period. The fair value ot All other financiol assets has increased by £494m
for the Group cnd increased by £770m for the Company during the reporting period.

Credit risk information for SPP! financial assets :

At 31 December 2020, the Group ond Compony held £8m {2019: £201m] and £8m {2019: £16m) of A/AA rated Loans and receivables
respectively with the remaining balances all unrated. Insurance receivables include AA rated assets with a carrying value of £63m
{2019: £53m) for both the Group ond the Compony, the remainder were unrated of which £3m (2019: £3m) were past due but not
impaired for both Group and Company.
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15. Financial assets - Fair value through income

The loans incorporate a ‘No Negative Equity Guarantee’ to
customers. The contractual terms of these guarantees require
the Group to accept the lower of the market value of the
customer’s property and the value of the loan plus accrued
interest at the date of redemption as full settlement of the
mortgage. For almost all loons it is expected that the ‘No .
Negaotive Equity Guarantee’ will not be invoked und the value :
of the toan plus dgecrued interest will be received.

Accounting for financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through income

Financicl ossets ot fair value through income include financial
assets that are held for trading and financial assets that are
designated as fair value through income on inception.

.‘—w_._-.“.—-..—._.....—_._m.w
- i, e

Cerivatives are classified at fair value through income as they
are held for trading {see Note 16). Fincncial instruments are

designated as fair value through income on inception where
they are port of a group of financicl ussets or liabilities that
ore managed and their performance evaiuated and reported
to the board on a fair value basis in accordance with the
. Group’s documented investment strategy. These financial
instruments are medsured ot market prices, or prices consistent
with market ratings should no price be available. Day one gdins
are recognised only where valuations use dota from observable
rnarkets. Any unrealised or reglised goins or losses are taken
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, as fair value gains
or losses, or realised gains or losses respectively, as they occur.

Financial assets at fair value through income include listed
and unlisted investments, units in authorised unit trusts and
open ended investiment companies (OEICs), loans secured on
residential and commercial property.

Fingncial liahilities ot fair value through income include
derivative financial instruments and non-participating
investment contract liabilities; see Notes 16 and 18 respectively.

The IFRS "fair value hierarchy” levels for financiol assets and
licbilities required under IFRS 13 are disclosed within Note 4.

Loans secured on residential property

The fair value of loons secured on residenticl property (arsing
from the equity release mortgdge business) is determined
using a discounted cashfiow approach. The cashfiow profile

is calculotad by applying the demographic and economic
assumptions over the projection period to the initial loan
amount rolled forward by the contractual interest. The discount
rate is based on the swap yield curve increased by a spread and
an allowance for risks associated with the ‘No Negative Equity
Guarantee'.

The key econiomic assumptions are the swap yield curve, RPI,
future house price inflation {allowing for dilapidation) and its
volatility. The key demographic assumptions are early loan
repoayment rates, mortality rates and long-term care rates.

- © o m——— " —oms— pr——— —— -

The fair value of the ‘No Negctive Equity Guarantee’is
determined using a closed form stochastic model and is
included in the fair value of the loans through adjusting the
discount rate.

The loans secured on residential property within LVFS are
purchased from o subsidiary cormpany that is authorised to
initiate these loans. The purchase by LVFS is ¢t origination value

. plus 7% (which is expensed in LVFS when poid).

Loans secured on commercial property

The tair value of the loans secured on commercial property is
determined using discounted cash flows to reflect changes in
underlying gilt vields and debt margins. Where the value is not
expected to be recovered through ongoing loan payments, the
fair value represents the recoverable value of the property net
of transaction costs.

Significant accounting estimates

Fair value of financial assets

Financiol assets are valued at fair vatue using market
observable inputs wherever possible. Judgement is applied
to determine whether a market is active based upon the facts
and circumstances of the relevant maorket. In the absence of
an active market, estimation of fair value is achieved by using
valuation technigues such as recent arm’s-length transactions,
discounted cash flow analysis ond option pricing models.

For discounted cash flow analysis, estimated future cash
flows and discount rates are based on current market
information and rates applicable to financial instruments
with similar yields, credit quality and imaturity characteristics.
This valuation will also take into account the marketability of
the cssets being valued

Detuails of the key assumptions used in the absence of an active
market for level 2 and level 3 financial instruments, including
any Covid-19 impacts on these assumptions, are contoined in
the fair value estimation tables disclosed in Note 4 b) (vi).
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15. Financial assets - Fair value through income {continued)

Group Company
2020 2015 B 2020 2019
Restated - Restated -
sea Note 1 see Nate 1
£m £m £m im

Financial assets — Fair value through income

Shares, other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts
- UK listed .
- UK unlisted

- Overseas listed

- Overseas unlisted

Debt and other fixed income securities

- UK listed

- Overseas listed

Loans sectred on residential property

Loons secured on commercial property

7,763 7,591

67 60
210 210
19 26

2,943 2.885

1,879 1,699
630 645
229 209

7,465 6,681

67 . GO0
210 210
19 26

2,589 2,867
1,879 1,699
630 645
223 209

13,740 ' 13,325

13,088 12,397

Assets held to cover linked liabilities included above

3,851 3.530

3,851 3.530

16. Derivative financial instruments

Accounting for derivative financial instruments

Derivatives ore classified ot fair value through income os they ore held for trading. Derivatives are initiolly recognised at farr value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Derivatives are settled

on a gross bdsis.

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are recognised immediately in gains or losses on investments in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the period. Realised gains or losses are taken to the Staternent of Comprehensive Income as they occur.

The Group uses derivatives primarily to reduce its exposure to interest rate risk on its Solvency Il balance sheet and to protect against
fluctuations in equity values. The cash flow swaps improve asset-liobility motching within the annuity fund and the forward exchange
contracts reduce the currency risk of holding overseas assets. There are no designated hedging relationships within the Group.

2020 2018
Contract/ Controct/

notional Fairvalue Fairvalue notional Fair value Fair value

amount ~asset - liability amount - asset ~ liobility

Group and Company £m £m £m £ £m £m
Interest rate swaps 397 111 - 456 85 (10}
Gilt forwards 200 - (1) 204 - {16)
Cash flow swaps 992 2 {195) 966 - {199)
Forward exchange contracts 875 10 - 541 3 -
Equity/index derivatives 102 8 - 155 4 {1)
2,566 131 {196) 2,322 92 {226)

"snunoaévimo

11 addition to the above, the Group and Company makes use of futures contracts. At 31 December 2020, the Group and Company had
antared into bond futures trades giving exposure 1o bonds prices/interest rates with ¢ notional volue of £103m (2019: £nil). The bond
futures had no market velue at the balance sheet date because all variation margin on these contracts is settled on « daily basis.
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17.Loans and other receivables

Accounting for loans and other receivables

. Loons and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and then subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Loans include secured notes and reverse repurchase agreements which represent the consideration
poid to the borrower and are recognised on the transaction date. Other receivables are recognised when due.

The Group assesses at each Stateiment of Financial Position date whether there is any indication that a loan or receivable, or ¢
group of loans or raceivables, is impaired. For loans, the amount of any impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount and the present value of future cash flows (discounted at the original effective interest rate). For other receivables,

the impainment loss is measurad as the difference between the carrying value and the recoverable amount. Impairment |’)<.SG§ dre
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Group Company

2020 2019 : 2020 2019
£m £ £m £m

Secured loan notes - 185 -
Deferred consideration - 56 - -
Cash coliateral pledged 10 16 10 16
Amounts due from group undertakings - - 16 22
Investments receivable 8 20 8 20
Other receivables 18 26 16 22
36 303 50 30

The Group's holdings in securad loans matured in June 2020.

Deferred consideration in 2019 related to amounts due from Allionz in relation to the sale of the remaining stake in the general
insurance business — see Note 12. Amounts totalling £54m wrere received in 2020 resulting in a loss of £2m being recognised within
Discontinued operations in the year.

Details of impairments on financial assets held at amortised cost are included within the credit counterparty risk section {c) of Note 4.
The carrying amounts disclosed above reascnably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date.

18. Non-participating investment contract liabilities

Accounting for non-participating investment contract liabilities

Investment contract liabilities are initiclly recognised upon receipt of premium from the policyholder. Non-participating contracts
are accountied for as a financial liability and are initially recegnised at the value of premium received. The liobility is designated as
fair value through incorne on inception and subsequently meosured ot fair value in order to avoid g measurement inconsistency
with the associated financial assets.

Subsequent deposits and withdrawals are recorded directly as an adjustment to the contract liability in the Statement of Financial
Position, a method known as deposit accounting. Fees charged and investment income received are recognised in the Staterment
of Comprehensive Income when earned.

Fair value adjustments are measured at ecch reporting date and are recorded within Gross change in contract liabilities {Note 24).
Fair value is colculated as the number of units allocated to the policyholder in each unit linked fund multiplied by the unit price of
those funds ot the reporting date. The unit prices are determined with reference to the fund assets and liabilities, which are valued
on a basis consistent with that used to measure the equivalent assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Positien, adjusted
for the effect of future tax arising from any unrealised gains or losses. For ¢ contract that can be cancelled by the policyholder,

the fair value cannot be less than the minimum surrender value.
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18. Non-participating investment contract liabilities (continued)

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£m fin £m £m

Balance at 1 jJanuary 3,479 3,017 3,479 3,017

Deposits received from policyholders 435 416 435 416

Payments made to policyholders {351) (368) {351) {368)
Change in contract liahilities included

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 217 414 217 414

Balance at 31 December 3,780 3,479 3,780 3,479

19. Subordinated liabilities

Accounting for subordinated liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are initially measured ot the fair value of the proceeds less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent

to initicl recognition they are mecsured at amortised cost. The transaction costs are amortised over the period 1o the expected
redemption date on an effactive interest rate basis. The amortisation charge is included in the Statement of Comprehensive income
vathin finance costs. An equivalent amount is added to the carrying value of the liability such that at the redemption date the value
of the liability equols the redemption value.

Group Company
2020 2018 2020 519
£m £Em £m £rn
Subordincted notes (GBP 350n) 349 348 349 348
349 348 349 348

Al the subordinated liabitities are expected to be settled more than 12 months after the balunce sheet date.

In 2013 LVFS issued £350m of Fixed Rate Reset Subordinated Notes at par. The directly related costs of £4m incurred to issue the
Notes have been capitalised as part of the carrying value and are being amortised using the effective interest rate bosis over the
period to the first call date in 2023. The effective interest rate on the £350m liability is 6.654% resulting in o £23m finunce charge for
the year (see Note 10).

The Notes have a maturity dote of 22 May 2043 but the issuer has the option to redeem the Notes at the first call date of 22 May 2023
and ut five yearly intervals thereafter up to the maturity date.

Interest is payable on the Notes ot a fixed rate of 6.5% (£23m) per annum for the period until the first call date on 22 May 2023,
paycble annually iy arrears on 22 May each year. if the Notes are not redeemed on 22 May 2023, the interest rate i5 reset on that date
and ut five yearly intervals thereciter af o rate equal to the five year gilt rate quoted on the day before the reset date plus an initial
margin of 463 basis points and a step up margin of 100 busis points.

There is an option of cumulative deferral of mterest at the issuer’s discretion and mandatory interest deferral in the event thot o
regulatory deficiency interest deferral event has occurred or is continuing (breach of the applicable regulatory solvency capital
requirement of the issuer or group) or would occur if payment of interest on the subordinoted notes were 1o be made. Following any
deferral of a principal or interest payment, LVFS wauld be prevented from declaring any distribution to members whicl falls within the
Mutual Bonus arrangements, LVFS has the option to elect to defer payment of interest in whole or in part and this will not constiwute
o default or give the right to the noteholders or the trustee to accelerate repoyment of the Notes or to take any enforcement action.

Subordincted liabilities are held in the Statement of Financial Position ot amortised cost. The fair value ot 31 December 2020 was
£388m (2019: £392m). The valuation of the subordincted notes was determined by reference to the bid price obtained from the
markets as at 31 Dacember 2020. Management consider this to be reprasentative of fair value.

20. Other financial liabilities

Group Company
2020 2018 2020 2619
£m £m £m £m
Caosh collateral received 113 59 113 69
113 69 113 89

~

* Cash collateral received relotes to OTC cash collateral on derivatives. See Note 4 C} {iii) for more details.

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonobly approximate tair value of the Statement of Financiol Position date.
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Insurance contract related assets and liabilities

This section presents information relating to contracts acceunted for in accordance with IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts’. This includes
amounts relating to insurance contracts, participating investment contracts and reinsurance contracts. The assumptions used in the
vatuation of insurance and invesiment liabilities are disclosed within Note 26 with sensitivities to these assumptions disclosed separately

within Note 4.
21.Insurance contract liabilities

Accounting for insurance contract liabilities
Insurance controct liabilities are recognised for insurance
contracts in existence ot the end of the reporting period.
Such liabilities are only derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts permits the continued application,
for incorme statement presentction and liakility measurement
purposes, of accounting policies that were being used ot the
date of transition to IFRS, except where a change is deemed to
make the financial statements more relevant te the economic
decision-making needs of users dnd no less reliable, or more
reliable and no less relevant 1o those needs. As such, the Group
accounting for insurance contracts and participating investment
contracts continues to be in accordance with the Statement

of Recommended Practice issued by the Association of British
Insurers in December 2005, amended in December 2006 and
withdrawn in December 2015.

Lichility adequacy testing is performed for all long-term insurance
and participating investrment contract liabilities. At each reporting
dote, an assessment is made of whether the recognised long-
term contract habilities are adequote, using current estimates

of future cash flows. If that assessment shows that the corrying
ameunt of the ligbilities (less related assets; is insufficient in light
of the estimated future cosh flows, the deficiency is recognised

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income by setting up an
addrtional liability.

Liahilities are calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries.
A separate estimate is made of the amounts that will be
recoverable from reinsurers, see Note 25.

a) Participating business

Participating insurance and participating investment contract
liabifities are calculated in accordance with the PRA's praevious
‘realistic’ liability regime, which was the regime in place at the
date of transition to IFRS. In particular, provision is made for all
bonus payments {declared and future, reversionary and terminal)
estimated. where necessary, in a manner consistent with the
relevant fund’s Principles and Practices of Financial Management
(PPFM} where there is ¢ constructive obligation to policyholders.
The liakilities include an allowance for the time and intrinsic value
of options and guarantees gronted to policyholders and for future
mancgement actions.

The realistic participating liabilities are based on the aggregate
value of policyholder asset shares reflecting past premiumns,
investment return, expenses and charges applied to each
policy. Allowance is also made for policy related liabilities such
as guarantees, options and future bonuses calculated using

a stochastic model simulating investment returns, asset mix,
expense charges and bonuses.

There are ¢ large number of 1B Whole of Life policies where the
customer is either no longer aware of the policy's existence or
has died ond no claim has been submitted, despite extensive
tracing activity having been undertaken in the past in an attempt
to identify these customers or their next-of-kin. A proportion

of these policies are treated as “gone-away” and reserves are
reduced by applying reduction factors dependent on age, policy
type and premium paying status. These reduction factors are
determined based on analysis of historical actual moriclity
experience versus thot expected.

The participoting investment contract licbilities are disclosed
separately within Note 22.

In determining the realistic value of ligbilities for participating
contracts, the volue of future profits on non-participating
business written in the with-profits part of the fund is included
in the calculation. The present volue of tuture profits on non-
participating business ('Non-participating value of the in-force
business’, Note 23) is separately determined and its value is
presented as o deduction from the sum of the liabilities for
participating contracts and the Unallocated divisible surpius in
the Statement of Fineancial Position.

b) Non-participating business

Liabilities for non-participating insurance coniracts are
calculated in accordance with the requirements of the PRA's
handbook using a gross premium valuation method or a
method no more prudent than the gross premium method.
This was the regime in place ot the dote of transition to IFRS.
LVFS and relevant subsidicres have adopted the modified
statutory solvency basis in the valuation of provisions for non-
participating business.
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21. Insurance contract liabilities (continued)

Significant accounting estimates

The valuaticn of insurance contract liabilities is a significant
acceunting estiroate which requires the use of management
judgement.

Assumptions and adjustments applied in the valuation

of insurance liabilities

The voluation of participating contract liabilities is based on
assumpticns reflecting monagement’s best estimate, which are
typically reviewed annually. The valuation of non-participating
insurance contracts is based on prudent assumptions, including
margins for the risk of adverse deviation. These margins are
determined using standard actuarial techniques and expert

judgement, reflecting the underlying risks. A separate calculotion

is also performed to assess the non-participating value of
in-force business which is on best estimate assumptions. |
Assumptions including the margin for prudence used are
described in Notes 26 and 27.

Notcoble changes to assumptions in the year include:

« A change in modelled management actions that are
expected to be taken in the event of a significant fall in the
value of equities. This menagement action was reviewed
following the foll in global stock markets in the waoke of
the COVID-19 pandemic and as a result the action was
discontinued. This change increased liobilities by £8m.

« The unit cost allocations have been revised to reflect the
changes in our cost base following the disposal of the
general insuronce business at the end of 2012 and cost
efficiency activity undertaken during 2020. This change
reduced liabilities by £36m. Within this there were some
relatively large changes between different classes of
business that largely offset in aggregate, with the main
impact coming from the release of short-term additional
expense reserves.

» The future impect of the COVID-19 pandemic both on
insurance claims and on the wider economy is highly
uncertain. High levels of reinsurance provide significant
protection against adverse experience. There is no explicit
adjustment to long term assumptions for the impact of
COVID-19. An allowance has been made in reserves of £8m
for anticipated short-term adverse mortality, persistency
and unemployment experience on non-profit business. The
medium to long-term impacts of COVID-19 are uncertain,
and correspondingly, no allowance has been made for such
potential impacts.

« The OB Pensions cash take-up rates have been updated
1o reflect recent experience reducing liabilities by £13m.

« The gone-away allowance has been redefined relative to
fixed groups of policies rather than by current policy staius
(premium-paying, free-paid or paid-up). This removes the
distortion in reserves when policies change status. The
assumptions heve also been updoted in line with recent
experience. These changes increased habilities by £10m.

The assimptions used for mortality, morbidity and longevity are
based on standard industry or reinsurers’ tables. The assumyptions
used for investiment returns and discount rates are based on
current market yields. The assumptions used for expenses and
persistency reflect product characteristics and are primarily
bosed on relevant internal experience.

Where cllowance is made for mortality improvements, this is done
using the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries Continuous Mortality
investigation (CMI) Mortality Projections model. The version used
is the 2019 model with the following advanced parameterisation:

* Long-term improvement rates of 1.5% for males and 1.25%
for females

* Smcothing porameter (Sk) of 7

« Initigl additions to improvement rates ("A" parameter) of
0.1% for males and 0.2% for females.

The same mortality improvament basis is used for all products
and following the naming convention used by the ChM is:

e CMI_2019_M[1.5%: S=7; A=0.1%] for males
e CMI_2019_F [1.25%; S=7; A=0.2%)] for females

Throughout these notes, this is abbreviated to " CMI_2019
Adjusted”.

The same convention applies te the prior year basis, where
“CMI_2018 Adjusted” refers to:

e CMI_2018_M[1.5%; S=7; A=0.15%} for mules
+ CMI_2018_F [1.25%; S=7; A=0.1%] for females

hManagement have applied judgement in setting assumptions.
The assumptions for mortality, morbidity and longevity have
been set by opplying adjustments to reflect the Group’s own
experience. In pdrticular, for impaired annuities the mortality
assumptions ore adjusted so as to allow for convergence to
standard mortclity at advanced ages. These adjustments vary
according to lifestyle or medical condition, gender, age and
duration in-force. The assumptions used for discount rates

are adjusted for the Group's own risk exposure.

Due to the long-term nature of the ligbilities, the estimates are
subject to significant uncertainty. Sensitivities are performed
ageinst the assumptions and disclosed in Note 4 a).

Assessment of future options and guarantees

The value of options and guarantees on with-profits business
is valued within the rmarket-consistent discounted cash flow
voluaticn, the most matericl of which are minimum benefit
guarantees on LYFS With-profits business and gudranteed
onnuity options on RNPFN.

Due to the asymmetric noture of these licbilities, stochastic
valuation techniques are required. A market consistent economic
scenario generator is used with a wide range of future economic
conditicns to capture the asymmetry, ond a discounted cash flow
rnodel is used to derive a value of the liobility ot the valuation dote.
These technigues are widely used in the life insurance industry
to value liobilities with embedded options and guarcntees.

The valuation models make appropriate alloviance for both
management and policyholder actions, where appropriate,
including appropriate demographic assumptions on option
or guarantee dates.

Betails of all the long-term insurance and investrment contract
liabilities voluation assumptions and the non-participating
value of in-force business valuation assumptions are disclosed
separately within Notes 26 and 27 respeactively.
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21.Insurance contract liabilities (continued)
a) Analysis of insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets
2020 . 2019
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance iNet
Group Note £m £m £m £ £m £m
Participating insurance contract liabilities
Long-term insurance contract lighilities 21b () 5,489 ~ 5,489 5,331 - 5,331
Non-participating insurance contract liabilities
Reinsurance relating to participating controcts™ 21b (i) - (1,053) (1,053) - {957} {957}
Long-term insurance contract licbilities 21c ! 4,467 (677) 3,790 4,313 (606} 3.707
Long-term linked insurance contract liabilities 21d 239 (168) 71 196 (145) 51
Long-term cldims liabilities 2le 111 - - 111 77 - 77
4,817 {1,898) 2,919 4.586 (1,708) 2,878
2020
Gross Reinsurance Net &Gross Net
Company Note . £m £m £m £m £
Participating insurance contract liabilities .
Long-term insurance contract ligbilities 21b ) 5,489 - 5,489 5,331 - 5,331
Non-participating insurance contract liabilities
>~ Reinsurance relating to participating contracts®* 21b (i) - {1,053) (1,053) - (957) (957
Long-term insurdnce contract licbilities 2lc -~ 4,454 (677) 3,777 4,300 {6006) 3,694
Long-term linked insurance contract liabilities 21d 238 (168} 71 196 (145} 51
Long-term claims liabilities Zle 111 - 111 77 - 77
4,804 {1,898} 2,906 4,573 {1,708) 2.865
* Reinsurance contracts are precluded from being classified us participating contracts as payments are not subject to discretion.
For clarity reinsurance assets relating to participating insurance contracts that have beaen remnsured are presented sepcrately.
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21.Insurance contract liabilities {continued)
b) (i) Movement in long-term insurance contract liabilities — participating
2020 2019

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
Group and Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 January 5,331 - 5,331 5,092 - 5,082
Premiums received 19 - 19 23 - 2
Liahilities paid for deaths, maturities, surrenders, benefits ' i
and claims (450) - {450) (446) - (446) !
New business 169 - 169 167 - 167
Benefits ond cloims variation {37) - (37) {41 - (4}
Fees deducted (22) - {22) {23) - 23)
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 296 - 296 422 - 422
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions:
- Mortality/morbidity/longevity - - - {19) - {19 i
- Investment return 164 - 164 105 - 105
— Expense 30 L. 30 (n - (1)
- Lapse and surrender rates 7 - 7 19 - 19
— Other basis changes {17) - {17) (32) - (32)
Model changes (2) - 2 33 - 33
Other (14) - {14) {17) - a7
Teachers Assurance {TA) fund special bonus 7) - (7) (9) - (9}
Mutual bonus 22 - 22 21 - 21
Balance ot 31 December 5,489 - 5,489 5,331 - 5,331 L
b) (i) Movement in non-participating reinsurance assets relating to long-term participating insurance contract liabilities

2020 2019

Gross Reinsurance Net Grass  Relnstronoe Net
Group and Company £m £m £m £rn ira £m
Balance ot 1 January - {957) (957) (897) {897)
Liobilitigs paid for deoths, moturities, surrenders, benefits } 12 12 3 10 10
and claims
Benefits and claims variation - 9 9 - 9 9
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices - D (7) - )] (S}
Adjustiment due to changes in assumptions:
- Mortality/merbidity/longevity - 5 5 - 15 15
—Investment return - (115) (115) - (E8) (88)
- Lapse and surrender rates - - - - 2 2 O,
— Other basis changes - (1) e - - - s
Other - 1 1 - 1 1 P
Balance ot 21 Decernber - {1,053) {1,053) - (257) {957}
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? 21. Insurance contract liabilities (continued) |
3 ' ¢} Movement in long-term insurance contract liabilities - non-participating b
P 2020 2019
1 Gross Reinsurance Net Gress  Remsurance Net ‘
Group £m £m £m £m fm £m )
g Balance at 1 January 4,313 (606) 3,707 4,269 {695) 3,574 1
; Premiums received 187 (83) 104 185 (78) 107 i
! Liabilities paid for deaths, maturities, surrenders, :
v henefits and claims ’ (492) 126 (366) (473) 121 {352) !
P New business 145 (76) 69 214 (108) 106 }
[ Benefits and claims variotion 45 (31) 14 18 (5) 13
! ) Fees deducted (12) - (12) {12 - (12
: Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 57 1 58 73 (1) 72 '
! Adjustment due to changes in assumptions:
Ly - Mortality/morbidity/longevity (70} 62 (8) {144) 131 (13}
; - Investment return 292 (48) 244 262 (41 221
! - Expense (24) - (24) {36) - (36}
{ - Lapse and surrender rates 18 (17) 1 {7} 29 22
; - Other basis changes ' 9 - 9 - - - :
! Model changes 1 (4} 3) (39) 39 - :
: Other (2) (1) 3) 3 2 5
P Balance at 31 December 4,467 {677) 3.790 4,313 (606) 3,707
5
1‘ .
P 2020 2018
¢ Gross ‘Reinsurance Net Gress  Remnsurance Met
i Company £m £m £m £m £ £ro
! : Balonce at 1 January 4,300 (606) 3,694 4,255 695) 3,560
Premiums received 187 (83) 104 185 (78) 107 ¢
o Liabilities paid for deaths, maturities, surrenders, t
. benefits und claims (491) 126 (365) 472) 121 (351) ;
New btisiness 145 (76) 69 214 {108) 106 :
. Benefits and claims variation 45 (31) 14 18 (53 13
;! Fees deducted (12) (12) {12) - (12)
: i Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 57 1 58 73 (1) 72
: Adjustiment due to changes in assumptions: .
: - Mortality/morbidity/longevity (70) 62 (8) (144) 131 (13} SEES
! ~ Investment return 291 (48) 243 262 41 221 o
v - Expense (24) - (24) (36) - (26) g
! ‘ — Lopse and surrender rates 18 {17} 1 {7 29 22 -~
- Other basis changes 9 - 9 - - . k
. Model changes 1 {4} (3) (39} 39 - 8
! Other {(2) (1) (3) 3 2 5 <
clance at 31 December 4,454 (677} 3.777 4,300 (606} 3.694 ;—1
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21. Insurance contract liabilities (continued) !
1
d) Movement in long-term linked insurance contract liabilities }
! 2020 2019 o
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net ; é
Group and Company £m £m £m £m £m m i
Balance at 1 January 196 {145) 51 185 (146) 49 * f
Premiums received 36 {13) 23 35 (12) 23 o
Liabilities paid for deaths, maturities, surrenders, o
benefits and claims ’ . (29) 17 (12) (29) 17 (12) L
New business 28 {27) 1 17 (29) {12} . {
Benefits and claims variation (11) 10 {1) 2 (1) 1 : :
Fees deducted (2) - 2) (3) - 3) o
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 3 - 3 1 - 1
P Adjustment due to changes in assumptions: ’ o
§ - Mortality/imorbidity/longevity 2) 1 (1) (34) 29 (5) ‘
[ —Investment return 31 {19) 12 10 (6) 4 L
- Expense (6) - (6) 3 - 3
- Lapse and surrender rates (3) 5 2 (2) 3 1
- Other basis changes 1 - 1 - - - :
} B Mocdlel changes 4) 3 (1) 1 1 2 )
Vo Other 1 - 1 - (1 (1 :
i Balance at 31 December 239 {168) 71 196 (145) 51
?
- \
S e) Movement in long-term claims liabilities '
. 2020 2019
) Gross Reinsurance Net Gress  Reinsuronce Net
. Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
: Balance ot 1 January 77 - 77 58 - 58
e Claims notified 1,081 (256) 825 1,019 (254) 765
i Claims poid during the year {1,047) 256 {791) (1,000) 254 (746)
;f ‘ Bolance ot 31 December 111 - 111 77 - 77
b 2020 2019
[ Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsuronce Net
i, Company £m £m £m £m . fm £m
? Balance at 1 Jonuary 77 - 77 58 - 58
o Claims notified 1,080 (256} 824 1,018 {254) 764
; ( Clgims paid during the year {1,046) 256 (790) (999) 254 (745)
Lo Bulunce ot 31 Decemnber 111 - 111 77 - 77 g
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22. Participating investment contract liabilities
Accounting for participating investment contract liabilities
Participating investment contract liabilities are valued using accounting technicjues consistent with those adopted prior to the
transition to IFRS as permitted under IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts’. The accounting treatment of these contracts is described within
Note 21.
{
Group Compony
2020 2519 2020 2019
£m £mi £m £
Balcince ot 1 Junuary 756 691 756 691
Premiums received 6 7 6 7
Liobilities paid for deaths. maturities, surrenders, benefits and claims (52) (46) (52) (46)
Benefits and claim variation 13 5 13 5
Fees deducted (4) 6) (4) {6)
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 55 €9 55 89
Adjustiment due to changes in assumptions:
— Investment return 3 3 3 3
- Expense 1 - 1 -
— Lapse and surrender rates (1) (1) {1) (1)
— Other basis changes 3 1 3 {
Model changes i 1 1 1 !
Other (6) 6 6) 6 |
Mutual bonus 6 6 6 6 |
Balance ot 31 December 781 756 781 756 {
23. Non-participating value of in-force business i
Accounting for the non-participating value of in-force business i
In determining the realistic value of liabilities for participating contracts as disclosed in Note 21, the value of future profits on hon- L
participating business written in the with-profits part of the fund is included in the calculation. The present value of future profits of ,
the nen-participating business (‘non-participating value of in-force business’) is sepcrately determined and its value is presented {
as a deduction from the sum of the liabilities for participating contracts and the Unallocated divisible surplus in the Statement 3
of Financial Position. Such an amount is not recognised for business written outside participating contract funds. The principal
assumptions are disclosed separately within Note 27.
Group Company
2020 20139 2020 2018
£m £m £m £ O
Balance at 1 January 309 303 309 303 -
Premiums received (1) (1) 1) (1) ;
Liabilities paid for deaths, maturities, surrendlers, benetits and cloims (13) {13) (13) {13 2]
New business 21 21 21 21 8
Benefits and claim variation - (1) - (1) <
Fees deducted (10) ) (10) 9) 2
Accretion of investment income or change in unit prices 9 15 9 15 °
Adjustment due to changes in assumptions:
- tortality/morbidity/icngevity 1 (&) 1 &)
- Investment return 23 11 23 11
- Expensa 23 &) 23 & y
- Lapse and surrender rates 1 (1) 1 (13 |
- Other basis changes (3) 1 (3) 1 )
Model changes ’ (4) - 4) - .
Other 1 (1) i (1) :
Balance gt 31 December 357 309 357 309 i
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24. Net change in long-term contract liabilities and non-participating value of in-force business

Group Company
2020 2018 2020 2019
£m £m £m £m
Gross increase in long-term contract liabilities
Increase in long-term insurance contract liabilities - porticipoting {158) {239) (158) (2339)
Increase in investrent contract liabilities - participating (25) 65) (25) 65)
Increase in fong-term insurance contract liahilities - non-participating - {154) {44) (154) (45)
Increase in investment contract liabilities - non-participating {217) (414) (217): (414)
Increase in long-term linked insurance contract liabdities (43) (1) (43) (1)
(597) (763) (597) (764)
Mutual bonus {disclosed separately on the Statement of Comprehensive Income) 28 27 28 27
Exit bonus (disclosed separctely on the Statement of Comprehensive Income) 12 - 12 -
{557) (736) {557) (737)
Increase/{decrease) in long-term contract liabilities ceded to reinsurers
Increcse/'(decr'e‘ose) in lorlg-term insurance contract liabilities relating to 71 89) 71 €9) }
non-participating contracis
Incrgqse n long-term insurance contract habilities relating to 9% ° 60 96 60
participating contracts
Increase/{decrease) in long-term linked nsurance contract ligbilities 23 (1) 23 (1)
190 (30) 190 (30)
Increase in non-participating value of in-force business 48 6 48 6
Net change in contract liabilities (319) (760) {319) (761)

25. Reinsurance assets

Accounting for reinsurance assets

The Group ransfers certain risks orising on its underlying
insurance contracts through entering into contracts with
reinsurers. Such contracts are classified as reinsurance
contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 where significant insurance
risk is transferred from the Group to the reinsurer. Reinsurance
assets are the net contractual rights arising from cashflows due
from and to reinsurers regarding ceded insurance liabilities.
Amounts are estimated in a consistent manner with the gross
reserves of the underlying policies and in accordonce with the
relevant reinsurance contract.

An impairment review is performed at the Statement of
Financial Positicn daote. mpairment occurs when there is
evidence that the Group will not recover outstanding amounts
under the contract, such losses being recorded immediately in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

All reinsurance contracts are classified as non-participating
as the Group and the reinsurer do not share in the returns
on underlying items. This is consistent with the treatiment of
reinsurance contracts being reported separately from the
underlying insurance contracts issued.

.Significant accounting judgements

Classification of the Group's contracts with reinsurers

as reinsurance contracts

Management have applied judgement in determining whether
contracts entered into with reinsurers transfer significant
insurance risk and can therefore be accounted for as
reinsurance contracts. In making this judgement management
review ol contract terms and conditions and obtain the opinion
of an independent expert where necessary.

In order for significant insurance risk tc be transferred the
following conditions must both be met:

« ltis reasonably possible thot the reinsurer may realise
o significant loss frem the contract; and

» There is arecsonchle possibility of a significant range
of cutcomes from the contract.

There were no material new reinsurance contracts entered into
in 2020.

N e

E] H
£
g ool
Group Compuny i I
2020 2019 2020 2018 ; i
Note £m fm £m £m .
Reinsurers’ share of long-term insuronce controct liohilites - non participating 21 o 677 606 677 606 { t
Reinsurers’ share of long-term insurance contrcct liabilities - participcting 21 a 1,053 957 1,053 957 ; :
Reinsurers’ share of long-term linked insurance contract liabilities 21la 168 145 168 145 H
1,898 1,708 1,898 1,708 ! [
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26. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions

As explained within the accounting policy in Note 21, the setting of assumptions for the voluation of insurance contract liabilities
is a significant accounting estimate involving the exercise of judgement. Sensitivities are performed against the assumptions and
disclosed in Note 4 ¢).

Assumptions are set having regard for the circumstances impacting each line of business prevailing at the Statement of Financicl
Positicn date. Insurance liobilities are volued using assumpticns which would achieve a result within the normol range of possible
outcomes. To the extent that the ultimate cost differs to the amounts provided, for example where experience is worse than that
assumed, the surplus or deficit will be credited or charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in future vears.

When valuing options and guarantees the asset model used is the Deloitte XSG model (2019: Moody's Market-Consistent Asset Model).
This is a deflator model based on published financiol economic theory that is capable of market-consistent valuations for multiple
asset classes in multiple currencies. The model is colibrated to market data at the reporting dote representative of the nature and
term of the guarantees inherent in the Group's participating insurance contracts.

Margins are included in the Peak 1 basis for non-participating business, to provide for potenticl adverse variations in experience.
The margins are typically (as a percentage of the assumption):

s 20% for mortality and morbidity risks

* 15% for annuitant longevity

« 30% for persistency

¢ 10% for expenses

a) LVFS

(i) Participating insurance contracts

For participating insurance contracts, a market consistent voluation is used to calculate the liability. This involves placing o value on
liabilities similar to the market value of assets with similar cash flow patterns. The key assumptions used in this valuction are set
out below.

Interest rates
The risk-free swop-based interest rates assumed cre:

Year 2020 2018

5 0.08% 0.78%
15 0.41% 1.00%
25 i 0.48% 1.02%
35 0.46% 0.92%

These interest rates are gross of tax and investment expenses,
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26. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions (continued) ;

(i) Participating insurance contracts (continued) }

Other assumptions i
Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency. The future expense inflation assumption is H
: modelled as RPI plus 0.1% (2013: RPI plus 0.1%) and RPI plus 1% (2019: RPI plus 1%] for business in the Teachers ring-fenced fund, :
i where RPlin both 2020 and 2019 is modelled stochastically. o

i . 2020 2019 ;

f Benchmark asset mix Cash Fixed Equities Property Cosh Fixed Equities Broperty B :
for assets backing asset shares interest interest

; Flexible Guarantee Funds Cautious 2% 66% 29% 3% 2% 66% 29% 3%

f Flexible Guarantee Funds Balanced 2% 46% 47% 5% % 46% 47% 5%

{ Flexible Guarantee Funds Manoged - 2% 31% 60% 7% 2% 31% 60% 7%

Allin One Bond Cautious Fund 0% 80% 10% 10% 0% 80% 10% 10%

§ Allin One Bond Balanced Fund 0% 30% 35% 35% 0% 30% 35% 35%

:f Altin One Bond Managed Fund 0% 5% 85% 10% 0% 5% 85% 10%

i Other With-Profit 3% 39% 49% 9% 3% 39% 49% 9%

£

: Mortality rate tables 2020 2019

f Conventionol Life Business 83% AMCO0/93% AFCO0 85% AMUC00 / 30% AFCO0 .

# Conventional Pensions Business 12‘::{“ ggﬁl(;(fc{AngO lg?jf 'i‘g]li,oﬁ d, Aicgo !

d _ juste pMI_21 djuste

? Conventional Industrial Branch Business 1120/‘:1;8;:;9:;01'.83"::nglS_:;'Iy to 803188;,:;?;92% (r)';”;gf LT?TQV to

t Non-Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business 85% AMCO0 / AFCO0 85% AMCOO / AFCO0

: Unitised Accumulating Life Business 85% AMCO00 / AFCO0 85% AMCOQ0 / AFCOO0 )
Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business 85% AMCO0 / AFC00 85% AMCO0 / AFCO0 :

: Unitised Accumulating Bond Business 89% AMCO00/ AFCO0 85% AMCO0 / AFCO0 :

! Unitised Accumulating Life ISA Business 85% AMCO0 / AFCO0 85% AMCO0 / AFCO0

: Heritage Annuities in Payment 112% PMLO8/95% PFL0O8 108% PMLOS / 93% PFLO8

_ - CMI_2019 Adjusted CMI_2018 Adjusted

{

: Per policy expenses —reqular premiums 2020 2019
Conventional Life Business £48.45 £27.89
Conventional Pensions Business £51.68 £49.12
Conventional Industrial Branch Business* £20.61 £14.24
Non-Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business £51.68 £49.12 O .
Unitised Accumulating Life Business £48.45 £27.89 <
Unitised Accumulating Pensions Business £51.68 £49.12 ;
Unitised Accumulating Bond Business £48.45 £27.89 o
Unitised Accumulating Life ISA Business £48.45 £27.89 8
Heritage Annuities in Payment £51.57 £52.69 %
* The unit cost for IB business has been grossed-up to aflow for o reduction made to the in-force dota to reflect policies that are believed $

ot no longer likely 1o give rise to a claim.

‘ Persistency - lapses, surrenders and paid up rates
o A review of persistency is carried out annually. Assumptions for each product class are adjusted where necessary to reflect more
recent experience.

Options and guarantees
Allowance is made in respect of cash commutation options on OB Pensions.




26. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions (continued)

(ii) Non-participating insurance contracts

Interest rate 2020 2019

Non-profit temporary assurances™ ' 0.35% 0.95%
Whole of life assurances* 0.35% 0.95%
Parmanent health insurance: :

a) wctive lives . 0.35% 0.95%
b) claims reserves 0.10% 0.80%
Critical illness 0.35% 0.95%
Retirement Sclutions annuities in poyment MAP : 1.12% 1.74%

Retirement Solutions gnnuities in payment

non-MAP 2.09% 263%

* These interest rates are netted down ot 20% tax for life contracts written before 1 Jonuary 2013.

Investment expenses 2020 2019 )
Non-profit temporary cssurgnces™ 0.06% 0.056% :
Whole of life assurances* . 0.06% 0.06% o
Permanent health insurance: '
a) active lives 0.06% 0.06%

b} cloims reserves 0.06% 0.06% ‘
Critical illness 0.06% 0.06%
Retirement Solutions annuities in payment MAP 0.11% . 0.11%

Retirement Solut
non-MAP

ions annuities in payment :
ons ¢ by 0.02% 0.03%

* These expenses are netted down at 20% tox for life contracts written before 1 January 2013. ]
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26. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions (continued)

(ii) Non-participating insurance contracts (continued)

Mortality rate tables 2020 2018
Non-prefit temporary assurances* TMNOO,TMSO00 / TFNOO,TFS00 TMNOO, TMSOO0/TFNOQ, TFS0Q0
. AMCO00/AFCO0 AMCO0 / AFCO0
Whole of life assurances (50+)* CMI_2019 Adjusted CMI_2018/Adjusted
Whole of life assurances (Lifetime+)* TMNOO,TMS00 /TF'NOO,TFSOO TMNOG, TMS00 /TfNOO,TFSOO
CMI_2018 Adjusted CMI_2018 Adjusted
Retirement Solutions annuities in payment™~ PMAOS-/PF.AOB PMAO8 / PFAOS
' CMI_20193 Adjusted CMI_2018 Adjusted

* A series of duraticn and age-related adjustment factors are applied to the buse mortality rates. These adjustments vary by product
line and smoking status.

*“*The mortality rotes for enhanced annuity contracts are adjusted so as to allow for convergence to standard mortality at advanced
ages. These adjustments vary according 1o lifestyle or medical condition, gender, age and duration in-force.

Morbidity rate tables 2020 2018
Permanent health insurance

a) active lives CMIR12 CMIR12

bj clgims reserves CMIR12 CMIR12
Critical illness Adjusted reinsurer rates ___Adjusted reinsurer rates

A series of adjustments are made to the standard mortality and morbidity tables to take cccount of actual expertence and publicly
available market date. The adjustments for permanent health insurance vary by product line, age, smicking status, sickness duration,
deferred periods and cccupations.

Per policy expenses - reqular premiums 2020 2018
Non-profit temporary assurances® £18.07 £18.58
Whole of life gssurancas” £18.07 £18.58
Permanent health insurance:

a) active lives £18.07 £18.58
b} cloirns reserves (per policy in claim} £864.95 T £1.064.51
Criticatillness £18.07 £18.58
Retirement Solutions annuities in payment £56.73 £57.96

(life annuity}
Retirement Solutions annuities in payment

a
{fixed term} £56.73 £57.96

* Expenses are netted down at 20% tox for life contracts written before 1 January 2013,

Options and guarantees
There are no significant options and guarantees in the non-participating business.

(iii) Investment and long-term linked insurance contracts
The provision for unit linked business is equal to the value of the assets to which the controcts are linked. This is clossified as an
investment product and the hability is included within the long-term investment contract liobilities.

Within insurance contract lighilities the provisions for index-linked permanent health insurance claims, index-linked temporary
assurances and index-linked annuities in payment have been calculoted using the some mortality and morbidity assumptions as used
for the corresponding non-linked liabilities for both 2020 and 2019,
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26. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions (continued)

b) LVFS (originally Teachers)

(i) Participating insurance contracts
As part of the Teachers acquisition in 2016, LVFS purchased the non-participating business from Teachers Assurcnce. The Teachers
Assurance porticipoting business remains within the ring-fenced TA Fund (see section e}.

(ii) Non-participating insurance contracts

Interest rate
The interest rates for Teachers are set using an approoch consistent with thot described for LVFS in section ofii).

Mortality rate tables 2020 2013

Teach nuities in bavment 46.8% PMAO08 /57.8% PFAQ8 46.8% PMADS / 57.8% PFAD8
€Ochers annuities in payme CMI_2019 Adjusted CMI_2018 Adjusted

Per policy expenses 2020 2019

Teachers anhuities in payment £56.73 £57.96

Options and guarantees
There are no options and guarantees in the non-participating business.

(iii) Investment linked contracts

The prowvision for unit linked business is equal 1o the volue of the assets to which the contracts are linked. This is classified us an
investment product and the liobility is included within the long-term investment contract liabilities.

c) Liverpool Victoria Life Company Limited —~ Ordinary Long-Term Fund

(i) Participating insurance contracts
Liverpocl Victoria Life Company Limited has no participating business.

(ii) Non-participating insurance contracts

Interest rate 2020 2018
Non-profit temporary assurances® 0.35% 0.95%
Other assurances? 0.39% 0.93%
Investment expenses 2020 2019
Non-profit temporary assurances* . 0.06% 0.06%
Other assurances* 0.07% 0.08%

* These rates are netted dewn at 20% tax for life contracts written before 1 Jonuary 2013

Mortality rate tables 2020 2318
Non-profit temporary assurances™ TMNOOC,TMSC0 / TFNOO,TFS00 TMINOO, TMSOD / TENOD, TFSQ0
Other assurances AMCO0/AFCO0 AMCOO/AFCO0

# Aseries of duration and age-related adiustment factors are applied to the base mortality rates. These adiustments vary by product
line and smoking status.

Per policy expenses — reqular premiums 2020 2019
Non-profit temporary assurances £18.07 £18.58

Other assurances £24.00 £24.00
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26. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions (continued)

d) RNPEN fund

/ .

RNPFN denotes Royal Nationat Pension Fund for Nurses, which is a ring-fenced fund. The free assets ottributable to this fund are i

reported as insurance contract liabilities of LVFS.

(i) Participating business

For participating insurance contracts, ¢ market-consistent valuation is used to calculate the fiability. This involves placing a value on

liobilities similar to the market value of assets with similar cash flow patterns. The key assumptions used in this valuation are set out in !
the tables below. :
Interest rates . i
The interest rates for RNPFN are set using an approach consistent with that described for LVFS in section afi). } :
1
Other assumptions ! :
Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency. The future expense inflation assumption is ;
modelled as RPI plus 0.1% (2019: RPI plus 0.1%), where RP! in both 2020 and 2019 is modelled stochastically. ooy
Benchmark asset mix for assets backing asset shares 2020 2019 ,
Cash 2% 4% oy
Fixed interest 63% 65% ;
UK Equities 35% 31% ot
Mortality rate tables 2020 2019 ;
Cenventional Life Business 60% AMCOOD /AFCO0 60% AMCO0 / AFCO0
Life Deferred Annuities 50% AMCO0O0 / AFCO0 50% AMCO0 / AFCO0 b
Pension Deferred Annuities 50% AMCO0O0 / AFCO0 50% AMCO00 / AFCO0 o
Unitised With-profits business 60% AMC00/AFCO0 60% AMCO00 / AFCO0 ?
Per policy expenses ~ reqular premiums 2020 2019 ; ,
Conventional Life Business £48.45 £27.89 ;
Pensions Deferred Annuities £51.68 £49.12 : .
Life Deferred Annuities £48.45 £27.89 o
Unitised With-profits ISA £48.45 £27.89 ) o
Unitised With-profits Bond : £48.45 £27.89 S

Persistency — lapses, surrenders and paid up rates

A review of persistency is carried out annually. Assumptions are adjusted where appropriate to reflect more recent experience.

Options and guarantees

The provisions held in respect of guaranteed annuity options are determinad on a market consistent basis. The total amount provided

in respect of the future costs of the guaranteed onnuity options was £76m {(2019: £69m).
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26. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions (continued)

(i) Non-participating business

Interest rate 2020 2019

Annuities in Payment (Life)* 0.55% 1.14%

Annuities in Payment {Pensicn) 0.55% 1.14% .
Pension Deferred Annuities 0.55% 1.14% !

* These interest rates are netted down at 20% tax for life contracts written before 1 January 2013.

Investment expenses 2020 2018
Annuities in Payment {Life)* 0.06% 0.06%
Annuities in Payment {Pensicn) 0.06% 0.06%

Pension Deferred Annuities 0.06% 0.06%

¥ These expenses are netted down at 20% tax for life contracts written before 1 Jonuory 2013,

Mortality rate tables 2020 2019
Annuities in Payment (Male) 70.6% PMADOS 76.5% PMADE
FHES T TR A CMI_2019 Adjusted CMI_2018 Adjusted
Annuities in Payment (Femaile) 86.7% PFAOS £0.8% PFAOS
) Es fn Fayment trer ! CMI_2019 Adjusted CMI_2018 Adjusted

Appropriate adjustments were made to the standard mortality tobles to take account of actual experience and publicly available

market data.

Per policy expenses 2020 2019

Annuities in Payrnent {Life) £56.73 £57.96

Annuities in Payment (Pensions) £56.73 £57.36

(1ii) Linked fund

There are two moin classes of contract included within the linked fund, one is classified as an insurance contract and the liability is

included within the long-term unit linked insurance contract lighilities, the other is classified as an investment product end the liability

1s included within the investrnent contract liabilities. The proviston for unit linked contracts is equal 1o the value of the units. A non-unit

ligbility consisting mainly of ¢ sterling reserve cclculated by carrying out cash How projections on appropriate bases is included within

the liability for insurance contracts only.

Interest rate ) 2020 2018

Unit linked assurances” 0.55% 1.14%

¥ This interest rate is netted down at 20% tax for life contracts wwritten before 1 January 2013. 8
=

Investment expenses 2020 2019 >

Unit linked assurances® 0.06% . 0.06% 8
o]

* This expense is netted down at 20% tax for life contracts written before 1 January 201 3. g
4‘;

Mortality rate tables 2020 2019

Unit linked assurances 72% AMCOG / AFCO0 72% AMCO0 / AFCO0

o



26. Long-term insurance and investment contract liabilities valuation assumptions (continued)

e) TA fund
The TA fund denotes the Teachers Assurance Fund, which is a ning-fenced fund. The free assets attributable to this fund are reported
as insurance and investment contract liabilities of LVFS,

(i) Participating contracts
For participoting contracts, a market consistent valuation is used to calculate the liability. This involves placing o value on liabilities
similar to the market volue of assets with similor cash flow paiterns. The key assumptions used in this valuotion are set out below.

Interest rates
The interest rates for the TA fund are set using an approach consistent with that described for LVFS in section a(i).

Other assumptions

Best estimate assumptions are set for inflation, mortality, expenses and persistency. The future expense infiation assumption is
modelled as RPI, where RPI in both 2020 and 2019 is modelled stochostically. )
Benchmark asset mix for assets backing

asset shares 2020 2018

Cash 2% 3%

Fixed interest 36% 37%

Equities . 62% 60%
Mortality rate tables 2020 2019
Conventionol Life Business 39% AM92 / 50% AF92 399% AM92 /50% AF92
Unitised Accumulating Life Business 39% AM92/50% AF92 39% AM92 / 50% AF92
Unitised Accumulating Bond Business 39% AM92 / 50% AF92 39% AM92 /50% AF92
Unitised Accumulating Life ISA Business 39% AM92 / 50% AF92 39% AM92 / 50% AF92
Per policy expenses 2020 2018
Conventional Life Business £42.29 £41.52
Unitised Accumulating Life Business £42.29 £41.52
Unitised Accumulating Bond Business £42.29 £41.52
Unitised Accumulating Life ISA Business £42.29 £41.52

Persistency — lapses, surrenders and paid up rates
A reviews of persistency is carried out annuolly. Assumptions for each product closs cre adjusted where necessory to reflect more
recent experience.

Options and guarantees
There are no guaranteed onnuity or financial options within the contracts participating in the TA Fund.
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27. Non-participating value of in-force business valuation assumptions

a) LVFS ¢
Non-participating contracts . S
Interest rates :
The earned rate and discount rate are set by reference 1o the risk free yield curve applicable at the valuation date with adjustiments for ;
.an illiquidity premium and margins for risk and uncertainty, with the exception of annuities in payment where the earned rate is based P
on the IRR of the risk adjusted backing assets cashflows. g

The margins for risk and uncertainty are:

Product Margin (Basis Points)

Annuities 50

Unit linked pensions 75

Life 100

Critical lllness 275

Income Protection 200

Mortality rate tables 2020 2019

Non-profit temporary assurances™

Whole of Life Assurances (50+)*

Whole of Life Assurances (Lifetime+)*

Retirement Solutions annuities in poyment**

Unit linked pensions (original LVFS)

Teachers annuities in payment

TMNOO,TMS00 / TENGO,TFS00
CMI_2019 Adjusted
AMCO0 / AFC00
CMI_2019'Adjusted
TMNOG,TMS00 / TFNGO,TFS00
CMI_2018 Adjusted
PMAO8/PFA08
CMI_2019 Adjusted
80% AX92C20
55% PMAO08 / 68% PFA08
CMI_2018 Adjusted

TMNOQO,TMS00 / TFNOO, TFS00
CMI_201E Adjusted
AMCO0/ AFCO0
CMI_2018 Adjusted
TMNOO,TMS00 / TFNOQ, TFS00
CMI_2018 Adjusted
PMADE / PFAQS
CMI_2018 Adjusted
80% AX92(20
55% PMAOQS / 68% PFAOB
CMI_2018 Adjusted

* A series of duration and uge-related adjusiment factors are applied to the base mortality rates. These adjustments vary by product

line and smoking stutus.

**The mortality rates for enhanced annuity contracts are adjusted so as to allow for convergence to standard mortality at advanced

ages. These adjustments vary according to lifestyle or medical condition, gender, age and duration in-force.

Morbidity rate tables 2020 2018
Permanent health insurance: .

o) active lives CMIR12 CMIR12
b) claims reserves CMIR12 CMIR12

Critical iliness

Adjusted reinsurer rates

Adjusted reinsurer rates

A series of adjustments are made to the stancard mortahty and morbidity tables to take account of actual experience and publicly
available market data. The adjustiments for perimanent heolth insurance vary by product line, age, smoking status, sickness duration,
deferred periods and occupations.

Persistency and unit costs

Persistency and unit costs assumptions are based on our best estimate of future experience. A review of persistency is carried out
annuglly. Assumptions for each product class are odjusted where cppropricate to reflect more recent experience.




Fixed assets and investments
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This section gives detail on the tangible, intangible and investment assets of the Company and Group that cre used to genercte profit

for the business.

28. Property and equipment

Accounting for property and equipment

Operational property and equipment are held at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the original purchase price of
the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Both property ond equipment

are depreciated to their estimated residual values on o straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The periods used are

as follows:

Freehold buildings
Leosehold right of use assets
Property enhancements
Fixtures and fittings

IT equipment

Land is not deprecioted.

10 to 50 years

Legse term (1 to 25 years)

10 years or lease term if shorter

3to 10 years
3to8years

Assets are written down to their recoverable amount where this is less than the carrying value. The residual values and useful lives
of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each Statement of Financial Position date.

Leasehold Fixtures,

Freechold right of use Property fittingsand IT

buildings assets enhancements equipment Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost:
At 1 January 2020 5 26 7 10 48
Additions - 2 1 1 4
Disposals - - - - -
At 31 December 2020 5 28 8 11 52
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 Janucory 2020 4 5 4 7 20
Provicded in the year - 2 - 1 3
At 31 December 2020 4 7 4 8 23
Net book value at 31 December 2020 1 21 4 3 29
Cost:
At 1 Janucry 2019 5 20 8 17 50
Opening adjustment on adoption of IFRS 16 - 6 - - 5
Additions - 2 - - 2
Disposals - {2} (1} (7) (103
At 31 December 2013 5 26 7 10 48
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2012 4 3 4 10 21
Provided in the year - 2 1 2 5
Disposals - - (1) (5) (6)
At 31 December 2019 4 5 4 7 20
Net book value at 31 December 2018 1 21 2 3 23
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28. Intangible assets

Accounting for goodwill and intangible assets

Intangible assets with definite useful lives are held at cost less
amortisation. Amortisation is charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, see Note 11. Intangible assets with
indefinite lives are not amortised.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable
net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the acquisition date
and is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is reviewed
for impairment at the end of the first full year of ccquisition.
Thereafter, itis tested at each Statement of Financial Position
dote for impairment ageinst the recoverable amount {being
the higher of value in use or fair value less costs of disposal)
of the relevant cash generating unit and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1998 has been
elimincted against the Unallocated divisible surplus. Goodwill
an cequisitions prior to 1 January 2006 (the dote of transition to
IFRS) is carried at its original cost less cumulative amortisation
on thot date, less any impairment subseguently incurred.

Guins and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Present value of acquired in-force business (PVIF)

On acquisition of a portfclio of long-term insurance cnd
investment contracts, the net present value of the Group's
interest in the expected post-tax cosh flows of the in-force
business is capitalised as an intangible asset.

The carrying value of the asset is amortised, in line with the
original expected run-off over ¢ period of 10 years, based on
the anticipated lives of the mdjority of the related contracts.
Amortisction is stated net of any unwing of the dis¢ount
rate. The carrying value of the asset is dssessed annugally
using current assumptions in order to determine whether
any impeirment has arisen, compared to the amortised
acquired value.

Other intangibles

\Where an acqguisition takes place that gives access to existing
customers, distribution channels or the right to charge for
investment or policy administration services, the fair value

of these is recognised as ¢n intangible asset.

The carrying value of the asset is amortised. on a straight hine
basis over its expected econoimic life. The expected economic
life of other intangibles carried by the Group is determined by
reference to acquired business, considering foctors such as

the remaining terms of agreements, the normal lives of related
products and the competitive position, and lies within the range
of 10 to 20 years. The carrying value of the asset 1s assessed
annuaily for indications of impairment.

IT Software

Costs directly attributable to the development of software for
internal use are capitclised as intangible assets if it is probable
that the asset crected will generate future economic benefits.
Costs incurred to establish technological feosibility or to maintain
existing levels of performance are recognised os an expense.

Software costs, including computer application software
licences, are amortised using the straight line method over
their useful lives (three to eight yeurs). The arnortisation periods
used are reviewed annually. Software values are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying omount may not be recoverable.
Where the carrying amount is not recoverable the asset

is written down immediotely 10 the estimated recoverable
amount, based on value in use calculations.

Any agmortisation or impairment charges for all intangibles are
recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within
Other cberating cnd administrative expenses.

Significant accounting estimate

Impairment assessment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annuol basis, This requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the goodwiilt

is allocated.

Details of the key assumptions used In the estimation of the
recoverable amounts and the carrying value at the reporting
date are coniained ¢t the end of this note.
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29. Intangible assets (continued)
Other
intangible

Goodwill assets PVIF T software Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m
Cost: ‘
At 1 January 2020 76 27 3 11 117
Additions - - - 1 1
Written off (21) 4) - - {25)
At 31 December 2020 55 23 3 12 93
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: )
At 1 January 2020 ’ 21 24 1 7 53
Charge for the year - i - 1 2
Impairment in the year 8 - - - 8
Written off (21) (4) - - (25) :
At 31 December 2020 ) 8 21 - 1 8 38 i

; o

Net book value at 31 December 2020 47 2 2 4 55 b
Cost: ¢
At 1 January 2012 55 27 3 10 95 [
Additions . - - - 1 1 !
Disposals 21 - - - 21 ’
At 31 December 2013 76 27 3 11 117
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: X
At 1 January 2019 21 20 1 6 48 |
Charge for the year - 1 - 1 2 |
Impairment in the year - 3 - 3 !
At 31 Decembar 2019 21 24 1 7 53 i
Net book volue at 31 December 2019 55 3 2 4 64

The Wealth Wizards group of companies is a separate cash generating unit. During the year the £8m of gocdwill associated with the
Wealth Wizards cash generating unit has been fully impgaired.
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29. Intangible assets (continued)

Impgairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill is revievwed annuclly for impairment, or more freguently
wher there are indicators that impairment may have occurred,
by compdiring the carrying value to its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is based on value
in use calculotions. The calculations are based upen discounting
expected pre-tax cash flows at a risk-adjusted interest rate
appropriate to the cash generating unit, the determination of
both of which requires the exercise of judgement. The estimation
of pre-tax cash flows is sensitive to the periods for which
forecasts are available ond to assumptions regarding the fong-
terim sustainable cash flows. While forecasts are compared with
actual performance and external economic dato, expected cash
flows reflect management's view of future performance.

Key assumptions used in the annual impairment testing

of intangible assets .

The key assumptions used for impairment testing are set out
below. The recoverable amount of the long-term insuronce
husiness has been determined using discounted cash flow
predictions based on financiol plans approved by mancgement
covering a five year period, with a terminal growth rate applied
thereafter. These financial plans incorporate management's
best estimate of the impacts of the on-going Covid-19 situation.

Growth rate — the value in use calculation uses a terminal growth
rate which has been set with regard to past experience and
relevant available UK market statistics. Cash flows bheyond the
plan period have been assumed to grow at a steady rete of 1.3%
per annum {2019: 1.3% per annum).

Discount rate — the cash flows have been discounted using
a risk-cdjusted discount rate of 9% (2019: 8%). The increase
in the discount rate cornpared to 2019 reflects increased risk
in variation of cash floews due ta inherently uncertain market
conditions as a result of Covid-19.

Both the growth rates and the discount rates used are consistent
with the ronges observed in the market place.

2020 2619

Group Group
Assumptions
Terminal growth rate 1.3% 1.3%
Pre-tax discount rate 9% 8%
Recoverable amount in excess of carrying value £267m £251m
Sensitivities
Impact on recoverable amount of @ 2% increase in the pre-tox discount rate ’ £83m £97m
Pre-tax discount rate raquired to eliminate headroom 24% 18%
Impact on recoverable omount of ¢ 10% annual reduction in forecast cashflows £46m £48m
Reduction required in annucl forecast cashflows to eliminate hecdroom 58% 53%
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30. Investments in group undertakings
Accounting for investments in group undertakings
v .
Shares in subsidiaries
The subsidiaries are held in the Company's Statement of Financial Position ot cost less any provision for impairment. An assessment
of the realisable value is made ot the Statement of Financial Position dote and, if the Directors assess that there has been o
permanent {all in that value below the carrying value, a provision 1s made to bring the carrying value down to the assessed
. realisuble value. ' |
.Loan stock in subsidiaries
. Loon stock in subsidiaries is initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initicl recognition it is measured at amortised cost.
N
2020 2015
= Company - £m £m
M Shares in subsidiaries
Cost less provisions at'1 January 796 798
Additions 1 -
.. Reduction in carrying value including impairment (39) {2}
Ty ) . 758 796
! |
Loan stock in subsidiaries
P Costat 1 January 20 15
4 Additions 2 5
impairment (22) -
. - 20 ”
Shares and loan stock in subsidiaries at 31 December 758 816
The Company has examined the corrying volue of its subsidiories and concluded that an impairment of £8m (2019: £2m) was required
. in regard to these investments, the remaining £31m relates to an impairment in carrying value down to the underlying net asset value
L of a subsidiary as a result of dividends paid by the subsidiary company to LVFS during the year.
o Further details of the Group's loon stock dre given in Nota 48 and the Group's investments in Notes 43 and 44. The loan stock was g
o impaired in full at 31 December 2020. i
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Other assets and liabilities | B

This section includes information on the other assets and liabilities arising within the Group.

31. Insurance receivables

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018
£m Em £m £
Due from policyholders 16 12 16 11
Due from agents, brokers and intermediaries 1 - 1 -
Due from reinsurers 64 51 64 51
81 63 81 62

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair velue ot the Statement of Financial Position date.

32.Prepauments and accrued interest

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 201¢
£m £m £m fm
Accrued interest 58 61 53 56
Prepayments 9 12 9 12
67 7 62 68

33. Insurance payables

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018
£m £m £m £ro
Due 1o policyholders 33 21 27 20
Due to brokers and intermediaries 1 1 1 1
Due to reinsurers 8 6 8 5
42 28 - 36 27

The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Financial Position date.

34. Trade and other payables

Accounting for trade and other payables
Trade and other payables cre recognised when they fall due. They dre initially measured at fair value and subseqguently ¢t amortised
cost. Accounting and disclosures regarding finance leases is disclosed in Note 35.

O

Group Compuny <

2020 2012 2020 2019 =

£m £m £m £ g

Trade paycbles ) 6 5 6 5 'e)

Other taxes and social security costs 7 7 7 6 g

Other creditors 15 22 14 21 -

Accruals 62 67 59 - 65 &
Bank overdrafts 7 13 7 13
Finance lease lichilities {see Note 35) 25 25 4 5
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - - 2
122 139 97 117

The carrying omounts disclosed above reasonably approximate fair value at the Statement of Firancial Position date.
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35, Assets held under leases and lease liabilities

Accounting for assets held under leases and lease
liabilities

The Group recognises a right of use asset within Property and
equipment and a lease liability within Trade and other payables
at the lease commencement dote. The right of use assetis
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initiol amount
of the lease liability agjusted for any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to restore the underlying
asset, less any lease incentives received. The lease liability is
initiolly measured at the present value of outstanding lease
payments over the lease term.

In determining the lease term management consider the
impact of contractual break cluuses. The majority of ledses
have break clauses exercisable only by the lessee, no leases
have extension options. The lease term is identified as

the period up to the break clause unless management is
recsisonably certain not to exercise o break option.

The minimum lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the leose or, if that rote cannot be
reacdily determined, the Group's incremental borrowing rdate.
Generdlly. the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate. The incremental borrowing rate is determined

by obtaining interest rates from external financing sources for
periods equivalent to the terms of the leases and rent review
intervals. Lease payments used in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise fixed payments including minimum
prescribed rental increases at contractuat rent reviews.

IFRS 16 lease disclosures

The Group occupies leased premises for its head office and

o small number of regional offices. At 31 December 2020, right

of use assets held by the Group are £21m (2019: £21m) and lease
labilities are £25m (2019: £25my). Right of use assets and lease
liabilities are unwound over the lease terms. The remaining

lease terms, average 3 vears for regicnal offices and 20 vears

for the head office. Lease rentals are typically renegotiated

every 5 years to market rentals and include break clauses for
additional flexibility.

The movement in the right of use asset balance is reported within
note 28. The lease liability has experienced a net movement of nil
in the yeor and remains at £25m (2019: leose liability increase of
£6m to £25m). The movements include:

« additions of £2m relating to o market rent review of the head
office lease (2019: opening balance additions of £7m and
other additions of £1m)

e interestexpense of £1m (2013 £1m)

« offset by rentcl payments of £3m (2019: £3m)

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated on a stroight
line basis over the lease term. The lease liability is subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Depreciotion charged on the right of use asset is
recognised within Other operating and administrative expenses
and interest expense on the lease liability is recognised within
Finance costs. Cash payments for the principal portion of

lease payments are reported within Financing activities in the
Statement of Cash Hows as required by IFRS 16. In addition
cash payments for the interest portion are also reported within
Financing activities in the Stotement of Cash flows, consistent
with the classification of interest on the subordinated debt.

The lease liability is re-measured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in management’s
assessment of whether the Group will exercise o break clause
or the rental payments are revised in accordance with ¢
contractuct rent review. When the lease liobility is re-meacsured
in this way, a corresponding adjiustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right of use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right of use asset has been reduced
to zere.

Cash spent on leases reported within the Cash flow statement is
£3m {2019: £4m of which £3m related to continuing operations).
The maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease payments is
reported within Note 4 d).

The majority of leases include breck clauses and these are only
exercisable by the Group, not the landlord. Where the Group
axpects not to terminate the tease ot such break clauses, the
remaining period is included within the lecase term. The amount
of additional undiscounted cashiiows associated with periods
heyond breuk clauses thot are not included within lease licbilities
is £69m (2019: £64m), this prinrrily relates to the head office
which is ¢ 99 year lease entered inte in 1274, with o break clause
in 2040. Due to the significant timeframe to this break clouse, the
lease term is defined as the period to 2040 as it ts not reasoncbly
certain that the Group will not exercise this breck option.
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This section includes information reloting to the tax charge and movements in the corporation and deferred tax assets cnd liabilities

held by the Company and Group.

36. Income tax expense

Accounting for income tax

Income tax expense /(credit)

The income tax expense/{credit) recorded in the Statement

of Comprehensive Income represents the current year
corporation tox charge/{credit). As a mutual, the corporation
tox charge/(credit) for LVFS relates to policyholder tax payable/
(receivable) on the net investment return levied on certain types
of business. Whereas for Group subsidiaries corporation taxis
charged on trading profits arising in the year. The tax charge /
{credit) excludes movements in deferred tax relating to items
reported in Other Comprehensive Income, including the
re-measurements of the defined benefit pension scheme

and. in 2013, available for sale financial assets.

Current income tax

Current income tax liabilities and cssets are measured at the
umount expected to be paid to or recovered frorm the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
omount are those that ore enacted or substantively enacted at
the Statement of Financial Position date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax arises on the temporary differences

between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position. Deferred
income tax is recognised using the liability method by applying

tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date and

are expected to apply when

he related deferred income tox

balonce is settled. Deferred income tax ossets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can

be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right te offset current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and whern the deferred income
taxes assets and liahilities relate to income taxes levied by

the same taxation autherity on either the taxable entity or

different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

a) Current year tax charge Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2018

£m £ £m £m
Current tax
Current vear 29 57 29 40
Adjustment in respect of prior years - - - 1
Total current tax 29 57 29 41
Deferred tax
Temporary differences 12 21 11 22
Adjustment in respect of prior years - (2) - {2)
Total deferred tax 12 19 11 20
Total income tax expense 41 76 40 61
Income tax expense attributable to:
Profit from continuing operations 41 60 - -
Profit from discontinued operations - 16 40 61

41 76 40 61
b} Reconciliation of tax charge Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2014

£m £m £m £ra
Profit ic?efore tax, mutual/exit borus and UDS transfer from continuing 37 15 } )
operations
(lfossﬁl/r?roﬁ't before tax, mutual/exit bonus and UDS transfer irom 2 250 381 30
discontinued operations
Profit hefore tax, mutual/exit bonus and UDS transier” 35 265 381 20
Tox calculated ot the average standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
at 19% {2019: 19%) 7 50 72 6
Permanent differences
Income and expenses not subject to tox 66 (28) - -
Mutual prefit not subject to tax (72) {€) (72) {6}
Policyholder I-E tax 40 62 40 62
Adjustment to current tax charge in respect of prior years - - - 1
Adjustment to deferred tax charge in respect of prior years - (2) - {2)
Total charge 41 76 40 61
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36. Income tax expense {continued)

bonus and UDS transier is disclosed in the tables dbove.

37.Deferred tax liability

* As o mutudl oll net earnings are for the benefit of porticipoting policyholders and are carried forward within the Unallocoted divisible
surplus (UDS), resulting in the profit for each financial year being zero. Therefore, the resulting profit before tax required to be
disclosed under IAS 12 will always be aqugal to the tax charge being £41m profit (2019: £76m profit) and £40m profit (2019: £61m
profit) for the Group and Company respectively. [n order to present a more meaningful disclosure the Profit before tax, mutual/exit

Group Company
. 2020 2019 2020 2019
. £m £m £m im
Balance at 1 Jonuary (102) (78) (103) (78}
/\mOLVlvnl’S recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within profit for (12) (19) (11 20}
the year
Amounts recorded within Other Comprehensive Income 23 (5) 23 (5)
Balance at 31 December (91) {102} {91) {103}
Group Company
2020 2018 2020 2019
a) Analysis of deferred taxation temporary differences £m £rm £m frn
Ternporary differences on expenses 2 2 2 2
Ternporary differences on unrealised goins (41) (30) (41) (30}
Temporary difference on re-measurement of defined benefit pension scheme (52) (75) (52) (75}
Tax losses - 1 - -
Deferred tax liability (91) {102) {91) (103)
b) Deferred taxation asset not recognised
Tox losses unrecognised 4 7 - .
4 7 - -

The rate change would have had no matericl impact on the tax results of the LV Group for year ended 31 December 2020.

At Budget 2021, the Government announced that the Corporation tax main rate (for all profits except ring fence profits) for the years
starting 1 April 2021 and 1 April 2022 would remain at 19%. The rate will increase to 25% for the year beginning 1 Apnil 2023.

The valuation and recoverability of deferred tax assets relating to depreciction in excess of capital allowances, temporary differences
on expenses and ioxable losses carried forward is dependent on the ovailability of future taxable profits within the Cempany and
Group. Deferred tox assets are recognised where recoveratzility is supported by management forecasts.
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Employee benefits

This section includes information relating to the short-term and long-term employee benefits within the Company and the Group.

38. Employee benefits expense

Accounting for employee benefits

Employee benefits expense includes the expense incurred in the period relating to both short and long-tertn employee benefits.
Short-term employee benefits include salaries, accrued bonuses and social security costs and are recognised over the period in
which the employees provide the services to which the payments relate. Expenses related to long-term employee benefits include
pension contributions to defined contribution schemes made in exchange for employee service and pension costs relating to
defined benefit schemes. Other long-term benefits include amounts for long-term incentive plans (LTIPs), the expense for which is

accrued over the plan term.

Group Compony
2020 2019 2020 2019
£m im £m £m
Wages and salaries 78 89 73 &3
Social security costs 7 8 7 8
Pension costs 5 14 5 5
90 111 85 96

Of the £85m (2019: £26m) employee benefit expense in LVFS, £8m {2019: £36m} is recharged to other Group companies, leaving £77m
{2019: £60m) of staff costs directly reloting to LVFS.

Wages and salories include charges for in-flight leng-term incentive plons (LTIPs) of £0.7m in 2020 (2019: £1.0m}). The LTIP plan terms
are described in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration on bage 56.

For the 2018-20 scheme, £1.6m will be paid to eligible employees in 2021 (2020: £3.3m pay-out for the 2017-13 scheme). The amounts
vested represent a below plan outcome with all mecsures below plan except for Total Expenses, Member and Female representation.
This results in an overall multiplier of 0.77x.

The number of employees during the year, including executive directors, calculoted on ¢ monthly average basis, was as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
Number Nuenber Number Number
Member and customer contact 725 870 709 250
Administration 897 1,031 844 976
1,622 1,201 1553 1,326
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39. Pension benefit asset

Accounting for pension benefits

For defined benefit schemes, the net surplus or deficit is
catculated annually with the assets measured at fair value
at the Statement of Financial Position date and the liabilities
discounted at the rate of return available on high quality
corporate bonds.

IFRIC 14 The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirement and their interaction’ is applied in determining
whether an asset for net surplus is recognised and also whether
a liability for future funding requirements is recognised in the
Statement of Financicl Position. The terms of the pensions
schemes ore ossessed to determine whether the Group has

an unconditional right to a refund of scheme assets which
ultimately remain following scheme termination, assuming

the gradual settlement of the scherme liabilities over time until
all members have left the scheme. Where the criteria are met,
any net surplus is recognised as a pension benefit asset and no
lighility is recognised for future funding obligations, as these
will increase the pension scheme assets when paid. Where the
criteria are not met, a net surplus cannot be recognised, and
any future funding requirements are recognised as a separate
lichility. Schemes in o net deficit are recognised as a pension
lichility.

The criteria in IFRIC 14 are met for the LVFS and Ockhom
pension schemes and a net pension benefit asset is recognised
‘in the Statement of Financiat Position. The Group notes that the
IASB project to amend IFRIC 14 is now on hold. Management
will consider the implications of any future cmendments once
published.

The pension cost for the schernes is analysed between current
service cost, past service cost, net interest on the net defined
henefit liability and any gain or loss on settlement. Current
service cost is the actuarially calculated present value of the

Defined benefit pension schemes

benefits earned by the active employees in each period. Past
service costs, relating to employee service in prior periods
arising in the current period os a result of the introduction of,
or improvement to, retirement benefits, are recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period in which the increases in
benefits vest or are ecrned.

Pension costs are recognised in Other operating and
administrative expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Actuarial gains and tosses crising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recoghised as re-measurements in Other Comprehensive
Income in the period in which they arise.

For defined contribution plons, the Group poys contributions to
on independently administered pension fund. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recoghised as an employee benefit
expense when they are due.

Significant accounting estimates

Assumptions used to measure the pension benefit
obligation

The valuations of the pension benefit obligations for the
Group's defined benefit schemes require actuarial assumptions
about discount rates, infiation, longevity and future pension
increcses. Due to the long-term nature of these obligations, the
estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

Cetails of the principal cssumptions used for each of the
rnaterial defined benefit schemes are disclosed within the
valuations of the individual schemes disclosed in section (iv).
Sensitivities are performed against the assumptions and
disclosed in section {v).

The Group operated three pension schemes with defined benefit sections, the LV= Employee Pension Scheme ("LV Scheme®), the
Ockham Pension Scheme and the Teachers Assurance Group Pension Scheme. LVFS is the principal employer for the LV Scheme

and the Ockham Pension Scheme. The LV Scheme and the Ockhaim Pension Scheme are both hybrid schemes with a defined benefit
section and a defined contribution section. Teachers Management Services Limited, a subsidiary of LVFS, is the principal employer for
the Teachers Assurance Group Pension Scheme. Following the purchase by the Trustee in 2019 of o bulk annuity policy from Rothesay
Life, the Teachers Assurance Group Pension Scheme is in the process of being wound up. The transfer to Rothesay Life was completed

on § August 2020.

Defined contribution pension schemes

All LVFS employees cre eligible to join the defined contribution section of the LY Scheme. Employee contributions are double matched
by LVFS up to a maximum employer coniribution of 14%. The assets of this scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's contribution under this scheme during the year omounied to £7m (2019: £8m).
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39. Pension benefit asset (continued)

a) Summary of defined benefit schemes

2020 2019

LV Scheme Ockham  Teachers Total LV Scheme Ockhom Teachers Totat
Pension benefit asset £m £m £m £m £m im £m £m

Asset 129 19 - 148 196 18 - 21
129 18 - 148 196 18 - 21

2020 2019

LV Scheme Ockham  Teachers Total LV Scheme Cckharr Teachers Total
Re-measurements . _Em £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Re-measurements (76) (1) - (77) - 3 7 10
Income tox expense 23 - - 23 {(3; (2) - (5)
Amount charged to Comprehensive
Income : {53) (1} - (54) (3 1 7 5
Cumulative re-measurements )
recognised in the Statement .
of Comprehensive Income 100 (11) 5 94 176 (10) 5 171

Further details of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes dre disclosed below.

b) LV Scheme

(i) Information about the scheme

The defined benefit section of the LV scheme provides benefits to members in the form of a guoranteed level of pension payable
for life. The level of benefits depends upon the member's length of service and their final sclary.

The scheme assets are held in a separate trustee-administered fund to meet long-term pension labilities to post and present employees.

The liabilities of the scheme are meosured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be paid out by the scheme using
the projected unit method, which is an accrued benefits valuation method.

The scheme has o Corporate Trustee required tc act in the best interests of the scheme’s beneficiaries. The Trustee may be removed
at the discretion of LVFS, in its capacity as principal employer, provided that the board of any new trustee compaony comprises three
directors representing the members. including one director who must be a pensioner and a further four directors selected by LVFS.
With the cgreement of LVFS, the directors of the Corporate Trustee may co-opt one other direcior.

On 29 May 2020 the Trustee closed out the longevity swaop (which was taken out in 2012} and purchased a bulk annuity policy with
Phoenix Life Limited. The Trustee holds this bulk annuity policy as an investment for the benefit of oll Scheme members. It provides
an income to the Scheme that exactly maiches some of the benefit obligations of the Scheme.

The definad benefit section is closed to new entrants and future accruat.

2020 2015

(i) Net Statement of Financial Position £m £
Present value of defined benefit obligotion ' (1,580) (1,388)
Fair value of plan gssets 1,709 1,584

Pension benefit csset at the end of the veor 129 196
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39. Pension benefit asset (continued)
b) LV Scheme (continued)
_ Present value of Fair value of
obligation plan ossets Total
: (iii) The movement in the net defined benefit asset over the year is as follows: £m £m__ . £m
At 1 January 2020 (1,388) 1,584 196
Pension costs:
Current service cost (1) - (1)
Interest (expense)/income ’ (28) 32 4
Past service cost : {1} - (1)
: (30} 32 2
Ty Re-measurements:
- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest (expensel/income - 145 145
- Loss from changes in demographic assumptions (6} - (6)
- Loss from changes in financial assumptions (200) - (200) ¢
- Experience loss (15) - {15)
N (221)- 145 {76)
S Other movements:
- - Contributions by employer - 7 7
- Benefits poid 59 (59) -
59 (52) 7
At 31 December 2020 (1,580) 1,709 129 ;
-
. At 1 January 2019 (1,254) 1,440 186 {
T Pension costs: [
Current service cost (2) - (2) !
Interest {expense)/income {36) 41 5 ¢
38) a 3 |
Re-measurements: 2
~ Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest (expensel/income - 156 156 i
- Loss from changes in financial assumptions (162) - (162) {
; —~ Experience gain 6 - S !
o (156) 156 -
o Other movements:
; - Contributions by employer - 7 7
o — Benefits poid 50 (60) -
[ 60 (53) 7
At 31 December 2019 {1,388) 1,584 186
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39. Pension benefit asset (continued)
b) LV Scheme (continued)

{iv) Principal assumptions used Buy-in policy 2020 Whole scheme 2020 2819
Discount rate 1.14% 1.30% 2.05%
RPlinflation 3.00% 2.90% 3.00%
CPlinflation 2.00% 2.20% - ) 2.00%
Pension increases for in-payment benefits

- RPI price infiotion capped ¢t 5% po, fioor of 3% pa 3.55% 3.50% . 3.55%
-~ RPI price inflation capped at 5% pa 2.95% 2.85% 2.95%
- RPI price inflation capped ¢t 2.5% pa 2.10% 2.10% 2.10%
- CPl price inflation cupped at 3.0% pa 2.00% 1.90% 1.80%

The discount rate and inflation rate assumptions for 2020 and 2019 have been set with reference to yield curves. The single rates
disclosed above represent the weighted average equivalent rate based on the yield curve used. The pension increase assumptions
disclosed represent spot rates on the yield curve ot the approximate duration of the scheme's liabilities.

For 2020, mortality for members is assumed to follow LV specific Club Vita individual base tables, based on pooled experience during
the period 2014 10 2016 {2019 LV specific Club Vite tables 2014 — 2016}

The table below shows the life expectancy assumptions used in the accounting assessiments based on the average future life
expectancy of a scheme member who is a pensioner aged 65 (non-pensioner is assumed to be 45 now).

Future life expectancy assumptions (in years) as at 31 December 2020 2019
Pensioner (currently aged 65)

- Moale 226 225
- Female 24.4 24.2
Non-pensioner (at age 85, currently aged 45) .

- Male 236 238
— Female 25.8 25.6

Inall cases, as at 31 December 2020 CMI Core 2019 projections with a long-term rate of improvement of 1.50% a year {smoothing
= 7.0) and an ‘A’ parameter of 0.50% for males and 0.25% for females, have been applied (31 December 2019: CMI Core 2018

projecticns with a long-term raite of improvement of 1.50% o year (smoothing = 7.0) and an ‘A’ parameter of 0.50% for males and
0.25% for females).

The medium 10 long-term impacts of COVID-19 are uncertain on the longevity assumptions, and correspondingly, no allowance has
been made for such potential impacts.

(v) Sensitivity analysis: Impact on defined benefit obligution of making changes to key assumptions .

Change in assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation O -
Discount rate Decrease by 0.5% Increase by £159m (10%) <
Discount rate . ) Increase by 0.5% Decrease by £138m {3%) ;
Inflation rate (hoth RPiand CPD Increase by 0.5% Increase by £79m (5%) (2]
Inflation rote (CPI) Increase by 0.1% Increase by £6m (0%) 8
Life expectancy . Increase by 1 year Increase by £74m (5%) : g
»

The sensitivity analysis has been calculated by valuing the defined henefit obligation using the amended assumptions shown in the table
cbove and keeping the remicining cssumptions the same s disclosed in the principal assumptions table for the scheme. except in the
case of the inflation sensitivity where other assumptions that depend on assurned inflation have also been amended correspondingly.
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39. Pension benefit asset {continued)
b) LV Scheme (continued)

(vi) Plan asset information
The following table shows a breakdown of the plan assets:

2020 2019

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unauoted Total
£m « _fm £m % £m £ £m S
Equities and unit trusts 113 3 116 7 105 4 109 7
Debt securities 1,307 - 1,307 76 1,837 - 1,837 116
Cash and cash equivalents 50 - 50 3 124 - 124 g
Real estate/property - 2 2 - - 4 4 -
Derivatives 14 (482) {468) (27) 11 (535) {524) (33)
Buy-in - 655 655 38 - - - -
Other 11 36 47 3 - 34 34 2
1,495 214 © 1,709 100 2,077 {493) 1,584 100

The reduction in debt securities during the yeor reflects the buy-in transaction executed in May 2020 os this transaction was primarily
funded by the sale/transfer of debt securities. The use of derivatives is predominantly gilt repos, swaps and currency derivatives to
hedge the interest, inflation and currency exposures. In addition a proportion of the derivative exposure relates to a synthetic equity
strateqy used to gain exposure to global equity markets.

In determining and reviewing the Scheme's investment strctegy, the Trustee adopts a Pensions Risk Management Framework (PRMF).
This framework translates the principal gocal of paying member benefits into measurable funding objectives and risk constraints,
agreed by the Trustee. The PRMF is reviewed und monitored by the Trustee on ot least a quarterly basis.

The Trustee’s primary funding objective is to reach full funding on the Technical Provisions basis, with a Iong—tei’m target of moving
towards being fully funded on a Gilts +0.25% liability valuation basis by 2028. In setting the investment strategy, the Trustee aims to:

» Target an expected return on assets close to that required to meet the funding objectives within the PRIMF;

+ Manage the investment risk Including that arising due to mismatch between assets and liabilities and limit the total risk on the
Scheme helow the risk budget set in the PRMF,

«  Maintain suitable liguidity of assets such that the Scheme is not forced to buy and sell investments at particulor times to pay
member benefits or meet potential collateral calls. '

Following the triennial scheme valuation which tock place as at 31 March 2018, LVFS as principal employer agreed, on behalf of
participating employees, te make a one-off payment of £35,400,000 and to continue to pay monthly deficit reduction contributions
of £416.667 until 31 March 2028 to meet the statutory funding objective®. In addition to these funding contributions, LVFS continues
to make payrnents of £193,252 per menth towards the regulor expenses of administering the defined benefit section of the Scheme
plus payments equal to the pension protection fund (PPF) levies. The next formal veluation of the Scherne is due no later than 31
March 2021.

* The statutory funding chjective is that the Scheme must have ‘sufficient and appropriate’ assets fo meet the expected costs of
providing members past service benefits,

{vii) Pension scheme risks
hrough its defined benefit pension schemes the Group is exposed to o number of risks, the most significant of which are detaited belows:

Asset volatility: The plan licbilities are caiculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields;
if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create < deficit. The plon assets are predominantly
held in debt securities which match the liabilities with a small holding of equities that are expected
to outperform corporate bonds in the long term.

Changes in bond yields: A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan licbilities, although this will be offset by an
increase in the value of the scheme’s bond holdings.

inflation risk: The mgjority of the scheme’s benefit abligations are linked to inflation, therefore on incredse in
inflation will {ead to an increase in liabilities. In most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases
and derivatives are in place to protect the scheme against significant rises in inflation.

Life expectancy: The scheme’s obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so any increases in life
expectancy will result in an increase in the scheme's liabitities. In 2012 the trustees of the LV Scheme
entered into o longevity swap which mitigated the mgjority of this risk for the LV scheme. On 28 May
2020 the Trustee closed out the longevity swap and purchased ¢ bulk annuity policy with Phoenix
Life, which provides an income to the Scheme that exactly matches some of the benefit obligations
of the Scheme.
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39. Pension benefit asset (continued)
b) LV Scheme {continued)

(viii) Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted pension benefits:

Less than Between Between
ayear 1-2years 2-5years Over5years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2020 45 47 149 1,809 2,050

The weighted average duration of the gross defined benefit obligation is 18 years.

The expected contributions to the scheme for the year ending 31 December 2021 are £7m.

¢} Ockham Scheme

(i) Information about the scheme

The defined benefit section of the Ockham scheme provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable
for life. The level of benefits depends upon the member's length of service and their final sclary. The scheme is closed to new entrants
and future accrual. ’

The scheme assets are held in separate trustee-administered funds to meet long-term pension liabilities to past employees. The
liabilities of the scheme ure measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be paid out by the scheme using the
projected unit method, which is an accrued benefits valuation methoed.

The scheme has a Corporate Trustee required to act in the best interests of the scheme’s beneficiaries. The Trustee may be removed at
the discretion of LVFS, in its capacity as principal employer, provided that cny new trustee board comprises two directors representing

the members and up to four directors selected by LVFS. f

(ii) Net Statement of Financial Position 2°£2° 219 ‘
m 2

Present value of defined benefit obligation (162) {150)

Fair value of plon assets 181 168 :

Pengion benefit asset at the end of the yeor 19 18 i
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39. Pension benefit asset {continued)

2 c) Ockham Scheme (cantinued)

(iii) The movement in the net defined benefit asset over the year is as follows:

b Present value of Fair value of
obligation plan assets Total
§ £m £m £m
: i{ At 1 january 2020 (150} 168 18
: g Pension costs:
Interest (expense)/income (3) 3 -
) i 3) 3 -
Re-measurements:
- Return ¢n plan assets, excluding amountis included ininterest (expense)/income - 16 16
- Loss from changes in demographic assumptions (1) - (1)
- Loss from changes in financial assumptions {16) - (16)
(17) 16 (1)
Other movements:
~ Contributions by employer - 2 2
— Benefits paid 8 (8) -
. 8 {(6) 2
At 31 December 2020 (162) 181 19
At 1 January 2019 {141) 154 13
Pension costs:
Interest {(expense)/income (4} 4 -
(4} 4 -
Re-measurements:
—Returh on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest (expense)/income - 14 14
- Gain from changes in demographic assumptions 2 - 2
- Loss from chonges in financial ossumptions (14) - {14)
~ Experience gains - 1
{1y 14 3
Other movements:
- Contributions by employer . - 2 2
— Benefits paid . 53 {0) -
6 (4) 2
At 31 December 2019 {150} 168 18
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39. Pension benefit asset (continued) i
c) Ockham Scheme (continued) g
{iv) Principal assumptions used 2020 2018 -
Discount rate 1.30% 2.00% :
RPI inflation 2.95% 3.05% :
CPl inflation ’ 2.25% 2.05%
Pension increases for in-payment benefits
- RPI price inflation capped at 5% pa 2.90% 2.95%
—linked to RPI inflation 2.95% 3.05%
i
The discount rate and inflation rate assumptions for 2020 and 2019 have been set with reference to vield curves. The single rotes
disclosed above represent the weighted average equivalent rate bosed on the yield curve used. The pension increase assumptions 3
disclosed represent spot rates on the vield curve ot the approximate duration of the scheme's liabilities. %{
Mortality rate assumptions are based on the same mortality tables as disclosed within the LV Scheme, but using Ockham specrfic G
individual base tables. :
Future life expectancy assumptions {in years) as at 31 December 2020 2019
Pensioner {currently aged 65) ;gx.
- Maile 23.4 233 k3
-Female 244 24.2 ?
Non-pensioner (¢t age 65, currently aged 45)
- Male 24.2 24.1
—Female 26.3 25.1
The medium to long-term impacts cf COVID-19 are uncertain on the longevity assumptions, and correspondingly, no allowance has
heen made for such potential impacts.
(v} Sensitivity analysis: Impact on defined benefit obligation of making changes to key assumptions
Change in assumption Impact on defined benefit obligation
Discount rote Decrease by 0.5% increase by £13m (8%)
RPI rate : Increase by 0.5% Increase by £7m {4%)
Life expectancy Increase by 1 year Increase by £7m (4%}
The sensitivity analysis has been calauated by veluing the defined benefit obligation using the amended assumptions shown in
the toble above and keeping the remaining assumpticns the same cs disciosed in the principal assumptions table for the scheme,
axcept in the case of the inflation sensitivity where other assumptions that depend on assurmed inflation have also been omended
correspondingly.

. : . o
{vi) Plan asset information &
Plan assets are comprised as follows: ;

(23
2020 2019 Q
Quaoted Ungquoted Total Quoted Unguoted Total g
Em £m £m % £m £ £ 2% =
Equities and unit trusts 42 - 4?2 23 36 - 36 22 5)1'
Debt securities 113 - 113 62 126 - 126 75
Derivative swaps - - - - - (1) (1) (1)
Cash and cash equivalents 26 - 26 . 15 7 - 7 4
181 - 181 100 169 (1) 168 100
I determining and reviewing the Scheme's investment sirategy, the Trustee adopts an objectives based approach. This translates
the principal geal of paying member enefits into measurable funding objectives and risk constraints, agreed by the Trustee. These
objectives dre reviewed and monitored by the Trustee on a regular basis.
R
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39. Pension benefit asset (continued)

¢) Ockham Scheme (continued) .

The Trustee's primary funding objective is to reach full funding on the Technical Provisions basis, with o long-term target of moving
towards being fully funded on a Gilts +0.25% liability valuction basis by 2028. In seiting the investment strategy, the Trustee aims to:
« Target an expected return on assets close 1o that required to meet the funding objective;

» Manage the investment risk including that arising due to a mismatch between ussets and liabilities by hedging to the Scheme'’s
funding level on a Gilts +0.25% liability valuction basts, as well as limit the total risk on the Scheme below the risk budget:

»  Muaintoin suitable liquidity of assets such thot the Scheme is not forced to buy and sell investments at particular times to pay
menber benefits or meet potential colloteral colls.

Following the triennial scheme valuation which took place s at 31 March 2018, LVFS as principal employer agreed. on behalf of

participating employees, to make annual deficit reduction contributions of £2,000,000, commencing 31 March 2019 until 31 March

2028, to meet the statutory funding objective. In addition to these funding contributions, LVFS continues to make payments of £31,516

per month towards the regular expenses of administering the defined benefit section of the Scheme plus payments equal to the

pension protection fund (PPF} levies.

The next formal valuation of the Scheme is due no later than 31 Morch 2021.

(vii) Pension scheme risks
Details of the pension scheme risks that the Group is exposed to are disclosed within the LV Scheme,

(viii) Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted pension benefits:

Lessthan Between Between
ayear 1-2years 2-5ycars Over5years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2020 6 6 18 170 200

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 16 years.

The expected contributions to the Ockham pension scheme for the year ending 31 December 2021 ore £2m.
d) Teachers Assurance Group Pension Scheme

The Trustee of the Teachers Assurance Group Pension Scheme is in the process of winding up the Scheme.

Following the purchase by the Trustee in 2019 of a bulk annuity policy as an investment of the Scheme from an insurance compaony,
Rothesay Life. the Trustee agreed thot the Scheme should cease and be wound up. Until the transfer process to Rothesay Life was
finalised, Rothesay Life made monthly payments to the Scheme to cover the pension payroll. The transfer to Rothesay Life was
completed on 6 August 2020.

During the year, employer contributions of £31,021 were made by the Group.
The fair value of the plon assets as at December 2020 was £nil (2019: £31im) and the present value of the obligations was £nil 2013: £31m).

Due to the immaterial nature of the Teachers scheme no detailed disclosures have been made.
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This section describes the provisions, contingent ligbilities and commitments of the Company and Group arising from the ongeing life
business and the exit from the banking and asset management businesses in prior years.

40. Provisions -

Accounting for provisions

Provisions are recoghised when the Group has o present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, itis more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliobly estimated. \Where
the Group expects some or all of @ provision to be reimbursed this is recognised as ¢ separate asset when the reimbursement is
certain. Provisions cre measurad ot the present value of the expenditure required to settle the obligation uéing a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the cbligation. The expense relating to
provisions is presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Group Company

Movement during the year on provisions £m £m
Balance at 1 Jonuary 2020 10 9 .
Provided during the year 2 2 ¢
Released during the yeor (1) (1)
Utilised during the year ) (8) {7)
Balance at 31 December 2020 3 3

Group Company

2020 2016 2020 2019

Provisions relate to: £m £m £m Em
Payment protection insurance 1 3 1 kS
Onerous contracts - 3 - 3
Compensation paychle on custormer complaints 1 1 1 -
Other 1 3 1 3

3 10 3 9

The payment protection insurance (PRI} provision is held to cover future payments in respect of cluims relating to PP policies potentially
mis-scld 1o custemers. The final deadline for lodging o PP claim was 29 August 2019, therefore no further claims will be received. Due
to the high volume of claims received pricr to the final deadline, as at 31 December there were still claims, which had been received prior
to the deadline, which have not yet been settled. Given the assumptions made it is expected thot all remaining claims will be processed,
resulting in estimoted payments of £1m within the next twelve months.
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41, Contingent ligbilities and other risk factors

Accounting for contingent liabilities .
Contingent liabilities are disclosed if there is a possible future obligation as a result of a past event, or if there is a present obligation
as a result of a past event but either o payment is not probable or the amount cannot be reasonably estimated.

LVFS has granted a contingent loan facility to the RNPFN fund, a closed fund within LVFS, to be used in the event of ¢ shortfalt in the
capital rescurces of that fund. The maximum level of capital support is reset every year in line with the terms of the RNPFN Scheme
(the level which applied in 2020 was £50.6m). The RNPFN fund is required to manage its capital in o manner so as not to require use of
this facility and, if it is used, to repay it to LVFS as soon as possible. While undrawn a charge for the facility is made at 1% perannum.

LVFS has gronted o guarantee 1o the landlord of one of its leased properties, to guarantee that the tenant, Frizzell Financial Services
Limited, o subsidiary of LVFS, shall pay the rents reserved by the lease and observe and perform the tenant covenants of the leose
and that if the tenont fails to do so, LVFS shall pay or observe and perform them.

LVFS has provided certain guarantees in relation to mortgoge purchase agreements between its subsidiory LV Equity Release Limited
and Phoenix Life Limited. In the event that the subsidiary fails to pay any amount in connection with the agreements, LVFS would
cover the payment and any loss incurred by the counterparty as a result.

42, Commitments

Capital commitments
Capital commitments relate to authorised and contracted commitments poyable but not provided for regarding financiol investments.
The total amount of capital commitments for the Group and the Company at 31 December 2020 is £6m {2019: £9m).

Other financial commitments

The Group has entered into several long-term contracts following service outsourcing which will end no later than 2025. These
amount to £77m (2019: £83m) for the Group and the Company. These contracted commitments have not been provided for in the
financiol statements, except where included in expense assumptions within the long-term insurance contract liabilities valuation.

The Group has no material short-term fease commitments ot 31 Decemizer 2020.
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This section includes information on the Group's investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, ossocictes and structured entities.
The accounting policy regarding the Group’s investments is disclosed in Note 1. This section also includes information regarding
the Unallocated divisible surplus of the Company and Group.

'43. Subsidiary undertakings

All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The Group's holdings in subsidiary companies are listed below. Al holdings
are in relation to ordinary shares. The proportion of the voting rights in the subsidiory undertakings held directly by the parent company
do not differ from the proportion of ordinary shares held. The Group end all principe! undertakings ore incorporated and domiciled in
Englond and Wales. The registered office is County Gutes, Bournemouth BH1 2NF for alf subsidiaries with the exception of the Wealth
Wizard Group of companies whose registered address is 8 Athenc Court, Tachbrook Park, Leamington Spa, CV34 6RT.

Percentage

Percentage held by non-

s E . heldby controlling

Name - Principal activity Group interests

Subsidiaries directly owned by LVFS

Frizzell Financial Services Limited {Note 1} Property management -100% - 0%
LV Life Services Limited {Note 1) ' Management services 100% 0%
LV Commercial Mortgages Limited (Note 1) Commercial mortgages 100% 0%
NM Pensions Trustees Lirnited (Note 1} Self-invested personal pension (SIPP) administrator 100% 0%
Liverpool! Victoria Financial Advice Services Limited (Note 1) ) Financial advice services 100% 0%.
Liverpool Victoric Life Company Limitec . . Life insurance *100% 0%
LV Protection Limited . Insurance 100% %
LV Capitat Limited (Note 1) Holding company 100% 0%
LV Equity Release Limited (Note 1) . Origination of equrty release lifetime mortgages  ~ 100% 0%
Teachers Financial Services Limited (Note 1) . ‘ Insurance and financial intermediary . 100% %
Teachers Assurcnce Company Limited . General insurance 100% 0%
Teachers Management Services Limited {(Note 1) Management services 100% 0%
Teachers Property Limited (Note 2) ) Bormant 100% 0%
Sovereign Unit Trust Mancgers Limited (Note 2} ! Dorment  -100% 0%
Liverpool Victoria Banking Services Limited (Note 2} Dormant 100% 0%
Ayresbrook Limited (Note 2) : ‘ Dorment 100%, 0%
Liverpool Victoria Asset Management Limited (Note 2) . ' DCormant 100% 0%
Highway Corporate Copital Limited (Note 2) - | Dormont 100% 0%
Ockham Corporate Limited {Note 2} o . Dormant 100% %
NLC Nerne No. 1 Limited (Note 2) ' ’ Dormant 100% 0%
NLC Neme No. 2 Limited (Note 2) o _ Dormant 100% 0%
NLC Name No. 3 Limited (Note 2) - : ) Dormant 100% 0%
NLC Mame No. 4 Limited (Note 2) N Borment 100% 0%
NLC Name No. 5 Limited (Note 2) ’ ' : ' Bormant 100% 0%
NLC Name No. 7 Limited (Note 2) ) ’ ’ Dormant 100% 0%
The LV= Pension Trustee Limited {Note 2) - Dormant trustee company Note 3

The LV= General Trustee Limited (Note 2) Dormant trustee company Note 3

The Ockham Pension Trustee Limited {(MNote 2) Dormant trustee company Note 3

Liverpool Victoria Trustees Limited (Note 2} ' Dormant trustee compony Note 3

Liverpool Victoria Inactive Limited (Note 2) . o Dormant Note 3

Wealth Wizards Limited Group of Companies : 70%

Wealth Wizards Limited - IT software

Wegalth Wizards Benefits Limited * {(Note 1) Financial intermediary

Wealth Wizards Advisers Limited * (Note 1) . Financial intermediary

* Owned by a subsidiory undertaking of LVFS

Note 1 - The fincncial siotements of these subsidiory undertakings have not been audited for the year ended 31 December 2020.
These subsidiary undertekings are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the cudit of individuol
financial statements by virtue of Section 479A of the Companias Act 2006.

Note 2 - The financial statements of these donmant cormpanies have not been audited for the year ended 31 December 2020. These
companies were entitled to exemption from oudit under section 480 of the Companies Act 2006 relating to dormant companies.
Note 3 ~ These companies are limited by Guarantee and have no issued share capital. '

All the principal subsidiaries have the same year end as LVFS and all have been included in the consolidation.

Non-controlling interest :
Further details on the non-controlling interests held by the Group are disclosed in Note 45,




44, Associates and joint ventures

The associates and joint ventures of the Compeny at 31 December 2020 are shown below. They are incarporated ond domiciled in
England and Wales. The registered office is 33 Cavendish Square, London, W1G OPW.

Name Class of shores Year end Principal activity Percentage held
Joint ventures :
Great Victoria Partnership * 31/03/2020 Investment property 50.0%

¢ The percentage held represents the share of the partnership capital and partner loans held by the Company os at 31 December 2020.

The Group holds 50% of the voting rights of its joint arrangement. The Group has joint control over this arrangement s, under the
contractug! agreement, unanimous consent is required from all parties te the agreement for all relevant activities.

The Group's joint arrangement is structured as da partnership and provides the Group and the other parties to the agreement with
rights to the net assets of the partnership. Therefore, this arrangement is classified as @ joint venture,

The principal activity of the Great Victoria Partnership comprises investment in, and development of, freehold and leasehold property
in the United Kingdom. Property investments are held by the Group to support contractual liohilities drising from investment and long-
term insurance contracts. During the year the Group received dividends from the partnership of £nil (2019: £1m).

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of joint ventures
There are no commitments or contingent lighilities relating to the Group's interest in the joint venture.

Summarised financial information for joint ventures
In occordance with the provisions of {IFRS 12 which states that an entity may present the summarised financial informetion on the
basis of the joint venture's or associote’s financial staternents if:

» the entity measures its interest in the joint venture or associate at fair value in accordance with IAS 28; and

« thejoint venture or associate does not prepare IFRS financial statements and preparation on that basis would be imprecticable or
cause undue cost.

The summarised financial information set out below is presented on the bosis of the Great Victoria Partnership’s finuncial stotements

for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Within the Group financicl statements this holding 15 accounted for as an investment at fair value in accordance with the exemptions
permitted under IAS28 applicable to investment-linked insurance funds. As such ore included within the Risk Management disclosures
for financial instruments in Note 4.

31 March 21 March
2020 2019
Summarised Statement of Financial Position £m £m
Assets
Non-current
- Investment properties 147 199
Current '
Trade and other receivables 12 11
Cash end cush equivalents 10 . 5
169 215
Liabilities
Non-current
- Fingncial liabilities (80) (80}
Current
- Other ligbilities : (3) (4)
(83) i84)
Net assets 86 131
Partners' capital 5
i Retained earnings 81
;, ; E Total partners’ funds 86
E 31 March H ¥
et 2020 2019
o Summarised Statement of Comprehensive Income £m £m
L : Net rental income 11 12
: { Revaluation deficit on investment properties (52) (33)
Operating loss ‘ (41) i21)
‘ Finance costs (3) 3)
A Loss for the year {44) {24}

$3UN022Y INQ
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45. Non-controlling interest ,
The table below details the movement in the non-controlling interests held in subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December:
Wealth
LVGIG Wizards
Group Group Yotal
£m £m £m
Balance ot 1 Jenuary 2020 : - (6} (6)
Share of loss after tax - (1} {1)
Impcirment of Group Non-controlling interest - - 7 7
Balance at 31 December 2020 - - -
Baldgnce at 1 Jenuary 2019 409 (5) 404
Share of profit/iloss) after tax 39 {1 38
Dividend paid to Non-controlling interest {39) - (39}
Share of movement in other comprehensive income 12 - 12
Sale of remaining stake in LVGIG Group {421} - (421}
Balance at 31 December 2019 - (6) (6)
The non-controlling interest relating to the LVGIG Group of companies was establishad on 28 December 2017 when o 49% equity
stake was sold. The remaining equity stake was sold on 31 December 2019, ¢f which point the LYGIG Group and associated
non-controlling interest was disposed of.
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests
At 31 December 2020 there are no subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests. Therefore no summarised financial information
is disclosed.
Further information reloting to the LVGIG group in 2019 is included in Note 12.
\.
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486. Investments in unconsolidated structured entities

The Group has interests in structured entities which are not consolidated as the definition of control has not been met based on the
investiment propertion held by the Group. As at 31 Decermber 2020 the Group's interest in unconsolidated structured entities, which are
classified as investments held ot fair value through income, are shown below:

2020 2019

Investment £m £m

Open Ended Investment Companies 6,726 5,824

Unit trusts 167 179

& Liquidity funds ) 603 1,051
7,496 7,224

Included within the above are £3,733m (2019: £3,405m) of investments held to cover linked liabilities. Other than these, the Group’'s
exposure to financial loss from the interest in the unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment amount shown above.
The Group is not required (o provide financicl support to the entities, nor does it sponsor the entities.

47.Unallocated divisible surplus

Accounting for the Unallocated divisible surplus

The Unaltlocated divisible surplus represents the excess of assets over and above the long-term insurance contract liabilities ond
other liabilities. It represents amounts that have yet 1o be formally declared as bonuses for the participating centract policyholders
together with the free assets of the Company ond Group. Any profit or loss for the year arising through the Statement of
Comprehensive Income (for the Company and for the Group) is transferred to or from the Unallocated divisible surplus.

UK regulations, the Group's Principles and Practices of Financial Management, and the terms and conditions of participating
contracts set cut the bases for the determination of the amounts on which the participating additional discretionary contract
benefits are based and within which the Group may exercise 1ts discretion as to the quantum and timing of their payment to
contract holders.

Group Company
i 2020 2013 2020 2019
. . £m £m £m £m
'; % Balance at 1 January : 1,254 1,127 856 916
i Transfer included within profit for the year (85) 124 268 (58)
: Transfer inciuded within other comprehensive income (54) 3 {54) {2)

Balance at 31 December 1,115 1,254 1,070 356




This section includes information on other disclosure matters, comprising: related party transactions, directors’ emoluments and other
relevant LVFS information.

48. Related party transactions

5

a) Key management compensation .
Key management personnel of the Group comprise all executive and non-executive directors and senior management. The summary
of the compensaotion of key management personnel for.the year is as follows:

Group

2020 2019
. £000 £000

Short-tarm employment benefits . : 4,780 5,956
Other long-term henefits : ) . ... 403 1,506
Post-employment benefits S . .56 16
Termination benefits . . L e 652
Total compensation of key management personnel ) . .,5,239 38,130

The aggregate premiums payable for the year by the Group Executive and Non-Executive Directors in respect of the Group's products
was £nil {2019: £16,129). . :

b) Transactions between LVFS and other Group companies

. ‘2020 L2019
. - £m £ro
Manogement charge by LVFS {see note 11) ' _ ) 13 57
Beneficial interest in loons sold to LVFS : , -, 589 69
Investment expenses charged to LVFS ) . . o (2) (3)
Interest income from group undertakings . . 1 ’ -
Dividend income from group undertakings <399 50
Balances outstanding between LVFS and other Group companies: )
2020
. . . vEm,
Payable by LVFS ) - ’ ST
Receivabie by LVFS : S 16

Loans owed to LVFS 22

¢} Loans to related parties )
Louns owed to LVFS represents a fully drawn down £22m loan agreement with Wealth Wizards, LVFS has examined the carrying value
of this loan and concluded that an impainment of £22im was required in regard-to this investment. ,

d) Other related party disclosures
LVFS has granted a contingent foan facility to the RNPFN fund, a closed fund within the Group. Further detcils of this, and other
guorantees issued on behalf of subsidiaries, are disclosed in Note 41.




49, Directors' emoluments

a) Emoluments

Emoluments of individual directors, including emoluments of the Chairman and highest paid director were as follows:

Annual remuneration £000

Total remuneration £000

2020 2019 2020 2019
Pension
* Salary Deferred  related Other Lme
andfees Bonus Bonus  bencfits  bencfits Total Totel 2018-20 Total Total
M. Hartigan (uppointed 15 June 2020)(1) 435 347 347 50 31 1,210 - - 1,210 -
W. Snow 420 258 - 40 19 737 622 313 1,050 622
A. Cook 200 - - - 5 205 261 - 205 261
D. 8arral 82 - - - 5 87 117 - 87 117
C. Ledlie 77 - - - 5 82 86 - 82 €6
L. Savage 68 - - - - 68 67 - 68 67
A. Hutchinson " 66 - - - 1 67 63 - 67 68
S. Creedon {(appointed 16 January 2020} 56 - - - 56 - - 56 -
S. Mclnnes (appointed 1 Aprit 2020) 45 - - - - 45 - - 45 -
D. Neave {resigned 30 June 2020) 32 - - - 3 35 S6 - 35 6
T. Lawler (resigned 29 January 2020) 5 - - - - 5 G6 - 5 66
R. Rowney {resigned 31 December 2019) - - - - - - 1,005 - - 191
A. Parsons (resigned 17 October 2019) - - - - - - 389 - - 389
1,486 605 347 90 69 2597 2777 313 2,910 3683

(1) Mark Hartigan performed the role of Chief Executive with effect from 1 January 2020, Formal appointment to the bouord took place
g Y P

on 15 June 2020, however his full remuneration since commencing appointment has been included in the table above.

Further details of the directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Pension related benefits are amounts taken as cash in lieu of forgone pension contributions.

Deferred bonus represents the amount of the 2020 performance honus payable over the next 3 years.

Other henefits include car allowance, medical insurance, life cover and taxable travel and subsistence.

b) Pension arrangements

The LV= Employee Pension Scheme is administered ct Group level and incorporates both defined benefit and defined contribution

sections.

The defined henefit section was closed to future accrual in 2013 at which point existing members were eligible to join the defined

contribution section.

The company has mace no contributions to personol pension arrangements during 2020 (2019: £nil). There were no contributions

to the defined contribution section in 2020 (2019: £nil).

No directors were deferred members of the defined benefit section during the year.

Deferred pension at end of year

2020
£000

W <
L .
£
Wwla ©

SIUNO22Y INO

R. Rowney {resigned 31 December 2019)
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: 50. Cash used in operating activities

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£m £in £m £m
Profit before tax, mutual/exit bonus and UDS transter from continuing operations 37 15 - -
{Loss)/profit before tax. mutucl/exit bonus and UDS transfer
from discontinued operations (2) 250 381 30
Profit before tax, mutual/exit bonus and UDS transfer 35 265 381 30
Investment income {237) (329} (632) (335)
Other interest income . - {31) - -
Net gcins on investments {786) (1.048) {785) {1.067)
Finance costs 24 25 23 23
Gain on sale of LVGIG group 2 (216) - -
Net decrease in derivatives . 14 19 14 31
Non-cash items
Movement in deferred acquisition costs - 5 - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 2 2 2
Depreciation of property and equipment 3 5 2 3
1 Loss on disposal of property and equipment - 2 - 1
Impairment of intangible assets 8 3 - 1
! Increase in provisions i 1 7 1 7
Increase in pension benefit asset (11) {7 (11) (12)
Impairment write-offs in subsidiaries - - 61 2
| Mutual and exit bonus (73) (27) (73) 27}
Changes in working capital
Decrease in loans and receivables 211 175 30 5
{Increasel/decrease in remsuronce assets (190) 55 {190) 30
‘ increase in insurance receivables (18) {45) (19) {22)
i Decrease/{increase} in prepayrments 3 2) 3 2
Increase in participating insurance contract ligbilities 158 239 158 239
: Increase/{decrease) in non-participating insurance contract liahilities 231 {3} 231 65
Increase in non-participating value of in-force business (48) {6) (48) ()]
Increase in participating investment controct liabilities 25 65 25 65
Increase in non-participating investment controct liabilities 301 452 301 462
Increases{decrecse) in subordinated liabilities 1 1) 1 -
increase in other financial liahilities 44 10 44 10
Increase/{decregse) in insurance payables 14 {18) 9 {1)
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (11) 16 {13) (16)
Cash used in operating activities : {297) (368) {485) {508}
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51. Solvency and Financial Condition Report
The Solvency and Financiol Condition Report of the Group and the Compaony os ot 31 December 2020 will be available on LV.com after
they have been submitted to the Prudentiol Regulation Authority or on request from the Group Company Secretary. County Gates,
Bournemouth, BH1 2NF.
52. Company information
On 2 anuary 2020, Liverpool Victoric Friendly Society Limited was converted to a private company limited by guarantee registered
under the Companies Act 2006, under the name Liverpool Victorio Financial ervices Limited. |

L= and Liverpool Victoria are trademarks of Liverpool Victoria Financiol Services Limited: LV and LY~ Liverpool Victora are trading
styles of the Liverpocl Victoria group of companies. Liverpool Victoria Financial Services Limited is outhorised by the Prudential iy
Regulation Authority and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential Regulation Authority, and is a member of the '
Association of British Insurers and the Investment and Life Assurance Group.

Registered office:

County Gates
Bournemouth

BH1 2NF

Telephone: 01202 292333
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